
Page 1 of 4 
 

 

AGENDA | REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

February 13, 2024 at 6:00 PM 

Council Chambers - Apex Town Hall, 73 Hunter Street 
The meeting will adjourn when all business is concluded or 10:00 PM, whichever comes first 

Town Council and Administration 

Mayor: Jacques K. Gilbert  |  Mayor Pro Tempore: Ed Gray 
Council Members: Audra Killingworth; Brett D. Gantt; Terry Mahaffey; Arno Zegerman 

Interim Town Manager: Shawn Purvis 
Assistant Town Managers: Demetria John and Marty Stone  

Town Clerk: Allen L. Coleman | Town Attorney: Laurie L. Hohe 

COMMENCEMENT 

Call to Order | Invocation | Pledge of Allegiance 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All Consent Agenda items are considered routine, to be enacted by one motion with the adoption of the Consent Agenda,  
and without discussion. If a Council Member requests discussion of an item, the item may be removed from the 

 Consent Agenda and considered separately. The Mayor will present the Consent Agenda 
 to be set prior to taking action on the following items: 

CN1 Agreement - Magnet Forensics Software - Digital Evidence Examination 

 Christy Wentzell, Police Captain, Apex Police Department    

CN2 Annexation No. 773 - 1075 South Hughes Street - Chick-Fil-A - 3.431 acres 

 Allen Coleman, Town Clerk  

CN3 Annexation No. 775 - 1133 Twin Creek Road - 2.80 acres 

 Allen Coleman, Town Clerk  

CN4 Annexation No. 776 - Sundance of NC, LLC - Salem Church Road - 2.90 acres 

 Allen Coleman, Town Clerk  

CN5 Appointments - Environmental Advisory Board (EAB) 

 Allen Coleman, Town Clerk 

CN6 Appointments - Environmental Advisory Board (EAB) - Chair/Vice-Chair 

 Allen Coleman, Town Clerk 

CN7 Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 12 - Electric Utility Operations 

Eric Neumann, Director, Electric Utilities Department 

  



Page 2 of 4 
 

CN8 Construction Contract Award - Hollins Construction Services, Inc. (HCS) - Reedy Branch 

Greenway and Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 2024-11 

Angela Reincke, Parks Planning Project Manager, Parks, Recreation, and Cult. Res. Dept. 

CN9 Council Meeting Minutes – Various 

 Allen Coleman, Town Clerk  

CN10 Friendship Village Subdivision - Fee-in-Lieu (FIL) 

Jonathan K. Jacobs, P.E., CFM, Assistant Director, Water Resources Department   

CN11 Resolution - Abandon Existing Utility Easements - Primrose School Site 

Steve Adams, Utilities Acquisition / Real Estate Specialist, Trans. Infra. Dev. Dept.  

CN12 Rezoning Case No. 23CZ13 Seymour Mixed Use PUD – Statement and Ordinance  

 June Cowles, Senior Planner, Planning Department  

CN13 Rezoning Case No. 23CZ14 Salem Street Townhome PUD – Statement an Ordinance  

Liz Loftin, Senior Planner, Planning Department  

CN14 Rezoning Case No. 23CZ15 Apex Gateway Ph. 2 Amendment Statement and Ordinance 

Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager, Planning Department   

CN15 Rezoning Case No. 23CZ20 Sweetwater PUD Amendment – Statement and Ordinance  

Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager, Planning Department   

CN16 Software License - Gladiator Forensics 

Christy Wentzell, Police Captain, Apex Police Department    

CN17 Surplus Badge and Service Weapon - Retiring Sergeant John Jones 

Joey Best, Police Captain, Apex Police Department  

CN18 Surplus Vehicles - 1999 GMC C8500 and 2008 International Workstar 7300 

 Steve Maynard, Purchasing and Contracts Manager, Finance Department  

CN19 Tax Report – December 2023 

 Allen Coleman, Town Clerk  

PRESENTATIONS 

PR1 Apex Public School Foundation - Quarterly Peak S.T.A.R. Awards – 2nd Quarter  

Councilmember Terry Mahaffey, Sponsor and  

Barbara Conroy Co-Founder and President of Apex Public School Foundation  

PR2 Proclamation – Black History Month – February 2024   

Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert  

 



Page 3 of 4 
 

PR3 Wake County 2024 Revaluation Results 

 Nicole Kreiser, Deputy Tax Administrator, Wake County Tax Administration Department  

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Mayor Gilbert will call for additional Agenda items from Council or Staff and set the  
Regular Meeting Agenda prior to Council actions. 

PUBLIC FORUM 

Public Forum allows the public an opportunity to address the Town Council.  The speaker is requested not to address items 
that appear as Public Hearings scheduled on the Regular Agenda.  The Mayor will recognize those who would like to speak at the  

appropriate time.  Large groups are asked to select a representative to speak for the entire group. 
Comments must be limited to 3 minutes to allow others the opportunity to speak. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

PH1 Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Amendments - January 2024 

Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager, Planning Department   

OLD BUSINESS 

OB1 Ordinance Amendment - Chapter 5 - Article 1 - Section 5 - Automatic Fire Sprinkler 

System Requirements (Discussion ONLY) 

Councilmember Terry Mahaffey, Sponsor  

NEW BUSINESS 

UPDATES BY TOWN MANAGER 

CLOSED SESSION 

Council will enter into closed session pursuant to: 
 
CS1 Demetria John, Assistant Town Manager and  

Steve Adams, Real Estate and Utilities Acquisition Specialist 
 

NCGS § 143-318.11(a)(5) 
“To establish, or to instruct the public body's staff or negotiating agents concerning the position to 
be taken by or on behalf of the public body in negotiating (i) the price and other material terms of a 



Page 4 of 4 
 

contract or proposed contract for the acquisition of real property by purchase, option, exchange, or 
lease.” 
 
CS2 Laurie Hohe, Town Attorney 
  

RE: Town of Apex v. Briartac Family, LLC 
 

NCGS § 143-318.11(a)(3): 
“To consult with an attorney employed or retained by the public body in order to preserve the 

attorney-client privilege between the attorney and the public body.” 
 
CS3 Laurie Hohe, Town Attorney 
 

NCGS § 143-318.11(a)(3): 
“To consult with an attorney employed or retained by the public body in order to preserve the 

attorney-client privilege between the attorney and the public body.” 
 

ADJOURNMENT 



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: February 13, 2024 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Christy Wentzell, Captain 

Department(s): Police  

Requested Motion 

 

Motion to approve a license agreement with Magnet Forensics, effective January 1, 2024 through December 

31, 2024, to examine digital evidence with mobile, cloud, and digital resources, and authorize the Interim 

Town Manager, or their designee, to execute on behalf of the Town.  

 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

Magnet Forensics software will allow the police department to examine digital evidence from mobile, cloud, 

computer, and vehicle sources.  It is a powerful and intuitive analytical tool that automatically locate and 

extract case-relevant data.  Magnet Forensics has similar capabilities as Cellebrite; however, it primarily 

functions best on Android and computer systems.  Magnet Forensics has been described as the “go-to” 

forensics tool for many local labs when they need to examine data from multiple sources such as:   

 COMPUTER: Ingest and analyze data from Windows, Macs, Chromebooks, and Linux-devices with an 

artifacts-first approach to find the most relevant evidence, media, and chats quickly. Plus, easily process 

memory with Volatility seamlessly integrated into AXIOM.  

 MOBILE: Recover and examine data from Android and iOS devices. Plus, AXIOM is the only tool integrated 

with GrayKey. Automatically validate GrayKey images, leverage keychain and keystore data to decrypt apps, 

and take advantage of support for category-based extractions.  

 CLOUD: Acquire and analyze data from social media platforms and cloud services, plus ingest warrant returns 

and user-generated archives, from sources such as Google, Apple, Microsoft, Facebook, and many more.   

- Page 5 -



 VEHICLE: Ingest and analyze vehicle data, such as Berla iVe extractions, and plot geolocation data and other 

events on the world map. Correlate data between vehicles and other sources that track geolocation data, for 

example, such as mobile devices. 

This software will not be utilized unless written consent is provided by owner and/or a signed court order 

authorizing the police department to extract data. 

 

Attachments 

 CN1-A1: Magnet Forensics Quote - Agreement - Magnet Forensics Software - Digital Evidence 
Examination 

 CN1-A2: Magnet Forensics Terms and Conditions - Agreement - Magnet Forensics Software - Digital 
Evidence Examination 

 CN1-A3: Magnet Forensics Product Brief - Agreement - Magnet Forensics Software - Digital 
Evidence Examination 

 CN1-A4: Previous Approved Purchase Order - Agreement - Magnet Forensics Software - Digital 
Evidence Examination 

 

- Page 6 -



Q-306592 - USD 6,220.50

 

Quotation
Address:
Magnet Forensics, LLC
931 Monroe Drive NE
Suite A102-340
Atlanta, Georgia 30308
United States
 

 
Phone: 519-342-0195
E-Mail: sales@magnetforensics.com
 
 

Quote #:  Q-306592-1
Issue Date:  14 Dec, 2023
Expires On:  14 Jan, 2024

 
Bill To
Christy Wentzell
Apex Police Department
205 Saunders St.
Apex, NC 27502
US
(919) 249-1149
christy.wentzell@apexnc.org

Ship To
Christy Wentzell
Apex Police Department
205 Saunders St.
Apex, North Carolina 27502
United States
(919) 249-1149
christy.wentzell@apexnc.org

End User
Christy Wentzell
Apex Police Department
205 Saunders St.
Apex North Carolina 27502
United States
(919) 249-1149
christy.wentzell@apexnc.org

 
PREPARED BY PHONE EMAIL PAYMENT TERM

James Fisher james.fisher@magnetforensics.com Net 30
 

ITEM # PRODUCT NAME SMS DATES UNIT
SELLING

PRICE

QTY EXTENDED PRICE

6AX03-1 Magnet AXIOM Term 1 Jan, 2024 to
31 Dec, 2024

USD
5,800.00

1 USD 5,800.00

 
Sub-Total USD 5,800.00
Taxes USD 420.50
Grand Total USD 6,220.50
 
Prices subject to change upon quote expiry. Accurate sales tax
will be calculated at the time of invoicing when applicable. If your
company is tax exempt, please provide appropriate support with
your signed quote. Hardware may be subject to additional fees
related to delivery, import and export.

Terms & Conditions
Unless you have an existing written agreement with Magnet Forensics for the products and/or services listed in this
quotation, by: (a) signing below, (b) submitting an Order to Magnet Forensics referencing this quotation, or (c) making
payment for the products and/or related services listed in this quotation, you agree to the terms and conditions at
http://magnetforensics.com/legal/ applicable to such products and/or services listed in this quotation to the exclusion
of any differing or additional terms which may be found on your purchase order or similar document. By signing, you
certify that you have the authority to bind your organization.

Page 1 of 2
- Page 7 -



Q-306592 - USD 6,220.50
Magnet Forensics may adjust the software term start and/or end date, without increasing the total software license
price, based on the date Magnet Forensics activates the software and provided that the total software license term
length does not change.
 
Signature:

   
          Date:

 
______/______/______

 
Name (Print):

   
          Title:

 

 
Please sign and email to James Fisher at james.fisher@magnetforensics.com

 
 
 

Page 2 of 2
- Page 8 -



  
                                 

                                              END USER  

                  LICENSE AGREEMENT                                                                  

 

Version 20231001 Page 1 of 15 

This End User License Agreement (the “Agreement”) is a legal agreement between You and Magnet 
Forensics with respect to Your license, access and use of the Product.  UNLESS YOU HAVE AN EXISTING 
AGREEMENT WITH MAGNET FORENSICS WHICH SPECIFICALLY GOVERNS YOUR LICENSE, 
ACCESS, AND USE OF THE PRODUCTS IDENTIFIED IN THE QUOTATION, THEN BY EITHER (A) 
SUBMITTING AN ORDER FOR THE PRODUCT IDENTIFIED IN THE QUOTATION PROVIDED BY 
MAGNET FORENSICS OR A MAGNET FORENSICS AUTHORISED RESELLER, (B) INDICATING YOUR 
ACCEPTANCE OF THE QUOTATION, (C) ACCEPTING DELIVERY OF THE PRODUCT; (D) 
DOWNLOADING AND/OR INSTALLING THE SOFTWARE, OR (E) USING THE SOFTWARE, YOU ARE 
REPRESENTING THAT (I) YOU HAVE AUTHORITY TO ACT ON BEHALF OF THE ORGANIZATION 
WHICH YOU REPRESENT, AND (II) YOU HAVE READ, UNDERSTAND, AND AGREE  TO BE BOUND 
BY, THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT TO THE EXCLUSION OF ANY OTHER TERMS CONTAINED 
IN A PURCHASE ORDER OR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ANY KIND TO THE QUOTATION BY YOU.   
 
1 Definitions 

1.1 “Confidential Information” means any information regardless of form or medium, whether tangible 
or intangible, including any copies or fixations made thereof that is disclosed by discloser, or to which 
the recipient is provided access by discloser, that is proprietary or confidential to discloser or its 
affiliated companies, including, without limitation, information that specifies, concerns or is related to 
discloser’s intellectual property, Software, Documentation, Product, trade secrets, business 
operations, finances, customers, technical know-how, prototypes, designs, processes, products, 
services, or the development, testing or commercial exploitation of any of the foregoing that is either 
specifically identified as confidential prior to or at the time of its disclosure or that would reasonably 
be considered by a person knowledgeable in the industry to be proprietary or confidential in nature 
because of legends or other markings on the information, the circumstances of disclosure or the 
nature of the information itself. Confidential Information includes, without limitation, (i) 
information concerning the methods of use, internal components, features, functions and 
solutions of GrayKey and VeraKey Products, information found on the Magnet Forensics 
support website, and (ii) any copies, photographs, or other reproductions of the foregoing, 
whether or not marked as “confidential” or “proprietary.” 

1.2 “Documentation” means the electronic, printed or other form of documents that accompany delivery 
of the Product that provides information about installation, operation, and use of the Product.  

1.3 “Hardware” means the physical components, devices, or equipment provided to you by Magnet 
Forensics used for the operation of the Software. 

1.4 “License Term” means the time period identified in Your Quotation or if no such period is identified in 
Your Quotation then for one (1) year commencing on the date the Software is available to You. 

1.5 “Magnet Forensics” has the meaning set out in Section 12.1. 

1.6 “Magnet Software” means the proprietary software of Magnet Forensics.  

1.7 “Perpetual License” means a license purchased with a perpetual License Term as identified in a 
Quotation. 

1.8 “Product” means the Magnet Forensics supplied products identified in the Quotation, which may include, 
Hardware, Software, and Support Services. 

1.9 “Quotation” means the quotation provided to You by Magnet Forensics or a Magnet Forensics 
authorised reseller outlining the terms, conditions, and pricing details for the licensing of Magnet 
Hardware, Software, and Support Services.  

1.10 “Software” means the Magnet Software and Third Party Software.  

1.11 “Support Services” means the support services included in the Term License or separately 
purchased as part of the Perpetual License as indicated on Your Quotation and, in each case, 
described further in Section 4.1.  

- Page 9 -



  
                                 

                                              END USER  

                  LICENSE AGREEMENT                                                                  

 

Version 20231001 Page 2 of 15 

1.12 “Term License” means a license purchased with a non-perpetual License Term as identified in a 
Quotation.  

1.13 “Third Party Software” means the copyrighted, patented or otherwise legally protected software of 
third parties (including open-source code components) incorporated into the Software.  

1.14 “User” means a single user who uses the Software as permitted by this Agreement or is otherwise provided 
access to the Software by You. 

1.15 “You”, and “Your” means the entity that purchases the license for Software pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

 
2 License Grant 

2.1 License.  The licensed rights to the Software granted to You by Magnet Forensics are as set out in 
Schedules A, B, and C (Licensed Rights) to this Agreement, as applicable.  

 
3 Fees, Taxes, and Delivery 

3.1 Fees.  You agree to pay Magnet Forensics all applicable fees identified in the Quotation within thirty 
(30) days from date of the invoice.  Magnet Forensics shall invoice You upon the earlier of: (a) You 
issuing a purchase order to Magnet Forensics that relates to the Quotation; (b) Your signing the 
Quotation; and (c) Your written indication, by email or otherwise, of Your approval of the Quotation. 
If You fail to pay any amount under this Agreement that is due and payable, and such failure remains 
unremedied for a period of thirty (30) days following written notice of default by Magnet Forensics, 
in addition to any other rights and remedies available to Magnet Forensics, Magnet Forensics shall 
be entitled to charge interest on all outstanding amounts at the lesser of 1.5% per month or the 
maximum rate permitted by law.     

 
3.2 Taxes.  You are responsible for all taxes relating to Software and services identified in a Quotation 

(excluding any taxes based on the income of Magnet Forensics).  Unless otherwise indicated, all 
amounts payable by You under this Agreement are exclusive of any tax, duty, levy, or similar 
government charge. If You are required to withhold any taxes from payments owed under this 
Agreement, the amount of payment due shall automatically be increased to offset such tax, so that 
the amount actually remitted to Magnet Forensics shall equal the amount invoiced or otherwise due. 

 

3.3 Delivery. Software will be provided by electronic means. Title and risk of loss to tangible products 
such as Equipment pass to you upon delivery, which occurs when Magnet Forensics places them 
with a carrier for shipment to you, freight prepaid. 

 
4 Support Services 

4.1 Support Services.  Details of support packages can be found at www.magnetforensics.com/legal/.  
 

4.2 Magnet Forensics does not require Your personal data to provide Support Services. If, however, as part 
of an incident resolution, You wish to provide Magnet Forensics with Your data or information (i.e. 
video footage, screen shots, case file data), You are solely responsible and liable in connection with 
the provision of such data to Magnet Forensics, including, without limitation, ensuring that the 
collection, processing and transfer of such data is in compliance with all applicable laws. Any data 
You choose to provide to Magnet Forensics in connection with the licensing and/or support of the 
Software shall be processed and stored in accordance with the confidentiality provisions of this 
Agreement and the Magnet Forensics Privacy Policy available at 
https://www.magnetforensics.com/legal/. 

 

 

 

 

- Page 10 -



  
                                 

                                              END USER  

                  LICENSE AGREEMENT                                                                  

 

Version 20231001 Page 3 of 15 

5 Intellectual Property Rights  

5.1 License Only. Except for the limited license set forth herein, You do not acquire any intellectual 
property rights to the Product or Documentation under this Agreement, including, without limitation, 
any right, title or interest in and to patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade names, industrial designs, 
Magnet Forensics Confidential Information, or trade secrets, whether registered or unregistered.  
The Software is licensed and not sold. Any rights not expressly granted under this Agreement are 
reserved by Magnet Forensics.     

 
5.2 Feedback.  Magnet Forensics shall own all feedback, comments, suggestions, ideas, and concepts 

that You provide or identify during Your use of the Product and Support Services, and all associated 
intellectual property rights (collectively the “Feedback”). You hereby assign to Magnet Forensics all 
of Your right, title and interest in Your Feedback. For certainty, Feedback shall not include any of 
Your data, Confidential Information, or intellectual property. 

 
6 Confidentiality   

6.1 Maintenance of Confidential Information. Subject to applicable law, each party agrees to: (a) keep 
confidential all Confidential Information disclosed by the other party;  (b) only use, reproduce and 
disclose the Confidential Information to facilitate the use of the Software (in Your case) or support 
and develop the Software (in Magnet Forensics’ case); and (c) protect the Confidential Information 
from unauthorized use, reproduction or disclosure in the same manner it protects the confidentiality 
of similar information of its own, but not less than a reasonable degree of care. 
 

6.2 A disclosure of Confidential Information that is legally compelled to be disclosed pursuant to a 
subpoena, summons, order or other judicial or governmental process shall not be considered a 
breach of this Agreement; provided that You promptly notify Magnet Forensics in writing, if 
notification is permitted by law, and use commercially reasonable efforts to assist Magnet Forensics, 
at Magnet Forensics’ expense, in opposing such disclosure or obtaining a protective order or other 
reliable assurance preventing or limiting such disclosure and/or ensuring that confidential treatment 
will be accorded to any Confidential Information that is disclosed.  Such disclosure does not remove 
the Confidential Information so disclosed from the protection of this Agreement.  No further 
disclosure beyond the scope of such order is allowed. 

 
7 Warranties, Exclusions, Disclaimer 

7.1 Software Warranty. While Your Support Services are active, Magnet Forensics warrants that the 
Software shall materially conform to the Documentation. If the Software does not materially conform 
to the Documentation, and you give Magnet Forensics notice while Your Support Services are active, 
Magnet Forensics will, at its option, attempt to correct, repair, or replace the Software at no additional 
cost to You. If Magnet Forensics is unable to correct the Software to conform with the warranty stated 
herein within thirty (30) days, then upon Your request, Magnet Forensics shall, as your sole and 
exclusive remedy, refund You: (a) a prorated amount of any unused prepaid license fees if You 
purchased a Term License; or (b) a prorated amount of any unused prepaid Support Services fees 
if You purchased a Perpetual License.   
 

7.2 Viruses, Licenses, Support Services.  Magnet Forensics (a) has implemented testing practices 
consistent with industry standards designed to protect against viruses that may impede the Software; 
(b) includes fully paid-up licenses to any and all Third Party Software incorporated into the Software; 
and (c) will perform all Support Services in a good and workmanlike manner consistent with industry 
standards. 

 

7.3 EXCLUSIONS.  THE WARRANTIES SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION 7 ARE THE EXCLUSIVE 
WARRANTIES MADE BY MAGNET FORENSICS TO YOU REGARDING THE PRODUCT, AND 
YOUR SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY RESPECTING ANY DEFECTS, NON-CONFORMITIES 

- Page 11 -



  
                                 

                                              END USER  

                  LICENSE AGREEMENT                                                                  

 

Version 20231001 Page 4 of 15 

OR PROBLEMS WITH THE PRODUCT.  EXCEPT AS SET FORTH IN SECTION 7.1 AND 7.2, 
MAGNET FORENSICS DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND 
CONDITIONS, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY 
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS OF 
MERCHANTABILITY, MERCHANTABLE QUALITY, PERFORMANCE, FITNESS FOR A 
PARTICULAR PURPOSE, DURABILITY, ACCURACY, RELIABILITY, NON-INFRINGEMENT, OR 
ANY OTHER WARRANTY OR CONDITION ARISING BY STATUTE, CUSTOM OR USAGE OF 
TRADE RELATED TO THE PRODUCT PROVIDED HEREUNDER. To the maximum extent 
permitted by law, any implied warranties or conditions relating to the Software that cannot be 
excluded as set out above are limited to thirty (30) days from the date that the Software is delivered 
to You.   

8 Limitation of Liability 

8.1 NOTWITHSTANDING ANY OTHER SECTION OF THIS AGREEMENT, IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER 
PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY WHETHER IN AN ACTION IN CONTRACT, TORT, 
PRODUCT LIABILITY, STRICT LIABILITY, STATUTE, LAW, EQUITY, OR OTHERWISE ARISING 
FROM OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY ORDER FOR (A) INDIRECT, SPECIAL, 
INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES OR LOSSES; (B) LOSS OF 
PROFITS OR REVENUE (OTHER THAN IN AN ACTION BY MAGNET FORENSICS TO RECOVER 
PAYMENT OF A PRICE OWED); OR (C) LOSS OF TIME, OPPORTUNITY OR ANY DAMAGES 
RELATING TO THE CORRUPTION OF DATA, LOSS OF THE USE OF DEVICES OR ANY PORTION 
THEREOF, AND DAMAGES CAUSED BY YOUR FILES, CONNECTED DEVICES, OR DATA 
COLLECTED BY YOU, EVEN IF THE OTHER PARTY IS ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH 
DAMAGES.  EACH PARTY’S CUMULATIVE LIABILITY FOR ALL CLAIMS ARISING OUT OF OR IN 
CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT (OTHER THAN IN AN ACTION BY MAGNET FORENSICS 
TO RECOVER PAYMENT OF A PRICE OWED) WILL NOT EXCEED THE AMOUNT PAID BY YOU 
FOR THE PRODUCT IN THE TWELVE (12) MONTHS PRECEDING THE CLAIM GIVING RISE TO 
SUCH DAMAGES.  
 

8.2 SECTION 8.1 SHALL NOT APPLY TO EITHER PARTY’S LIABILITY IN RELATION TO: (A) 
INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS OF EITHER PARTY UNDER SECTION 9 (INDEMNIFICATION) 
UNDER THIS AGREEMENT; (B) MISAPPROPRIATION OR INFRINGEMENT OF THE OTHER 
PARTY’S INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY; (C) BREACHES OF CONFIDENTIALITY UNDER SECTION 6; 
AND (D) YOUR PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS TO MAGNET FORENSICS, PROVIDED, HOWEVER, 
THAT MAGNET FORENSICS’ CUMULATIVE LIABILITY UNDER SECTION 9.2 RELATING TO 
THIRD PARTY SOFTWARE SHALL IN NO EVENT EXCEED THE LESSER OF: THREE TIMES 
(3X) THE AMOUNT PAID BY YOU FOR THE SOFTWARE IN THE TWELVE (12) MONTHS 
PRECEDING THE CLAIM GIVING RISE TO SUCH DAMAGES AND ONE MILLION USD 
($1,000,000.00 USD). 

9 Indemnification  

9.1 Your Indemnification of Magnet Forensics.  You will defend and indemnify Magnet Forensics from and 
against any third-party claim, cause of action, legal proceeding, cost, award of damages or any other 
judgment and legal expenses (“Claim”) in relation to: (a) any Claim arising from the modification, 
combination or use of the Software with equipment, software, interfaces, or other materials that are not 
specifically authorized by Magnet Forensics; and (b) Your collection and use of data resulting from Your 
use of the Software and any actions You take as a result thereof; and (c) unauthorized use of the Product.  

 
9.2 Magnet Forensics Indemnity.  Magnet Forensics will defend You from and against any suit brought against 

you by a third party to the extent the suit alleges that your use of a Product infringes a valid patent in 
Canada or the United States (an “IP Claim”). Magnet will also pay the damages, costs, and attorneys’ fees 
that are awarded against you in a final, non-appealable court judgment for the IP Claim, or required to be 
paid by you in a settlement of an IP Claim that Magnet has agreed to in writing.  You agree to (i) give 
prompt notice of the IP Claim to Magnet Forensics; (ii) grant sole control of the defense and settlement of 

- Page 12 -



  
                                 

                                              END USER  

                  LICENSE AGREEMENT                                                                  

 

Version 20231001 Page 5 of 15 

the IP Claim to Magnet Forensics; and (iii) provide reasonable cooperation to Magnet Forensics and, at 
Magnet Forensics’ request and expense, assistance in the defense or settlement of the IP Claim ("Your 
Indemnification Obligations”) and Magnet Forensics shall not be liable to the extent an IP Claim, or portion 
thereof, is attributable to Your breach of Your Indemnification Obligations. In the event of an IP Claim, 
Magnet Forensics may, at its option and expense: (a) obtain for You the right to continue to use the Product; 
(b) substitute a substantially equivalent non-infringing product; (c) modify the Product to make it non-
infringing; or if (a), (b), and (c) are not commercially feasible, then (d) terminate Your license and require 
that You no longer access and use the Product. If Your license is terminated, You must return or destroy 
the Product and within 30 days of receipt of all of the Product or certification of destruction thereof, Magnet 
Forensics shall refund You x) a prorated amount of any unused prepaid license fees if You purchased 
a Term License; or y) a prorated amount of any unused prepaid Support Services fees if You 
purchased a Perpetual License.  The indemnity obligations under this clause do not extend to Claims 
arising from or relating to: (aa) any modification to the Product or use in combination with any equipment, 
software, data or any other materials not authorized by Magnet Forensics where the infringement would 
not have occurred but for such activity; (bb) use of the Product by You in a manner contrary to the terms 
of this Agreement where the infringement would not have occurred but for such use;  (cc) the continued 
use of the infringing Product after Magnet Forensics has provided substantially equivalent non-infringing 
software, a non-infringing modification of the Product, or terminated Your license in accordance with this 
Agreement; or (dd) custom Product developed at Your request while utilizing Your specifications.  
NOTWITHSTANDING ANY TERMS TO THE CONTRARY IN THIS AGREEMENT, THE PROVISIONS 
OF THIS CLAUSE STATE THE ENTIRE LIABILITY AND OBLIGATIONS OF MAGNET FORENSICS 
AND YOUR EXCLUSIVE REMEDY WITH RESPECT TO ANY ACTUAL OR ALLEGED 
MISAPPROPRIATION, VIOLATION AND/OR INFRINGEMENT OF ANY PROPRIETARY AND/OR 
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
AGREEMENT. 
 

9.3 Mutual General Indemnity. Each party will defend and hold harmless the other from and against any Claim 
arising from any of the following: (a) gross negligence, willful misconduct, fraudulent misrepresentation and 
fraud by a party; (b) bodily injury or death caused by a party; and (c) breach of confidentiality obligations. 

10 Term and Termination 

10.1 Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall survive for one (1) year after the termination or expiry of Your 
License Term. 

 
10.2 Termination for Convenience.  You may terminate this Agreement and Your license for Software at any 

time upon written notice to Magnet Forensics but You will not be entitled to any refund. 
 

10.3 Termination for Breach.  Either party may terminate this Agreement and any License Term immediately 
upon notice to the other if: (a) the other party materially breaches a material term or condition of this 
Agreement which breach remains unremedied for thirty (30) days following written notice thereof by the 
other party, or immediately if such breach is not capable of remedy; (b) the other party becomes involved 
in any legal proceeding concerning its solvency, commences liquidation proceedings, has a receiver or 
administrator appointed for any of its assets, ceases or threatens to cease operations, or otherwise has a 
serious and reasonable doubt arise respecting its solvency; or (c) if Magnet Forensics determines in its 
sole discretion that licensing the Product to You would violate applicable laws.  If Your License Term is 
terminated due to breach by Magnet Forensics under (a) above, where Magnet Forensics is the relevant 
party under (b) above, or by Magnet Forensics in accordance with (c) above, Magnet Forensics shall refund 
You: (i) a prorated amount of any unused prepaid License fees if You purchased a Term License; or (ii) a 
prorated amount of any unused prepaid Support Services fees if You purchased a Perpetual License. 

 

10.4 Termination/Expiry Obligation.  Upon termination or expiry of this Agreement, and, if earlier, termination or 
expiry of a Term License, free trial or any Beta Period, You shall immediately cease all use and access of 
the Software and destroy or permanently delete all copies of the Software in Your possession along with 
any Documentation delivered to You or derivative works made therefrom.   

- Page 13 -



  
                                 

                                              END USER  

                  LICENSE AGREEMENT                                                                  

 

Version 20231001 Page 6 of 15 

 
10.5 Request for Information for Compliance.  Upon request of Magnet Forensics, You agree to provide 

reasonable information on a timely basis to confirm Your compliance with the license rights and restrictions 
to the Product. Your failure to comply with this Section 10.5 will be deemed to be a material breach of this 
Agreement. 

 
11 Compliance with Export Laws and Ethical Conduct 

11.1 You shall not export any Product, Documentation, or Confidential Information unless You comply with all 
applicable international trade laws (“ITR”). Further, You warrant (a) You are not now and have never been 
on any Restricted Party List or any sanctions list in the countries in which You conduct business; and (b) 
You understand and abide by ITR laws administered by the country in which You conducts business. You 
agree not to engage in any action in any way that would cause Magnet Forensics to violate ITR laws of the 
country in which it conducts business, including providing Magnet Forensics Product, Documentation, or 
Confidential Information to any person in any country subject to comprehensive sanctions by the U.S., 
Canada, the UK, EU, the EU member state and Singapore or any person on a Restricted Party List.  You 
agree to indemnify Magnet Forensics to the extent Your actions or inactions have caused Magnet 
Forensics to violate ITR laws and the ITR of the country in which it conducts business. You agree to 
maintain a sanctions compliance policy and controls to ensure compliance with the applicable economic 
sanctions and upon request provide a Magnet Forensics with a copy of such policy. 

 
11.2 If the Software is being licensed by or on behalf of the U.S. Government or by a U.S. Government prime 

contractor or subcontractor (at any tier), then, as a commercial item, the Government’s rights in the 
Software will be only as set forth: (a) in this Agreement; or (b) as provided in FAR 12.212 (Computer 
Software) and (for Department of Defense use or disclosure) DFAR 227.7202-3 (Rights in Commercial 
Computer Software or Computer Software Documentation), whichever set of rights provided in (a) or (b) 
are the more restrictive.  

 

11.3 Throughout Your use of the Product, You agree to comply with the Magnet Forensics Business Code of 
Conduct found at https://www.magnetforensics.com/legal. Failure to comply with the Business Code of 
Conduct may result in the suspension or termination of access to the Software, as outlined in this 
Agreement. 

 
12 Magnet Forensics Entity, Governing Law  

12.1 “Magnet Forensics” means: 
 

a) Where Your “Bill To” address identified on the Quotation is in Canada, Magnet Forensics Inc., with 
an office at 2220 University Avenue East, Suite 300, Waterloo, Ontario, Canada N2K 0A8. 

b) Where Your “Bill To” address identified on the Quotation is in France, Magnet Forensics SA, with 
an office at c/o WeWork 33 Rue La Fayette Paris, France 75009. 

c) Where Your “Bill To” address identified on the Quotation is in Germany, Magnet Forensics GmbH, 
with a registered office at c/o Eversheds Sutherland (Services) GmbH, Brienner Strabe 12, 80333 
Munich, Germany. 

d) Where Your “Bill To” address identified on the Quotation is anywhere other than in Canada, France, 
and Germany, Magnet Forensics, LLC, with an office at c/o Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange 
Street, Wilmington, Delaware 19801.  

 
12.2 Governing Law.  This Agreement is governed by and construed under, excluding any body of law 

governing conflicts of laws, the laws of: (a) England, where Your “Bill To” address identified on the 
Quotation is in Europe, Greenland or the UK; Ontario, Canada, where Your “Bill To” address identified on 
the Quotation is in Canada, or (c) Delaware, U.S., where Your “Bill To” address identified on the Quotation 
is anywhere else. You irrevocably waive any objection on the grounds of venue, forum non-conveniens or 

- Page 14 -



  
                                 

                                              END USER  

                  LICENSE AGREEMENT                                                                  

 

Version 20231001 Page 7 of 15 

any similar grounds and irrevocably consent to service of process by mail or in any other manner permitted 
by applicable law.  You also waive any right to a trial by jury with respect to any lawsuit or judicial proceeding 
arising or relating to this Agreement.    You agree that the United Nations Convention on Contracts for the 
International Sale of Goods shall not apply to this Agreement. 

 
13 General Provisions 

13.1 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and 
supersedes all previous agreements, promises, assurances, warranties, representations, and 
understandings relating to the subject matter hereof.  Your additional or different terms and conditions, 
whether on Your purchase order or otherwise, shall not apply.   

 
13.2 Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be deemed to be in default of this Agreement for failure to fulfill 

its obligations due to causes beyond its reasonable control.  This provision shall not be construed as 
excusing any payment obligations. 
 

13.3 Waiver.  No waiver by either party of a breach or omission by the other party under this Agreement 
shall be binding on the waiving party unless it is expressly made in writing and signed by the waiving 
party.  Any waiver by a party of a particular breach or omission by the other party shall not affect or 
impair the rights of the waiving party in respect of any subsequent breach or omission of the same 
or different kind. 

 
13.4 Notices.  Any notices, reports or other communications required or permitted to be given under this 

Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered by hand or sent by registered mail, courier, 
facsimile or electronic mail. For notices to You, Magnet Forensics shall send such notice to Your “Bill 
To” Address. For notice to Magnet Forensics, You shall send such notice to Attn: Legal Department, 
Magnet Forensics, with an office at 300 Colonial Center Pkwy, Suite 130, Roswell, GA 30076, United 
States. 
 

13.5 Assignment.  You shall not assign or transfer this Agreement (including, without limitation, by 
operation of law, merger, reorganization, or as a result of an acquisition or change of control) without 
the prior written consent of Magnet Forensics, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld, 
conditioned or delayed.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective 
lawful successors and permitted assigns.  Any purported assignment in violation of this Section 13.5 
shall be null and void. 

 
13.6 Survival.  Section 6 (Confidentiality), Section 8 (Limitation of Liability), Section 9 (Indemnification), and any 

other provision of this Agreement which by its nature would survive the termination or expiration of this 
Agreement shall do so. 

 
13.7 Electronic Execution.  The parties agree to the use of electronic communication in order to enter into this 

Agreement, Quotations, purchase orders and any other notices or records. You hereby waive any rights 
or requirements under any laws in any jurisdiction which require an original, non-electronic signature or 
delivery or retention of non-electronic records, to the extent permitted under applicable law. 
 

13.8 Invalidity.  If any part of this Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable pursuant to applicable 
law, then the invalid or unenforceable provision will be deemed superseded by a valid, enforceable 
provision that most closely matches the intent of the original provision and the remainder of this Agreement 
shall continue in full force and effect.  

 

END OF AGREEMENT 
  

- Page 15 -



  
                                 

                                              END USER  

                  LICENSE AGREEMENT                                                                  

 

Version 20231001 Page 8 of 15 

Schedule A – Licensed Rights for All Products 

1 Definitions. 
 

1.1 “Case License” means the Software is subject to a license fee that is based on granting access to 
the Software for a single source (i.e. single hard drive or image file). 

1.2 “CLS License” or “LLS License” means the Software is subject to a license fee that is calculated 
based on the number of concurrent usage virtual license Keys identified in the Quotation as available 
at any one time to be downloaded by Users. CLS (Cloud License Server) virtual license Keys are 
hosted in an online, cloud-based environment whereas LLS (Local License Server) virtual license 
Keys are hosted on Your premises. 

1.3 “Dongle” means a USB device provisioned with the Software. 

1.4 “Dongle License” means the Software is subject to a license fee that is calculated per Dongle.   

1.5 “Enterprise License” means the Software is subject to a license fee that is calculated based on a 
maximum number of Software installs and/or concurrent Users as set out in the  Quotation. 

1.6 “Instance” means a copy of the Software that a User is authorized to use.  The maximum number 
of Instances per User are stated in the Quotation. 

1.7 “Key” means the license key provided to You by Magnet Forensics to permit access to and use of 
the Software to a User. 

1.8 “Machine” means each hardware machine or hardware unit on which the Software is used. 

1.9 “Machine License” means the Software is subject to a license fee that is calculated per Machine.     
 
2 License Grant. Magnet Forensics hereby grants to You a limited, non-exclusive, revocable, non-

transferable, non-sublicensable license to use the Software on Your internal business networks for the 
number of Users, installs, and/or Instances and License Term indicated in Your Quotation in 
accordance with the terms set forth in this Agreement and the Documentation. Your license only 
permits you to possess and use the Software in object code form.  For certainty: (a) academic licenses 
are granted for academic, non-commercial use only; (b) licenses for Magnet AUTOMATE products are 
licensed on a per ‘control node” and “agent node” basis; (c) Machine Licenses are solely permitted for 
use of the Software on the Machine on which such Software is first installed and by the original User; 
and (d) Dongle Licenses are for use on Machines only (and not for use in cloud or other virtual 
environments), and cannot be shared between individual Users.  For further certainty: (i) Enterprise 
Licenses, CLS Licenses and LLS Licenses allow for concurrent Users of the Software as indicated in 
Your Quotation; and (ii) a unique key code is issued for a Case License tied to the original single 
source, with requirements for additional single sources requiring an add-on purchase.  It is Your 
responsibility to fully comply with all applicable laws in using and handling the Software and any 
additional third-party license terms applicable to Third Party Software.  

 
3 Restrictions.  You shall not and shall ensure that Users shall not:  

3.2 copy, reproduce, or modify the Product or any part thereof, including, but not limited to, combining 
with other software or hardware other than as authorized by Magnet Forensics in writing; 

3.3 enhance, improve, alter, create derivative works, reverse engineer, disassemble, deconstruct, 
impair, translate, decrypt, reverse compile or convert into human readable form the Software or any 
part thereof; 

3.4 distribute, lend, assign, license, sublicense, lease, pledge, rent, transfer, sell or otherwise provide 
access to the Software, in whole or in part, to any third party; 

3.5 use any Product on a time sharing, service bureau, application services provider (ASP), rental or 
other similar basis; 

- Page 16 -



  
                                 

                                              END USER  

                  LICENSE AGREEMENT                                                                  

 

Version 20231001 Page 9 of 15 

3.6 remove, deface, cover or otherwise obscure any proprietary rights notice or identification on the 
Software; 

3.7 circumvent or disable copyright protection mechanisms or license management mechanisms;  

3.8 photograph or record any of the Product’s components, whether internal, external or as digitally 
displayed; 

3.9 use the Product to provide services to third parties (including technical or training services), or 
otherwise publicly display or market the Software, for the purposes of Your commercial gain;  

3.10 use the Product in conjunction with other software or hardware, except as authorized in writing by 
Magnet Forensics; 

3.11 use the Product in any unlawful manner or to violate any rights of a third party; or 

3.12 authorise, permit or otherwise acquiesce in any other party engaging in any of the activities set forth 
in 1.3.1 – 1.3.6 above, or attempting to do so. 
 

For the purposes of this provision “copy” and “reproduce” shall not include: (A) making additional copies 
of the Software for Your own use, as long as only one copy may be used at any one time in accordance with 
the Documentation; or (B) making one back-up copy of the Software.    

 
4 Restrictions Applicable to Consultant Licenses.  Notwithstanding Section 1.3.8, if Your license is 

identified in a Quotation as a “consultant license”, You may use the Software in relation to Your 
provision of forensic analysis services to a third party for commercial gain, subject to Your compliance 
with all other terms of this Agreement and the payment of all applicable fees, provided that the following 
additional restrictions shall apply:   

4.2 You shall be solely responsible for Your services, including any use or operation of the Software 
(both separately or in combination with any other software), to provide such services, and, as Magnet 
Forensics expressly disclaims all liability for any claims, losses or damages relating to Your services, 
You agree to indemnify Magnet Forensics against all such claims, losses and damages;  

4.3 You shall not permit Your customers to use the Software (with the exception of using the Portable 
Case functionality);  

4.4 You shall not use the Software to provide digital forensics training to third parties (including 
instructions on how to use the Software), unless You have first obtained Magnet Forensics’ express 
written permission; 

4.5 You shall not, whether in an agreement for Your services or otherwise, in any way modify, negate or 
override any terms and conditions of the protections afforded to Magnet Forensics under this 
Agreement;  

4.6 You shall not engage in deceptive, misleading, illegal or unethical practices that might reasonably 
be detrimental to Magnet Forensics or its products or services;  

4.7 You shall not make any representations, warranties or guarantees about Magnet Forensics or its 
products and services except as expressly set out in this Agreement; and 

4.8 where You wish to publicize, market or otherwise promote the use of the Software in Your services, 
You must do so in a manner consistent with Magnet Forensics’ External Marketing Policy (located 
at https://www.magnetforensics.com/wp-
content/uploads/2022/11/MagnetForensics_BrandGuidelines.pdf) and any other marketing and 
trademark requirements set out by Magnet Forensics from time to time. Any use of Magnet 
Forensics’ Trademarks shall remain unchanged and give legal notice of such trademark status. 
 

5 Beta Software. If You have requested use of or have access to Software or features that are identified 
by Magnet Forensics as pre-commercial, preview release, evaluation, pilot, "alpha", or "beta" software 
("Beta Software"), the license rights set out above with respect to Your use of such Beta Software apply 

- Page 17 -



  
                                 

                                              END USER  

                  LICENSE AGREEMENT                                                                  

 

Version 20231001 Page 10 of 15 

only to the extent necessary to enable You and the Users to test and provide Feedback to Magnet 
Forensics regarding the Beta Software. You acknowledge and agree that Magnet Forensics may 
terminate Your use of Beta Software at any time and may include technical measures in the Beta 
Software that renders it inoperable and You agree that You will not circumvent such technical 
measures.  You further acknowledge and agree that the Beta Software is provided “AS IS” with none 
of the representations, warranties, or indemnities provided in the Agreement. In consideration of the 
grant of license for the Beta Software, You agree that You will provide Magnet Forensics with Feedback 
on Beta Software as Magnet Forensics reasonably requests without any compensation.  

 
6 Trial Licenses. If Your License is indicated as a Trial License on the Quotation (“Trial License”), the 

license rights set out above with respect to Your use of such Trial License apply only for the time period 
authorised by Magnet Forensics (“Trial Period”) and solely to the extent necessary to enable You and 
the Users to test the Product in order to identify if the Product is suitable for purchase from Magnet 
Forensics. Additionally, the Product underlying the Trial License or delivered to you as a Free Tool is 
provided “AS IS” with none of the representations, warranties or indemnities provided in the Agreement.  
Notwithstanding the Trial Period, Magnet Forensics may terminate Your Trial License at any time and 
require that You cease using the Software. 

  

- Page 18 -



  
                                 

                                              END USER  

                  LICENSE AGREEMENT                                                                  

 

Version 20231001 Page 11 of 15 

Schedule B – Additional VeraKey Terms and Conditions 
 

1 Definitions. 
 

1.1 “Authorized Country” means a country in which Magnet Forensics has authorized use of the 
VeraKey as set out in the Documentation. 

1.2 “Authorized User(s)” means employees who are authorized by You to access or use the Product 
and Software.  You agree to limit the number of Authorized Users to those employees who perform 
extractions in the normal course of their employment.    

1.3 “Authorized Device” means mobile devices (a) owned and controlled by you; (b) if you are retained 
to perform an Investigation by a third party, owned by such third party; or (c) owned by an individual 
that has expressly, voluntarily, and specifically authorized you in writing, without coercion or threat 
of reprisal, to perform an Extraction of their mobile device. 

1.4 “Extraction” means the use of the Product to extract data from an Authorized Device. 
 
2 License Restrictions. If You are licensing the VeraKey Product, as identified in Your Quotation, You 

agree to the following additional restrictions in addition to the license rights and restrictions set out in 
Schedule A of this Agreement: 
 

2.1 You may only use the VeraKey Product in an Authorized Country for Extractions on Authorized 
Devices in aid of an official investigation of corporate malfeasance including (a) fraud, (b) bribery, 
(c) theft, (d) antitrust violation, (e) sabotage, (f) breach of confidentiality obligations, (g) securities 
violation, (h IP infringement or misappropriation of intellectual property, (i) as part of or in response 
to an official government investigation or request for product of documentation (FDA, SEC, FTC, 
OSHA, etc.), (j) as part of a legally compelled production of documents by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, (k) in defense of a criminal charge filed in a court of competent jurisdiction, where such 
investigation is made in response to an official complaint supported by reasonable evidence (each, 
an “Investigation”) and for no other purpose (“Authorized Extraction(s)”). You agree not to use the 
Product to screen, audit, spot-check, or otherwise discover instances of corporate malfeasance or 
violation of corporate policy. Prior to performing an Extraction, Magnet Forensics may require that 
you or your Authorized User(s) certify that the contemplated Extraction meets the above definition 
of an Authorized Extraction. You warrant that any certification materials submitted as part of Your 
Authorized Extraction certification responsibilities are true and correct in all material respects.  
 

2.2 To the extent legally practicable, Authorized Devices must remain in Your possession and control 
until after the software agent employed by the Product has been successfully uninstalled from such 
Authorized Devices. 

 
2.3 Only Authorized Users who have obtained any necessary consents and approvals are permitted to 

access and use the Product or Software in connection with any Extractions. You shall notify Magnet 
Forensics in writing the name and user information associated with each Authorized User, and within 
thirty (30) calendar days following a change of an Authorized User’s employment status such that 
the Authorized User ceases to be authorized by You to access or use the Product and Software 
either through ceasing to be employed by You or a change in his or her position within the Your 
organization such that he or she is no longer authorized to access or use the Product and Software.   

 
2.4 You agree to designate an employee with senior management and oversight responsibilities within 

your organization to act as Your “Primary Authorized User.”  The Primary Authorized User will be 
notified each time an extraction is performed on the device and shall supervise use and security of 
the Product and Software.  You agree to require the Primary Authorized User, as part of their 
employment obligations, to monitor the use of and ensure the security of the Product.  The Primary 
Authorized User is not permitted to perform Extractions. You shall notify Magnet Forensics in writing 
the name and user information associated with the Primary Authorized User, and within thirty (30) 

- Page 19 -



  
                                 

                                              END USER  

                  LICENSE AGREEMENT                                                                  

 

Version 20231001 Page 12 of 15 

calendar days following a change of the Primary Authorized User’s employment status such that the 
Primary Authorized User ceases to be tasked by the Licensee to oversee the use and security of the 
Product and Software. 

 
2.5 You will conduct, at your expense, background checks on your employees (including but not limited 

to Authorized Users) and those of your agents and subcontractors who will have access (whether 
physical, remote, or otherwise) to Magnet Products or Software. You will not permit your employees, 
agents, or an (including the personnel of any of its agents or subcontractors) that have been 
convicted of a felony crime or has agreed to or entered into a pretrial diversion or similar program in 
connection with a felony crime to have access to: (a) Magnet Forensics Confidential Information; (b) 
the secure environment in which the Product is stored; (c) the Product, the Software, or any 
associated materials. 

 
2.6 You covenant and agree to keep the Product in a physically secure environment at all times, and to 

take all necessary precautions to restrict use of the Product to Authorized Users. You acknowledge 
and agree that for the Product to function properly in online mode, the Product must be connected 
to the Internet. 

 
2.7 Magnet Forensics may use third-party monitoring tools to ensure that You comply with the foregoing 

restrictions.  You acknowledge that Your use of the Product may be subject to additional terms and 
conditions as set by the third-party responsible for such tools. 

 
3 Warranty Disclaimer. Notwithstanding Section 7.1 of the Agreement, You acknowledge and agree 

that the Software is provided AS-IS and without any warranty of any kind. Further, You acknowledge 
that all case stakeholders are aware of and understand the associated risk that the Authorized Device 
may become damaged and/or Authorized Device data may be unrecoverable when used with the 
Product or Software, in particular for Authorized Devices  (a) with aftermarket repairs or hardware and 
nonstandard software builds; (b) that boot loop or are otherwise unable to boot normally; (c) that have 
preexisting damage, defects, or faults that may or may not be detectable; or (d) with software, software 
builds, states, or usage profiles not identified on the applicable support matrix.  You further understand 
that not all permutations of Authorized Device software, software builds, states, and usage profiles 
have been tested by Magnet Forensics.  Before utilizing the Product and Software on an Authorized 
Devices under any of the above conditions, please consult Magnet Forensics through the customer 
support portal. You release Magnet Forensics from all liability associated with damage to a mobile 
device or corruption of mobile device data resulting from the use of the Software or the Product. 

 
4 Violations of License Restrictions.  
 
4.1 Section 8.1 of the Agreement (Limitation of Liability) shall not apply to damages arising from Your 

violation(s) of Schedule A - Section 3 and this Schedule B. 
 

4.2 In addition to the termination rights set out in Section 10 of the Agreement (Termination), Magnet 
Forensics may terminate this Agreement and suspend Your License, at its sole discretion and option, 
without notice and without refund or reimbursement if You violate any material term or condition of 
this Agreement. 

 
5 Heightened Confidentiality Obligations. The VeraKey Product, along with its associated 

Documentation, are sensitive technologies whose Confidential Information requires the highest duty of 
care.  You, Your employees, Your agents who require access in order to perform hereunder, and all 
final users of the VeraKey Product (collectively, “Receiving Party”) shall not disclose, use, sell, transmit, 
inform or make available to any entity, person or body any of the Confidential Information nor shall it 
copy, photograph, or otherwise reproduce any Confidential Information, except as a necessary part of 
performing its obligations hereunder, and shall take all such actions as are reasonably necessary and 
appropriate to preserve and protect the Confidential Information and Magnet Forensics’ rights therein, 

- Page 20 -



  
                                 

                                              END USER  

                  LICENSE AGREEMENT                                                                  

 

Version 20231001 Page 13 of 15 

at all times exercising the highest duty of care. Receiving Party agrees to restrict access to VeraKey 
Confidential Information to those Authorized Users who require access in order to perform hereunder, 
and, except as otherwise provided, the Receiving Party shall not make Confidential Information 
available to any other person or entity without the prior written consent of Magnet Forensics. Further, 
Receiving Party acknowledges and agrees that due to the unique nature of the VeraKey Products, 
there can be no adequate remedy at law for any breach of its obligations under this Section 5 related 
to such Products, that any such breach will cause irreparable and continuing damage to Magnet 
Forensics and, therefore, that upon any such breach or any threat thereof, Magnet Forensics shall be 
entitled to whatever remedies it might have by law and equity, including injunctive relief, a decree for 
specific performance, and all other relief as may be proper (including money damages, if appropriate).  
The Receiving Party further acknowledges and agrees that the covenants contained herein are 
necessary for the protection of legitimate business interests and are reasonable in scope. 
 

6 Excess Use of Licenses. If You use the Product in excess of the license quantities or levels stated in 
Your Quote, Magnet Forensics reserves the right to invoice You for such excess use based on the then 
current list price of the minimum add-on package required to bring Your use into compliance and you 
agree to pay such invoice in accordance with Section 3 of the Agreement. 
 

 

  

- Page 21 -



  
                                 

                                              END USER  

                  LICENSE AGREEMENT                                                                  

 

Version 20231001 Page 14 of 15 

Schedule C – Additional GrayKey Terms and Conditions 
 

1 Definitions. 
 

1.2 “Authorized Location” means the authorized physical locations specified in the Quotation or that 
Licensee has otherwise registered with Magnet Forensics and that Magnet Forensics has approved 
in writing. 

1.3 “Authorized User(s)” means collectively, employees, agents or contractors who are authorized by 
You to access or use the Product and Software.  

1.4 “Device” means a mobile device. 

1.5 “Extraction” means the use of the Product to extract data from a Device. 
 
2 License Restrictions. If You are licensing the GrayKey Product, as identified in Your Quotation, You 

agree to the following additional restrictions in addition to the license rights and restrictions set out in 
Schedule A of this Agreement: 
 

2.1 Only Authorized Users who have obtained any necessary consents and approvals are permitted to 
access and use the Product or Software in connection with any Extractions. You shall notify Magnet 
Forensics in writing the name and user information associated with each Authorized User, and within 
thirty (30) calendar days following a change of an Authorized User’s employment status such that 
the Authorized User ceases to be authorized by You to access or use the Product and Software 
either through ceasing to be employed by You or a change in his or her position within the Your 
organization such that he or she is no longer authorized to access or use the Product and Software. 
 

2.2 To the extent legally practicable, Devices must remain in Your possession and control until after the 
software agent employed by the Product has been successfully uninstalled from such Devices. 

 
2.3 If Your use of the Product is restricted to the Authorized Location identified in Your Quotation, You 

covenant and agree to keep the Product in a physically secure environment within the Authorized 
Location at all times, and to take all necessary precautions to restrict use of the Product to Authorized 
Users. You acknowledge and agree that for the Product to function properly in online mode, the 
Product must be connected to the Internet. 

 
2.4 Magnet Forensics may use third-party monitoring tools to ensure that You are in compliance with the 

foregoing restrictions.  You acknowledge that Your use of the Product may be subject to additional 
terms and conditions as set by the third-party responsible for such tools. 

 
3 Warranty Disclaimer. Notwithstanding Section 7.1 of the Agreement, You acknowledge and agree 

that the Software is provided AS-IS and without any warranty of any kind. Further, You acknowledge 
that all case stakeholders are aware of and understand the associated risk that a Device may become 
damaged and/or Device data may be unrecoverable when used with the Product or Software, in 
particular for Devices  (a) with aftermarket repairs or hardware and nonstandard software builds; (b) 
that boot loop or are otherwise unable to boot normally; (c) that have preexisting damage, defects, or 
faults that may or may not be detectable; or (d) with software, software builds, states, or usage profiles 
not identified on the applicable support matrix.  You further understand that not all permutations of 
Device software, software builds, states, and usage profiles have been tested by Magnet Forensics.  
Before utilizing the Product and Software on a Devices under any of the above conditions, please 
consult Magnet Forensics through the customer support portal. You release Magnet Forensics from all 
liability associated with damage to a mobile device or corruption of mobile device data resulting from 
the use of the Software or the Product. 
 
 
 

- Page 22 -



  
                                 

                                              END USER  

                  LICENSE AGREEMENT                                                                  

 

Version 20231001 Page 15 of 15 

4 Violations of License Restrictions.  
 
4.1 Section 8.1 of the Agreement (Limitation of Liability) shall not apply to damages arising from Your 

violation(s) of Schedule A - Section 3 and this Schedule C. 
 

4.2 In addition to the termination rights set out in Section 10 of the Agreement (Termination), Magnet 
Forensics may terminate this Agreement and suspend Your License, at its sole discretion and option, 
without notice and without refund or reimbursement if You violate any material term or condition of 
this Agreement. 

 
5 Heightened Confidentiality Obligations. The GrayKey Product, along with its associated 

Documentation, are sensitive technologies whose Confidential Information requires the highest duty of 
care.  You, Your employees, Your agents who require access in order to perform hereunder, and all 
final users of the GrayKey Products (collectively, “Receiving Party”) shall not disclose, use, sell, 
transmit, inform or make available to any entity, person or body any of the Confidential Information nor 
shall it copy, photograph, or otherwise reproduce any Confidential Information, except as a necessary 
part of performing its obligations hereunder, and shall take all such actions as are reasonably 
necessary and appropriate to preserve and protect the Confidential Information and Magnet Forensics’ 
rights therein, at all times exercising the highest duty of care. Receiving Party agrees to restrict access 
to GrayKey Confidential Information to those Authorized Users who require access in order to perform 
hereunder, and, except as otherwise provided, the Receiving Party shall not make Confidential 
Information available to any other person or entity without the prior written consent of Magnet 
Forensics. Further, Receiving Party acknowledges and agrees that due to the unique nature of the 
GrayKey Products, there can be no adequate remedy at law for any breach of its obligations under this 
Section 5 related to such Products, that any such breach will cause irreparable and continuing damage 
to Magnet Forensics and, therefore, that upon any such breach or any threat thereof, Magnet Forensics 
shall be entitled to whatever remedies it might have by law and equity, including injunctive relief, a 
decree for specific performance, and all other relief as may be proper (including money damages, if 
appropriate).  The Receiving Party further acknowledges and agrees that the covenants contained 
herein are necessary for the protection of legitimate business interests and are reasonable in scope. 

- Page 23 -



Recover & Analyze Your Evidence in One Case    

Magnet AXIOM is purpose-built to recover, process, and analyze digital 
evidence from a variety of sources regardless of whether you use AXIOM 
or third-party tools to acquire your data. 

MOBILE COMPUTER
Process and analyze iOS and Android 
extractions, with direct GrayKey 
integration and support for third-party 
tools like UFED, Oxygen, and more.

Recover evidence from Windows, Mac, 
Chrome, and Linux devices. Analyze 
RAM, browser history, deleted files, and 
more. 

CLOUD VEHICLE
Analyze data from warrant returns, 
user-generated archives, live cloud 
services, and open-sources (OSINT) 
with artifact support. 

Analyze vehicle data with support for 
Berla iVe extractions and dedicated 
artifacts. Easily plot geolocation data 
on the World Map. 

ARTIFACT SUPPORT
Dedicated artifact support provided for the most 
popular and relevant sources. All your sources, 
in one case file. 

Examine digital evidence from mobile, cloud, computer, and vehicle sources, alongside 
third-party extractions all in one case file. Use powerful and intuitive analytical tools to 
automatically surface case-relevant evidence quickly. 

- Page 24 -



The advanced parsing and carving techniques of Magnet AXIOM get the most 
data from each evidence source. Magnet AXIOM is designed to surface relevant 
data for your investigation. Plus, built-in analytics tools automatically generate 
insights that could lead to important breakthroughs in your examinations.

AUTOMATICALLY SURFACE MORE EVIDENCE WITH ANALYTICS TOOLS 

Media Explorer Connections
Filter out icons and non-relevant images with 
Magnet.AI. Hitstack similar images, add hash 
sets, and automatically grade and blur CSAM.

Quickly piece together how artifacts, people, 
or even devices relate to each other. Find and 
visualize data across your sources. 

Timeline Cloud Insights Dashboard 
Timeline does the heavy lifting so you can 
rapidly learn and validate what happened 
leading up to or following an incident.   

Cloud account information is automatically 
surfaced in the Cloud Insights Dashboard, 
uncovering new sources of evidence. 

PURPOSE-BUILT REPORTING AND CASE SHARING
Magnet AXIOM offers flexible export options, including portable case, enabling you to choose and 
share the data that is most relevant to your case. Plus, you can improve the efficiency and consistency 
of reporting agency-wide with export templates.

TRY MAGNET AXIOM FOR FREE
Get a 30-day trial of Magnet AXIOM and see for yourself how  
it can help you find the evidence that matters, faster.  

© 2023 Magnet Forensics Inc. All rights reserved. Magnet Forensics® and related trademarks are 
the property of Magnet Forensics Inc. and its affiliates and used in countries around the world.

Learn more at magnetaxiom.com

Book a demo today, call us at 1-844-638-7884 or email sales@magnetforensics.com

- Page 25 -

http://www.magnetaxiom.com
mailto:sales@magnetforensics.com


- Page 26 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: February 13, 2024 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Allen Coleman, Town Clerk  

Department(s): Town Clerk’s Office  

Requested Motion 

Motion to adopt a Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition Received, to accept the 

Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk, and to adopt a Resolution Setting the Date of a Public Hearing 

for February 27, 2024, on the Question of Annexation - Apex Town Council's intent to annex 3.431 acres, 

located at 1075 South Hughes Street, Chick-Fil-A, Annexation No. 773 into the Town Corporate limits. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

The Town Clerk certifies to the investigation of said annexation. Adoption of the Resolution authorizes the 

Town Clerk to advertise said public hearing by electronic means and on the Town of Apex’s website.  

 

Attachments 

 CN2-A1: Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition 
 Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk 
 Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing 

 CN2-A2: Legal Description – Annexation No. 773 
 CN2-A3: Aerial Map – Annexation No. 773 
 CN2-A4: Plat Map – Annexation No. 773 

 CN2-A5: Annexation Petition – Annexation No. 773 
 

 

- Page 27 -



    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK 

TO INVESTIGATE PETITION RECEIVED UNDER G.S.§ 160A-31 

 

Annexation Petition No. 773 

1075 South Hughes Street – Chick-Fil-A – 3.431 acres  

 

   WHEREAS, G.S. §160A- 31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall 

be investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may 

take place; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Apex deems it advisable to 

proceed in response to this request for annexation; 

 

   NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 

Apex, that the Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the 

above-described petition and to certify to the Town Council the result of his 

investigation. 

 

This the 13th day of February, 2024. 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Jacques K. Gilbert 

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 

Town Clerk 

 

  

- Page 28 -



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY BY THE TOWN CLERK 

 

Annexation Petition No. 773 

1075 South Hughes Street – Chick-Fil-A – 3.431 acres  

 

 

 

 

To:     The Town Council of the Town of Apex, North Carolina 

 

    I, Allen L. Coleman, Town Clerk, do hereby certify that I have investigated the 

annexation petition attached hereto, and have found, as a fact, that said petition 

is signed by all owners of real property lying in the area described therein, in 

accordance with G.S.§ 160A-31, as amended. 

 

    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the 

Town of Apex, North Carolina this 13th day of February, 2024. 

 

 

 

 

                                                                      

________________________________ 

Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 

Town Clerk 

    

 

 

 
         (Seal) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 29 -



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

ON THE QUESTION OF ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G.S.§ 160A-31 AS AMENDED 

 

Annexation Petition No. 773 

1075 South Hughes Street – Chick-Fil-A – 3.431 acres  

 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the area described herein has 

been received; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Apex, North Carolina has by Resolution 

directed the Town Clerk to investigate the sufficiency thereof; and 

 

         WHEREAS, Certification by the Town Clerk as to the sufficiency of said petition 

has been made; 

 

      NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex, 

North Carolina that: 

 

     Section 1.   A public hearing on the question of annexation of the area 

described herein will be held at the Apex Town Hall at 6 o’clock p.m. on the 27th day 

of February, 2024. 

 

      Section 2.   The area proposed for annexation is described as attached. 

 

      Section 3.   Notice of said public hearing shall be published on the Town of 

Apex Website, www.apexnc.org, Public Notice, at least ten (10) days prior to the date 

of said public hearing. 

 

     This the 13th day of February, 2024. 

 

 

                ________________________________________ 

              Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor  

 

ATTEST:                        

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Allen L. Coleman, Town Clerk 

 

 

Attachment: Legal Description 

- Page 30 -

http://www.apexnc.org/


- Page 31 -



- Page 32 -



- Page 33 -



PETITION FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION   
This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s website or disclosed to third parties. 

Application #:    Submittal Date:  

Fee Paid $  Check #  
 

Page 2 of 5 Petition for Voluntary Annexation Last Updated: July 31, 2023 

TO THE TOWN COUNCIL APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

1. We, the undersigned owners of real property, respectfully request that the area described in Part 4 below be annexed 
to the Town of Apex,  Wake County,  Chatham County, North Carolina. 

2. The area to be annexed is  contiguous,  non-contiguous (satellite) to the Town of Apex, North Carolina and the 
boundaries are as contained in the metes and bounds description attached hereto. 

3. If contiguous, this annexation will include all intervening rights-of-way for streets, railroads, and other areas as stated in 
G.S. 160A-31(f), unless otherwise stated in the annexation amendment. 

OWNER INFORMATION 
   

Owner Name (Please Print)  Property PIN or Deed Book & Page # 

   

Phone   E-mail Address 

   

Owner Name (Please Print)  Property PIN or Deed Book & Page # 

   

Phone  E-mail Address 

   

Owner Name (Please Print)  Property PIN or Deed Book & Page # 

   

Phone  E-mail Address 

 

SURVEYOR INFORMATION 

Surveyor:  

Phone:  Fax:  

E-mail Address:  
 

ANNEXATION SUMMARY CHART 

Property Information   Reason(s) for annexation (select all that apply) 

Total Acreage to be annexed:  
 

Need water service due to well failure  

Population of acreage to be annexed:  
 

Need sewer service due to septic system failure  

Existing # of housing units:  
 

Water service (new construction)     

Proposed # of housing units:  
 

Sewer service (new construction)  

Zoning District*:  
 

Receive Town Services   
 
*If the property to be annexed is not within the Town of Apex’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction, the applicant must also submit 
a rezoning application with the petition for voluntary annexation to establish an Apex zoning designation. Please contact 
the Planning Department with questions. 
 

Hack, Herbert Allen 0741653978

704-405-9400 jhack2018@gmail.com

Hack, Joseph Sutton 0741653978

704-405-9400 jhack2018@gmail.com

Freeland & Associates, Inc.
864-271-4924

jclark@freelandsc.com

3.431

0

1

1

PUD-CZ

✔

✔

✔

- Page 34 -



- Page 35 -



- Page 36 -



- Page 37 -



- Page 38 -



- Page 39 -



- Page 40 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: February 13, 2024 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Allen Coleman, Town Clerk  

Department(s): Town Clerk’s Office  

Requested Motion 

Motion to adopt a Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition Received, to accept the 

Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk, and to adopt a Resolution Setting the Date of a Public Hearing 

for February 27, 2024, on the Question of Annexation - Apex Town Council's intent to annex 2.80 acres, 

located at 1133 Twin Creek Road, Annexation No. 775 into the Town Corporate limits. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

The Town Clerk certifies to the investigation of said annexation. Adoption of the Resolution authorizes the 

Town Clerk to advertise said public hearing by electronic means and on the Town of Apex’s website.  

 

Attachments 

 CN3-A1: Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition 
 Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk 
 Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing 

 CN3-A2: Legal Description – Annexation No. 775 
 CN3-A3: Aerial Map – Annexation No. 775 
 CN3-A4: Plat Map – Annexation No. 775 

 CN3-A5: Annexation Petition – Annexation No. 775 
 

 

- Page 41 -



    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK 

TO INVESTIGATE PETITION RECEIVED UNDER G.S.§ 160A-31 

 

Annexation Petition No. 775 

1133 Twin Creek Road – 2.80 acres  

 

   WHEREAS, G.S. §160A- 31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall 

be investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may 

take place; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Apex deems it advisable to 

proceed in response to this request for annexation; 

 

   NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 

Apex, that the Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the 

above-described petition and to certify to the Town Council the result of his 

investigation. 

 

This the 13th day of February, 2024. 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Jacques K. Gilbert 

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 

Town Clerk 

 

  

- Page 42 -



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY BY THE TOWN CLERK 

 

Annexation Petition No. 775 

1133 Twin Creek Road – 2.80 acres  

 

 

 

 

To:     The Town Council of the Town of Apex, North Carolina 

 

    I, Allen L. Coleman, Town Clerk, do hereby certify that I have investigated the 

annexation petition attached hereto, and have found, as a fact, that said petition 

is signed by all owners of real property lying in the area described therein, in 

accordance with G.S.§ 160A-31, as amended. 

 

    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the 

Town of Apex, North Carolina this 13th day of February, 2024. 

 

 

 

 

                                                                      

________________________________ 

Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 

Town Clerk 

    

 

 

 
         (Seal) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 43 -



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

ON THE QUESTION OF ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G.S.§ 160A-31 AS AMENDED 

 

Annexation Petition No. 775 

1133 Twin Creek Road – 2.80 acres  

 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the area described herein has 

been received; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Apex, North Carolina has by Resolution 

directed the Town Clerk to investigate the sufficiency thereof; and 

 

         WHEREAS, Certification by the Town Clerk as to the sufficiency of said petition 

has been made; 

 

      NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex, 

North Carolina that: 

 

     Section 1.   A public hearing on the question of annexation of the area 

described herein will be held at the Apex Town Hall at 6 o’clock p.m. on the 27th day 

of February, 2024. 

 

      Section 2.   The area proposed for annexation is described as attached. 

 

      Section 3.   Notice of said public hearing shall be published on the Town of 

Apex Website, www.apexnc.org, Public Notice, at least ten (10) days prior to the date 

of said public hearing. 

 

     This the 13th day of February, 2024. 

 

 

                ________________________________________ 

              Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor  

 

ATTEST:                        

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Allen L. Coleman, Town Clerk 

 

 

Attachment: Legal Description 

- Page 44 -

http://www.apexnc.org/


Smith & Smith Surveyors, P.A. 

P.O. Box 457 

Apex, N.C. 27502 

(919) 362-7111

Firm License No. C-0155 

Lying and being in Town of Apex ETJ, White Oak Township, Wake County, North 

Carolina, and described more fully as follows to wit: 

BEGINNING at a point on or near the western right of way of NCSR 3028 (Twin Creek 

Road) bearing NAD 83 (2011) coordinate values of North 732,658.11 feet, East 

2,041,535.89 feet by others (B.M. 2017, Pg. 1294); thence South 89° 16’ 18” East, 30.00 

feet to a point; thence South 00° 42’ 41” West, 396.32 feet to a point; thence North 85° 

03’ 04” West, 94.63 feet to a point; thence North 58° 51’ 31” West, 336.04 feet to a 

point; thence North 00° 46’ 10” East, 219.25 feet to a point; thence South 89° 16’ 18” 
East, 353.90 feet to the BEGINNING, containing 2.8 total acres more or less. 

This description was prepared for the sole purpose of annexation of a municipal boundary 

and for no other use. 

- Page 45 -



- Page 46 -



- Page 47 -



Annexation #775

$200.00
1-10-2024

7612

- Page 48 -



Annexation #775 1-10-2024

- Page 49 -



Annexation #775 1-10-2024

- Page 50 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: February 13, 2024 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Allen Coleman, Town Clerk  

Department(s): Town Clerk’s Office  

Requested Motion 

Motion to adopt a Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition Received, to accept the 

Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk, and to adopt a Resolution Setting the Date of a Public Hearing 

for February 27, 2024, on the Question of Annexation - Apex Town Council's intent to annex 2.90 acres, 

Sundance of NC, LLC, located on Salem Church Road, Annexation No. 776 into the Town Corporate limits. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

The Town Clerk certifies to the investigation of said annexation. Adoption of the Resolution authorizes the 

Town Clerk to advertise said public hearing by electronic means and on the Town of Apex’s website.  

 

Attachments 

 CN4-A1: Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition 
 Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk 
 Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing 

 CN4-A2: Legal Description – Annexation No. 776 
 CN4-A3: Aerial Map – Annexation No. 776 
 CN4-A4: Plat Map – Annexation No. 776 

 CN4-A5: Annexation Petition – Annexation No. 776 
 

 

- Page 51 -



    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK 

TO INVESTIGATE PETITION RECEIVED UNDER G.S.§ 160A-31 

 

Annexation Petition No. 776 

Sundance of NC LLC – Salem Church Road – 2.90 acres  

 

   WHEREAS, G.S. §160A- 31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall 

be investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may 

take place; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Apex deems it advisable to 

proceed in response to this request for annexation; 

 

   NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 

Apex, that the Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the 

above-described petition and to certify to the Town Council the result of his 

investigation. 

 

This the 13th day of February, 2024. 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Jacques K. Gilbert 

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 

Town Clerk 

 

  

- Page 52 -



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY BY THE TOWN CLERK 

 

Annexation Petition No. 776 

Sundance of NC LLC – Salem Church Road – 2.90 acres  

 

 

 

 

To:     The Town Council of the Town of Apex, North Carolina 

 

    I, Allen L. Coleman, Town Clerk, do hereby certify that I have investigated the 

annexation petition attached hereto, and have found, as a fact, that said petition 

is signed by all owners of real property lying in the area described therein, in 

accordance with G.S.§ 160A-31, as amended. 

 

    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the 

Town of Apex, North Carolina this 13th day of February, 2024. 

 

 

 

 

                                                                      

________________________________ 

Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 

Town Clerk 

    

 

 

 
         (Seal) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 53 -



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

ON THE QUESTION OF ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G.S.§ 160A-31 AS AMENDED 

 

Annexation Petition No. 776 

Sundance of NC LLC – Salem Church Road – 2.90 acres  

 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the area described herein has 

been received; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Apex, North Carolina has by Resolution 

directed the Town Clerk to investigate the sufficiency thereof; and 

 

         WHEREAS, Certification by the Town Clerk as to the sufficiency of said petition 

has been made; 

 

      NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex, 

North Carolina that: 

 

     Section 1.   A public hearing on the question of annexation of the area 

described herein will be held at the Apex Town Hall at 6 o’clock p.m. on the 27th day 

of February, 2024. 

 

      Section 2.   The area proposed for annexation is described as attached. 

 

      Section 3.   Notice of said public hearing shall be published on the Town of 

Apex Website, www.apexnc.org, Public Notice, at least ten (10) days prior to the date 

of said public hearing. 

 

     This the 13th day of February, 2024. 

 

 

                ________________________________________ 

              Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor  

 

ATTEST:                        

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Allen L. Coleman, Town Clerk 

 

 

Attachment: Legal Description 

- Page 54 -

http://www.apexnc.org/


Smith & Smith Surveyors, P.A. 

P.O. Box 457 

Apex, N.C. 27502 

(919) 362-7111

Firm License No. C-0155 

Lying and being in Town of Apex ETJ, Cary Township, Wake County, North Carolina, 

and described more fully as follows to wit: 

BEGINNING at the northwest corner Lot A (B.M. 2005, Pg. 508), also being the 

southernmost corner Lots 32 & 33 (B.M. 2003, Pg. 1053); thence South 00° 44’ 07” East, 

272.12 feet to a point; thence North 87° 32’ 00” West, 43.01 feet to a point; thence North 

88° 10’ 26” West, 215.08 feet to a point; thence North 88° 29’ 23” West, 200.28 feet to a 

point; thence North 00° 51’ 23” East, 285.36 feet to a point; thence South 86° 32’ 31” 
East, 451.22 feet to the BEGINNING, containing 2.9013 total acres more or less. 

This description was prepared for the sole purpose of annexation of a municipal boundary 

and for no other use. 

- Page 55 -



- Page 56 -



- Page 57 -



- Page 58 -



- Page 59 -



- Page 60 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: February 13, 2024 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Allen Coleman, Town Clerk 

Department(s): Town Clerk’s Office 

Requested Motion 

A. Motion to reappoint the following Apex Environmental Advisory Board (EAB) members each for a three-

year (3) term expiring December 31, 2026: 

EAB-001 - Suzanne Mason - reappointment for 2nd Term  

EAB-003 - Katie Schaaf – reappointment for 3rd Term  

EAB-004 - Patrick Adams – reappointment for 2nd Term  

B. Motion to appoint Njeri Moller to the Apex Environmental Advisory Board (EAB) for a three-year (3) term 

expiring December 31, 2026:  

EAB-008 - Njeri Moller – appointment for 1st Term  

 

Approval Recommended? 

Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert recommends Patrick Adams, Suzanne Mason, and Katie Schaaf for reappointment 

consideration and to appoint Njeri Moller to the Apex Environmental Advisory Board (EAB)  

This recommendation is supported by EAB Chair Suzanne Mason and Vice-Chair Jason Maynard.   

 

Item Details 

The Town Clerk’s Office received a total of nine (9) candidates for appointment consideration to the 

Environmental Advisory Board (EAB).  Listed below, in alphabetical order, are the candidates and their 

respective applications are attached.  All nine (9) candidates are eligible for appointment; however, the 

Environmental Advisory Board only has four (4) vacancies: 

 Danielson, Matthew 

 Deeley, Cathy 

 Elias, Daniel 

 Longo, Marcie 

 Mihaliak, Charles 
- Page 61 -



 Moller, Njeri 

 Patel, Tanha 

 Sharma, Aditi 

 Tischler, Halle  

 

On Thursday, January 18th, 2024, the Apex Environmental Advisory Board (EAB) nominated through a 

ballot process, and selected Marci Longo to be considered for Greg Reger’s seat. Following the meeting, 

Councilmember Gantt expressed his interest in Njeri Moller and her experience working at the 

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) would bring a wealth of knowledge and experience to the Town’s 

Environmental Advisory Board (EAB) as well as help diversify the Board. Mayor, Jacques K. Gilbert 

concurred.  

 

The public is invited to re-watch the Environmental Advisory Board meeting from January 18, 2024, on the 

Town’s Youtube Channel via the following link: https://www.youtube.com/c/TownofApexGov.  The 

nomination process begins at 1 hour and 12 minutes and 6 seconds.  

 

Attachments 

 CN5-A1: Danielson, Matthew – Appointments - Environmental Advisory Board 

 CN5-A2: Deeley, Cathy – Appointments - Environmental Advisory Board 

 CN5-A3: Elias, Daniel – Appointments - Environmental Advisory Board 

 CN5-A4: Longo, Marcie – Appointments - Environmental Advisory Board 

 CN5-A5: Mihaliak, Charles – Appointments - Environmental Advisory Board 

 CN5-A6: Moller, Njeri – Appointments - Environmental Advisory Board 

 CN5-A7: Patel, Tanha – Appointments - Environmental Advisory Board 

 CN5-A8: Sharma, Aditi – Appointments - Environmental Advisory Board 

 CN5-A9: Tischler, Halle – Appointments - Environmental Advisory Board 

 

- Page 62 -

https://www.youtube.com/c/TownofApexGov


�������������	
 �������������������������������������

����������� !�"����#���� !��������#���$���������%������������#���������������&&���������'�( ���

)*+,-�./�012�3�4567895:;5<=>�?@67A98B�C9=8@ D+E+FG/�HIJ:7<<;@ DFKLM++NO/�1PQPQRQS�11T2U�?V?WW>7X=<795A�=8;�Y;>@�JB�<Y;�Z9[5�\>;8]�I5<7>�AIXY�<7:;�<Y=<�=�6=X=5XB�9XXI8Â�_>;=A;�59<;̀�B9I8�X9:W>;<;@�a98:�7A�AIJb;X<�<9WIJ>7X�75AW;X<795�IW95�8;cI;A<̂�dNE,*�Le,N�=J9I<�;=XY�9a�<Y;�X9::7<<;;A�>7A<;@�J;>9[̂f,MgM*Eh�DFKLM++Eh�ijL�M*+N,NG+NO�M*�GN,kM*g�e*lll4567895:;5<=>�?@67A98B�C9=8@m,N�-eF�EnnMhME+NO�oM+p�+pN�ONkNheqLN*+�reLLF*M+-�sONkNheqN,jG�N*gM*NN,t�ONkNheqN,t�N+rluv�w;Axeo�OMO�-eF�pNE,�EKeF+�+pMG�eqqe,+F*M+-�+e�GN,kNvy87;5@�P��z;7{YJ98|E*OMOE+N�|e*+Er+�i*ne,LE+Me*�dNgEh�}ELNV=<<Y;[�~=57;>A95 �,NnN,,NO��M,G+�}ELN�mOO,NGGS�U�\>=8]�\8;;]��=5;̀�\=8B̀�z98<Y�\=89>75=�Q�21U�e�-eF�hMkN�oM+pM*�+pN�mqN��+eo*�hMLM+Gvw;A �e�-eF�hMkN�oM+pM*�+pN�+eo*jG�N�+,E�+N,,M+e,MEh�F,MGOMr+Me*�s)��uvz9)LEMh:=<<Y;[@=57;>A95U1U�{:=7>̂X9: �eKMhN��pe*N�U1U��2QQ3U��� mh+N,*E+N��pe*N�soe,���peLNu��Er�g,eF*O�i*ne,LE+Me*�|F,,N*+�)Lqhe-N,?V� |F,,N*+��eK��M+hN~78;X<98�3��=5@�?XcI7A7<795
- Page 63 -



�������������	
 �������������������������������������

����������� !�"����#���� !��������#���$���������%������������#���������������&&���������'�( ���

)*++�,-�./0�01,�.1,+2�+34*�51�-*67*89:�;<�=>?=;@A�BC�D>E:C=:�E?>�CFG;>EFHCF:�BI;AC�<:;AA�@AAEB;FJ�KE>�J>EB:IL�MI;<�N@A@F=C�>CO?;>C<�;FD?:�K>EH�@AA�<:@PCIEAQC><�:E;HDACHCF:�DEA;=;C<�:E�B;AA�=EF:;F?C�:E�D>E:C=:�E?>�@>C@�D?:�FE:�<E�>C<:>;=:;GC�@<�:E�D>CGCF:�FC=C<<@>R�QCGCAEDHCF:L�SC�=@FN?;AQ�@FQ�D>E:C=:�@:�:IC�<@HC�:;HCL9�@H�;F�:IC�QCGCAEDHCF:�=EHH?F;:RL�MI@:�QEC<�FE:�HC@F�9�QE�FE:�=@>C�@NE?:�:IC�CFG;>EFHCF:L�9F�K@=:T�9�B@<�@�NE@>Q�HCHNC>EK�S@PCUD�S@PC�VE?F:RT�BIE<C�H;<<;EF�WLLL;<�:E�CF<?>C�IC@A:IR�@FQ�<?<:@;F@NAC�=EHH?F;:;C<�KE>�@AA�>C<;QCF:<�;F�:IC�>CJ;EF�NRCQ?=@:;FJ�NE:I�=;:;XCF<�@FQ�DEA;=RYH@PC><LLLW�9K�@FR:I;FJT�9�@H�?F;O?CAR�O?@A;K;CQ�:E�?FQC><:@FQ�:IC�=EF=C>F<�EK�H@FR�<;QC<�@FQICAD�K@=;A;:@:C�BE>P@NAC�<EA?:;EF<LZ+*[-*�+3-5�[\0�*2,][531\̂�-_*]3[+�-43++-̂�16�*̀_*63*\]*�01,�/[7*�5/[5�.1,+2�a*�,-*b,+�./3+*�]1\-32*63\c�5/3-�b16de9�I@GC�@�f@<:C><�gCJ>CC�;F�h?NA;=�iQH;F;<:>@:;EF�<E�9�?FQC><:@FQ�:IC�=EHDACj;:;C<�EK�AE=@A�JEGC>FHCF:L�9�I@GC�H@QCD>C<CF:@:;EF<�;K�K>EF:�EK�kTlllm�n?>;<Q;=@:;EF@A�NE@>Q<�@FQ�FC;JINE>IEEQ�HCC:;FJ<Lob�01,�\1.�-*67*̂�16�/[7*�_6*731,-+0�-*67*2�1\�[\0�51.\�a1[62-̂�]1dd3--31\-�16�]1dd355**-̂�_+*[-*�+3-5�5/*]1dd355**-�[\2�2[5*-�-*67*2ehA@FF;FJ�@FQ�pEF;FJ�qE@>Q�Y�MEBF�EK�V@>R�rllsYrllt

- Page 64 -



Environmental Advisory Board
Advisory Board Interest Form

Candidate Contact Information

Legal Name
Cathy  Deeley

Preferred First Name 
 

Address
2508 Whistling Quail Run, Apex, North Carolina 27502

Email
cd458@aol.com

Mobile Phone
(919) 363-2508

Alternate Phone (work/home)
 

Do you live within the Apex town limits?  
No

 

Background Information

Current Employer
N/A

Current Job Title
 

Tell us why you would like to serve?
I have lived in the same home for 25 years and have seen the area grow, and some of the impacts made 
to the area as development has increased. I believe that some of the  environmental impacts have been 
negatives impacted the area. I  would like to preserve as much as possible the existing natural beauty of 
the area. .

Please list any education, special skills, or experience you have that would be useful while 
considering this form.
I have personal experience in regards to maintaining private utilities such as wells and septic.

If you now serve, or have previously served on any town boards, commissions or committees, 
please list the committees and dates served.
N/A

- Page 65 -



Environmental Advisory Board
Advisory Board Interest Form

Candidate Contact Information

Legal Name
Daniel A Elias

Preferred First Name 
 

Address
1843 Elderbank Drive, Apex, North Carolina 27502

Email
daniel.a.elias@me.com

Mobile Phone
(323) 646-8880

Alternate Phone (work/home)
 

Do you live within the Apex town limits?  
Yes

 

Background Information

Current Employer
Fluence Energy

Current Job Title
Senior Environmental Manager

Tell us why you would like to serve?
I am very proud to live in the town of Apex. As an environmental professional with a great deal of 
sustainability, environmental management and clean energy experience, I believe I have a lot to bring to 
the Environmental Advisory Board.

Please list any education, special skills, or experience you have that would be useful while 
considering this form.
MA in Environmental Policy. 
Skilled with:
Organizational Management
Team Leadership
Working with government entities
Collaborating with power companies

LEED Green Associate
Certified Environmental Manager (CEM)

If you now serve, or have previously served on any town boards, commissions or committees, 
please list the committees and dates served.
I have not served on town boards, commissions or committees.

- Page 66 -



������������	�
� ������������������������������������

��������   !"�#����$����!"����� ��$���%���������&�����������$���������������''���������	() ���

*+,-.�/0�123�4�56789:6;<6=>?�@A78B:9C�D:>9A E,F,GH0�IJK;8==<A EGLMN,,OP0�QRST2SR2RT�UVRT�WX@YY?8Z>=8:6B�>9<�[<?A�KC�=[<�\:]6�̂?<9_�J6=8?�BJZ[�=8;<�=[>=�>�7>Z>6ZC�:ZZJ9B̀�W?<>B<�6:=<a�C:J9�Z:;Y?<=<A�b:9;�8B�BJKc<Z=�=:YJK?8Z�86BY<Z=8:6�JY:6�9<dJ<B=̀�eOF-+�Mf-O�>K:J=�<>Z[�:b�=[<�Z:;;8==<<B�?8B=<A�K<?:]̀g-NhN+Fi�EGLMN,,Fi�jkM�N+,O-OH,OP�N+�HO-lN+h�f+mmm56789:6;<6=>?�@A78B:9C�D:>9An-O�.fG�FooNiNF,OP�pN,q�,qO�POlOifrMO+,�sfMMG+N,.�tPOlOifrO-kH�O+hN+OO-u�POlOifrO-u�O,smvw�x:yfp�PNP�.fG�qOF-�FLfG,�,qNH�frrf-,G+N,.�,f�HO-lOwz>Z<K::_{F+PNPF,O�{f+,Fs,�j+of-MF,Nf+�eOhFi�|FMOX>9Z8<�}:6~: �-OoO--OP��N-H,�|FMO�nPP-OHHQQQ��D?>Z_KJ96��:>Aa�@Y<�a�x:9=[�̂>9:?86>�R3U2R�f�.fG�iNlO�pN,qN+�,qO�nrO��,fp+�iNMN,Hw�<B �f�.fG�iNlO�pN,qN+�,qO�,fp+kH�O�,-F�,O--N,f-NFi�G-NHPNs,Nf+�t*��vwx:*MFNi?:6~:;[�~;>8?̀Z:; �fLNiO��qf+O��Q���1U143Q�� ni,O-+F,O��qf+O�tpf-���qfMOv��Fs�h-fG+P�j+of-MF,Nf+�{G--O+,�*Mrif.O-��>;�ZJ99<6=?C�>=�[:;<�>6A�B=>C�KJBC�]8=[�=]:�BY<Z8>?�6<<AB_8AB̀ {G--O+,��fL��N,iOX:;
- Page 67 -



������������	�
� ������������������������������������

��������   !"�#����$����!"����� ��$���%���������&�����������$���������������''���������	() ���

*+,,�-.�/01�12-�/2-,3�,45+�62�.+78+9:;<=�>�?@A�B;<C<�A@?�@�D@E@=EF�GHC�B;I?�JH?IBIH=K�>�A@?�ILL<MI@B<NF�I=B<C<?B<MO�PIC?B�@=M�GHC<LH?BK�>�@L�@=�<=DICH=L<=B@NI?BO�>@L�LH?B�I=B<C<?B<M�I=�;HA�A<�E@=�?Q?B@I=@RNF�@=M�<GGIEI<=BNF�L@=@S<�C<EHCMTRC<@UI=S�JHJQN@BIH=�SCHAB;�@=M�M<D<NHJL<=B�I=VJ<WO�>�@L�@N?H�J@CBIEQN@CNF�I=B<C<?B<M�I=�I=DHNDI=S�HQC�EIBIX<=?K�@=M�<?J<EI@NNF�E;INMC<=K�I=�<=DICH=L<=B@NNF�GCI<=MNF�N<@C=I=SHJJHCBQ=IBI<?�@=M�<D<=B?O�>�NHD<�B;<�YHA=�HG�VJ<W�@=M�>�AHQNM�R<�;@JJF�BH�AHCU�H=�@�EHLLIBB<<�B;@B�L@=@S<?�<=DICH=L<=B@NC<?HQCE<?�I=�@�A@F�B;@B�JCHLHB<?�@�JH?IBID<�C<GN<EBIH=�H=K�@=M�C<JQB@BIH=�GHC�B;<�EHLLQ=IBFOZ,+[.+�,4.6�[\1�+3-][642\̂�._+]4[,�.54,,.̂�27�+̀_+74+\]+�12-�0[8+�60[6�/2-,3�a+�-.+b-,�/04,+�]2\.43+74\c�604.�b27deT�f@?B<C�HG�gEI<=E<�I=�h=DICH=L<=B@N�f@=@S<L<=BK�i=ID<C?IBF�HG�f@CFN@=MT�j@E;<NHC�HG�gEI<=E<�I=�k@BQC@N�l<?HQCE<?K�km�gB@B<�i=ID<C?IBFT�hIS;B�F<@C?�HG�JCHG<??IH=@N�<WJ<CI<=E<�AHCUI=S�GHC�<=DICH=L<=B@Nn<=SI=<<CI=S�GICL?�I=�B;<�l@N<IS;noQC;@L�@C<@�A;<C<�>J<CGHCL<M�;Q=MC<M?�HG�CI?UTR@?<M�p;@?<�>�h=DICH=L<=B@N�gIB<�V??<??L<=B?K�A<BN@=M�M<NI=<@BIH=?K�@=M�@�N@CS<T?E@N<h=DICH=L<=B@N�>LJ@EB�gB@B<L<=BK�@?�C<qQIC<M�RF�B;<�k@BIH=@N�h=DICH=L<=B@N�pHNIEF�VEBK�GHC�B;<�k@BIH=@N�o<G<=?<�gQJJNF�m<=B<CI=�lIE;LH=MK�rVOT�gJHU<�I=�GCH=B�HG�B;<�km�s<=<C@N�V??<LRNF�BH�?QJJHCB�A;F�;FMC@QNIE�GC@EBQCI=S�GHC�=@BQC@N�S@?�AHQNM�;@D<�@�=<S@BID<�HD<C@NNILJ@EB�H=�B;<�?B@B<t?�<=DICH=L<=B@N�;<@NB;�@=M�<EH=HLFOT�rHNQ=B<<C<M�@?�@�f<=BHC�GHC�u�F<@C?�AIB;�B;<�h=DICH=f<=BHC?�JCHSC@LO�Y;I?�I?�@�JCHSC@L�AIB;�@�LI??IH=�BH�L<=BHC�@=MLHBID@B<�;IS;�?E;HHN�?BQM<=B?�GCHL�EHLLQ=IBI<?�Q=M<CC<JC<?<=B<M�I=�B;<�?EI<=E<?�@?�B;<F�JN@=�@=M�EH=MQEB�<=DICH=L<=B@NC<?<@CE;K�@=M�<W<EQB<�<WJ<CIL<=B?�BH�?QJJHCB�B;<IC�C<?<@CE;Ovb�12-�\2/�.+78+̂�27�0[8+�_7+842-.,1�.+78+3�2\�[\1�62/\�a2[73.̂�]2dd4..42\.�27�]2dd466++.̂�_,+[.+�,4.6�60+]2dd466++.�[\3�3[6+.�.+78+3e>�A@?�C<E<=BNF�@?U<M�BH�?<CD<�@?�@�jH@CM�f<LR<C�GHC�B;<�w@MMH=�w@NN�mHLLQ=IBF�wHL<HA=<Ct?�V??HEI@BIH=�GHC�B;I?�QJEHLI=SF<@CK�?B@CBI=S�I=�xyxzO

- Page 68 -



��������������	
 �������������������������������������

����������� !�"����#���� !��������#���$���������%������������#���������������&&���������'(� ���

)*+,-�./�012�3�4567895:;5<=>�?@67A98B�C9=8@ D+E+FG/�HIJ:7<<;@ DFKLM++NO/�PQRQ2RQ1QS�TUSV�WX?YY>7Z=<795A�=8;�[;>@�JB�<[;�\9]5�̂>;8_�I5<7>�AIZ[�<7:;�<[=<�=�6=Z=5ZB�9ZZI8À�W>;=A;�59<;a�B9I8�Z9:Y>;<;@�b98:�7A�AIJc;Z<�<9YIJ>7Z�75AY;Z<795�IY95�8;dI;A<̀�eNE,*�Lf,N�=J9I<�;=Z[�9b�<[;�Z9::7<<;;A�>7A<;@�J;>9]̀g,MhM*Ei�DFKLM++Ei�jkL�M*+N,NG+NO�M*�GN,lM*h�f*mmm4567895:;5<=>�?@67A98B�C9=8@n,N�-fF�EooMiME+NO�pM+q�+qN�ONlNifrLN*+�sfLLF*M+-�tONlNifrN,kG�N*hM*NN,u�ONlNifrN,u�N+smvw�x9yfp�OMO�-fF�qNE,�EKfF+�+qMG�frrf,+F*M+-�+f�GN,lNw\9]5�4:Y>9B;;�R��4>;Z<;@�zbb7Z7=>{E*OMOE+N�{f*+Es+�j*of,LE+Mf*�eNhEi�|ELN[̂=8>;A�X7[=>7=_ },NoN,,NO�~M,G+�|ELN[̂7Z_nOO,NGGPQ0���98A[=:��=Ba�?Y;�a�x98<[�̂=89>75=�Q��1Q�f�-fF�iMlN�pM+qM*�+qN�nrN��+fp*�iMLM+Gw�;A �f�-fF�iMlN�pM+qM*�+qN�+fp*kG�N�+,E�+N,,M+f,MEi�F,MGOMs+Mf*�t)��vwx9)LEMiZ:7[=>7=_�B=[99̀Z9: �fKMiN�}qf*N�TPT��V1Q3S1V� ni+N,*E+N�}qf*N�tpf,���qfLNv��Es�h,fF*O�j*of,LE+Mf*�{F,,N*+�)Lrif-N,HB5�;5<=��8;<78;@� {F,,N*+��fK��M+iN��Nii�FG�pq-�-fF�pfFiO�iM�N�+f�GN,lNw��[=6;�J;;5�]=5<75��<9��76;�J=Z_�<9�<[;�Z9::I57<B̀�x9]�<[=<���:�:�8;<78;@���[=6;�<7:;�<9�Z9::7<̀���=>A9�[=6;�=�A<895��75<;8;A<75�]98_75��<9�J=>=5Z;�;567895:;5<=>�=5@��89]<[�@;:=5@A�75�?9;��=5@�<[;�AI889I5@75��=8;=A
- Page 69 -



��������������	
 �������������������������������������

����������� !�"����#���� !��������#���$���������%������������#���������������&&���������'(� ���

)*+,-+�*.-/�,01�+234,/.506�-7+4.,*�-8.**-6�59�+:7+9.+04+�153�;,<+�/;,/�=53*2�>+�3-+?3*�=;.*+�450-.2+9.0@�/;.-�?59ABCDEFE�GH�IJKLKMN�OJPD�Q�RKSTU�JH�VSKLKMNE�WN�SQXVVX�DQU�SVHPVXVY�KH�UTUPQJHQILV�RKKY�ZXKYTSPJKH�UK�G�Q[�RQ[JLJQX�OJPD�[QHN�KRPDV�SDQLLVHMVU�QHY�JUUTVU�PDQP�PDV�SK[[JPPVV�OJLL�YJUSTUUE\?�153�05=�-+9<+6�59�;,<+�79+<.53-*1�-+9<+2�50�,01�/5=0�>5,92-6�45AA.--.50-�59�45AA.//++-6�7*+,-+�*.-/�/;+45AA.//++-�,02�2,/+-�-+9<+2BG�DQ]V�HKP�ZXV]JKTULN�UVX]VY

- Page 70 -



������������	�
� ������������������������������������

��������   !"�#����$����!"����� ��$���%���������&�����������$���������������''���������()	 ���

*+,-.�/0�123�4�56789:6;<6=>?�@A78B:9C�D:>9A E,F,GH0�IJK;8==<A EGLMN,,OP0�QRSRRSR2R3�QRTRU�VW@XX?8Y>=8:6B�>9<�Z<?A�KC�=Z<�[:\6�]?<9̂�J6=8?�BJYZ�=8;<�=Z>=�>�7>Y>6YC�:YYJ9B_�V?<>B<�6:=<̀�C:J9�Y:;X?<=<A�a:9;�8B�BJKb<Y=�=:XJK?8Y�86BX<Y=8:6�JX:6�9<cJ<B=_�dOF-+�Me-O�>K:J=�<>YZ�:a�=Z<�Y:;;8==<<B�?8B=<A�K<?:\_f-NgN+Fh�EGLMN,,Fh�ijM�N+,O-OH,OP�N+�HO-kN+g�e+lll56789:6;<6=>?�@A78B:9C�D:>9Am-O�.eG�FnnNhNF,OP�oN,p�,pO�POkOheqMO+,�reMMG+N,.�sPOkOheqO-jH�O+gN+OO-t�POkOheqO-t�O,rluv�w:xeo�PNP�.eG�pOF-�FLeG,�,pNH�eqqe-,G+N,.�,e�HO-kOvy6B=>z9>;{F+PNPF,O�{e+,Fr,�i+ne-MF,Ne+�dOgFh�|FMOwb<98�W:<??<9 }-OnO--OP�~N-H,�|FMO�mPP-OHHQ3R��I:>986z�I8?:��>C̀�@X<�̀�w:9=Z�]>9:?86>�R��2R�e�.eG�hNkO�oN,pN+�,pO�mqO��,eo+�hNMN,Hv�<B �e�.eG�hNkO�oN,pN+�,pO�,eo+jH�O�,-F�,O--N,e-NFh�G-NHPNr,Ne+�s*��uvw:*MFNh6b<98YY�z;>8?_Y:; �eLNhO�}pe+O��U2��R��4��2� mh,O-+F,O�}pe+O�soe-���peMOu��Fr�g-eG+P�i+ne-MF,Ne+�{G--O+,�*Mqhe.O-�_I_�56789:6;<6=>?�V9:=<Y=8:6�@z<6YC {G--O+,��eL��N,hO<6789:6;<6=>?�<6z86<<9�Ohh�GH�op.�.eG�oeGhP�hN�O�,e�HO-kOvy�\:J?A�?8̂<�=:�B<97<�:6�<6789:6;<6=>?�>A78B:9C�K:>9A�K<Y>JB<�y�Z>7<�>�X>BB8:6�a:9�=Z<�<6789:6;<6=_�y�>;�86=<9<B=<A�86�>??;>==<9B�867:?786z�<6789:6;<6=>?�cJ>?8=C�<BX<Y8>??C�>B�8=�X<9=>86B�=:�>89�cJ>?8=C�86�w:9=Z�]>9:?86>_�I86Y<�y�;:7<A�=:�@X<��86�R2R2̀y�\:J?A�?8̂<�=:�K<�867:?7<A�86�A<Y8B8:6B�=Z>=�867:?7<�X9:=<Y=86z�>6A�9<B=:986z�8=B�6>=J9>?�9<B:J9Y<B_86�@X<�_
- Page 71 -



������������	�
� ������������������������������������

��������   !"�#����$����!"����� ��$���%���������&�����������$���������������''���������()	 ���

*+,-.,�+/.0�-12�,345-0/617�.8,5/-+�.9/++.7�6:�,;8,:/,15,�264�<-=,�0<-0�>64+3�?,�4.,@4+�></+,�561./3,:/1A�0</.�@6:BCDEFGHIJKLM�FNO�PFMQILM�OIRLII�SN�GHITSGFJ�INRSNIILSNRDUKLVIO�WKL�XYZ�WKL�K[IL�\�]IFLM�SN�FSL�̂_FJSQ]DYLSTFL]�̀Ka�LIMbKNMSaSJSQSIM�SNGJ_OI�FSL�̂_FJSQ]�bKJSG]�cLSQSNR�QK�LIO_GI�FSL�QKdSGM�ITSMMSKNM�FLK_NO�QHI�NFQSKNe@�264�16>�.,:=,7�6:�<-=,�8:,=/64.+2�.,:=,3�61�-12�06>1�?6-:3.7�56BB/../61.�6:�56BB/00,,.7�8+,-.,�+/.0�0<,56BB/00,,.�-13�3-0,.�.,:=,3CNfF

- Page 72 -



�������������	
��� ������������������������������������

��������   !"�#����$����!"����� ��$���%���������&�����������$���������������''���������	() ���

*+,-.�/0�123�4�56789:6;<6=>?�@A78B:9C�D:>9A E,F,GH0�I<78<J<A EGKLM,,NO0�3PQRPQRQS�TURS�VW@XX?8Y>=8:6B�>9<�Z<?A�[C�=Z<�\:J6�]?<9̂�_6=8?�B_YZ�=8;<�=Z>=�>�7>Y>6YC�:YY_9B̀�V?<>B<�6:=<a�C:_9�Y:;X?<=<A�b:9;�8B�B_[c<Y=�=:X_[?8Y�86BX<Y=8:6�_X:6�9<d_<B=̀�efghi�jkhf�>[:_=�<>YZ�:b�=Z<�Y:;;8==<<B�?8B=<A�[<?:J̀lhmnmigo�pqrjmssgo�tuj�misfhfvsfw�mi�vfhxmin�kiyyy56789:6;<6=>?�@A78B:9C�D:>9Azhf�{kq�g||momgsfw�}ms~�s~f�wfxfok�jfis��kjjqims{��wfxfok�fhuv�finmiffh��wfxfok�fh��fs�y����:�k}�wmw�{kq�~fgh�grkqs�s~mv�k��khsqims{�sk�vfhxf�\:J6��<[B8=<�giwmwgsf��kisg�s�ti|khjgsmki�efngo��gjf\>6Z>�V>=<? �hf|fhhfw��mhvs��gjf�zwwhfvv3R��\9<6AC��6a�@X<�a��:9=Z�]>9:?86>�Q21RQ�k�{kq�omxf�}ms~mi�s~f�z�f��sk}i�omjmsv��<B �k�{kq�omxf�}ms~mi�s~f�sk}iuv�f�shg�sfhhmskhmgo�qhmvwm�smki��������:�jgmo=X>=<?QTRT��;>8?̀Y:; �krmof��~kif��S���S3�42TTQ zosfhigsf��~kif��}kh���~kjf���g��nhkqiw�ti|khjgsmki��qhhfis��j�ok{fh] ]�¡:_6A>=8:6 �qhhfis��kr��msof¢<68:9�\<YZ68Y>?�@A78B:9�4�57>?_>=8:6
- Page 73 -



�������������	
��� ������������������������������������

��������   !"�#����$����!"����� ��$���%���������&�����������$���������������''���������	() ���

*+,,�-.�/01�12-�/2-,3�,45+�62�.+78+9:�;<�=;>>?@A;BC�;D@EB�F?G?AF�D;HI�B@�<J�H@<<EA?BJ�;AK�;<�L@@I?AF�M@N�;�O;J�B@�>E==@NB�BPC�Q@OA�@M�R=CS�DC�;>�>BN;BCF?H�?A=L;AA?AF�;AK�>E>B;?A?AF�BPC�H@<<EA?BJ�;>�=@>>?DLCT�UL?<;BC�HP;AFC�?>�>EHP�;�<;V@N�=EDL?H�PC;LBP�BPNC;B�BP;B�OC�;NC�M;H?AF�;AK:�O;AB�B@�DC�;DLC�B@�H@ABN?DEBC�?A�<J�><;LL�O;J�B@�>E==@NB�@EN�CAG?N@A<CABT�W;J?AF�;BBCAB?@A�B@�@EN�CAG?N@A<CAB�;AK�DE?LK?AF@EN�H@<<EA?B?C>�?A�;�O;J�BP;B�O?LL�DC�>E>B;?A;DLC�@GCN�B?<C�?>�G?B;L�B@�;KKNC>>?AF�HL?<;BC�HP;AFCT�:�;<�?ABCNC>BCK�?A�LC;NA?AF<@NC�;D@EB�OP;B�BPC�Q@OA�@M�R=CS�?>�K@?AF�;AK�H;A�K@�B@�MENBPCN�>E==@NB�BP@>C�CMM@NB>TX,+Y.+�,4.6�YZ1�+3-[Y642Z\�.]+[4Y,�.54,,.\�27�+̂]+74+Z[+�12-�0Y8+�60Y6�/2-,3�_+�-.+̀-,�/04,+�[2Z.43+74Za�604.�̀27bc:�P;GC�;�d;>BCN>�?A�WEDL?H�eC;LBP�;AK�P;GC�DCCA�O@NI?AF�O?BP�>B;BCf�A;B?@A;Lf�;AK�M@EAK;B?@A�MEAKCK�=EDL?H�PC;LBP�=N@FN;<>M@N�@GCN�gh�JC;N>f�DE?LK?AF�BPC?N�H;=;H?BJ�B@�DC�K;B;iKN?GCAT�:�@MBCA�P;GC�B@�O@NI�O?BP�G;N?@E>�>B;ICP@LKCN>�;AK�;FCAH?C>�B@EAKCN>B;AK�BPC�=EDL?H�PC;LBP�?>>EC�;AK�O@NI�B@O;NK>�H@@NK?A;B?AF�O?BP�C;HP�@BPCN�<@NC�>C;<LC>>LJ�B@�<CCB�BPC�H@<<@AF@;L>T�:�DCL?CGC�BP?>�D;HIFN@EAK�;AK�CS=CN?CAHC�O?LL�DC�?<=@NB;AB�M@N�BPC�jAG?N@A<CAB;L�RKG?>@NJ�k@;NKT�k;>CK�@A�BPC�=NCG?@E><CCB?AF>f�?B�>CC<>�L?IC�?B�?>�FCBB?AF�?<=@NB;AB�M@N�BPC�jRk�B@�>B;J�CAF;FCK�O?BP�@BPCN�RKG?>@NJ�k@;NK>�;AK�>CNGC�<@NC�?A�;HN@>>iMEAHB?@A?AF�H;=;H?BJT�QP?>�?>�>@<CBP?AF�BP;B�:�P;GC�DCCA�K@?AF�=N@MC>>?@A;LLJ�;>�;A�jG;LE;B@Nf�DN?AF?AF�G;N?@E>@NF;A?l;B?@A;L�EA?B>�B@FCBPCN�B@�;HP?CGC�BPC�L;NFC�@NF;A?l;B?@A;L�<?>>?@AmG?>?@AT�:�H;A�>CC�P@O�jRk�O?LL�ACCK�B@�O@NI�?A�;>?<?L;N�M;>P?@A�?A�BPC�MEBENC�;AK�O@ELK�L@GC�B@�DC�;DLC�B@�>E==@NB�BPC�D@;NK�?A�BP?>�BN;A>?B?@ATǹ�12-�Z2/�.+78+\�27�0Y8+�]7+842-.,1�.+78+3�2Z�YZ1�62/Z�_2Y73.\�[2bb4..42Z.�27�[2bb466++.\�],+Y.+�,4.6�60+[2bb466++.�YZ3�3Y6+.�.+78+3ce;GC�A@B�>CNGCK�DCM@NCT

- Page 74 -



3/6/23, 8:35 AM Advisory Board Interest Form - Entries

https://www.cognitoforms.com/forms/advisoryboardinterestform/entries/1-all-entries/557 1/2

Entry #:  557 - Environmental Advisory Board Status:  Submitted Submitted:  3/4/2023 7:23 PM

Applications are held by the Town Clerk until such time that a vacancy occurs. Please note, your completed form is subject to public
inspection upon request. 

Learn more about each of the committees listed below.

Original Submittal
 

I'm interested in serving on...

Environmental Advisory Board

Are you a�liated with the development community (developer's engineer, developer, etc.)? 
No

How did you hear about this opportunity to serve?
Town Website

Candidate Contact Information

 

Legal Name
Aditi Sharma

Preferred First Name
 

Address
516 pointe grove ln, Apex, North Carolina 27523

Do you live within the Apex town limits?
Yes

Do you live within the town's extra-territorial jurisdiction (ETJ)?
No

Email

aditi.srma@gmail.com

Mobile Phone

(484) 702-2038

Alternate Phone (work/ home)

 

Background Information

 

Current Employer
Accenture LLC

Current Job Title
Managing Director

Tell us why you would like to serve?
I am passionate about environmental issues and focused on sustainability.

Please list any education, special skills, or experience you have that would be useful while considering this form.

I am Data and Analytics SME

- Page 75 -

mailto:townclerk@apexnc.org
https://www.apexnc.org/177/Citizen-Advisory-Boards


3/6/23, 8:35 AM Advisory Board Interest Form - Entries

https://www.cognitoforms.com/forms/advisoryboardinterestform/entries/1-all-entries/557 2/2

If you now serve, or have previously served on any town boards, commissions or committees, please list the committees and dates served.
NA

- Page 76 -



Environmental Advisory Board
Advisory Board Interest Form

Candidate Contact Information

Legal Name
Halle M Tischler

Preferred First Name 
 

Address
2894 Angelica Rose Way, Apex, North Carolina 27502

Email
halle@wildflowerldd.com

Mobile Phone
(954) 770-2258

Alternate Phone (work/home)
 

Do you live within the Apex town limits?  
Yes

 

Background Information

Current Employer
Self, Wildflower Landscape Design & Drafting, LLC

Current Job Title
Landscape Architect, Owner

Tell us why you would like to serve?
I am very passionate about plants, natural habitats and design, and with all of the new development 
coming to Apex, I'd love the opportunity to have a voice that can advocate for native plants and wildlife and 
impact development in a positive way.

Please list any education, special skills, or experience you have that would be useful while 
considering this form.
I am a registered landscape architect with 11 years of on the job experience including a plethora of time 
spent working as a liaison between design specialties and the City (within State of Florida) to get permits 
approved and respond to City comments. I am extremely proficient in AutoCAD.

If you now serve, or have previously served on any town boards, commissions or committees, 
please list the committees and dates served.
None

- Page 77 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: February 13, 2024 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Allen Coleman, Town Clerk 

Department(s): Town Clerk’s Office 

Requested Motion 

Motion to confirm the following leadership positions on the Environmental Advisory Board (EAB) for calendar 

year 2024:  

 Suzanne Mason, Chair of the Environmental Advisory Board (EAB) 

 John Garrison, Vice-Chair of the Environmental Advisory Board (EAB) 

Approval Recommended? 

Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert recommends both Suzanne Mason for Chair and John Garrison for Vice-Chair for 

appointment consideration to the Apex Environmental Advisory Board (EAB) 

 

Item Details 

On Thursday, January 18, 2024, the Apex Environmental Advisory Board (EAB) unanimously (8-0) voted to 

nominate Suzanne Mason to the Chair position for calendar year 2024.  Subsequently, the Apex 

Environmental Advisory Board voted to nominate John Garrison to the Vice-Chair position for calendar year 

2024.   

 

The current EAB members were reminded that this vote was a recommendation to the Mayor and the Town 

Council continues to hold the final appointing authority.  

 

The public is invited to re-watch the Environmental Advisory Board meeting from January 18, 2024, on the 

Town’s Youtube Channel via the following link: https://www.youtube.com/c/TownofApexGov.  The 

nomination process begins at 1 hour and 6 minutes and 24 seconds.    

   

Attachments 

 None 

 
- Page 78 -

https://www.youtube.com/c/TownofApexGov


 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: February 13, 2024 

Item Details 

Presenter(s):  Eric Neumann, Director 

Department(s): Electric  

Requested Motion 

Motion to adopt Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 12 allocating additional funds for expansion of Apex’s 

electric utility distribution system    

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

 
The Electric Utility is requesting additional funds for system expansion as approved development begins 

construction. Electric has forecasted potential expenses through June 30th and anticipates some offset with 

developer fees. The budget amendment revenues include increased allocations for interest earned and 

developer fees. 

 

Increased material costs and development progress has strained the budget. Warehouse staff has placed 

large orders for inventory and projects, all of which is coming in at post COVID prices. Large developments 

in the southern part of Apex have depleted much of our inventory due to project scope. 

   

Attachments 

 CN7-A1: Budget Ordinance Amendment 12 - Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 12 - Electric Utility 
Operations 

 

- Page 79 -



Electric Utility Fund

Section 1. Revenues:

30-0000-36100: Interest Earned 132,000 

1,000,000 

$1,132,000

Section 2. Expenditures:

30-8300-47300: Capital Outlay - Improvements 1,132,000 

$1,132,000

Attest:

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC

Town Clerk

Adopted this the 13th day of February, 2024.

Total Revenues

Total Expenditures

Town of Apex 

Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 12

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the Town of Apex that the following Budget Amendment for the Fiscal

Year 2023-2024 Budget Ordinance be adopted:

30-0000-35511: Underground Primary

Section 7. Within five (5) days after adoption, copies of this Amendment shall be filed with the Finance

Officer and Town Clerk.

- Page 80 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: February 13, 2024 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Angela Reincke, Parks Planning Project Manager 

Department(s): Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resources 

Requested Motion 

Motion to award a construction contract with Hollins Construction Services, Inc (HCS) for Reedy Branch 

Greenway (Sweetwater Gap) construction and adopt corresponding Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 

2024-11, and to authorize the Interim Town Manager, or their designee, to execute on behalf of the Town.  

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

The Reedy Branch Greenway project is the completion of a segment of trail and boardwalk within the 

Sweetwater development that was not constructed with the rest of the greenway due to timing for FEMA 

approval of a Certified Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR).  Sealed bids were received and opened on January 

23, 2024.  It is the recommendation of staff that the contract be awarded to Hollins Construction Services, Inc 

as the lowest responsible bidder.   

 

The developer has paid fees-in-lieu of dedication as well as received credit for construction of greenway 

within the project as defined in the Sweetwater PUD approval. Capital Project Ordinance Amendment No. 

2024-11 allocates subdivision recreation fees paid by the developer for expenditure within the project fund.  

Bid Summary (Responsive Bids): 
Hollins Construction Services, Co        $462,193.00 
Lanier Construction                                 $492,050.00 
Beluca, LLC.                                               $700,320.00 
Black Diamond Designs, Inc.                  $601,186.14 
Cinderella Partners                                   $492,381.37 

  

Attachments 

 CN8-A1: Construction Contract - Construction Contract Award - Hollins Construction Services, Inc. 
(HCS) - Reedy Branch Greenway and Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 2024-11  

 CN8-A2: Bid Certification - Construction Contract Award - Hollins Construction Services, Inc. (HCS) - 
Reedy Branch Greenway and Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 2024-11 

- Page 81 -



 CN-8-A3: Notice of Award - Hollins Construction Services, Co. - Construction Contract Award - 
Hollins Construction Services, Inc. (HCS) - Reedy Branch Greenway and Capital Project Ordinance 
Amendment 2024-11 

 CN8-A4: Bid Tab - Construction Contract Award - Hollins Construction Services, Inc. (HCS) - Reedy 
Branch Greenway and Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 2024-11 

 CN8-A5: Recommendation of Award - Construction Contract Award - Hollins Construction Services, 
Inc. (HCS) - Reedy Branch Greenway and Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 2024-11 

 CN8-A6: Capital Project Ordinance Amendment # 2024-11 - Construction Contract Award - Hollins 
Construction Services, Inc. (HCS) - Reedy Branch Greenway and Capital Project Ordinance 
Amendment 2024-11 

 

- Page 82 -



 

Page 1 of 20  

00500-1  Revision date 07/25/2022 

 

 

 

TOWN OF APEX 

GREENWAY CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

  
 

FOR  
 

Construction of Reedy Branch Greenway (Sweetwater Gap) 
 Apex, NC 27502 

 

SCOPE OF WORK 

Construct Reedy Branch Greenway (Sweetwater Gap) in accordance with Plans titled “Construction Plans 
Reedy Branch Greenway (Sweetwater Gap)” dated _October 4, 2023 including the following sheets: (See 
below) by _WithersRavenel_______________. 
 

 

 
• 0 Coversheet 

• 4 -Plan and Profile Sheet 37+90 to 47+50 

• 8- Construction Details 

• 9- Construction Details 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 83 -



 

Page 2 of 20  

00500-2  Revision date 07/25/2022 

 

 

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA PURCHASE ORDER # 

COUNTY OF WAKE GREENWAY CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

 

THIS GREENWAY CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT is entered into this the _____day of 
______________, 2023, by and between, __________________________, a ________________ 

Corporation with its principal business offices located at _________________________ (the “Contractor”), 

and the Town of Apex, a municipal corporation of the State of North Carolina, (the “Town”).  Town and 

Contractor may collectively be referred to as “Parties” hereinafter. 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 
WHEREAS, Town is engaged in the planning and operation of public greenways which require 

construction, installation, evaluation, testing, and other related services; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the professional services of contractors from time to time are needed by the Town for 

the services as described above; and 

 WHEREAS, Contractor provides services of the nature required by the Town and employs trained 

and experienced technical personnel possessing adequate knowledge, skills, and experience to provide 

such professional services to the Town; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town has complied with Article 8 of Chapter 143 of the North Carolina General 

Statutes in announcing its need for services of the nature described in this Contract through a “Request for 

Proposal” and associated advertisement. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, and the premises and mutual 

covenants herein contained, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties, 

intending to be legally bound, hereto do contract and agree as follows: 

 

1. DEFINITIONS 

 

A. “Change Order” is a written order to the Contractor authorizing a change in the Contract. 
B. “Contract Documents” is defined in Section 2 of this Contract. 
C. “Contractor” is the entity performing construction services pursuant to this Contract. 
D. “Final Acceptance” is the date on which the Town accepts the construction as totally complete.  This 

includes inspection and acceptance of the Work by the Town and the Special Inspector. 
E. “Inspection” means the examination of Work completed or in progress to determine its compliance 

with the Contract Documents. 
F. “Liquidated damages” is the amount stated in this Contract reasonably estimated in advance to cover 

the consequential damages associated with the Town’s loss in not being able to use the Project for 
its intended purposes at the end of the Contract’s completion date by reason of failure of the 
Contractor to complete the Work within the time specified.  Liquidated damages does not include 
the Town’s extended contract administration costs (including but not limited to, additional fees for 
architectural and engineering services, testing services, inspection services, commissioning 
services, etc.), such other damages directly resulting from delays caused solely by the Contractor, 

- Page 84 -



 

Page 3 of 20  

00500-3  Revision date 07/25/2022 

 

 

or consequential damages that the Town identified in the bid documents that may be impacted by 
any delay caused solely by the Contractor (e.g. delays in start other projects that are dependent on 
the completion of this Project, extension of leases and/or maintenance agreements for other 
facilities).   

G. “Project” is the total construction Work to be performed under the Contract Documents by the 
Contractor and the Contractor’s subcontractors. 

H. “Special Inspector” is the entity who inspects materials, installation, fabrication, erection, placement 
of components and connections requiring special expertise to ensure compliance with the approved 
Construction Documents and referenced standards, and/or provides geotechnical inspection 
services. 

I. “Subcontractor” shall be an entity that has entered into a direct contract with the Contractor, and 
includes an entity that furnishes materials designed in accordance with plans and specifications 
covered by the Contract Documents but does not include an entity furnishing materials not requiring 
the design described above. 

J. “Surety” means the bonding company which is bound with and for the Contractor, and which 
engages to be responsible for the Contractor and the Contractor’s acceptable performance of the 
Work. 

K. “Time of Completion” is the consecutive calendar days measured from the date established in the 
written Notice to Proceed. 

L. “Town” is the Town of Apex 
M. “Written Notice” is defined as notice in writing delivered to either the Contractor or Town as 

identified in the Contract Documents, in person or by registered by mail. 
N. “Work”, when used as a noun, includes the materials, labor, and workership of the Contractor. 

 
 

2. SCOPE OF SERVICES. 

The Contractor agrees to provide all materials, equipment, machinery, tools, apparatus, power, sanitary 

facilities, water, means of transportation, incidentals, and labor necessary for the proper and lawful 

construction of the Reedy Branch Greenway (Sweetwater Gap), located at the Sweetwater Subdivision, 
Apex, NC.  Materials shall be new and of the quality specified.  Construction shall include, but not 

necessarily be limited to, the following: 

A. Concrete Greenway Trail 
B. Fencing 

C. Retaining Walls 

D. Boardwalks 
E. Bridges 

F. Erosion Control & Grading 

G. Storm Drainage 

H. Miscellaneous Concrete 

 

Said construction will be performed in accordance with the “Contract Documents.”  The term “Contract 
Documents” includes this Contract and the following which are hereby incorporated into this Contract as if 

fully contained herein:  

A. Plan sheets titled “Construction Plans Reedy Branch Greenway (Sweetwater Gap)”, dated 

October 4, 2023 including the following sheets:  Coversheet, 4 – Plan and Profile Sheet 37+90 to 

47+50, 8-9 Construction Details by _WithersRavenel_. 

B. Construction drawings titled “Construction Plans Reedy Branch Greenway (Sweetwater Gap)”, 

dated __October 4, 2023. 

- Page 85 -



 

Page 4 of 20  

00500-4  Revision date 07/25/2022 

 

 

C. Bid Advertisement 

D. Town of Apex Standard Specifications and Standard Details (incorporated by reference) 

E. Bid Form 

F. MWBE Guidelines 

G. MWBE Forms 

H. Reedy Branch Greenway Construction Contract 

I. Notice of Award  

J. Notice to Proceed  

K. Special Provisions  

L. Special Construction General 

M. CLOMR Permit 

N. Sediment and Erosion Control Permit 

O. Addenda: 

1. No.   _______ Dated:  ____________ 

2. No.   _______ Dated:  ____________ 

3. No.   _______ Dated:  ____________ 

4. No.   _______ Dated:  ____________ 

5. No.   _______ Dated:  ____________ 

 

P. Certificate(s) of Insurance 

Contractor shall maintain at its job office a complete set of the plans, drawings, and specifications for the 

Work which shall be available for use by the Town. 

3. TIME OF COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION. 

A. Contractor shall commence the work required in this Contract upon the issuance of a Notice to 
Proceed, and the Contractor shall complete the entire Work within __180 days________ 
consecutive calendar days of the issuance of the Notice to Proceed (“Time of Completion”).  For 
each day in excess thereof, liquidated damages, reasonably estimated in advance to cover the losses 
to be incurred by the Town by reason of failure of Contractor to complete the Work within the time 
specified, such time being of the essence in this Contract and a material consideration thereof, shall 
be assessed in the amount of $1,000.00 per calendar day.  If Contractor has not satisfactorily 
completed the work within the times specified in the Contract Documents, the Town may declare 
such delay a material breach of contract and default and may pursue all available remedies outlined 
in the Contract Documents as well as all other available legal and equitable remedies.  Any changes 
to the schedule(s) provided in the Contract Documents must be agreed to in writing by the Town 
and the Contractor.  

 
B. If the Contractor is delayed at any time in the progress of his work by any act or negligence of the 

Town; Contractor’s separate contractor or subcontractor; by changes ordered in the Work; by 
abnormal weather conditions; by any causes beyond the Contractor's control or by other causes 
deemed justifiable by Town, then the contract time may be reasonably extended in a written order 
from the Town upon written request from the Contractor.  Request for extension of time shall be 
made in writing to the Town within twenty (20) days following the cause of delay.  In case of 
continuing cause for delay, the Contractor shall notify the Town, with copies to the Town of the 
delay within twenty (20) days of the beginning of the delay and only one claim is necessary. 

- Page 86 -



 

Page 5 of 20  

00500-5  Revision date 07/25/2022 

 

 

 
C. For the purpose of determining the extent of delay attributable to unusual weather phenomena, a 

determination shall be made by comparing the weather for the Contract period involved with the 
average of the preceding five (5) year climatic range during the same time interval based on the 
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration National Weather Service statistics for the 
locality where Work is performed and on daily weather logs kept on the job site by the Contractor 
reflecting the effect of the weather on the progress of the Work and initialed by Town's 
representative.  

 
D. Time extensions for weather delays, labor disputes, fire, delays in transportation, unavoidable 

casualties or other delays which are beyond the control of the Town do not entitle the Contractor to 
compensable damages for delays.  Any Contractor claim for compensable damages for delays is 
limited to delays caused solely by the Town or its agents. Contractor caused delays shall be 
accounted for before Town caused delays in the case of concurrent delays. 

 
E. Contractor shall notify its Surety in writing of any granted extension of time. 

 

4. CONSIDERATION AND PAYMENT OF SERVICES. 

In consideration of the above services, the Town will pay the Contractor, subject to additions and deductions 

as provided in the Contract Documents, as follows:   

 

Total Sum:  ________________________________________________  ($___________________). 

 

Summary of Contract Award: 

 

Base Bid: $________________ 

Alternate 1:  $________________ 

Alternate 2: $________________ 

Total:   $_______________ 

 

A. No later than the fifth day of the month, the Contractor shall submit application for payment 

reflecting work completed during the preceding calendar month to the Town Representative 

identified in Section 31 of this Contract.  The request shall be in the form agreed upon between 
Contractor and the Town but shall show substantially the value of the work completed and 

materials delivered to the site during the period since the last payment and shall sum up the 

financial status of the Contract with following information: 

 

1. Total of Contract including change orders. 

2. Value of work completed to date. 
3. Less retainage, as defined below. 

4. Less previous payments. 

5. Current amount due. 

 

- Page 87 -



 

Page 6 of 20  

00500-6  Revision date 07/25/2022 

 

 

B. Prior to submitting the first pay application, Contractor shall prepare for the Town a schedule 
showing a breakdown of the Contract price into values of the various parts of the Work, arranged 

so as to facilitate payments to subcontractors. 

 
C. When payment is made on account of stored materials and equipment, such materials must be stored 

on the Town's property, and the requests for payments shall be accompanied by invoices or bills of 

sale or other evidence to establish the Town’s title to such materials and equipment.  Such payments 
will be made only for materials that have been customized or fabricated specifically for this Project. 

Raw materials or commodity products costs may not be submitted. Responsibility for such stored 

materials and equipment shall remain with the Contractor regardless of title of ownership.  Such 
stored materials and equipment shall not be removed from the Town’s property.  Should the space 

for storage on-site be limited, the Contractor, at its option, shall be permitted to store such materials 

and/or equipment in a suitable space off-site.  Should the Contractor desire to include any such 
materials or equipment in its application for payment, they must be stored in the name of the Town 

in an independent, licensed, bonded warehouse approved by the Town and located as close to the 

site as possible.  The warehouse selected must be approved by the Contractor's bonding and 
insurance companies; the material to be paid for shall be assigned to the Town.  Upon approval by 

the Town of the storage facilities and materials and equipment, payment therefore will be made.  

Responsibility for such stored materials and equipment shall remain with the Contractor.  Such 
stored materials and equipment shall not be moved except for transportation to the Project site.  

  

D. Retainage:  In accordance with N.C.G.S 143-134.1, for projects costing more than $100,000.00, the 
Town may withhold a percentage of payment until the Project has been satisfactorily completed.  

Retainage on periodic and final payment for this Project shall be as follows: 
a. Retainage withheld shall not exceed 5% at any time. 
b. The same terms shall apply to the general contractor and subcontractors alike. 
c. Following 50% completion of the Project, the Town, with written consent from the Surety, 

shall not retain further retainage if the Contractor continues to perform satisfactorily and 
any nonconforming work identified in writing prior to that time has been corrected by the 
Contractor and accepted by the Town.  The Project shall be deemed 50% complete when 
the Contractor’s gross Project invoices, excluding the value of materials stored off-site, 
equal or exceed 50% of the value of the Contract, except the value of materials stored on-
site shall not exceed 20% of the Contractor’s gross Project invoices for the purpose of 
determining whether the Project is 50% complete.  

d. If the Town determines that the Contractor is not performing satisfactorily, the Town may 
reinstate retainage for each subsequent periodic payment application up to 5%.  Following 
50% completion of the Project, Town is authorized to withhold additional retainage not to 
exceed 5% from a subsequent periodic payment application if the amount of total retainage 
withheld falls below 2.5%, through the completion of the Project. 

 

E. If the pay application is approved by the Town, the Town will process all pay applications within 
30 days after receipt from the Contractor.  Town has the right to require the Contractor to produce 
for inspection all of Contractor’s records and charges to verify the accuracy of all applications for 
payment.  Town shall pay Contractor’s invoices at times set forth above unless a bona fide dispute 
exists between Town and Contractor concerning the accuracy of said invoice or the services covered 
thereby.   

 

5.   FINAL PAYMENT.   

- Page 88 -



 

Page 7 of 20  

00500-7  Revision date 07/25/2022 

 

 

A. Upon completion, the Contractor shall submit satisfactory evidence that all payrolls, material bills 
and other costs incurred by the Contractor in connection with the construction of the work have been 
paid in full.  Final payment will be made within forty-five (45) days after acceptance of all work by 
the Town and after receipt of the final pay request which shall include the Contractor’s affidavit, 
sworn and notarized, in the following form: 

“This is to certify that all costs of materials, equipment, labor, subcontracted work, and all else 
entering into the accomplishment of this contract, including payrolls, have been paid in full, and no 
claims or liens exist against Contractor in connection with this Contract.” 

 
The Town may withhold payment for any of the following reasons: 

1. Faulty or defective work not corrected. 
2. The unpaid balance remaining on the Contract is not sufficient to complete the work in the sole 

judgement and discretion of the Town. 

3. To provide a sufficient contract balance to cover liquidated damages that will be assessed. 
4. Evidence that subcontractors have not been paid. 

 

B. Prior to submitting request for final payment to the Town, Contractor shall provide the following: 
 
1. Warranties and bonds, guarantees, maintenance agreements, as-built drawings, certificates of 

inspection or approval from agencies having jurisdiction. 
2. List of minority business subcontractors and material suppliers showing breakdown of contract 

amounts and total actual payments to subcontractors and material suppliers. 
3. Contractor’s affidavit of payment to material suppliers and subcontractors. 
4. Consent of Surety to final Payment. 
5. Certificates of state agencies (if any) required by law. 

 

6.   CONSTRUCTION SUPERVISION AND SCHEDULE 

 

A. Throughout the progress of the Work, the Contractor shall keep at the job site, a competent 
superintendent and supervisory staff satisfactory to the Town.  The superintendent and 
supervisory staff shall not be changed without the consent of the Town unless said 
superintendent ceases to be employed by the Contractor or ceases to be competent as 
determined by the Contractor or Town.  The superintendent and other staff designated by 
the Contractor in writing shall have authority to act on behalf of the Contractor, and 
instructions, directions or notices given to the superintendent shall be as binding as if given 
to the Contractor.  However, directions, instructions, and notices shall be confirmed in 
writing. 

 

B. Contractor shall examine and study the drawings and specifications and fully understand the 
Project design and shall provide constant and efficient supervision to the Work.  Should 
Contractor discover any discrepancies of any sort in the drawings or specifications, 
Contractor shall report them to the Town without delay.  Contractor will not be held 
responsible for discrepancies in the drawings and/or specifications but shall be held 
responsible to report them should they become known to Contractor. 

 

C. Contractor is required to attend job site progress conferences as called by the Town. The 
Contractor shall be represented at these job progress conferences by both home office and 

- Page 89 -



 

Page 8 of 20  

00500-8  Revision date 07/25/2022 

 

 

Project personnel. These representatives shall have authority to act on behalf of the 
Contractor.  These meetings shall be open to subcontractors, material suppliers and any 
others who can contribute toward maintaining required job progress.  It shall be the principal 
purpose of these meetings, or conferences, to effect coordination, cooperation and assistance 
in every practical way toward the end of maintaining progress of the Project on schedule and 
to complete the Project within the specified contract time.  The Contractor shall be prepared 
to assess progress of the Work as required in the Contract Documents and to recommend 
remedial measures for correction of progress as may be appropriate.  The Contractor shall 
turn over a copy of his daily reports to the Town at the job site progress conference.  Town 
will determine daily report format. 

 

D. Contractor shall prepare the Project construction schedule which shall graphically show all 
outstanding features of the Work required to construct the Project from start to finish and 
within the allotted time established in the Contract. Contractor shall maintain a Project 
progress schedule for the Town and shall notify the Town of any requested changes in the 
Project schedule. 

 

E. The Project construction schedule shall indicate the estimated starting and completion dates 
for each major element of the Work by area and shall schedule dates for all outstanding 
features, including but not limited to the placing of orders for materials, the manufacture and 
delivery of material, the testing and the installation of materials, supplies and equipment, 
and all Work activities to be performed by the Contractor.  The Contractor shall allow 
sufficient time in his schedule for all required inspections.  Each Work activity will be 
assigned a time estimate by the Contractor.  One day shall be the smallest time unit used. 

 

F. The Contractor is responsible for its Work activities and will notify Town of any required 
changes to its Work.  If any Work activities are behind schedule the Contractor shall, in 
writing, describe what measures will be taken to bring each such activity back on schedule 
and to ensure that the Contract completion date is not exceeded.  A plan of action and 
recovery schedule shall be developed and submitted to the Town by the Contractor, when 
(1) the Contractor indicates delays, that are in the opinion of the Town, of sufficient 
magnitude that the Contractor’s ability to complete the Work by the scheduled completion 
is brought into question; (2) the updated construction schedule is thirty (30) days behind the 
planned or baseline schedule and no legitimate time extensions, as determined by the Town, 
are in process; or (3) the Contractor desires to make changes in the sequencing of Work or 
the planned duration of future activities which in the opinion of the Town, are of a major 
nature. The plan of action, when required shall be submitted to the Town for review within 
two (2) business days of the Contractor receiving the Town’s written demand.  The recovery 
schedule, when required, shall be submitted to the Town within five (5) calendar days of the 
Contractor's receiving the Town’s written demand.  Failure to provide an updated 
construction schedule or a recovery schedule may be grounds for rejection of payment 
applications or withholding of funds.  

 

G. The proposed Project construction schedule shall be presented to the Town no later than 
fifteen (15) calendar days after the issuance of the written Notice to Proceed.  No application 
for payment will be reviewed or paid until this schedule is accepted by the Town. 

 

- Page 90 -



 

Page 9 of 20  

00500-9  Revision date 07/25/2022 

 

 

7.   USE OF PREMISES.   

 

A. Contractor shall confine its apparatus, the storage of materials and the operations of its 
workers to limits indicated by law, ordinances, permits or directions of the Town and shall not 
exceed those established limits in its operations. 
 

B. Contractor shall enforce the Town’s instructions regarding signs, advertisements, fires and 
smoking. 

 

C. No firearms, any type of alcoholic beverages, or drugs (other than those prescribed by a 
physician) will be permitted at the job site. 

 

8.  PROTECTION OF WORK, PROPERTY AND THE PUBLIC. 

 
A. The Contractor shall be responsible for the entire site and the building or construction of the same 

and provide all the necessary protections, as required by the Town, and by laws or ordinances 
governing such conditions.  Contractor shall be responsible for any damage to the Town's 
property, or of that of others on the job, by them, their personnel, or their subcontractors, and 
shall pay for or repair any such damages.  Contractor shall be responsible for and pay for any 
damages caused to the Town.   

  
B. The Contractor shall provide cover and protect all portions of the Project being constructed when 

the Work is not in progress as needed, provide and set all temporary roofs, covers, and all other 
materials necessary to protect all the Work on the Project, whether set by the Contractor, or any 
of the subcontractors.  Any Work damaged through the lack of proper protection or from any 
other cause, shall be repaired or replaced without extra cost to the Town.  

  
C. No fires of any kind will be allowed inside or around the operations during the course of 

construction without special permission from the Town.  
  

D. The Contractor shall protect all trees and shrubs designated to remain in the vicinity of the 
operations by building substantial boxes around same.  Contractor shall barricade all walks, 
roads, etc., as directed by the Town to keep the public away from the construction.  All trenches, 
excavations or other hazards in the vicinity of the Work shall be well barricaded and properly 
lighted at night.  

  

E. The Contractor shall provide all necessary safety measures for the protection of all persons on 
the job and shall fully comply with all state laws or regulations and North Carolina State Building 
Code requirements to prevent accident or injury to persons on or about the location of the Work.  
Contractor shall clearly mark or post signs warning of hazards existing and shall barricade 
excavations and similar hazards.  Contractor shall protect against damage or injury resulting from 
falling materials and shall maintain all protective devices and signs throughout the progress of 
the Work.  

  
F. The Contractor shall adhere to the rules, regulations and interpretations of the North Carolina 

Department of Labor relating to Occupational Safety and Health Standards for the Construction 
Industry (Title 29, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 1926, published in Volume 39, Number 
122, Part II, June 24, 1974, Federal Register), and revisions thereto as adopted by General 
Statutes of North Carolina 95-126 through 155.  

  

- Page 91 -



 

Page 10 of 20  

00500-10  Revision date 07/25/2022 

 

 

G. The Contractor shall designate a responsible person of its organization as safety officer/inspector 
to inspect the Project site for unsafe health and safety hazards, to report these hazards to the 
Contractor for correction, and whose duties also include accident prevention on the Project, and 
to provide other safety and health measures on the Project site as required by the terms and 
conditions of the Contract Documents. The name of the safety inspector shall be made known to 
the Town at the time of the preconstruction conference and in all cases prior to any Work starting 
on the Project.  

  
H. In the event of emergency affecting the safety of life, the protection of Work, or the safety of 

adjoining properties, the Contractor is hereby authorized to act at Contractor’s own discretion, 
without further authorization from anyone, to prevent such threatened injury or damage.   

 
I. Any and all costs associated with correcting damage caused to adjacent properties of the 

construction site or staging area shall be borne by the Contractor.  These costs shall include but 
not be limited to flooding, mud, sand, stone, debris, and discharging of waste products.  

  

9.   UTILITIES.   

Contractor shall provide necessary and adequate facilities for water, electricity, gas, oil, sewer and other 
utility services which may be necessary and required for completion of the Project including all utilities 
required for testing, cleaning, balancing, and sterilization of designated plumbing, mechanical and 
electrical systems. Any permanent meters installed shall be listed in the Contractor’s name until Work has 
a Final Acceptance. The Contractor will be solely responsible for all utility costs prior to Final 
Acceptance. Contractor shall contact all affected utility companies prior to bid to determine their 
requirements to provide temporary and permanent service and include all costs associated with providing 
those services in their bid.  Coordination of the Work of the utility companies during construction is the 
sole responsibility of the Contractor. 

 
10. CHANGE ORDERS. 

 

A. In the event Town has changes in the Work not covered by the Contract, these changes will not 

invalidate or relieve Contractor from any guarantee it has given in this Contract.  These changes 

will not relieve the Surety or Sureties of any bonds and all extra Work shall be performed under the 
conditions of this Contract.  Except in an emergency endangering life or property, changes in Work 

shall not proceed without a Change Order approved by the Town.  Contractor shall provide a 

complete breakdown of all labor and material costs with the Change Order request.  The breakdown 
shall include the Contractor’s allowance for overhead and profit not to exceed 10% of the net cost 

of the change with Work provided directly by the Contractor.   For purposes of this Contract, “net 

cost” shall mean the difference between all proper cost additions and deductions.  No claim for 
adjustments of the contract price shall be valid unless the procedure outlined in this section is 

followed.  Any Work performed pursuant to an approved change order shall be governed by the 

terms of this Contract. 

 

B. The Parties agree that there are two methods that may be utilized to determine the cost of changes: 

  

1. If unit prices are quoted in the proposal or bid and the additional work is covered by those unit 

prices, or can be subsequently agreed to by the Parties, the cost of the change shall be computed 

by application of the unit prices based on quantities.  If this method is used no additional 
allowances shall be made for overhead and profit. 

- Page 92 -



 

Page 11 of 20  

00500-11  Revision date 07/25/2022 

 

 

2. If the additional work is not covered by unit prices, unit prices were not provided in the proposal 
or bid, or the Parties mutually agree, then Town and Contractor may negotiate and agree upon 

the value of the change prior to the issuance of the Change Order and the Change Order shall 

identify the corresponding lump sum adjustment to the contract price.  

 

C. In the event concealed conditions are discovered in the performance of the Work below grade, or in 

the event concealed or unknown conditions in an existing structure vary from the conditions 
indicated in the Contract Documents, the contract sum and time for completion may be adjusted by 

Change Order upon claim by either party made within thirty (30) days after the condition has been 

identified.  The cost shall be determined by one of the methods outlined in this Contract. 
 

D. Change Orders shall be submitted by the Contractor for the Town’s review and approval.  Contractor 

shall provide all applicable supporting data and information.  Delay in approval of a Change Order 
due to Contractor’s failure to submit proper documentation shall not be grounds for a time extension 

or basis of a claim.  The Town shall respond to the Contractor’s proposal within fourteen calendar 

(14) days of receipt of the proposal.  If accepted, the Town shall prepare the Change Order for the 
Contractor’s signature.  The Town shall execute the approved Change Order within seven (7) days 

of receipt from the Contractor.  The Contractor shall notify its bonding company that the Contract 

has been changed by the amount of the Change Order and provide a copy of the approved Change 
Order to the Surety.  In the event a Change Order cannot be agreed upon by the Parties, nothing in 

this Contract shall preclude the Town from performing, or having performed, the Work requested 

in a Change Order. 
 

11. MINOR CHANGES. 

The Town may order minor changes in the Work not involving an adjustment in the Contract sum or Time 
for Completion, and not inconsistent with the intent of the Contract Documents.  Such changes shall be 
executed by written order and shall be binding on the Contractor and subject to the terms of this Contract. 
 

12.   INSPECTION OF THE WORK.   

 

A. It is a condition of this Contract that the Work shall be subject to inspection during normal 
working hours and during any time Work is in preparation and progress by the Town or a 
Special Inspector designated by the Town, and those persons required by state law to test 
Work for official approval.  The Contractor shall therefore provide safe access to the Work at 
all times for such inspections. 
 

B. All Work shall be inspected by the Town or Special Inspector (if applicable) prior to being 
covered by the Contractor.  Contractor shall give a minimum two weeks’ notice of needed 
inspections unless otherwise agreed to by all parties.  If an inspection fails, all costs associated 
with additional re-inspections shall be borne by the Contractor. 

 

C. Where special inspection or testing is required by virtue of any state laws, instructions of the 

Town, specifications, or codes, the Contractor shall give adequate notice to the Town of the 

time set for such inspection or test.  Such special tests or inspections will be made in the 

presence of the Town’s representative, and it shall be the Contractor's responsibility to serve 

ample notice of such tests.  

 

- Page 93 -



 

Page 12 of 20  

00500-12  Revision date 07/25/2022 

 

 

D. All laboratory tests shall be paid by the Town unless provided otherwise in the Contract 
Documents, except the Contractor shall pay for laboratory tests to establish design mix for 
concrete, and for additional tests to prove compliance with Contract Documents where 
materials have tested deficient except when the testing laboratory did not follow the 
appropriate ASTM testing procedures. 

 

E. Should any Work be covered up or concealed prior to inspection and approval by the Town or 

Special Inspector, such Work shall be uncovered or exposed for inspection, if requested by the 

Town.  Inspection of the Work will be made upon notice from the Contractor that the Work 

has been uncovered or exposed.  In the event Work has been covered or concealed, all costs 

involved in uncovering, repairing, replacing, recovering and restoring to design condition said 

Work will be paid by the Contractor.  

13.   TOWN’S RIGHT TO PERFORM WORK.   

If at any point during the performance or progress of the work, or during the period of guarantee, Contractor 
fails to perform the Work in a satisfactory manner or to perform in accordance with the terms of this 
Contract, the Town, after seven (7) days’ written notice to the Contractor from the Town, may perform or 
have performed that portion of the Work.  The cost of the associated Work may be deducted from any 
amounts due or that become due to the Contractor.  In the event the cost of such performance exceeds the 
amount due the Contractor, then the Contractor or the Surety (if applicable), or both, shall be liable for and 
shall pay to the Town the amount of the excess. 
 
 
14. UNCORRECTED FAULTY WORK 

Should the correction of faulty or damaged Work be considered inadvisable by the Town, the Work will 
not be corrected and the Town shall be reimbursed by the Contractor for the devaluation of the Project as a 
result of the faulty Work.  A change order will be issued to reflect the reduction in Contract sum. 
 
15. FINAL INSPECTION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE 

 

A. Upon notification from the Contractor that the Project is complete and ready for inspection, the 
Town shall complete a final inspection to verify that the Project is complete.  The Contractor shall 
schedule the final inspection at a time and date acceptable to the Town. 
 

B. Upon final inspection, the Town shall, if job conditions warrant, record a list of items that are 

found to be incomplete or not in accordance with the Contract Documents.  At the conclusion of 

the Town’s final inspection, the Town shall make one of the following determinations:  

1. That the Project is completed and accepted. 

2. That the Project will be accepted subject to the correction of any identified discrepancies or 

faulty construction.   

3.  That the Project is not complete and a date for another final inspection will be established. 

The date of Final Acceptance will establish the beginning of the guarantees and warranties period and the 

termination of utility cost to the Contractor.  No liquidated damages will be assessed after this date. 

- Page 94 -



 

Page 13 of 20  

00500-13  Revision date 07/25/2022 

 

 

16.  CORRECTION OF WORK PRIOR TO FINAL PAYMENT 

 

       A.    Any Work, materials, fabricated items or other parts of the Work which are not in accordance 
with the Contract shall be promptly removed from the Work site by the Contractor and shall 
be immediately replaced by new Work in accordance with the Contract Documents at no 
additional cost to the Town.  Work or property of other contractors or the Town, damaged 
or destroyed by virtue of such faulty Work, shall be made good at the expense of the 
Contractor. 

 
        B. Correction of faulty Work described above shall commence within twenty-four (24) hours 

after receipt of notice from the Town, and shall make satisfactory progress, as determined 
by the Town, until completed.  

 
        C. Should Contractor fail to proceed with the corrections in a timely fashion Town may 

complete the Work in accordance with this Contract. 
 
17.  CORRECTION OF WORK AFTER FINAL PAYMENT 

Neither the final payment or use of the premises by the Town, nor any provision of the Contract, nor any 
other act or instrument of the Town, shall relieve the Contractor from responsibility for negligence, or faulty 
material or workership, or failure to comply with the drawings and specifications.  Contractor shall correct 
or make good any defects due thereto and repair any damage resulting there from, which may appear during 
the guarantee period following Final Acceptance of the Work.  The Town will report any defects as they 
may appear to the Contractor and establish a time limit for completion of corrections by the Contractor.  
The Town will be the judge as to the responsibility for correction of defects. 
 

18.  MINORITY BUSINESS PARTICIPATION 

Contractor is required to identify participation of Minority and Women-Owned Business Enterprises 

(MWBE) in its proposal and document how that participation is achieved.  There is a verifiable goal of ten 
percent (10%) for participation by minority businesses in the total value of work for the Project.  Contractor 

shall comply with the document titled “Guidelines For Recruitment and Selection of Minority Businesses 

For Participation In Reedy Branch Greenway (Sweetwater Gap) Construction Contract”, including 

associated Affidavits and Appendices which are hereby incorporated herein. 

 

19.  APPLICABILITY OF LAWS AND REGULATIONS. 

The Contractor shall adhere to all laws, ordinances, and regulations of the United States, the State of North 
Carolina, the County of Wake, and the Town of Apex in the performance of the services outlined in this 
Contract and any attached specifications.  This Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of North 
Carolina. 
 
Contractor shall obtain all required permits and inspections and shall give all notices required by law in 
performance of this Project.  In the event Contractor observes that any drawings or specifications are not in 
compliance with any such rules, laws, or regulations, Contractor shall promptly notify the Town in writing.  
Contractor shall not perform any Work knowing it to be contrary to any laws, ordinances, codes, rules or 
regulations. 
 

All Work under this Contract shall be performed in accordance with the North Carolina Building Code and 
all other applicable state or national codes. 
 

- Page 95 -



 

Page 14 of 20  

00500-14  Revision date 07/25/2022 

 

 

20.  E-VERIFY COMPLIANCE. 

The Contractor shall comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North Carolina General 
Statutes (E-Verify).  Contractor shall require all of the Contractor’s subcontractors to comply with the 

requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North Carolina General Statutes (E-Verify).   

 

21.  QUALITY AND WORKERSHIP. 

Contractor shall provide services in accordance with all governing agency regulations and shall be held to 
the same standard and shall exercise the same degree of care, skill and judgment in the performance of 
services for Town as is ordinarily provided by a similar professional under the same or similar 
circumstances at the time in North Carolina.  Contractor hereby certifies that Contractor is a licensed general 
contractor as defined by N.C.G.S. 87-1. 
 
22.   SURETY.   

If at any time after the execution of this Contract and the surety bonds included in the Contract Documents 
for the faithful performance of the Contract, the Town shall deem the surety or sureties upon such bonds to 
be unsatisfactory, or if, for any reason, such bonds cease to be adequate to cover the performance of the 
Work, the Contractor shall, at its expense, within five (5) days after the receipt of notice from the Town so 
to do, furnish an additional bond or bonds in such form and amount, and with such surety or sureties as 
shall be satisfactory to the Town.  In such event no further payment to the Contractor shall be deemed to be 
due under this Contract until such new or additional security for the faithful performance of the Work shall 
be furnished in manner and form satisfactory to the Town. 
 
23.  BOND REQUIREMENTS. 

Within ten (10) days of the award of the Contract, Contractor shall provide the Town of Apex with a contract 
payment bond and a contract performance bond executed by a surety company authorized to do business in 
North Carolina, each in an amount equal to 100 percent of the amount of the Contract.  All bonds shall be 
in conformity with N.C.G.S. 44A-33 and countersigned by an authorizing agent of the bonding company.   
 
Failure on the part of the Contractor to file acceptable bonds within the required timeframe shall be just 
cause for the forfeiture of the bid bond or bid deposit and rescinding award of the Contract.  Award may 
then be made to the next lowest responsible bidder or the Work may be re-advertised. 
 
 
24.  CONTRACTOR'S WARRANTIES.  

The Contractor, in executing this Contract, unconditionally guarantees the materials and workmanship 
against defects arising from faulty materials, faulty workmanship or negligence for a period of twelve (12) 
months following the Final Acceptance of the Work by the Town and shall replace all such defective 
materials or workmanship without cost to the Town.  In the case where materials or equipment carry a 
manufacturer’s warranty for any period in excess of twelve (12) months, then the manufacturer’s warranty 
shall apply for that specific equipment or material.  During the manufacturer’s warranty period the 
Contractor shall be responsible for the replacement of such defective equipment or materials. 
 

Nothing in this section shall preclude the Town from bringing an action for latent defects caused by the 
negligence of the Contractor which is concealed, hidden, or not readily apparent to the Town at the time 
of Final Acceptance, in accordance with applicable law.  Guarantees that are stipulated in the 
specifications or drawings shall govern those particular materials or equipment. 
 

25.  CODES AND STANDARDS. 

- Page 96 -



 

Page 15 of 20  

00500-15  Revision date 07/25/2022 

 

 

Wherever reference is made to codes, standard specifications, or other data published by regulating agencies 
it shall be understood that said reference is to the latest edition published prior to the date of the Contract 
Documents.  These regulating agencies include, but are not limited to, North Carolina state building codes, 
federal specifications, national electric codes, ASTM specifications and various institute specifications. 
 

26. INDEMNIFICATION. 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Town and its 
agents, consultants, elected officials, and employees, from and against all claims, damages, losses and 
expenses, including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees, arising out of or resulting from the performance or 
failure of performance of the Work, provided that any such claim, damage, loss or expense (1) is attributable 
to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the 
Work itself) including the loss of use resulting there from, and (2) is caused in whole or in part by any 
negligent act or omission of the Contractor, the Contractor's subcontractor, or the agents of either the 
Contractor or the Contractor's subcontractor.  Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge or 
otherwise reduce any other right or obligation of indemnity which would otherwise exist as to any party or 
person described in this section. 

 

27.  INSURANCE. 

Work under this Contract shall not begin until the Contractor has obtained all required insurance set forth 

below and verifying certificates of insurance have been provided to the Town.  All required certificates of 

insurance, endorsements, and blanket additional insured policy provisions are attached and considered part 
of this Contract.  These certificates shall document that coverages afforded under the policies will not be 

cancelled, reduced in amount or eliminated without written notice, by certified mail, to the Town of such 

alteration or cancellation.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither the requirement of Contractor to have 
sufficient insurance nor the requirement that Town is named as an additional insured, shall constitute waiver 

of the Town’s governmental immunity in any respect, under North Carolina law. 

  

  a.  Worker’s Compensation and Employer's Liability  

  

The Contractor shall provide and maintain, until Final Acceptance, Worker's compensation 

insurance, as required by law, as well as employer's liability coverage with a minimum limit 

of $1,000,000.  

  

  b.  Public Liability and Property Damage  

  

The Contractor shall provide and maintain, until Final Acceptance, comprehensive general 

liability insurance, including coverage for premises operations, independent contractors, 

completed operations, products and contractual exposures, as shall protect such contractors 

from claims arising out of any bodily injury, including accidental death, as well as from 

claims for property damages which may arise from operations under this Contract, whether 

such operations be by the Contractor or by any subcontractor, or by anyone directly or 

indirectly employed by either of them and the minimum limits of such insurance shall be as 

follows:  

  

    Commercial General Liability: 

- Page 97 -



 

Page 16 of 20  

00500-16  Revision date 07/25/2022 

 

 

   Each Occurrence: Two Million ($2,000,000) 

                    General Aggregate: Four Million ($4,000,000) 

   Products-Completed/Operations Aggregate:  Four Million ($4,000,000) 

     

Such coverage for completed operations must be maintained for at least two (2) years 

following Final Acceptance of the Work performed under the Contract.  

  

          c.      Commercial Automobile Liability Coverage 

  

The Contractor shall purchase and maintain, until Final Acceptance, commercial 

automobile liability insurance as follows: 

Combined Single Limit Per Accident: Two Million ($2,000,000) for bodily injury, 

death of any person, and property damage covering vehicles owned, non-owned, 

and hired by Contractor and used during construction. 

  

           d.     Property Insurance (Builder’s Risk/Installation Floater)  

  

The Contractor shall purchase and maintain property insurance until Final Acceptance, upon 

the entire Work at the site to the full insurable value thereof.  This insurance shall include the 

interests of the Town, the Contractor, the subcontractors and sub-subcontractors in the Work 

and shall insure against the perils of fire, wind, rain, flood, extended coverage, and vandalism 

and malicious mischief.  If the Town is damaged by failure of the Contractor to purchase or 

maintain such insurance, then the Contractor shall bear all reasonable costs properly 

attributable thereto; the Contractor shall obtain and maintain similar property insurance on 

portions of the Work stored off the site when request for payment per articles so includes such 

portions. 

 

           e.     Environmental Pollution Liability  

   

      If the Work includes the use or release of pollutants Contractor shall maintain Environmental            

                  Pollution Liability in the following minimum amounts:   

                         Each Occurrence: Two Million ($1,000,000) 

                             Aggregate: Four Million ($4,000,000) 

   

 

            f.    Deductible  

  

Any deductible, if applicable to loss covered by insurance provided, is to be borne by the 

Contractor.  

- Page 98 -



 

Page 17 of 20  

00500-17  Revision date 07/25/2022 

 

 

  

            g.     Other Insurance  

  

The Contractor shall obtain such additional insurance as may be required by the Town or by 

the General Statutes of North Carolina including motor vehicle insurance, in amounts not less 

than the statutory limits.  

Commercial General Liability and Commercial Automobile Liability limits can be satisfied 

under a combination of Primary and Umbrella/Excess Liability Insurance policies. 

Waiver of Subrogation is required on General Liability, Auto Liability, Worker’s 

Compensation and Umbrella policies. 

Town of Apex is to be named as Additional Insured on General Liability and Automobile 

Liability policies.  

  

            h.     Proof of Carriage  

  

The Contractor shall furnish the Town with satisfactory proof of carriage of the insurance 

required before approval of the insurance is granted by the Town.       

 

28.  SUBCONTRACTORS. 

Contractor shall be fully responsible for Contractor’s own acts or omissions as well as those of any 
subcontractor retained to perform services pursuant to this Contract.  Contractor acknowledges that no 
contractual relationship exists between the subcontractor and the Town in regards to this Contract and that 
the subcontractor is acting as an agent or employee of the Contractor.  Contractor acknowledges that the 
terms of this Contract apply to each subcontractor as it does to the Contractor and Contractor will take 
whatever steps necessary to bind all subcontractors working on this Project to these terms. 

 

29.  DEFAULT. 

In the event the Contractor fails to begin the Work pursuant to the Contract Documents within the time 

specified, or the progress of the Work is not maintained on schedule, or the Work is not completed within 
the time specified, or fails to perform the Work with sufficient staff and equipment or with sufficient 

materials to ensure the prompt completion of said Work, or shall perform the Work unsuitably or shall 

discontinue the prosecution of the Work, or if the Contractor shall become insolvent or be declared bankrupt 
or commit any act of bankruptcy or insolvency, or allow any final judgment to stand against Contractor 

unsatisfied for a period of forty-eight (48) hours, or shall make an assignment for the benefit of creditors, 

or for any other cause whatsoever shall not carry on the Work in an acceptable manner, the Town may give 
notice in writing, sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the Contractor and its surety of such 

delay, neglect or default, specifying the same, and if the Contractor within a period of seven (7) days after 

such notice shall not proceed in accordance with the notice, then the Town shall, declare this Contract in 

default.  Upon a declaration of default the following shall apply:  

 

The Surety shall promptly take over the Work and complete the performance of this Contract in the 
manner and within the time frame specified.  In the event the Surety shall fail to take over the Work 

to be done under this Contract within seven (7) days after being so notified and notify the Town in 

- Page 99 -



 

Page 18 of 20  

00500-18  Revision date 07/25/2022 

 

 

writing, sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, that it is taking the same over and stating 
that it will diligently pursue and complete the same, the Town shall have full power and authority, 

without violating the Contract, to take the prosecution of the Work out of the hands of said 

Contractor, to appropriate or use any or all contract materials and equipment on the grounds as may 
be suitable and acceptable and may enter into an agreement, either by public letting or negotiation, 

for the completion of said Contract according to the terms and provisions thereof or use such other 

methods as in Town’s opinion shall be required for the completion of said Contract in an acceptable 
manner.  All costs and charges incurred by the Town, together with the costs of completing the 

Work under Contract, shall be deducted from any monies due or which may become due said 

Contractor and Surety.  In the event the expense shall exceed the sum which would have been 
payable under the Contract, then the Contractor and the Surety shall be liable and shall pay to the 

Town the amount of said excess. 

 

30.  TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE. 

Town shall have the right to terminate this Contract for the Town’s convenience upon thirty (30) days 

written notice to Contractor.  Contractor shall terminate performance of services on a schedule acceptable 

to the Town.  Unless otherwise notified, upon termination Contractor shall discontinue all Work and the 
placement of orders for materials and supplies in connection with this Contract.   

 
Upon such termination, Contractor shall be entitled to payment only as follows: (1) the actual cost of the 

Work completed in conformity with this Contract; plus, (2) such other costs actually incurred by 

Contractor as are permitted by the Contract and approved by Town.  There shall be deducted from such 

sums as provided in this subparagraph the amount of any payments made to Contractor prior to the date of 

the termination of this Contract. Contractor shall not be entitled to any claim or claim of lien against 

Town for any additional compensation or damages in the event of such termination and payment.   

 
31.  NOTICE. 

Any formal notice, demand, or request required by or made in connection with this Contract shall be deemed 

properly made if delivered in writing in person by registered mail to the address specified below. 

TO CONTRACTOR: 

 

TO TOWN:  
  Town of Apex 

  Attn: Angela Reincke 

  PO Box 250 
  Apex, NC 27502 

                        Angela.Reincke@apexnc.org 

 

 

32.  NONWAIVER FOR BREACH. 

No breach or non-performance of any term of this Contract shall be deemed to be waived by either party 
unless said breach or non-performance is waived in writing and signed by the parties.  No waiver of any 

breach or non-performance under this Contract shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of any subsequent 

breach or non-performance and for any such breach or non-performance each party shall be relegated to 
such remedies as provided by law.   

 

- Page 100 -



 

Page 19 of 20  

00500-19  Revision date 07/25/2022 

 

 

33.  CONSTRUCTION.   

Should any portion of this Contract require judicial interpretation, it is agreed that the Court or Tribunal 
construing the same shall not apply a presumption that the terms hereof shall be more strictly construed 

against any one party by reason of the rule of construction that a document is to be more strictly construed 

against the party who prepared the documents. 

 

34.  NO REPRESENTATIONS.   

The parties hereby warrant that no representations about the nature or extent of any claims, demands, 

damages, or rights that they have, or may have, against one another have been made to them, or to anyone 
acting on their behalf, to induce them to execute this Contract, and they rely on no such representations; 

that they have fully read and understood this Contract before signing their names; and that they act 

voluntarily and with full advice of counsel.  

 

35.  SEVERABILITY.   

In the event for any reason that any provision or portion of this Contract shall be found to be void or invalid, 

then such provision or portion shall be deemed to be severable from the remaining provisions or portions 
of this Contract, and it shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions, which portions shall be given 

full effect as if the void or invalid provision or portion had not been included herein. 

 

36.  COUNTERPARTS.  

This Contract may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and 

all of which together shall constitute one instrument. 

 

37.  MODIFICATION. 

This Contract contains the full understanding of the parties. Any modifications or addendums to this 

Contract must be in writing and executed with the same formality as this Contract.   

 

38.  BINDING EFFECT.   

The terms of this Contract shall be binding upon the parties' heirs, successors, and assigns. 

 

39.  ASSIGNMENT. 

Contractor shall not assign, sublet, or transfer any rights under or interest in (including, but without 
limitation, monies that may become due or monies that are due) this Contract without the written consent 

of the Town.  Nothing contained in this paragraph shall prevent Contractor from employing such 

independent consultants, associates, and sub-contractors as it may deem appropriate to assist Contractor in 

the performance of services rendered. 

 

40.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  

Contractor is an independent contractor and shall undertake performance of the services pursuant to the 
terms of this Contract as an independent contractor.  Contractor shall be wholly responsible for the methods, 

means and techniques of performance.   

 

41.  NON-APPROPRIATION. 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Contract, the parties agree that payments due hereunder from 

the Town are from appropriations and monies from the Town Council and any other governmental entities.  

- Page 101 -



 

Page 20 of 20  

00500-20  Revision date 07/25/2022 

 

 

In the event sufficient appropriations or monies are not made available to the Town to pay the terms of this 
Contract for any fiscal year, this Contract shall terminate immediately without further obligation of the 

Town.  

 

42.  IRAN DIVESTMENT ACT CERTIFICATION. 

N.C.G.S. 147-86.60 prohibits the State of North Carolina, a North Carolina local government, or any other 

political subdivision of the State of North Carolina from contracting with any entity that is listed on the 

Final Divestment List created by the North Carolina State Treasurer pursuant to N.C.G.S. 147-86.58.  
N.C.G.S. 147-86.59 further requires that contractors with the State, a North Carolina local government, or 

any other political subdivision of the State of North Carolina must not utilize any subcontractor found on 

the State Treasurer’s Final Divestment List.  As of the date of execution of this Contract the Contractor 
hereby certifies that the Contractor is not listed on the Final Divestment List created by the North Carolina 

State Treasurer and that the Contractor will not utilize any subcontractors found on the Final Divestment 

List. 

 

43.  ANTI-HUMAN TRAFFICKING. 

The Contractor warrants and agrees that no labor supplied by the Contractor or the Contractor’s 

subcontractors in the performance of this Agreement shall be obtained by means of deception, coercion, 

intimidation or force, or otherwise in violation of North Carolina law, specifically Article 10A, Subchapter 

3 of Chapter 14 of the North Carolina General Statutes, Human Trafficking. 

 

In witness thereof, the contracting parties, by their authorized agents, affix their signatures and 

seals this _____day of ______________, 2024. 

 

Contractor:____________________________  Town of Apex 

   

                           (Print name)  Shawn Purvis, Interim Town Manager 

  

 

                           Signature  Attest: 

   

                               Title  Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC, Town Clerk 

   

Attest: 

 This instrument has been preaudited in the 

manner required by the Local Government 

Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 

   

Secretary (if a corporation)  Antwan Morrison, Finance Director 

 

- Page 102 -



Reedy Branch Greenway

Sweetwater Gap

Bid Opening

Bid Bidder Name Bid Amount (as from bid form) Alternate Price Total Base Bid + Alternate Addendum 1-3 GC License # Bid Bond DBE Form

(Prior to tabulation of actual numbers) (Prior to tabulation of actual numbers)

1 Hollins Construction, Co.* $462,193.00 Y L.69738 N/A N/A

2 Lanier Construction $492,050.00 Y L.18152 N/A N/A

3 Beluca, LLC. $700,320.00 Y L.100934 N/A N/A

4 Black Diamond Designs, Inc. $601,186.14 N L.100100 N/A N/A

5 Cinderella Partners $492,381.37 Y L.78482 N/A N/A

______________________________________________________

Edward Tang, PE Date

*Denotes that a mathematical error was found when the bid tabulations were checked

This is to certify bids tabulated herein were received on the above date at the Town of Apex Senior  Center at 63 N. Hunter Street, Apex, NC 27502

WithersRavenel

1/29/2024

1/29/2024

- Page 103 -



 

PARKS, RECREATION AND CULTURAL RESOURCES 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF AWARD 
Reedy Branch (Sweetwater Gap) Greenway 

Construction 
 

To:  Tony Hollins 

 Hollins Construction Services, Co. 
 
 
 

The Town has considered the Bid received from you on January 23, 2024 for the above 

described Work in response to the Advertisement for Bids and information for this project. 
 

You are hereby notified that your bid has been accepted. 
 

As stipulated in the Instructions to Bidders, you are required to furnish the required 

Insurance Certificate along with an executed copy of the Contract within ten calendar days 

from the date of this Notice to you. 
 

If you fail to furnish said documents within ten days from the date of this Notice, the Town 

will be entitled to consider all your rights arising out of the Town’s acceptance of your Bid 

as abandoned. The Town will be entitled to such other rights as may be granted by law. 
 

 

TOWN OF APEX 
 
 

BY:     

Shawn Purvis, Interim Town Manager DATE 
 
 

 

ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE 
Receipt is hereby acknowledged by: 

 

BY:     

DATE 
 
 
 
 

TOWN OF APEX 
The Peak of Good Living 

PO Box 250 Apex, NC 27502 | (919) 249-3400 | www.apexnc.org 
- Page 104 -

http://www.apexnc.org/


00500-21 

- Page 105 -



ITEM 

NUMBER
ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT COST TOTAL UNIT COST TOTAL UNIT COST TOTAL UNIT COST TOTAL UNIT COST TOTAL

1 Mobilization 1 LS $109,000.00 $109,000.00 $53,500.00 $53,500.00 $7,435.00 $7,435.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $23,000.00 $23,000.00

2 Construction Staking 1 LS $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $18,000.00 $18,000.00 $9,665.50 $9,665.50 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $9,000.00 $9,000.00

3 Clearing and Grubbing 1 LS $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $8,600.00 $8,600.00 $8,922.00 $8,922.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00

4 Seeding and Mulching 1 LS $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $14,000.00 $14,000.00 $8,061.77 $8,061.77 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

5 Refresh Existing Construction Entrance @ Lowland St 1 EA $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $7,800.00 $7,800.00 $3,717.50 $3,717.50 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00

6 Comprehensive Grading 1 LS $85,000.00 $85,000.00 $14,580.00 $14,580.00 $16,208.30 $16,208.30 $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $55,000.00 $55,000.00

7 Undercut Allowance 100 CY $120.00 $12,000.00 $42.00 $4,200.00 $52.04 $5,204.00 $60.00 $6,000.00 $50.00 $5,000.00

8 Construction Entrance 1 EA $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $5,300.00 $5,300.00 $7,435.00 $7,435.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00

9 Combination Silt Fence/Tree Fence 1,000 LF $6.50 $6,500.00 $7.40 $7,400.00 $10.40 $10,400.00 $5.00 $5,000.00 $5.00 $5,000.00

10 Slope Matting 225 SY $8.00 $1,800.00 $11.45 $2,576.25 $7.44 $1,674.00 $5.00 $1,125.00 $8.00 $1,800.00

11 Silt Fence Outlet 2 EA $180.00 $360.00 $400.00 $800.00 $1,190.00 $2,380.00 $600.00 $1,200.00 $250.00 $500.00

12 Erosion Control Matting 1 LS $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $5,650.00 $5,650.00 $3,717.50 $3,717.50 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

13 10' Wide Wooden Boardwalk (All Inclusive Design, Permitting and Construction 1 LS $330,000.00 $330,000.00 $405,150.00 $405,150.00 $339,036.00 $339,036.00 $275,000.00 $275,000.00 $300,000.00 $300,000.00

14 10' x 10' x 0.5' (3000 PSI) Concrete Approach Slab 2 EA $4,700.00 $9,400.00 $2,250.00 $4,500.00 $1,934.00 $3,868.00 $3,000.00 $6,000.00 $3,500.00 $7,000.00

15 10' Wide Concrete Greenway Trail 278 SY $220.00 $61,160.00 $94.38 $26,237.64 $199.95 $55,586.10 $156.00 $43,368.00 $125.00 $34,750.00

16 MH Adjustments 3 EA $3,300.00 $9,900.00 $2,130.75 $6,392.25 $1,784.40 $5,353.20 $5,500.00 $16,500.00 $2,500.00 $7,500.00

17 As-Built Drawings 1 LS $2,200.00 $2,200.00 $16,500.00 $16,500.00 $3,717.50 $3,717.50 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00

*Bid has math error for LI's #14, 15, 

and 16. WR spoke with the contractor 

and confirmed the unit prices listed for 

each LI are correct and that the bid 

total should be $462,193.00 as shown 

above. 

HOLLINS 

CONSTRUCTION CO.

$462,193.00

LANIER 

CONSTRUCTION CO. 

$492,050.00

PROJECT CLOSEOUT

CONCRETE

STRUCTURES

EROSION CONTROL

SITE PREPARATION

BELUCA, LLC

$601,186.14 $492,381.37

BLACK DIAMOND 

DESIGNS INC. 
CINDERALLA PARTNERS

$700,320.00TOTAL BID PRICE

BID PROPOSAL

ITEMIZED BID TAB

GENERAL CONSTRUCTION

Reedy Branch Greenway (Sweetwater Gap)

00300-4

- Page 106 -



 

WithersRavenel   
Our People. Your Success. 

 

115 MacKenan Drive | Cary, NC 27511 
t: 919.469.3340 | f: 919.467.6008 | www.withersravenel.com | License No. C-0832 

Cary | Greensboro | Pittsboro | Raleigh | Wilmington 

January 29, 2024 
 
Ms. Angela Reincke 
Town of Apex  
53 Hunter Street 
Apex, North Carolina 27502 
 
RE:  Reedy Branch Greenway (Sweetwater Gap)  
 Bid Results and Recommendation of Award 
 WR Project No. 23-0070-006 
  
Dear Ms. Reincke: 
 
Bids were received for the subject project on Tuesday January 23rd, at 2:00 pm at Town of Apex Senior 
Center.  Five (5) bidders provided bids for the project. Two (2) bidders were present during the bid opening 
with three (3) bids being delivered to the Town. 
 
The apparent low bidder at the bid opening was: 
 
Hollins Construction Services, Inc. (HCS) 
3650 Rogers Rd #320 
Wake Forest, NC 27587 
 
Upon review of all bids and preparing the bid tabulation, WithersRavenel found three (3) multiplication 
errors within HCS’s bid that resulted in the actual bid total being $312.00 less than submitted in the bid 
package. This did not affect HCS being the lowest bidder. WithersRavenel confirmed the unit prices with 
HCS and agreed upon the corrected new total bid price as shown below: 
 
The total base bid amount is $462,193.00. 
 
We recommend awarding the contract to the apparent low bidder, Hollins Construction Services, Inc. in the 
amount of $462,193.00. 
 
If you need further information, please do not hesitate to call. 
 
Sincerely, 

 

Edward Tang, P.E. 
Senior Technical Consultant 

 

Attachment: 

1. Certified Bid Tabulation 

 

 

- Page 107 -



Section 1. The revenues anticipated for the projects are:

445,634                   

$445,634

Section 2. The expenditures anticipated are:

445,634                    

$445,634

Attest:

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC

Town Clerk

Adopted this the 13th day of February, 2024.

Total Revenues

67-9200-0011-47300: Capital Outlay Improvements

Town of Apex 

CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 2024-11

67 - Recreation Capital Project Fund

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the Town of Apex that the Capital Project Ordinance previously

entitled "Recreation Capital Project Fund" be amended as follows:

0011-35710: Reedy Branch Greenway: Subdivision Recreation Fees

Total Expenditures

Section 3. Within five (5) days after adoption, copies of this Amendment shall be filed with the Finance

Officer and Town Clerk.

- Page 108 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: February 13, 2024 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Allen Coleman, Town Clerk  

Department(s): Town Clerks Office 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve, as submitted or amended, Meeting Minutes from the following meeting:  

 January 16, 2024 – Town Council Work Session Minutes  

 January 23, 2024 – Regular Town Council Minutes    

 February 3, 2024 – Special Town Council Meeting Minutes  

 February 4, 2024 – Special Town Council Meeting Minutes  

 

Approval Recommended? 

The Town Clerk recommends the Town Council approve the meeting minutes as presented or amended.  

Item Details 

In accordance with 160A-72 of North Carolina General Statues (NCGS), the Governing Board has the legal 

duty to approve all minutes that are entered into the official journal of the Board’s proceedings.  

 

Attachments 

 CN9-A1: DRAFT Minutes – January 16, 2024 – Town Council Work Session Minutes  
 CN9-A2: DRAFT Minutes – January 23, 2024 – Regular Town Council Minutes  

 CN9-A3: DRAFT Minutes – February 3, 2024 – Special Town Council Meeting Minutes  

 CN9-A4: DRAFT Minutes – February 4, 2024 – Special Town Council Meeting Minutes  
 

 

- Page 109 -



Page 1 of 13 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 1 
TOWN OF APEX 2 

TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION   3 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 16, 2024 4 

3:30 P.M.  5 

The Apex Town Council met for a work session on Tuesday, January 16, 2024 at 3:30 p.m. at 6 
the Apex Town Hall located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex North Carolina. 7 

This meeting was open to the public.  Members of the public were able to attend this 8 
meeting in-person or watch online via the livestream on the Town’s YouTube Channel:  9 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=98u3I63ANa0 10 

 11 

Elected Body  12 
Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert (presiding)  13 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Ed Gray  14 
Councilmember Brett Gantt  15 
Councilmember Terry Mahaffey (left early, see note below) 16 
Councilmember Arno Zegerman  17 
Councilmember Audra Killingsworth (arrived late, see note below) 18 

 19 
Town Staff  20 
Interim Town Manager Shawn Purvis  21 
Assistant Town Manager Demetria John  22 
Assistant Town Manager Marty Stone 23 
Town Attorney Laurie Hohe 24 
Town Clerk Allen Coleman  25 

All other staff members will be identified appropriately below. 26 

[COMMENCMENT] 27 
 28 

 Mayor Gilbert called the Work Session to order, and led in a recitation of the Pledge 29 
of Allegiance. 30 

 31 
[AGENDA ITEM NO. 1 – APEX UNITED METHODIST CHURCH (UMC) PRESENTATION] 32 
 33 
 Fiorella Horna, with Fiesta Cristiana, gave an overview of Fiesta Cristiana’s 34 
Development since being established in 2008. She shared what their mission is and how it 35 
coincides with the Town of Apex.  36 
 37 
 38 

- Page 110 -

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=98u3I63ANa0


Page 2 of 13 
 

[SLIDE-1] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE-2] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE-3] 5 

 6 

- Page 111 -



Page 3 of 13 
 

[SLIDE-4] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE-5] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE-6] 5 

 6 

- Page 112 -



Page 4 of 13 
 

[SLIDE-7] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE-8] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE-9] 5 

 6 

- Page 113 -



Page 5 of 13 
 

[SLIDE-10] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE-11] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE-12] 5 

 6 

- Page 114 -



Page 6 of 13 
 

[SLIDE-13] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE-14] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE-15] 5 

 6 

- Page 115 -



Page 7 of 13 
 

[SLIDE-16] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE-17] 3 

 4 
  5 
 Councilmember Killingsworth arrived at 3:47 p.m.  6 
 Reverend Laura Katherine Stern said that Fiesta Cristiana is its own separate church 7 
from Apex United Methodist Church (UMC). She said Apex UMC launched Fiesta Cristiana 8 
and hired Pastor Jose Luis Villasenor back in 2008, and it has since become its own church. 9 
She said they have had their properties professionally appraised, and said they know they are 10 
worth more than the town’s most recent letter of intent offers. She said they would take this 11 
offer if the town offered guarantees regarding space to the community development arm of 12 
Fiesta. She said any property sale must go through all of the processes within the Methodist 13 
Church before being finalized. 14 
 Mayor Gilbert said in his time of knowing Fiesta and UMC, that Fiesta has done a lot 15 
and thanked them for that. He asked what is the age to receive training on mental health and 16 
first aid.  17 

- Page 116 -



Page 8 of 13 
 

 Reverend Stern said right now it’s only adults they are offering training to. They are 1 
looking to be able to train youth in the future. 2 
 Mayor Gilbert said Pastor Villasenor is with everyone virtual today and asked if he 3 
would like to say a few words.  4 
 Pastor Villasenor said he has been with Fiesta Cristiana for almost 17 years now. He 5 
said the first outreach program for Hispanic and Latino families connected to the ministry was 6 
computer learning. He said they were teaching Spanish speaking families how to use 7 
computers so they could serve their kids better. He said they went on to host Wake County 8 
ESL programs for the first four years. He said in those initial years, Fiesta Cristiana developed 9 
a relationship with the Town of Apex, and then created the Apex Latino Arts Festival. He said 10 
it is essential they establish a community service arm to better enhance services. He said he is 11 
passionate about serving the community and has brought many new challenges and 12 
opportunities. He said he’s glad to work with town leadership because he truly believes 13 
organizations like Fiesta Cristiana are essential for our community. He said lives have been 14 
changed through their programs, and thanked Reverend Stern for her work. 15 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Assistant Town Manager John for going back and forth with 16 
Council and both organizations to bring this meeting together. He said the objective today is 17 
to ask questions directly to Council from both organizations so there is no delay in going 18 
back and forth.  19 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray said he wanted to note that the reason the town would not 20 
be engaging in any negotiations during this meeting is that they want to be able to have the 21 
same ability as any private buyer would to analyze, consult, and not show their hand. He said 22 
they discuss property matters in closed session in order to discuss how they value the land for 23 
the town and protect their position. He said this meeting may help in understanding the other 24 
aspects of this outside of the land transaction itself. He said this is an important conversation 25 
because organizations like Fiesta Cristiana are very important in providing support to the 26 
community. He said Fiesta helps speak for the voices that don’t get heard, and these groups 27 
help provide to the community things the town is not able to directly. He said he appreciates 28 
the work of Apex United Methodist Church to provide support to those that need the help. 29 
He said the town is still very early on in this process, but these discussions happening early 30 
will be very helpful. 31 
 Mayor Gilbert opened the floor up for questions and discussion.  32 
 Councilmember Gantt said Fiesta Cristiana does amazing work. He said he finds this 33 
in alignment with Wake County more than the Town of Apex. He said voting, immigration, 34 
health, wellness, are more health and human services that the county handles. He asked what 35 
has the outreach been to Wake County about them leading this or a partnership.  36 
 Ms. Horna said there is currently an ARPA grant with Wake County. She said they 37 
have worked with Wake County Human Services a lot regarding community health. She said 38 
all of the work they have been doing have been with the town. 39 
 Councilmember Gantt asked has this proposal and presentation gone to Wake 40 
County.  41 

- Page 117 -



Page 9 of 13 
 

 Ms. Horna said no. She said the work they’re looking into moving forward through the 1 
Family Resource Center is housed in Apex, and for Apex. She said the work they do for Wake 2 
County has come from the community health worker initiative. She said mainly the work they 3 
do is within the limits of the Town of Apex and working with people who either come to the 4 
town to receive services or who live in the town and receive services.  5 
 Reverend Stern asked Pastor Villasenor to share the importance of the location of the 6 
land and why the resource center is a helpful component.  7 
 Pastor Villasenor said when the outreach program started in 2008 in Apex, it was one 8 
of the most affordable places to live. He said that a lot of new immigrant families were 9 
moving to that area in Apex. He said there are three Latino business within one block of each 10 
other downtown and the Family Resource Center nearby. He said that area has become a 11 
hub of strategic outreach. He said Fiesta hosted the largest Covid vaccination event in the 12 
state when Covid was not being reached to Latino families. He said many families have been 13 
forced out of Apex due to cost of living, but are still connected to Apex through their 14 
organization. He says the Family Resource Center has also been like a hub to other Latino 15 
families in other towns who do not offer this service.  16 
 Reverend Stern said that this isn’t just services towards Wake County, there’s a very 17 
specific focus towards Apex particularly the mediate area.  18 
 Councilmember Gantt said it would be a referral if the Town of Apex was in charge of 19 
it, but it could be direct services provided if it was a County facility. 20 
 Ms. Horna said the vision for this is designed to bring all the people together in one 21 
space to get the resources they need. She said the referrals are made for resources within the 22 
town or outside of the town depending on what it is.  23 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray asked if it’s because of the nature and type of the 24 
population that they are dealing with on a day-to-day basis that being close to downtown as 25 
possible would be beneficial.  26 
 Ms. Horna said yes, definitely.  27 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray asked if adding additional organizations would impact 28 
negatively or positively the ability to do your job to help. 29 
 Ms. Horna said no, that there were conversations about there are so many needs for 30 
Latino resources in one place. She said if Fiesta Cristiana is able to connect with other 31 
organizations to create something that they don’t already have or that can’t give directly or 32 
vice versa, she said that’s the idea.   33 
 Pastor Villasenor said one of the things they value at Fiesta is collaboration. He said 34 
Fiesta has many partnerships but not with the sharing of spaces except Apex UMC, but they 35 
are not against doing more of that.  He said he does share a space at the legal clinic which is 36 
a site they service over 200 families. He said one thing to note was that Fiesta started a 37 
program for high school graduates that wanted to pursue college, and offered a College 38 
preparation course through Fiesta. He said Fiesta offered a service that the public school 39 
system was failing to provide. He said the point is we need each other to serve our 40 
community better, and that’s the approach Fiesta goes into with each collaboration.  41 

- Page 118 -



Page 10 of 13 
 

 Councilmember Zegerman said he appreciates all the services Fiesta has provided 1 
over the years. He asked if Fiesta Christiana Family Resource center exclusively offers these 2 
services or is there another facility that Fiesta operates out of. 3 
 Reverend Stern said the Family Resource Center that is currently housed at the 4 
address on Moore Street, that is not one of properties their talking about. She said one of the 5 
properties is one they use for the Apex Outreach Service project and houses tools and the 6 
other house has been used by a variety of things. She said recently, Fiesta’s operations have 7 
moved to the other property, which is used for various things. 8 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked is it more like administrative offices. 9 
 Reverend Stern said it’s always been an administrative office. 10 
 Pastor Villasenor said this has been recent during the pandemic to provide outreach 11 
particularly to the community worker team. He said up until November, Fiesta and staff 12 
shared an office with Apex UMC and are still trying to navigate the process to move forward.  13 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if Fiesta is receiving any members in the pubic in 14 
the new location.  15 
 Pastor Villasenor said if someone wants to seek services from Fiesta, they are 16 
referred back to the Family Resource Center because that’s where the support team is 17 
housed. He said there is an Outreach Event Coordinator who currently is housed at the 18 
House of Hope but she also goes back and forth between House of Hope and the Family 19 
Resource Center.  20 
 Reverend Stern said what the future looks like is their conversations is the Family 21 
Resource Center would move.  22 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he’s trying to link the two properties and understand 23 
how they are linked to the directly receiving community members. He said that service seems 24 
like it’s in a different building than the properties being discussed. 25 
 Reverend Stern said it’s all on the same block so it’s not a big distance. She said you 26 
take those two combined properties and you’ve got a much larger space for the Family 27 
Resource Center. She said the conversations Apex UMC has had with Fiesta Cristiana is 28 
around lack of space.  29 
 Ms. Horna said the Family Resource Center could be the space where the 30 
administrative part remains and where immigration law services are housed. She said the two 31 
properties would allow Fiesta to expand their meeting rooms and offer more classes, 32 
workshops, healing circles, and support groups.  33 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked in their vision, who is building the resource 34 
center? He said he’d like to get more information to determine if it’s in the best interest for 35 
town funds.  36 
 Pastor Villasenor said the vision is to serve all residents holistically, and particularly 37 
those who have been historically marginalized. 38 
 Councilmember Zegerman said there is no argument on that, and that’s not what he 39 
is saying at all. He said he was wondering if these two properties would be what was needed 40 
to unlock that service, or are there are alternative ways of working together to achieve the 41 
same or better outcome.  42 

- Page 119 -



Page 11 of 13 
 

 Pastor Villasenor said as of right now the reason this has been the location is because 1 
of Apex UMC’s vision in 2008. He said he’s open to other opportunities but that’s where 2 
Fiesta started and has been since 2008. He said they put forth dreams, but it requires a 3 
partner on the other end to engage in the relationship. He said as a Latino Apex resident, he 4 
does care about hearing that the town cares about its Latino residents. He said this gives an 5 
opportunity for the town to show they are really listening.  6 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he isn’t trying to question the services offered or the 7 
path with Fiesta Cristian and the town, but rather connect the conversation back to the 8 
transaction they are talking about. He said the two properties are located on the same block, 9 
but there is one house on the corner which is not owned by Apex UMC. He said the rest of 10 
the block is owned by the church. He asked what the view on the other properties that are 11 
currently in that space.  12 
 Reverend Stern said one is a private residence, and the other is a church where the 13 
Apex UMC church staff is and the back is where the Family Resources are currently. She said 14 
she understands the town would not want to house any worship services on town-owned 15 
land, rather the community service arm.  16 
 Mayor Gilbert said Councilmember Mahaffey has to leave and asked if he had any 17 
questions. 18 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said he strongly supports their mission. He said the way 19 
Towns support nonprofits like this is through an annual grant program. He said it was around 20 
$72,000 last year and maybe around $75,000 this year. He said Fiesta Christiana applied last 21 
year and there was some issue. He asked why are we talking about property acquisition to 22 
build a center for Fiesta Cristian as opposed to further or more support to our nonprofit 23 
programs. He said they do a great work, but so do many other non-profits in Apex, so the 24 
money has to be allocated appropriately.  25 
 Reverend Stern said both Apex UMC and Fiesta Christiana are capped with their 26 
space.  27 
 Pastor Villasenor said Fiesta Christiana was invited to be part of a cohort of 8 28 
nonprofit organizations in Wake County, that are led by people of color. He said what all 29 
these nonprofits have in common is the struggle to have any property to deliver their 30 
services. He said properties are essential to provide services. He said a lack of access to 31 
properties is something that a lot of people of color-led organizations have to face. 32 
 Ms. Horna said this is a space that could be a one-stop-shop. She said if they were to 33 
take that corner of the property and create a space where there are job opportunities and 34 
more space to gather for the community. She said it’s not just the Town investing in Fiesta 35 
Christiana, she said Fiesta plans to apply for available grants or looking for affordable 36 
housing grants that would allow Fiesta to invest with the Town.  37 
 Councilmember Zegerman said that this location has more of a historical relevance 38 
to it, since Fiesta has been there for 16 years. 39 
 Reverend Stern said there are also some practical reasons because of where the lot is 40 
and where the Resource Center currently is.  41 

- Page 120 -



Page 12 of 13 
 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked what was currently behind the property at 210 1 
Moore Street.  2 
 Councilmember Mahaffey left the meeting at 4:37 p.m.   3 
 Reverend Stern said that’s a staff house. She got up to see what specifically see what 4 
Councilmember Zegerman was looking at and she identified it as a bio retention pond. She 5 
said in terms of why to invest is also because this is a particular population that the town 6 
would be investing in.  7 
 Mayor Gilbert asked to hear from Fiesta Christiana and staff on how their vision 8 
connects with the town’s vision with affordable housing.  9 
 Pastor Villasenor said one of the first ways Fiesta started was with the Inaugural Fiesta 10 
Builds with Habitat. He said Fiesta really wanted to reach the Hispanic community. He said 11 
since Fiesta Builds, there have been over 30 Hispanic homeowners in Apex. He said they 12 
have been engaged in the Hispanic community and had those conversations about 13 
displacement and strategizing to keep those families in Apex. He said families that face 14 
potential homelessness or evictions is why Fiesta applies for the grants and advocates for 15 
housing justice. He said programs aren’t the only way they serve, and they have a sort of 16 
higher calling. He said Fiesta is a member of ONE Wake and is the only Latino organization 17 
that is a member of ONE Wake.  18 
 Ms. Horna said there was a vision about transitional housing, but she said that 19 
wouldn’t be enough. She said Fiesta would like a space where people can learn financial 20 
literacy and how to build that capacity. She said there are conversations about connecting 21 
people with the Latino Credit Union to receive loans. She said those types of things they 22 
would like to offer.  23 
 Assistant Town Manager John said what the town’s Community Development 24 
department is doing is taking different approaches to connecting residents to organizations 25 
that can ensure access to safe, quality housing. She said the town is collecting that 26 
information and engaging with those partners like Wake County, in order to get resources to 27 
those organizations. She said Apex doesn’t have any organizations like that currently so the 28 
town will partner with agencies where the service is offered and bring those services to 29 
residents of Apex. She said also part of that is getting that information on the Town’s website.  30 
 Ms. Horna said Fiesta met earlier this month with White Gold Foundation to look at 31 
what they are doing around affordable housing. She said they are exploring how they can 32 
implement something like that in their organization as well. She said it is not affordable to live 33 
in Apex right now, but they would like to remain connected to their friends and organizations 34 
in the area.  35 
 Assistant Town Manager John said her and Marla Newman, Community 36 
Development and Neighborhood Connections Director, met with Pastor Luis last week to be 37 
able to understand Fiesta and its mission ad the people they serve. She said as the town 38 
builds out these resources, the town also wants to know how we can serve the Latino 39 
Community better and the Asian Community and any Apex residents who are in need for 40 
housing.  41 

- Page 121 -



Page 13 of 13 
 

 Mr. Oz said with the 15 years in working with DHS that they would not qualify the 1 
work Fiesta does that’s overlapping with the work that DHS does. He said the programs DHS 2 
has are protective custodial programs. He said these organizations do very different things in 3 
different landscapes. He said a lot of what they talked about is about the connections with 4 
people in the community, and DHS would not be able to step in and do what Fiesta does. 5 
 Mayor Gilbert asked Council if they had anymore questions.  6 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he appreciates everyone coming in and Pastor Jose 7 
calling in from El Salvador. He said he appreciates Fiestas services and enjoyed learning a 8 
little bit more about that they do. He said he thinks he has what he needs right now. 9 
 Councilmember Killingsworth said they covered the questions she was looking for 10 
more information on. She said nobody here would debate that Fiesta provides amazing 11 
services. She said as a Council they have to decide what their goals are, and whether 12 
purchasing this property would be the best way to do that. 13 
 Mayor Gilbert said he has been standing with Pastor Jose for 16 years and will 14 
continue to stand with him today. He said he fully supports this and hope to figure out a 15 
solution. He asked Town Clerk Allen Coleman to put this on the next Closed Session.  16 
 Councilmember Gantt said it should be the one after the next Council Meeting 17 
because the next meeting is already set to be very long.  18 
 Ms. Horna thanked the Mayor and Council for listening to their petition. She said 19 
even in making the decision in buying the land or not buying the land that Fiesta and the 20 
town will still continue to work together.   21 
 22 
 [ADJOURNMENT] 23 
 24 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked everyone and declared the meeting adjourned at 4:57 p.m.   25 
 26 

 27 
Jacques K. Gilbert 28 

Apex, Mayor  29 
 30 
 31 

Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 32 
Apex, Town Clerk  33 
 34 
Submitted for approval by Apex Town Clerk Allen Coleman.  35 
 36 
Minutes approved on _______ of ___________, 2023. 37 
 38 
 39 
 40 

 41 
 42 

- Page 122 -



Page 1 of 84 
 

DRAFT MINUTES  1 
TOWN OF APEX 2 

REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 3 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 23, 2024 4 

6:00 PM 5 
 6 

The Apex Town Council met for a Regular Town Council Meeting on Tuesday, January 23, 2024 at 7 
6:00 PM in the Council Chambers at Apex Town Hall, located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex, North 8 
Carolina. 9 
 10 
This meeting was open to the public.  Members of the public were able to attend this meeting in-11 
person or watch online via the livestream on the Town’s YouTube Channel. The recording of this 12 
meeting can be viewed here: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=9bPLefRoIX4&t=12865s 13 

 14 
[ATTENDANCE] 15 
 16 
Elected Body 17 
Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert (presiding)  18 
Mayor Pro Tempore Audra Killingsworth 19 
Councilmember Ed Gray  20 
Councilmember Arno Zegerman  21 
Councilmember Terry Mahaffey 22 
Councilmember Brett Gantt 23 
 24 
Town Staff 25 
Interim Town Manager Shawn Purvis 26 
Assistant Town Manager Demetria John  27 
Assistant Town Manager Marty Stone 28 
Town Attorney Laurie Hohe 29 
Town Clerk Allen Coleman  30 
Deputy Town Clerk Ashley Gentry 31 
Planning Director Dianne Khin 32 
All other staff members will be identified appropriately below 33 
 34 
 35 
 36 
 37 
 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
 43 
 44 

- Page 123 -

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=9bPLefRoIX4&t=12865s


Page 2 of 84 
 

 1 
[SLIDE 1] 2 

 3 
[SLIDE 2] 4 

 5 
 6 
[COMMENCEMENT] 7 
 8 
 Mayor Gilbert called the meeting to order and welcomed all who were in attendance and 9 
watching. He spoke about the tragedy that occurred on January 15th, with the killing of Nancy Taylor 10 
and Gabrielle Raymond. He said this is a time of many emotions and questions, and that we may not 11 
know exactly what to do or say in this time. He said he knows that they can show they love, support, 12 
and unity. He invited everyone to observe a moment in which a candle was lit in love and honor of 13 
Ms. Taylor and Ms. Raymond. He then invited everyone to join in observing a moment of silence. 14 
 Mayor Gilbert added that the Hunter Street Water Tower has been lit up purple to show a 15 
symbolic moment of healing, love, and unity. He then invited Larry Eckhart of Jordan Lutheran 16 
Church to give the Invocation.  17 
 Mr. Eckhart said this was personal, and most so for the Taylor and Raymond families, who 18 
are recovering from unspeakable tragedies. He said it was personal for everyone in the community, 19 
since these people were friends and neighbors, and the effect of that lingers. He said the first order 20 

- Page 124 -



Page 3 of 84 
 

of business for the town was about people and ensuring their safety. He then offered a prayer of 1 
comfort and healing to the Taylor and Raymond families, and to all people impacted by this tragedy.  2 
 Mayor Gilbert informed that there would be a candlelight vigil held in Ms. Taylor and Ms. 3 
Raymond’s honor on Monday, January 29th at 5:15 PM in the Town Hall courtyard. 4 
 Mayor Gilbert then led those in attendance in the Pledge of Allegiance.  5 
 6 
[CONSENT AGENDA] 7 
 8 
 A motion was made by Councilmember Zegerman, seconded by Councilmember Gantt, 9 
to approved the Consent Agenda as presented. 10 
 11 
 VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0) 12 
 13 
CN1 Agreement(s) - Research Triangle Regional Public Transportation Authority DBA 14 

GoTriangle - 2024 Funding for GoApex (REF: CONT-2024-016, CONT-2024-017, and 15 
CONT-2024-018) 16 

Council voted to approve three (3) agreements for funding associated with GoApex for Fiscal Year 17 
2024, including: (1) General Operating Funding Agreement for Bus Operations – Community 18 
Funding Area, (2) General Capital Funding Agreement Community Funding Area Program for Bus 19 
Infrastructure, and (3) General Capital Funding Agreement for Capital Planning – Community 20 
Funding Area Program, and to authorize the Interim Town Manager, or their designee, to sign and 21 
execute on behalf of the Town. 22 
CN2 Construction Contract Award/Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 11 – FSC II, LLC 23 

DBA Fred Smith Company - 2024 Road Rehabilitation Project (REF: CONT-2024-019 24 
and ORD-2024-004) 25 

Council voted to amend the budget, award a construction contract with FSC II, LLC DBA Fred Smith 26 
Company, for the 2024 Road Rehabilitation Project, and to authorize the Interim Town Manager, or 27 
their designee, to execute the contract on behalf of the Town. 28 
Council voted to adopt Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 11 29 
CN3 Council Meeting Minutes – January 12, 2024 30 
Council voted to approve Minutes from the following meeting: 31 
January 12, 2024 – Special Town Council Meeting 32 
CN4 Resolution - Designation of Applicant's Agent(s) - North Carolina Division of Emergency 33 

Management (REF: RES-2024-004 and OTHER-2024-026) 34 
Council voted to adopt a Resolution Designating Primary and Secondary Agents authorized to 35 
execute and file applications for federal and/or state assistance on behalf of the Town of Apex, for 36 
the purpose of obtaining certain state and federal financial assistance under the Robert T. Stafford 37 
Disaster Relief & Emergency Assistance Act. 38 
Council voted to approve a Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) Grant Local 39 
Match Fund Commitment Letter, and to authorize the Interim Town Manager, or their designee, to 40 
execute on behalf of the Town. 41 
 42 

[PRESENTATIONS] 43 

- Page 125 -



Page 4 of 84 
 

 1 

PR1 Fiscal Year 2023 Audit - Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) 2 

April Adams, of Cherry Bakaert, and Antwan Morrison, Finance Director, gave the following 3 
presentation regarding the Fiscal Year 2023 Audit and the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. 4 
[PR1 – SLIDE 1] 5 

 6 
[PR1 – SLIDE 2 7 

 8 
 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 
 19 

- Page 126 -



Page 5 of 84 
 

[PR1 – SLIDE 3] 1 

 2 
[PR1 – SLIDE 4] 3 

 4 
[PR1 – SLIDE 5] 5 

 6 
 7 
 8 

- Page 127 -



Page 6 of 84 
 

[PR1 – SLIDE 6] 1 

 2 
[PR1 – SLIDE 7] 3 

 4 
[PR1 – SLIDE 8] 5 

 6 
 7 
 8 

- Page 128 -



Page 7 of 84 
 

[PR1 – SLIDE 9] 1 

 2 
[PR1 – SLIDE 10] 3 

 4 
[PR 1 – SLIDE 11] 5 

 6 
 7 
 8 

- Page 129 -



Page 8 of 84 
 

[PR1 – SLIDE 12] 1 

 2 
[PR1 – SLIDE 13] 3 

 4 
[PR1 – SLIDE 14] 5 

 6 
 7 
 8 

- Page 130 -



Page 9 of 84 
 

[PR1 – SLIDE 15] 1 

 2 
[PR1 – SLIDE 16] 3 

 4 
[PR1 – SLIDE 17] 5 

 6 
 7 
 8 

- Page 131 -



Page 10 of 84 
 

[PR1 – SLIDE 18] 1 

 2 
[PR1 – SLIDE 19] 3 

 4 
[PR1 – SLIDE 20] 5 

 6 
 7 
 8 

- Page 132 -



Page 11 of 84 
 

[PR1 – SLIDE 21] 1 

 2 
[PR1 – SLIDE 22] 3 

 4 
[PR1 – SLIDE 23] 5 

 6 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if there were any consequences to the town not making 7 
the cutoff for the financial reporting within 5 months of the fiscal year close.  8 

- Page 133 -



Page 12 of 84 
 

 Director Morrison, said they will have to submit a letter explaining why, and that it is 1 
something understandable because of staffing and other things that caused delays, and they are 2 
looking forward to getting back on track. He said they are looking to get it in on time this upcoming 3 
year. 4 
 Councilmember Zegerman said the town policy was a 25% fund balance position, and 5 
asked if there was a legal requirement. 6 
 Director Morrison said no, but there is a recommendation of 8%. 7 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he wanted to call out that the town is very conservative in 8 
their own policies in that regard.  9 
 Ms. Adams said the LGC has a financial performance indicator of 25% for towns, so this 10 
matches what they are looking for, but it is not a statutory requirement.  11 
 Councilmember Zegerman said there seems to be a discrepancy between the town policy 12 
of 2.5% of evaluation and what the town wants it debt service ratio to be. He said with these 13 
numbers, they could almost double the debt to get to 2.5%, but that would never fit into the debt 14 
service policy of 12%. He asked what the town would do if they loosened than the debt service 15 
constraint, or should they bump down the 2.5% policy. 16 
 Director Morrison said he would like to discuss that with the town’s financial advisors, 17 
because they work with governments across the state, and could provide more direction on which 18 
one to focus on and if they should adjust either. 19 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if the debt service was based on taxes and the valuation is 20 
based on the assessed value overall. 21 
 Director Morrison said that was correct.  22 
 Councilmember Gantt said the valuation could change based on the tax rate, but the debt 23 
service is based on the evaluation, which presumably will go up next year.  24 
 Councilmember Zegerman said the town policy seems very relaxed compared to actually 25 
making payments. He said restricting themselves to 12%, he asked what that translated to in terms of 26 
debt to valuation once that is factored in.  27 
 Ms. Adams said the payments for the debts are always straight lined.  28 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked if the LGC had any key performance indicators, and said 29 
they had talked about the debt service ratio being too aggressive before.  30 
 Ms. Adams said they are definitely looking for the 8% for the legal guideline, and the 31 
commission has to approve all debt issuances, so there’s no telling how many things they look for 32 
before making that approval.  33 
 Councilmember Zegerman said they have zero interest in bumping debt levels up to 8% 34 
evaluation, which is unrealistic. He said they are constraining themselves by having a debt service 35 
ratio at 12%. He said the town’s policy of 2.5% does not match that. He said he wants to understand 36 
where the boundaries are.  37 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if the town picks out single areas to study in the single audit, or 38 
if the auditor does, or if it’s a mix.  39 
 Ms. Adams said there is a prescribed methodology, but there is some judgement within that. 40 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if they ever advise to pick different things each year. 41 
 Ms. Adams said they want programs to be on at least a 3-year rotation if they’re over a 42 
certain threshold, and they also want you to achieve a certain level of coverage. She said the town 43 

- Page 134 -



Page 13 of 84 
 

has been doing that, and now in her third year doing these for Apex she covered all of the town’s 1 
significant grants.  2 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Ms. Adams and Director Morrison. 3 
 4 
 5 
PR2 Proclamation - Human Trafficking Prevention Month 2024 (REF: PRO-2024-002) 6 

 Mayor Gilbert, along with the rest of Council, read the 2024 Human Trafficking Prevention 7 
Month 2024 Proclamation in unity.  8 
 Representatives of Shield NC accepted the proclamation and took a picture with the Mayor 9 
and Council. 10 
 Niki Miller spoke about how human trafficking is happening in North Carolina, in the 11 
Triangle, and in Apex. She said Human Trafficking is different from smuggling or abduction. She said 12 
Shield NC provides Human Trafficking awareness training every month virtually, and thanked the 13 
Mayor and Council for their continuous efforts to support Shield NC in their mission.  14 
 15 

[REGULAR MEETING AGENDA] 16 

 17 

 A motion was made by Councilmember Mahaffey, seconded by Councilmember 18 
Killingsworth, to approve the Regular Meeting Agenda as presented. 19 
 20 

 VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0) 21 
 22 

[PUBLIC FORUM] (Note: To view public forum and public hearing sign in sheets, please see 23 
OTHER-2024-012) 24 
 25 
First to speak was Larry Gustky: 26 
 27 
“Good evening everyone, my name is Dr. Larry Gustky, I’m a retired faculty member of the College 28 
of Forestry at North Carolina State with expertise in Social Science Research and economic 29 
development. My wife Nancy and I have resided at 110 Hunter Street in Apex since 1989. Located in 30 
our small front yard is what some town employees refer to as that tree. It has also been affectionately 31 
named Oakie. The tree is a majestic Willow Oak that is approximately 104 feet tall and 192 inches in 32 
circumference. It shades and protects our 87-year-old Sears Bungalow and adds beauty to Hunter 33 
Street, the Historic District, and the community. I am before you this evening to state my opposition 34 
to any activity that would adversely impact Oakie. I also would like to remind all of us, including the 35 
audience, about the importance of trees, which we often take for granted. In a folder we have given 36 
each Council member is a handout that summarizes key contemporary information about the value 37 
of trees. I encourage each member to review that information. To help, I am going to summarize a 38 
few major points that some of you may not be aware. Trees help control temperature and can 39 
reduce home cooling as much as 50%, certainly valuable during our hot summers and of course 40 
given climate change. Trees increase the value of homes and the associated tax revenues. They 41 
absorb carbon dioxide and contribute to clean air. They absorb impervious surface runoff, control 42 

- Page 135 -



Page 14 of 84 
 

erosion, and reduce flooding. Trees add to a sense of community and community pride, they 1 
contribute to good health and well-being, they often contribute, believe it or not, to reducing crime. 2 
And they contribute to enhancing business opportunities. Willow Oaks like Oakie tolerate pollution, 3 
drought, and are trouble-free. Older trees like Oakie store more carbon than younger trees. Many of 4 
these benefits that I have just stated to you are in the 2018 Apex tree stormwater study referred to in 5 
your handout. The study has helped the town to do an excellent job at planning for growth, planting 6 
trees, and many other things. However, it is unclear what the status of two of the recommendations 7 
in the study that were made. What about a heritage witness tree program? Will it be created? And 8 
secondly, what about a comprehensive forestry management plan? Where can I find that? And it 9 
would help if it was more clearly communicated to the citizens, to all of you, and to everyone in the 10 
community. Thank you.” 11 
 12 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Mr. Gustky for his comments. 13 
 14 
Nest to speak was Nancy Gustky: 15 
 16 
“Good Evening Mr. Mayor, Town Council members, Apex Residents, my name is Nancy Gustky. As 17 
Larry said, we’ve lived at 110 Hunter Street which some of you might know as the Luther House, 18 
that’s been there for a long time, but we’ve been there since ’89. I’m retired history faculty at NC 19 
State, Larry and I have been members of the Apex Historical Society since we arrived in Apex and 20 
our house has been on the Apex Society’s home tour. I am the past chair of the Apex appearance 21 
commission. We bought the Luther House in part because of the Historic Charm of the area, 22 
proximity to downtown, and because of the beautiful tree named Oakie by our Mayor, which is “a 23 
character defining element of the Apex national register historic district.” We do not want to lose 24 
Oakie, which the proposed 8-foot sidewalk plan would necessitate. Oakie was saved prior to 2004 25 
when a sidewalk was first proposed. It was going to go on the North side of Hunter Street, I went to a 26 
Town Council meeting asking what would happen to the tree, and it was decided that the sidewalk 27 
would instead go on the south side of Hunter Street, which it did, so we already have sidewalk 28 
access. In addition, Oakie has survived the 2011 street widening, but it may not survive this round. It 29 
did receive the annual tree award in 2004, and the North Carolina forest service has deemed it 30 
second place champion status for the state, and first place status as a nominee in Wake County, and 31 
that information is in your folder. Oakie has been determined to be a healthy tree, both by the Apex 32 
Powerline Forester Phillip Barnes, and John Gallant of Apex Tree Service, both agree, however, that 33 
any disturbance to Oakie could seriously put the tree at risk. There are aesthetic and environmental 34 
reasons to save this mature specimen tree that contributes to the small-town charm of Apex. Saving 35 
Oakie would show how forward-thinking Apex is in preserving its heritage, as well as long-range 36 
planning in terms of impervious surface management. The best option for saving Oakie would be no 37 
sidewalk, since one already exists on the south side of Hunter Street, and thus there would be no 38 
disturbance to the tree at all. A possible alternative would be to put the sidewalk and possible a bike 39 
lane in the street by eliminating part of the turn lane. This could possible have the additional benefit 40 
of reducing the speed on Hunter Street, making it safer. There is in your folder a photograph of an 41 
Oak tree that was supposedly going to be saved at the Cary Town Center, but wasn’t. Even despite 42 
everything that they’ve tried, so we asked that you please don’t put Oakie at risk. Thank you very 43 
much.” 44 

- Page 136 -



Page 15 of 84 
 

 1 
 2 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Ms. Gustky for her comments. 3 
 4 
Next to speak was Cat Kearns of 216 Hunter Street: 5 
 6 
“Good evening Town Council, and to our supporters out there, thank you citizens for coming in to 7 
support Oakie and my neighbors at Hunter Street. I’ve lived in Apex since the late 80’s, it’s over half 8 
of my life, and the Apex quaint, historic downtown is what drew me to make my home in Apex, when 9 
I was only 26 years old. I dreamed of living in downtown Apex for over 30 years, my husband and I 10 
finally built our forever home on the last lot in the historic downtown business district on Hunter 11 
Street. All of those homes had the beautiful curb appeal with the picket fences, mature landscaping, 12 
and gracious front porches that make the first two blocks a beautiful extension of Apex’s downtown 13 
historic district. I am fortunate and feel very lucky to live where I do. As a real estate agent since 14 
1997, I’ve sold countless homes in Apex, and what most attracts buyers is our lovely and quaint 15 
downtown area. Few newcomers to the area say anything differently if you ask them. And 16 
strategically, I would meet them in the crown jewel, our downtown, to talk with them about moving 17 
to Apex, and usually they did. I and my neighbors along the north side on Hunter Street will have so 18 
much to lose if a sidewalk is installed in front of our homes. The beautiful turn of the century feel that 19 
belongs to those historic homes, the ones that you see in your folder, and the blue lines is where the 20 
potential sidewalk would be, right at our front door. This will also reduce our driveway and the 21 
potential parking at our homes, our precious front yards, lowering the impervious for our lots, and 22 
drastically decreasing the distance from our homes to foot traffic. When I built my home, we had the 23 
normal building requirements, but we also had the ones included in the historic downtown business 24 
district, and also the small town character overlay requirements, with the front and the side setbacks. 25 
If a sidewalk is installed, I will no longer be in compliance. My builder left me enough room for 26 
impervious to build an outdoor kitchen which I am sure would get denied when I have that higher 27 
impervious. The lot we own behind our home, we planted 12-15 small trees, those could be taken 28 
down right along the edge of our street, on Pate Street, right behind our house. And all of the 29 
sidewalk will adversely affect our home’s curb appeal, our values, reduce our marketability whenever 30 
the time comes for that. I ask that you be good stewards of town funds and look for less costly means 31 
than buying our front yards, relocating utilities, and installing a sidewalk, there’s one already across 32 
the street. I appreciate your time, and your consideration.  33 
 34 
 Next to speak was Judy Ives of 3413 Pleasant Plains Road: 35 
 36 
“Good evening Town Council and Mr. Mayor. After I spoke at the last Town Council Meeting, I met 37 
with Mayor Gilbert. I told him that I wished public forum could be a 2-way dialogue, and he assured 38 
me that anyone that speaks at Public Forum gets contacted by someone on the Town Council. As of 39 
yet, I have not been contacted. When I negotiated with the conservation fund for the sale of the farm 40 
that is now Pleasant Park, I was told it would be a park with sports fields in the back bordering the 41 
highways, and probably a nature park with trails towards the front. Instead, I watched as all the trees 42 
were cut down. I endured years of noise and ground trembling caused by the destruction of a 92 43 
acre sports complex, and wished every day for it to be over. Then one day it was, now every 44 

- Page 137 -



Page 16 of 84 
 

morning, at a time when I once enjoyed my morning coffee outside before the construction workers 1 
started, I hear the incessant pinging of pickleballs. Where I once felt safe, I now have to wonder 2 
whose squalling tires in the park late at night. I hear yelling on the basketball court, and horns 3 
blowing, and children screaming, and then there are the times when the constant streams of cars 4 
going into the park in the afternoon tells me that late, I’ll have a constant stream of headlights 5 
shining on my house when they leave. I’m here to ask for your help. Putting up noise and light 6 
barriers both at the park and on my property. Mayor Gilbert and I discussed an 8-foot brick wall 7 
along the front of my property, although I laughed when he asked how long it would need to be. I 8 
meant no disrespect Mr. Mayor, but as I showed you that day my experience with the Town of Apex 9 
has been more about them laughing in my face. Like when I needed to move my driveway down 10 
past the park entrance to avoid turning left out of my driveway into traffic entering the park. They 11 
would not pay to put a driveway to alleviate the problem. I have provided each of you a drawing 12 
showing what Apex was willing to do, which would have been to move my driveway such so that it 13 
lined up directly with the entrance of the park. I considered moving my house back away from the 14 
park entrance, but it would be very expensive and disruptive, and it would kill a lot of trees. I don’t 15 
need to repeat to you my feelings about my land and my house and how I was instrumental in Apex 16 
being able to get the land for the park, but I would like to know what the town is willing to do about 17 
the unbearable impact this park has had on my well-being. Will you once again offer me pennies on 18 
the dollar, or will you reach out to me to provide an acceptable solution. Maybe that solution is not 19 
moving my house or building a brick wall, but I need to know you are hearing me. I hope that after 20 
this meeting, one of you will reach out to me. If not, I will see you at the next meeting.” 21 
 22 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Ms. Ives for her comments.  23 
  24 
 Next to speak was Elizabeth Stitt of 3113 Friendship Road: 25 
 26 
“Mayor, Town Council, good evening. As you know my neighbors and I have been working to move 27 
the Big Branch Force Main from the north side of US 1 to the south side. I will be meeting with Mike 28 
and Steve on Friday to do a deep dive, but I wanted to give you a preview of what we have been 29 
able to put together. For those of the people in the audience who aren’t familiar, in simple terms the 30 
force main needs a 30-foot strip of land where you have a 10-foot buffer, then 5 feet for pipe number 31 
1 and 5 feet for pipe number 2, and then another 10-foot buffer to complete the 30 feet. If you ask 32 
Duke Energy to provide all 30 feet, then answer is no. If you ask DOT for all 30 feet, the answer is no. 33 
And you ask us property owners for all 30 feet, the answer is no. However, by asking each of us for a 34 
portion, there is a path to a yes. Duke Energy does allow certain uses along a transmission line. 35 
These allowable uses are going to be emailed to you. We were able to determine that if the town 36 
were to submit a formal request for 10 feet, effectively creating an overlapping easement into the 37 
transmission line into the force main’s first 10-foot buffer. With no continuous infrastructure in the 38 
ground, it would meet both the letter and the spirit of their policy. For the remaining 20 feet, it was 39 
determined that DOT and their plans to add additional lanes could provide only 10 feet on the south 40 
side. It did not have the 20 feet to give due to the center line of US 1 being fixed by the center piers 41 
of two bridges. But, on January 15, DOT funded 10 million dollars to replace and widen the New Hill 42 
Holloman bridge over US 1, providing the engineering opportunity to shift the center line of US 1 10 43 
feet to the north, to complete the needed 20 feet of the force main. The second bridge, friendship 44 

- Page 138 -



Page 17 of 84 
 

road bridge, will inevitably be replaced when DOT adds lanes because there is no room under the 1 
bridge for any additional lanes. The shifting of US 1 will require property owners on the north side to 2 
probably provide at least 10 feet to make DOT whole, but losing land to DOT is preferable. DOT can 3 
build a noise wall for us, and we don’t have to live with the ongoing annoyance and odor of a force 4 
main on our property. For apex, the force main is constructed in a permanent place, free from the 5 
risk of being moved due to the original lanes being built on the north side. And you don’t have to 6 
lower our quality of life, and you don’t have to spend Apex hard earned tax dollars to condemn our 7 
property with eminent domain. It is a win-win opportunity, and we ask that you support the staff in 8 
considering the options. Thank you.” 9 
 10 
Next to speak was Fadi Rahal of 3000 Old US 1 N: 11 
 12 
“Mr. Mayor, all my respect. Councilmembers, all my respect. I’m a resident of faith house on Old US 13 
1, also the owner of 0 Hinsley Road, as well as 3012, 3016, 3034, and 3032 Old US 1. I’m here to 14 
request three things, very specific, very direct. Being a resident of New Hill, we have no voices here. 15 
Congratulation Apex, you’re growing, we love it. We’re growing with you as well. But it’s going to 16 
come at an expense to you. And you’re going to have to choose how to do this, and doing the right 17 
thing might be the easier route. So the first thing I want to ask for, I would like for a new seat at the 18 
Planning Board for the residents of New Hill. A new seat. Let’s open it up, whoever is eligible let 19 
them run, let them be there, so they have a voice when it comes to planning what is happening in 20 
New Hill. The second, I would like you to hire an independent auditor, not a financial auditor, 21 
independent auditor, to go out and audit the proposed amendments, specifically around the New 22 
Hill area. Because as we’ve discovered, there is amendments active since 2016 and no one knew 23 
about it. No one shared it with us, it was a surprise that we found out only a few weeks ago, that that 24 
amendment, oh it’s almost going to be approved, it’s a matter of signature. That is not the right thing 25 
to do. And excuses, well when I took my board seat it was already active. Well that’s great that you 26 
found out, you should have spoke out, that’s the wrong thing to do. Tell us that it’s active. And by the 27 
way I’m talking about the Beaver Creek, and we’ll talk about that a little bit coming up. So get an 28 
independent auditor because I guarantee you you’re going to find out there’s other proposed 29 
amendments active and no one knows about it. I’m willing to bet my job as a matter of fact. My 30 
profession I am an investigator, and I can prove that to you. I will even put my career on the line that 31 
you have active projects, active amendments, no one knows about it. Shame on us. Shame on us if 32 
that’s the case. We, the citizens, need to know what you’re working on, especially if it’s going to 33 
affect us. Once you do that audit, please update your map land, make it current, don’t surprise us. 34 
When I moved, by the way I was a resident of Apex for 4 years, when I moved 2 miles down the road 35 
to be in New Hill, and I made it based on that map. Hey, this is what’s going to happen, this is great, I 36 
want to move here and be part of this community. But those surprises, they’re not good to anyone. 37 
So find us a way to get a new seat at the Planning Board, hire an independent auditor, not financial 38 
one, assessment, let’s update the map that’s coming up due soon in a few months, let’s make it 39 
current so we know exactly what active projects you have. Thank you.” 40 
 41 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked for his comments 42 
 43 
 Next to speak was Dean Krupa of 2001 Simca Court 44 

- Page 139 -



Page 18 of 84 
 

 1 
“I have a reading for you tonight. It’s called Let’s Stand for Trees. When will we stand for trees like 2 
they stand for us? They offer so many gifts that cannot fit into any one list. I won’t be redundant since 3 
the fine gentleman spoke about many of them earlier. I will speak to some of the spiritual benefits 4 
though. Trees provide a silent wisdom that only those who love trees can understand. They’re so 5 
quiet, yet they speak volumes to those who listen. They hold up a mirror to humans who rush around 6 
being consumers, always so busy yet lacking a true sense of purpose. Trees know not of this, only to 7 
stand and they stand for us. What do you see when you look at a tree? They seem to be everywhere 8 
and yet often ignored. When I see a tree, I see a wise, silent warrior. A being that has survived many 9 
storms, including those from mother nature and those from human nature. For the trees that have 10 
been around a while, they have seen a great many things. With their awesome pallet of varieties and 11 
colors, they don’t cower from diversity, they embrace it. I recommend anyone to spend time with 12 
trees, they provide a quiet peacefulness that can cure many woes. Trees are more than shady areas 13 
on maps, they deserve a lot more consideration and protection than they can offer. Why do we allow 14 
them to be wiped out so easily by slick developers armed with their fancy PowerPoints and topo 15 
maps. I supposed when your Earth takes 3 inches on a zoning application, that can easily happen. 16 
Those who love nature and the outdoors understand their plight. In a world of capitalism run amok, 17 
trees and all their peers in the natural world have become collateral damage. Trees don’t need to 18 
order anything from Amazon, post to Facebook, or stream the latest show on Netflix. They don’t 19 
participate in human conflicts and don’t need to pollute the earth with carbon dioxide, disposable 20 
packaging, industrial waste, or cigarette butts. Trees give life in so many ways, physical and spiritual. 21 
How is it that we have become their judge, jury, and executioner. We get to decided their fate and 22 
it’s just not fair. We are the world’s worst landlords. Just ask a tree. We take them for granted and 23 
disgrace their existence through our political and capitalistic ways. We show them no mercy, with 24 
cold blades and demolition machines. All to replace them with human constructs such as a planned 25 
unit development or a sidewalk. I’ll end there, but their consideration is worth more than 3-minute 26 
speech will ever hope to deliver. Thank you.” 27 
 28 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Mr. Krupa for his comments. 29 
 30 
With no further sign ups, Mayor Gilbert closed Public Forum. 31 
 32 
[PUBLIC HEARINGS] 33 
  34 
PH1 Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Annual Operating Budget - First Public Hearing 35 

 Amanda Grogan, Budget and Performance Management Director, gave the following 36 
presentation regarding the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Annual Operating Budget. 37 
 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
 43 

- Page 140 -



Page 19 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 3] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 4] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 5] 5 

 6 
 7 
 8 

- Page 141 -



Page 20 of 84 
 

 1 
[SLIDE 6] 2 

 3 
 4 
[SLIDE 7] 5 

 6 
[SLIDE 8] 7 

 8 

- Page 142 -



Page 21 of 84 
 

 1 
 Mayor Gilbert opened up Public Hearing for this item 2 
 3 
 First to speak was Elizabeth Stitt of 3113 Friendship Road: 4 
 5 
“You know I’m a data geek, and I have read the budget the last couple years back and forth, back 6 
and forth. But given the conversation that I had a week or two ago, and over the last six months, 7 
about the town’s desire to take part of my property through condemnation, it made me wonder how 8 
much money does the town actually pay for legal fees to condemn people’s property. And so I 9 
couldn’t find it in the budget, there’s not actually a line item for it in the budget, what happens is, as 10 
it’s been explained to me is the legal fees are rolled up into the overall project, so no one in the 11 
community really knows how much money you’re paying to condemn property. We also don’t know 12 
how much money you are paying to buy the people’s property. I’m still digging through some of the 13 
beginning and ends of the cases, but this kind of information is important, this is Apex citizens tax 14 
dollars, and so we’re just asking to have a little more transparency, because if you are going to 15 
condemn someone’s property, you voted for it, so it should not be something that is hidden, and 16 
those of us who have been threatened with it, and I have had people who have had their properties 17 
taken, is a pretty heavy thing. You try to talk to people around you and they’re like what do you 18 
mean, Apex doesn’t do that. And it’s kind of like, well, yes, sometimes things happens. Sometimes 19 
things don’t go right, like the first project there. The White Oak Pump Station. Everybody knows 20 
Beverly Rubin, who lives out on Olive Chapel Road out in the Friendship-New Hill area, we know all 21 
about it. I mean if you look at the total, I’m sure you guys have seen the total so I’m not going to put 22 
that out there, but I want you to stop and consider, is it worth this kind of money? Maybe you offer 23 
money up front. More, more so, than forcing people to go to court. And have you looked at how 24 
much you offer initially, and how much they actually get, after having to go through a trial? So I just 25 
ask for the budget to have some more transparency on the decision that you’re making, because I 26 
will be talking to my community and my neighbors, and I simply don’t want to have to say yes of 27 
course they’re doing this. I think it’s fair for you guys to own the activities that you’re going to do. 28 
Thank you.” 29 
 30 
 With no further sign ups, Mayor Gilbert closed Public Hearing for this item. He said the next 31 
Public Hearing for the Budget is scheduled for May 21st, 2024, and the proposed adoption is 32 
scheduled for June 11th, 2024.  33 
 34 
PH2 2045 Land Use Map Amendment - Little Beaver Creek Conservation Easement 35 

 Shannon Cox, Long-Range Planning Manager, gave the following presentation regarding 36 
the 2045 Land Use Map Amendment – Little Beaver Creek Conservation Easement. 37 
 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
 43 

- Page 143 -



Page 22 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 9] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 10] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 11] 5 

 6 
 7 
 8 

- Page 144 -



Page 23 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 12] 1 

 2 
 3 
[SLIDE 13] 4 

 5 
 6 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked if she could summarize the exchange that is happening. 7 
 Ms. Cox said they presented a minimization approach, which would bridge the conservation 8 
easement, and limits the footprint and construction easements needed. She said there was a 9 
minimization fee they are working with NCDEQ to agree upon. She said there would be about 8 10 
acres of conservation land given in exchange for the 2 acres of land released for the project.  11 
 Councilmember Gray said he appreciated the summary, as there were lots of questions at 12 
Planning Board. He said she explained the years of progress that took place to get her. He said it 13 
seems they are gaining more protected space with this amendment. 14 
 Ms. Cox said this amendment is to reflect the change on their map. She said the actual 15 
commitment has already been done prior to this amendment.  16 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked what would be the consequence of not approving the 17 
map update right now.  18 

- Page 145 -



Page 24 of 84 
 

 Ms. Cox said it would mean the map would not reflect what is expected with the properties. 1 
She said the department and the public use it for planning. She said other than that she is not aware 2 
of potential consequences.  3 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if the Heelan PUD would still happen, since that was 4 
approved by Council already, and the road would still go here, this was just a map update. 5 
 Ms. Cox said yes, the planning work has been done for this route. She said south of the 6 
easement there would be planning and survey work to be done, and there is no funded public 7 
project there.  8 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if the filing of the property to become conservation 9 
easement was in reaction to the town planning the road through it. 10 
 Ms. Cox said she could not speak to the intent of the property owner, but DEQ was not 11 
aware that the town had the road planned for this location, based on what they said when they 12 
accepted it. 13 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked if the DEQ evaluated potential projects in an area when 14 
accepting property. 15 
 Ms. Cox said she doesn’t think that was happening at that time. She said they were the first to 16 
go through this process of identifying a conflict between a Municipal adopted plan and a 17 
conservation easement, but there have been more since. She said the process is becoming more 18 
formalized.  19 
 Councilmember Gantt said if the goal of doing the easement was to make things more 20 
difficult for the town, it worked.  21 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he was somewhat annoyed with where the town is with this. 22 
He said residents have reasonable expectations for conservation easements to mean that the land is 23 
protected land. He said in this case, the road was planned before the easement was established. 24 
And while this may feel vindictive, they can’t go back 20 years to know anything. He wanted to be 25 
clear that the vote tonight was just to update the map, and that the project would happen no matter 26 
what.  27 
 Ms. Cox said the letter they received outlined that the town still needs to meet the conditions 28 
of the release agreement, and the property transfer needs to occur. She said it is correct that 29 
adopting this amendment does not change that part of the process. 30 
 31 
 First to speak was Kurt Kuechler of 2721 Silver Stirrup Lane: 32 
 33 
“I had a pretty good idea what I was going to say, but thanks to Arno, he opened up a whole new 34 
train of thought here. I very much appreciate that comment, and you will notice on that timeline, that 35 
yes the town had thoughts that they needed a road in this area, that’s still up for debate as to 36 
whether this road is even needed or not, but they’ve been hellbent on seeing that this road gets put 37 
through. Again, if you go back to the timeline, yes the conservation easement got put in place, it was 38 
put in place by Robert and Elizabeth Olive. Ms. Olive is deceased now. She has no way to comment 39 
any further about what you all are trying to do, to her intentions. A conservation easement is 40 
unconditionally and irrevocably a grant forever, in perpetuity. Y’all decided that means nothing, 41 
we’ve got to have this road, so we’re going to do everything we can over the rest of this timeline, 42 
from 2002 to today, to make sure that those words mean nothing, because you want a road. That 43 
stinks. And your sales tactic to the public, of we’re only taking 2 acres, but look, we’re getting 8 44 

- Page 146 -



Page 25 of 84 
 

acres. Those 8 acres to begin with are crap land from the developer’s point of view, they would 1 
never have been able to build anything on that to begin with, they’re happy to give it over to you, it 2 
was probably part of the RCA, when that development was approved. It was probably already 3 
carved out as conservation area. So you’re not giving us anything else. We already had it. So quit 4 
quit selling it that way.” 5 
 6 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Mr. Kuechler for his comments. 7 
 8 
Next to speak was Michael Hinsley of 3217 Hinsley Road: 9 
 10 
“Mayor Gilbert, I wonder if you personally recall Hinsley Road, you drove our school bus in high 11 
school a time or two, stopping to pick us up on Old US 1. Specifically, my sister and I, well I was in 12 
elementary school, we go way back. We’re both originals. For most who don’t know me, I’m native to 13 
the area, I grew up on Hinsley Road, and apart from the time I spent active duty and overseas with 14 
the Navy, and several years in California with the corps of engineers, I lived either within, or in close 15 
proximity to Apex proper. I attended AV Baucom, Apex Elementary, Apex High School. My first real 16 
job was at Horton’s Hardwar on Main Street where Salem Street Pub now sits. My roots run very 17 
deep here, as do my families. Both my mother and father went the Apex High, where Apex Middle 18 
School sits right now, and there are many buildings in Apex whose brick and block masonry were 19 
built by my grandfather, my dad, my uncle, my great uncles, and although we did not live in the town 20 
limits, my family quite literally had a hand in building Apex. Including the old brick fire station still 21 
there on Main Street. Now for multiple decades, back to the early 60’s, the Hinsley family has owned 22 
and resided on the property surrounding the current Hinsley road in New Hill, and we’ve always 23 
strived to be good neighbors to those around us, including the Town of Apex. And as time has gone 24 
by, people of similar mindset have taken residence among us to form our community of neighbors. 25 
This started with Robert and Caroline Halberd in the 80’s, and the Rayhaws and Defriezes in 2021, 26 
we care for each other, we care for each other, we look out for each other, and we value our little 27 
community greatly. And we all understand that progress and prosperity is driven by growth, and that 28 
change is an inevitable component required for that progress. As such, we understand Apex’s need 29 
to plan for interconnectivity and expansion, and have willingly participated in conversations 30 
surrounding those plans. Including discussions of some way for Richardson Road to come across the 31 
old Olive family farmland, tying to Old Us 1, across the CSX rail line, and then connect to the roads 32 
to the south and east in the Holly Springs network. Our commitment to being open to change, and 33 
to being good neighbors, is clearly demonstrated by those discussions, as well as recent 34 
negotiations over the past year or so, for a gravity sewer main easement to cross Hinsley Road land, 35 
as requested by neighboring developers, which has gone through. In being good neighbors, we 36 
have tried to be transparent and operate in good faith during all of that. So it was with great surprise, 37 
disappointment, and quite frankly frustration that we learned in early January of this year how the 38 
conceptual dotted line, showing the extension of Richardson Road in the general vicinity of Hinsley 39 
Road, and I’ve got examples, see exhibits A-F in the back, is now a set specific alignment, which the 40 
Town of Apex has progressed, without the knowledge or input from the property owners on Hinsley 41 
Road, for at least 6 years. Studies were commissioned, alignments selected, and a series of decisions 42 
made which locks in that alignment, requiring a bridge across wetlands within the conservation area 43 
being discussed tonight. What’s even more unsettling is that these decisions made behind closed 44 

- Page 147 -



Page 26 of 84 
 

doors and without public input, were already well underway, when the property owners, including 1 
my father, who is here tonight, were asking specific questions about where the alignment was going 2 
to land, what did the town intend to do. And he was told, they were told, you don’t need to worry 3 
about that, it’s just a dotted line on the map, we haven’t even sent anyone out to look at it yet. This 4 
was in the 2018 timeframe. After the route assessments had already been completed with route 5 
assessments and survey documentation in hand, and after the bridge alignment requiring this partial 6 
release, had been committed to. This implication, that someone would come out before decisions 7 
were committed to never became a reality. I also think it’s significant to note that the adjacent 8 
developers were apparently fully aware of the town’s plans. It was just those impacted the most that 9 
were in the dark and out of the conversation. Now we’re still trying to understand all of the decisions 10 
that have been made, having just learned two weeks how far all of this progressed. But one 11 
particularly troubling realization, is that the information upon which the decision has been made 12 
appears to be incomplete, inaccurate, and uninformed. The alternative routes used to determine this 13 
least impactful final alignment, which you can see Exhibit H, I’ve provided an example of that, appear 14 
to be arbitrarily or even intentionally exaggerated, creating a strawman argument that drives the 15 
outcome of the assessment to the one desired result. Additionally, the status of the adjacent 16 
property was mischaracterized in conversations with NCDEQ, that’s in Exhibit I, creating false 17 
premise upon which to make decisions, and that premise is being used to justify punching a hole in 18 
a decades-old conservation easement, put in place by members of the Olive family, our former 19 
neighbors, who knew that development was coming and wished to protect the area. This desire is 20 
clear form the language in the conservation easement itself. And I recognize some of you are asking 21 
what does this have to do with what we are voting on tonight, the change you are voting on tonight 22 
updates the land use map and removes the last remaining obstacle standing in the way of the bridge 23 
and the road alignment. Since all proposed Apex projects reference this map prior to their approval, 24 
voting to amend and incorporate this change green lights the corridor through the easement of your 25 
guiding document. It also locks in the alignment, which in turns frees up the adjacent open space to 26 
be developed, despite their being a more efficient, less impactful possibility, that avoids the 27 
easement all together through currently open space. Once development of that space is started, it 28 
will be impossible to do anything but build a bridge and the road, which consumers six of our 29 
homes, yields a significant part of our property and ancillary buildings effectively unusable, and 30 
destroys both the mid-19th-century family graveyard, and the original residences in its path. Just by 31 
existing as the only future option, this creates significant direct impacts on our future property usage 32 
and values. I know that those who will say the decision to commit to this alignment was made long 33 
ago, and that the vote tonight is an administrative one for a guidance document, they’ll also likely 34 
say the time for this kind of discussion was when the decision was being made, to which I would say I 35 
would absolutely agree. If only we had been invited to participate in the discussion with the 36 
developers to our west, north, and east before the decision was made. We could have pointed out 37 
our concerns to better inform the decision-making process, for example, no one from the town has 38 
ever been out, nor sent anyone else out, to see the land that they plan to build upon. They were not 39 
even aware of the mid-19th century family graveyard that I just mentioned, until I told them this past 40 
Friday. After 6+ years of working to get this alignment locked down the town still has no idea that 41 
their selective alignment runs right over the top of it, and it was not accounted for at all in their 42 
alignment comparison. Other things we would have highlighted: the town has provided a condition 43 
precedent that Richardson must hit the Bosco Road rail crossing, but have admittedly never made 44 

- Page 148 -



Page 27 of 84 
 

any attempts at engaging CSX for other potential options, despite there being proposed alternates 1 
by other planning organizations, see Exhibit F. Town staff simply assumed that it would be too 2 
difficult, based on past negotiations with the railroad, for adding a new crossing in a congested area 3 
close to downtown. It’s a completely different situation than shifting an existing railroad crossing like 4 
Bosco. Having personally worked with the railroads in my time with the Army corps, I know they can 5 
be challenging. But I also know it costs nothing to ask a question. We also have the town’s comments 6 
that designing construction of the road is not currently programmed, and that future construction 7 
would likely be funded by a developer who purchased that property. I know this is intended to 8 
assuage feelings of uncertainty, which I appreciate, but it actually highlights a long-term concern. 9 
The developer who constructs this road, and even if they’re only required to give the right of way for 10 
it to be built in the future, will by default have reduced profitability on the purchase, which directly 11 
translates to lower purchase price for the existing property owners. So, it indirectly transfers the cost 12 
burden of that road onto us. Keep in mind we have no near term interest in selling for development, 13 
but that doesn’t mean it’s right to force the burden of the town’s future expansion on the backs of 14 
people who aren’t even in the town’s jurisdiction. And that doesn’t even begin to get into the longer 15 
range concerns of eminent domain by the town, should none of us choose to sell to a developer 16 
over the next 20 or 30 years. So I’m here tonight to make it clear that we intend to challenge the 17 
town on this series of decisions should it continue to progress. I shall let you know we have engaged 18 
legal counsel, and initiated a series of public document requests to civil documentation and also be 19 
engaging a third-party engineering firm to review and opine on the alignments generated. I would 20 
ask all members of the Town Council to defer your votes on the proposed, pause on the progression 21 
of this line of decision making, until you and your representatives are able to take a close look at the 22 
decisions being made and the resulting impact. This is a very serious issue. Thank you for your time.” 23 
 24 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Mr. Hinsley for his comments.  25 
 26 
 Next to speak was Elizabeth Stitt of 3113 Friendship Road: 27 
 28 
“I promise this is the last time I’m speaking tonight, and it’s a good thing because I am going to go in 29 
a totally different direction than I had planned. So, my son-in-law is the grandson of Elizabeth Olive, 30 
and we are her tonight with these two women who are no longer with us, and mee-maw passed 31 
away in November, so how dare anybody suggest that she had a vindictive bone, how dare you. She 32 
did not have a vindictive bone, so before you start suggesting about character, you need to stop and 33 
consider maybe she truly loved her dairy farm. If you go back and you look at the application or the 34 
conservation easement, they had a true flooding issue that was messing up the dairy farm. Period. 35 
And DEQ does not care what Apex does back then, they’re not going to consult. If there is an 36 
environmental issue with a piece of agricultural land, with dairy cows on it, guess what they’re going 37 
to do, they’re going to help mitigate it, because it is a harm to the water and she is in the watershed 38 
for Jordan Lake. So, it was done with pure, good intentions. Now mee-maw was interviewed for the 39 
150th Anniversary videos for Apex, so if you’d like, go look her up. And you will see there is nothing 40 
vindictive about mee-maw. So I’m going to need to set that aside for the moment, but you know I’ve 41 
been around a lot these last two years, really digging into everything around our community, and 42 
every time I have ever said anything about Richardson Road, whether I have heard you guys talk 43 
about it in a public hearing, whether I came and made comments to you, whether I made comments 44 

- Page 149 -



Page 28 of 84 
 

to staff at the different open houses, consistently I have been told, it’s not a funded project, we’ll 1 
figure it out when we get to it. So, I was blindside, I saw this just by pure dumb luck, that looked at 2 
the Planning Board agenda, and I was like what is this? This is within walking distance, how do I not 3 
know after two years of conversation saying hey, I’m here to build a relationship, to try to bridge 4 
some of these gaps, and nobody, I don’t know how many of you knew, but I can go back to the 5 
voting record, and I have, who were involved in the different votes on these neighborhoods, none of 6 
you, none of you gave me the consideration of saying hey heads up, it’s not set, but the town is 7 
actually taking activities to do something. So I’m going to go home, I’m going to have my good cry 8 
over this whole thing, I cannot believe that anybody would be talking about mee-maw in the way she 9 
was talked here tonight, and I will show back up Friday to be constructive with Steve and Mike when 10 
I talk to them, but if these two ladies beside us doesn’t give you reason to be respectful, when 11 
somebody has passed away, please let today be the day you learn that lesson. Thank you.” 12 
 13 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Ms. Stitt for her comments.  14 
 15 
 Next to speak was Fadi Rahal of 3000 Old Us 1: 16 
 17 
“Let me continue with a few things, I’ve also changed some of the points I’ve wanted to talk about. 18 
Thank you for making the point of what is protected, I’ll leave it right there. I bought my house 19 
because of the land use map, I saw the protected area behind it. I bought my house knowing that 20 
we’ll get to it, we’ll get to it when we can. Let me also take a moment to help you explain, I do have a 21 
barn that was built in 1910, that’s the reason why I bought. The people who sold me the house had 22 
many offers, they showed it to me, said Fadi, look we have many offers but we said no. And you 23 
know why we said yes to you? Because we know you’re going to take care of this place. Come and 24 
visit me. Let me show you what I’ve done in the last 4 years in that place. Come and see. So other 25 
than being blindsided, please my point is clear, kill it. Just don’t add this to the map. Just don’t do it. 26 
Don’t delay it. Just kill this idea. Okay, and one more thing, I told you I’m an investigator, and let me 27 
tell you what those investigation skills taught me. So I can teach you and you’re going to remember 28 
this for the rest of your life. Okay, I don’t know who knew about this at what time, okay, our 29 
investigation skill says if I’m to come and audit you, and find out that you knew about this and you 30 
did nothing about it, you’re extremely guilty. However, if you did not know anything about it, I’m 31 
going to assume some of you did not know, it’s fair you did not know. But now you knew, do the 32 
right thing. You cannot force someone to say you know what, just because of a mistake please 33 
approve it. No. You found a mistake, correct it. That’s why you’re in that position. Please do the right 34 
thing. It’s not too late. It’s not too late. Thank you.” 35 
 36 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Mr. Rahal for his comments. 37 
 38 
 Next to speak was Scott Lassiter of 209 Roundsby Drive: 39 
 40 
“Thank you, Mayor, thank you Councilmembers, it’s great to be back, it’s an honor to be back in this 41 
chamber, honestly I’ve been tempted and asked in various occasions to come back and speak to my 42 
hometown governing body in the past and I’ve always resisted, knowing it’s really not my place to do 43 
so anymore, you guys have got it. But, tonight I’m here to speak about something that’s directly 44 

- Page 150 -



Page 29 of 84 
 

impacting the work I’m doing now, as Wake County Soil and Water Conservation District Supervisor. 1 
I Vice Chair that Board, a Board that’s working actively and desperately to preserve easements, 2 
environmental conservation easements, agricultural easements, in what is a rapidly growing and 3 
developing county. So, some concerned, and rightfully so, neighbors reached out to me for help 4 
regarding this project. A plan that is going to interfere with this conservation easement, that’s what 5 
brings me here tonight. Just for some context, 2002 was when this was recorded with the Register of 6 
Deeds. There was, there still is plenty of undeveloped land, in this area. This may be a convenient 7 
way to do it, there may be more costly ways to developers and to Apex, but I will say that all parties 8 
have had some notice of this easement since 2002. We’ve got some neighbors, folks, that are truly 9 
concerned. I’ll tell you what it’s like sitting up there, and I was so thankful to no longer have to 10 
engage in land use decision, because you certainly don’t make friends in them, it’s the hardest work 11 
that you do. And I also am no stranger to looking out there and seeing angry New Hill residents. I’ll 12 
be honest with you, some of you may remember when I was here. I’m just thankful that I’m on this 13 
side tonight. But looking at that proposal, and as a representative of Wake County, I will say that the 14 
first time that this was brought to my attention, even with all the work the county is doing around 15 
environmental protection and wetland protection, and easement protections, was this month, earlier 16 
this month by some aggrieved community members that are here tonight. So, I will say that if I wasn’t 17 
aware of what was going on around a project that we directly work with in county government, I can’t 18 
be surprised why these folks didn’t understand it. You heard that you may be met with a lawsuit by 19 
neighbors, I’m just asking you and encouraging you to pump the brakes on this, because I think the 20 
narrative that is being portrayed, because I know many of y’all personally, I know what your 21 
campaign platforms are, I think the narrative that is being portrayed, rightly or wrongly, is in conflict 22 
with who you are. It’s in conflict with what the Town of Apex is about. You’ve got community 23 
members that are feeling, because of what is happening with this conservation easement, that 24 
conservation is not important, and that development reigns supreme, not trees, not property rights, 25 
not historical properties, now not even protected conservation easements is what’s in play here, and 26 
I don’t believe that’s what you actually believe. It’s in conflict with myself, the county commissioners, 27 
again doing this preservation work, easements, again I just implore you to pump the brakes. This 28 
body, I want to say, and I’ll end with this, does have the power to do something, does have the 29 
power to back down town staff, I understand what an uncomfortable position that can be, to look at 30 
your staff and not support a recommendation that comes forward, but I will say that at some point 31 
part of our job as elected officials is to remind staff who they work for, and that’s ultimately us as 32 
representatives of the people. So thank y’all very much, I trust that you’ll make the best decision you 33 
can.” 34 
 35 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Mr. Lassiter for his comments.  36 
 37 
 With no further sign ups, Mayor Gilbert closed Public Hearing for this item and moved 38 
discussion back to Council.  39 
 40 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he was frustrated that they were here. He said he would be 41 
equally frustrated if he were in their shoes. 42 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray asked where the town was with regard to the impact of not doing 43 
this road on the Friendship Station and the new PUD. 44 

- Page 151 -



Page 30 of 84 
 

 Ms. Cox said those are approved developments, and she doesn’t think anything can be done 1 
to stop those projects at this point. She said they are moving forward with construction. She said the 2 
condition with Heelan PUD was to contribute those 7 acres. She said that and the other conditions in 3 
the IRT were considered sufficient mitigation for the removal of the 2 acres from the conservation 4 
easement.  5 
 Councilmember Gantt said the alternatives were presented to them. He said one of the 6 
possible routes conflicted with the school, while others went through residences, and Friendship 7 
Station, and that the route aligns with what they see, with the expectation that the road would be a 8 
north-south major collector to US 1.  9 
 Ms. Cox said it would be a major thoroughfare. She said that it appears to be from the memo 10 
that VHB prepared for the town with those 4 alternatives. She said they all have residential impacts, 11 
or impacted the school.  12 
 Mayor Gilbert said there was a lot to think about here. He asked again what the impact 13 
would be if the town did not move forward with this tonight. 14 
 Ms. Cox said a vote on changing the land use map does not change what is happening. She 15 
said the land use map is meant to reflect this transfer of property and its subsequent release.  16 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if staff would anticipate substantial impacts to the other roads 17 
in the area if the road was never constructed down to Old US 1 and US 1. 18 
 Ms. Cox said it is anticipated for Richardson Road to have 20,000 vehicles daily within this 19 
corridor in the future. She said that is why it has been identified as a need.  20 
 21 
 A motion was made by Councilmember Gantt, seconded by Councilmember Mahaffey, to 22 
approve the 2045 Land Use Map Amendment to incorporate changes from the Little Beaver Creek 23 
Conservation Easement. 24 
 25 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said they were committed to this plan. He said a lot of the 26 
alternatives are no longer available because they have been developed and there are going to be 27 
homes there. He said part of Richardson Road in this area has been developed along with the 28 
Friendship Station PUD. He said the time to stop this was 10 years ago. 29 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray said this was one of those decisions that was always difficult, as 30 
there have been layers of decisions made leading to this. He said he appreciated Mr. Lassiter’s 31 
comments, because it is a reflection of where they are standing. He said he reflects on the decisions 32 
actually before them. He said today it is about a land use map amendment. He said those maps are 33 
important because they help in planning and decision making. He says the years of decisions have 34 
compounded this issue. He said he doesn’t like that, but there is stare decisis that needs to move 35 
forward. He said he agrees with Councilmember Mahaffey in regards to where the alternatives go. 36 
He said they may never end up making the connection, but he thinks this is the appropriate time to 37 
address the Land Use Map amendment.  38 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked why the map was not updated in the past, and why is this 39 
coming to them now. He said as a matter of principle, they have made a mission to pay more 40 
attention to preservation, and he said this feels to go counter to that. He said conservation area must 41 
mean something. He said he has a fundamental problem with them coming before them right now. 42 

- Page 152 -



Page 31 of 84 
 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said this is coming before them now because the actual swap is 1 
about to happen, and the map will be reflected for reality. He said 8 acres of conservation is more 2 
than 2. He said the state has agreed to this because they are getting a good deal for conservation.  3 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he gets it. 4 
 5 
 VOTE: 4-1, with Councilmember Zegerman dissenting 6 
  7 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked for a 15-minute recess. 8 
 Mayor Gilbert announced a 15-minute recess. 9 
 10 
Council took a recess at 8:08 PM  11 
 12 
Council returned to session at 8:25 PM 13 
  14 
 15 
PH3 Annexation No. 745 - The Preserve on Holt - 5.367 acres 16 

 Dianne Khin, Planning Director, gave the following presentation regarding Annexation No. 17 
745 – The Preserve on Holt. 18 
[SLIDE 14] 19 

 20 
 21 
 22 
 23 
 24 
 25 
 26 
 27 
 28 
 29 
 30 
 31 

- Page 153 -



Page 32 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 15] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 16] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 17] 5 

 6 
 7 
 8 
 9 
 10 

- Page 154 -



Page 33 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 18] 1 

 2 
 3 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if any road access to the future homes was contingent on the 4 
annexation. 5 
 Director Khin said no. 6 
 7 
 Mayor Gilbert opened up Public Hearing for this item. With no sign-ups, he closed Public 8 
Hearing and moved discussion back to Council. 9 
 10 
 A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tempore Gray, seconded by Councilmember 11 
Killingsworth, to approve Annexation No. 745 – The Preserve on Holt. 12 
 13 
 VOTE: 4-1, with Councilmember Mahaffey dissenting 14 
 15 
PH4 Rezoning Case No. 23CZ15 - Apex Gateway Phase 2 Amendment 16 

 Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager, gave the following presentation regarding 17 
Rezoning Case No. 23CZ15 – Apex Gateway Phase 2 Amendment. 18 
[SLIDE 19] 19 

 20 

- Page 155 -



Page 34 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 20] 1 

 2 
 3 
 4 
[SLIDE 21] 5 

 6 
[SLIDE 22] 7 

 8 

- Page 156 -



Page 35 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 23] 1 

 2 
 3 
 4 
[SLIDE 24] 5 

 6 
[SLIDE 25] 7 

 8 

- Page 157 -



Page 36 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 26] 1 

 2 
 3 
 4 
[SLIDE 27] 5 

 6 
[SLIDE 28] 7 

 8 

- Page 158 -



Page 37 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 29] 1 

 2 
 3 
 4 
 5 
 Grey Harrell, of Beacon Partners, on behalf of the applicant, gave the following presentation. 6 
[PH4 APPLICANT – SLIDE 1] 7 

 8 
 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 
 19 
 20 

- Page 159 -



Page 38 of 84 
 

 1 
[PH4 APPLICANT – SLIDE 2] 2 

 3 
[PH4 APPLICANT – SLIDE 3] 4 

 5 
[PH4 APPLICANT – SLIDE 4] 6 

 7 
 8 

- Page 160 -



Page 39 of 84 
 

[PH4 APPLICANT – SLIDE 5] 1 

 2 
[PH4 APPLICANT – SLIDE 6] 3 

 4 
  5 
 Councilmember Gantt said he thinks the demand for gas stations will go down over time 6 
with the rise of EVs, and the difficulty of underground tanks makes it so he doesn’t want them 7 
anymore. He said they may not be useful in 15 years. He said they’re also usually ugly. He hopes the 8 
site plan can hide some of those negative features.  9 
 10 
 Mayor Gilbert opened up Public Hearing for this item. With no sign-ups, he closed Public 11 
Hearing and moved discussion back to Council. 12 
 13 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said he hasn’t received any feedback from the surrounding 14 
residents about this proposal, while he had received a lot for the original proposal. He said at the 15 
time he was pushing for more commercial uses that could be amenities to the surrounding 16 
neighbors, and he thinks this is a positive change for that. He said he thinks residents will like that 17 
aspect of the project in place of Light Industrial uses, even if they may still object to the project as a 18 
whole.  19 

- Page 161 -



Page 40 of 84 
 

 Councilmember Zegerman said there was a lot of requests to limit Light Industrial when this 1 
was first proposed, and he thinks this a positive change. 2 
 3 
 A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tempore Gray, seconded by Councilmember 4 
Mahaffey, to approve Rezoning No. 23CZ15 – Apex Gateway Phase 2 Amendment. 5 
 6 
 VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0) 7 
 8 
 9 
PH5 Rezoning Case No. 23CZ20 - Sweetwater PUD Amendment 10 

 Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager, gave the following presentation regarding 11 
Rezoning No. 23CZ20 – Sweetwater PUD Amendment. 12 
[SLIDE 30] 13 

 14 
 15 
[SLIDE 31] 16 

 17 
 18 
 19 

- Page 162 -



Page 41 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 32] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 33] 3 

 4 
 5 
 6 
[SLIDE 34] 7 

 8 

- Page 163 -



Page 42 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 35] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 36] 3 

 4 
 5 
 6 
 Marvin Waldo, on behalf of the applicant, gave some comments. He said they have tried 7 
really listening to Apex and what they want on the site. He said they have tried to be malleable with 8 
the market conditions as well. He said he has gone under contract with a Marriott property, and it is 9 
planned to be designed to add more energy to the property, and it would help add meeting space. 10 
He said he thinks the community will be happy the have a first-class hotel there. 11 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said they did a previous rezoning last year, and they were told 12 
they needed to remove some of the buffer to fit a hotel. He asked if this hotel is now going where 13 
the office building is being moved from in this proposed amendment.  14 
 Mr. Waldo said he couldn’t know it was for a hotel then, he said that was for anyone who 15 
would need to come back later and change. He said he always dreamed of a hotel being in the 16 
middle of the big lawn. He said they are 95% leased on the whole property, and that made the hotel 17 
feel more comfortable about not being on the road. He said they are looking doing more family 18 
entertainment related uses on the road front portion.  19 
 20 

- Page 164 -



Page 43 of 84 
 

 Mayor Gilbert opened up Public Hearing for this item. With no sign-ups, he closed Public 1 
Hearing and moved discussion back to Council. 2 
 3 
 A motion was made by Councilmember Zegerman, seconded by Councilmember 4 
Killingsworth, to approve Rezoning No. 23CZ20 – Sweetwater PUD Amendment.  5 
 6 
 VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0) 7 
 8 
PH6 Rezoning Case No. 23CZ14 - Salem Street Townhomes PUD 9 

 Liz Loftin, Senior Planner, gave the following presentation regarding Rezoning No. 23CZ14 – 10 
Salem Street Townhomes PUD. 11 
[SLIDE 37] 12 

 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
[SLIDE 38] 18 

 19 

- Page 165 -



Page 44 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 39] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 40] 3 

 4 
 5 
 6 
[SLIDE 41] 7 

 8 

- Page 166 -



Page 45 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 42] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 43] 3 

 4 
 5 
 6 
[SLIDE 44] 7 

 8 

- Page 167 -



Page 46 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 45] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 46] 3 

 4 
 5 
 6 
[SLIDE 47] 7 

 8 

- Page 168 -



Page 47 of 84 
 

 1 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if they had worked with the developer to make sure the roads 2 
would align if everything ended up getting developed together.  3 
 Ms. Loftin said they looked at multiple layouts for the property, and she believes that was 4 
one of the reasons they provided internal connections rather connecting to Salem Street.  5 
 Mr. Dalton said the applicant had a number of constraints on this property, and this is trying 6 
to get this road a little farther away from Salem to fit the units in.  7 
 8 
 Scott Moore, of the Cooley Group, on behalf of the applicant, thanked staff for working with 9 
them, and said the road alignment was made for safety and maneuverability, and offered to answer 10 
any questions. 11 
 12 
 Mayor Gilbert opened up Public Hearing for this item.  13 
 14 
 First to speak was Brendan Fetter of 1314 Topaz Lane: 15 
 16 
“Mayor Gilbert, members of the Council, thank you for the privilege of speaking here today. Point of 17 
privilege, if that’s okay, being the HOA president in Salem Creek, and being so close with South 18 
Walk, I really want to thank everybody here, staff has been great, Mayor, members of the Council 19 
have reached out to me personally with what we can do to support our friends and neighbors in 20 
South Walk and our community, it’s really meant a lot to me, our neighborhood, their neighborhood 21 
and our entire community. I want to say this entire process has been great working with Scott and his 22 
team, their initial plans came to us and we’ve had a significant parking issue in our neighborhood, 23 
which you’ve seen if you walk by, and the 7 years that we’ve been there, we’ve had about 100 non-24 
emergency complaints to the Police Department, we’ve had about 30-35 blasts go from our 25 
management company, 2 residents reminding them kindly of our parking issues, so we’ve made it 26 
very clear that we cannot take any more parking concerns into our neighborhood from this 27 
development. Scott and his team were phenomenal through that process, making sure that we 28 
added adequate parking, and they have gone above and beyond adding that parking, and I am so 29 
greatly appreciative as an HOA Board Member, and our community is so grateful. Our community 30 
support at that initial planning was loud and clear, we had about 3/4ths of our residents there, and 31 
that totally shifted the conversation, and that resulted in that unanimous planning board decision a 32 
few weeks. I humbly ask the Board that we need this going forward, and keep this as planned right 33 
now. Thank you.” 34 
 35 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Mr. Fetters for his comments. With no further sign ups, he moved 36 
discussion back to Council.  37 
 38 
 Councilmember Mahaffey thanked the applicant for working so closely with the neighbors, 39 
and he thinks this will be a positive for the community. 40 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray said he also wanted to thank the applicant, because he was 41 
responsive to the needs of the community, and that means a lot. 42 
 43 

- Page 169 -



Page 48 of 84 
 

 A motion was made by Councilmember Mahaffey, seconded by Mayor Pro Tempore 1 
Gray, to approve Rezoning No. 23CZ14 – Salem Street Townhomes PUD. 2 
 3 
 VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0) 4 
 5 
PH7 Apex Transportation Plan Amendment(s) - Rezoning No. 23CZ13 Seymour PUD 6 

 Shannon Cox, Long-Range Planning Manager, gave the following presentation regarding 7 
Apex Transportation Plan Amendments – Rezoning No. 23CZ13 Seymour PUD. She said these were 8 
associated with Public Hearing 8, and the vote for this item will not be held until after Council has 9 
also heard Public Hearing 8. 10 
[SLIDE 48] 11 

 12 
 13 
[SLIDE 49] 14 

 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 
 19 

- Page 170 -



Page 49 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 50] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 51] 3 

 4 
 5 
 6 
[SLIDE 52] 7 

 8 

- Page 171 -



Page 50 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 53] 1 

 2 
 3 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if they were downgrading the road to 3 lanes, which 4 
seems to indicate the road can sustain even in the worst-case scenario. He said there is still the 2 5 
lane chokepoint with the current bridge. He asked what the alternative was, since the bridge would 6 
cause an issue no matter how many lanes were off the bridge.  7 
 Ms. Cox said those are the kinds of conversations they have had among staff, and ultimately 8 
their recommendation is based on the adopted plan, which is to have an interchange, or at least a 9 
crossing at Perry Road. She said Perry Road is seen as very important in these models, so staff would 10 
prioritize that connection over widening the existing bridge at Tingen. She said it also widens 11 
Tingen, which makes it easier for traffic to move faster, but more difficult for pedestrians to cross.  12 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said the bridge is the problem, and it doesn’t matter what they 13 
do to Tingen in this scenario. He asked what road diets were, and how they could be defined. 14 
 Ms. Cox said in some places, roads are wider than they need to be. She said there is a trend 15 
to take away travel lanes and in multi-modal transportation options. She said they are trying to think 16 
proactively, given the chokepoint and other considerations, and downsizing to help prioritize those 17 
other modes.  18 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked if it could be used as a calming measure. 19 
 Ms. Cox said yes. She said this plan would cause more congestion on Tingen Road than with 20 
a 4-lane roadway, and that would slow traffic down.  21 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if there is any NCDOT guides with the two-foot buffer put 22 
between the main road and the bike land, rather between the bike lane and the edge of the road 23 
before the sidewalk. He said that is a very common design in Europe, and is safer that way. He asked 24 
if they can accommodate that.  25 
 Ms. Cox said there are options like that, and they do include options like that in the bike 26 
Apex plan. She said in this case, there was concern for emergency service providers for a car to be 27 
able to pull over, so the striped buffer was recommended.  28 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he understands the concern, but he said it works in Europe 29 
with their emergency service providers. He requested that staff look at that as a potential road 30 
design alternative. 31 

- Page 172 -



Page 51 of 84 
 

 Ms. Cox said she believes there is some flexibility in the PUD text to continue to think about 1 
that, but she will let the applicant and Ms. Cowles confirm that. 2 
 Councilmember Gantt said he would argue that some countries pick bicyclists over 3 
emergency vehicles, and the town is choosing the other way. He said that’s especially true since 4 
there are not a lot of people on bikes in the US and in this area.  5 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said the trucks are bigger here, and the vehicles in general. 6 
 Councilmember Zegerman said they could also look at if they need paths on both sides of 7 
these roads, or potentially move the bike path to one side of the road and have it be bi-directional. 8 
He said he requests to reconsider this, and he wants to look at making these designs more 9 
pedestrian friendly.  10 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said he supports him on that, and they have an opportunity to 11 
make a space for that in Apex that they haven’t had before. He said they should take some time to 12 
look at this and make it more pedestrian and bicycle friendly than anywhere else in Apex, as this is 13 
already close.  14 
 Mayor Gilbert said he would encourage them to take a ride along with police, so that they 15 
can understand how that may impact response times before making those kinds of changes.  16 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said he thinks that’s fair, he thinks the PUD text should have the 17 
flexibility to continue looking at it.  18 
 Councilmember Zegerman said his understanding was that the property across from 19 
Irongate is currently vacant farm land, and asked if the road could be shifted enough not to impact 20 
the property owners in Irongate. 21 
 Ms. Cox said that was one of the reasons it was downgraded in the first place. She said she 22 
couldn’t say if they could shift the road to the west and widen it, but they could look at.  23 
 Councilmember Zegerman said it would be good to be able to move the road a little and 24 
not have to get into residential property acquisition discussions.  25 
 Councilmember Gantt said that would make the curb more severe, and it may be 26 
counterproductive for safety 27 
 Councilmember Zegerman said it may, but they should look at it to see. 28 
 Ms. Cox said they could look at it. She said it doesn’t affect the amendment unless it changed 29 
it from 3 lane to 4 lanes. 30 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he was concerned about the alignment of the new east-31 
west connector. He asked what would connect to the roundabout. 32 
 Ms. Cox said she would like the applicant to respond to that, she said they do not have the 33 
layout information at this point. 34 
 Matthew Carpenter, of Parker Poe, on behalf of the applicant, said the right of way for 35 
Tingen Road has been shifted west, so more impacts are on that side. He said the collector street is 36 
further south than Ticehurst, and there is a connection that there would not be a straight connection 37 
to that road. 38 
 39 
 Mayor Gilbert opened up Public Hearing for this item. 40 
 41 
 First to speak was Lawrence Kevin of 1628 Salem Village: 42 
 43 

- Page 173 -



Page 52 of 84 
 

“I’m just going to cut to the chase, vote no on Apex Transportation Plan Amendments. Reason 1 
Number 1, voting planning member board member had a conflict of official conduct, publicly listed 2 
January 8th as an associate for Lee and Associates, hours before the meeting on January, the CEO of 3 
Lee and Associates emailed the Town of Apex that was then forwarded to the Planning Board. It was 4 
a letter of support for Seymour’s Agenda’s items. The email from the CEO was also written on behalf 5 
of Grace Christian, who could benefit from the proposed amendments in the 2045 transportation 6 
plan voted on. The notification of official conduct conflict was emailed to the town, the Interim City 7 
Town Manager and City Council, on January 11th, 2024. So hopefully, this is not new. I also spoke 8 
with a City Council member in person, and raised the issue and concern, I’m still waiting to hear 9 
back, I do not hear anything. So I’m raising the issue again tonight, and I expect a public response 10 
from the Apex Town Council regarding my concerns regarding all Seymour agenda items voted on 11 
by the Planning Board on January 8th. There is standard operating process in place to recuse from 12 
voting, and is not a complex process. The member not only voted, but was the Planning Board 13 
member that motioned to recommend approval as presented. I have provided additional 14 
information in the handouts, due to the compressed timeline for public speaking. Reason 2, 15 
regarding plan amendments. Tingen Road, ready parkway, to be downgraded to a 4-lane 16 
thoroughfare with a median, future 3 lane thoroughfare, between Apex Peakway and a major 17 
collector, I’m in total disagreement, and part of that is going off the town’s staff report, a 18 
disadvantage of the proposed downgrade on Tingen Road from a 4-lane median divided 19 
thoroughfare to a 3-lane thoroughfare, is traffic capacity. Traffic capacity projections are incomplete 20 
with Grace Christian and Hopson, TIA is not factored into the calculations. That is data you guys 21 
need to make a decision. The current Seymour design plans for another reason for changing to 3 22 
was impacts to the Irongate neighborhood. That would associated with the widening to the 4 lanes. 23 
Now sure they’d be impacted by a 4-lane road, but they’re also going to be impacted by having a 24 
400-unit apartment complex in their backyard, which is designed as kind of one house per acre, so 25 
you’re changing the complexity of their view. The Perry Road bridge, this for example was not 26 
brought up, but according to the CAMPO map, the date on that is 2040, that’s 16 years away. I don’t 27 
know what you can do to speed it up but it’s 2040, that’s 16 years. That’s a kid going from birth to a 28 
sophomore in high school. The traffic amendments do not factor the large development projects. 29 
Grace Christian. Thank you. I had more.” 30 
 31 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Mr. Kevin for his comments. With no further sign ups, he closed 32 
Public Hearing and moved to the next item. 33 
 34 
AND 35 

PH8 Rezoning Case No. 23CZ13 - Seymour Mixed Use PUD 36 

 June Cowles, Senior Planner, gave the following presentation regarding Rezoning No. 37 
23CZ13 – Seymour Mixed Use PUD. 38 
[SLIDE 54] 39 

- Page 174 -



Page 53 of 84 
 

 1 
[SLIDE 55] 2 

 3 
[SLIDE 56] 4 

 5 
 6 
 7 
 8 

- Page 175 -



Page 54 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 57] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 58] 3 

 4 
 5 
 6 
[SLIDE 59] 7 

 8 

- Page 176 -



Page 55 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 60] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 61] 3 

 4 
 5 
 6 
[SLIDE 62] 7 

 8 

- Page 177 -



Page 56 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 63] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 64] 3 

 4 
 5 
 6 
[SLIDE 65] 7 

 8 

- Page 178 -



Page 57 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 66] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 67] 3 

 4 
 5 
 6 
[SLIDE 68] 7 

 8 

- Page 179 -



Page 58 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 69] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 70] 3 

 4 
 5 
 6 
[SLIDE 71] 7 

 8 

- Page 180 -



Page 59 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 72] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 73] 3 

 4 
 5 
 6 
[SLIDE 74] 7 

 8 

- Page 181 -



Page 60 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 75] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 76] 3 

 4 
 5 
 6 
[SLIDE 77] 7 

 8 

- Page 182 -



Page 61 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 78] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 79] 3 

 4 
 5 
 6 
[SLIDE 80] 7 

 8 

- Page 183 -



Page 62 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 81] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 82] 3 

 4 
 5 
 6 
[SLIDE 83] 7 

 8 

- Page 184 -



Page 63 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 84] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 85] 3 

 4 
 5 
 6 
[SLIDE 86] 7 

 8 

- Page 185 -



Page 64 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 87] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 88] 3 

 4 
 5 
 6 
[SLIDE 89] 7 

 8 

- Page 186 -



Page 65 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 90] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 91] 3 

 4 
 5 
 6 
[SLIDE 92] 7 

 8 

- Page 187 -



Page 66 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 93] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 94] 3 

 4 
 5 
 6 
[SLIDE 95] 7 

 8 

- Page 188 -



Page 67 of 84 
 

[SLIDE 96] 1 

 2 
 3 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked why the mid-block crosswalk was being added. 4 
 Councilmember Gantt said that was a request by him, to facilitate access to the bus there 5 
and potentially one that comes in on the other side. 6 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked if staff had an opinion on this. He said they had said these 7 
crossings were dangerous before, and was surprised to see this included. 8 
 Mr. Dalton said they’re not necessarily dangerous, but they just can’t put crosswalks 9 
anywhere someone may want to cross the street. He said they need to be judicious and make sure 10 
they are safe, and make an appeal to NCDOT as part of the process as well. He said they are fine 11 
with the way the comments are worded. 12 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked if the curve of the road is a concern. 13 
 Mr. Dalton said that is why the condition is worded as it is, so if it is considered to be 14 
deemed unsafe because of the geometric constraint, then it would not be approved. 15 
 Councilmember Gantt said he thinks people would cross there regardless, and he wants 16 
them to be able to do it as safely as possible. 17 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if it could be done further south.  18 
 Councilmember Gantt said that wouldn’t be needed because there is a signal light crossing 19 
that way. He said this offers a crossing for people to not have to go down to the light, then cross, 20 
then go back up to the bus stop. He said they would cross the road where they were anyway.  21 
 Mr. Dalton said the safest location would be north of the right-in-right-out, so it does not 22 
conflict with turning movements, and there would be a protected median at that intersection. He 23 
said they are constructing a new crossing for Sparta Lane which will be the new one to service Apex 24 
Elementary School.  25 
 Councilmember Gantt said he thinks the one they have crossing Tingen Road is a great 26 
spot, and that’s why he asked for this.  27 
 28 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if Wake County Public Schools reached out regarding the 29 
removal of the cap on Apex Elementary and school capacity issues. 30 
 Ms. Bunce said they did not receive communication about that change, and have not 31 
requested a letter, as it was very recent. 32 

- Page 189 -



Page 68 of 84 
 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said it hasn’t officially happened yet. 1 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if there were any proposed improvements to the currently 2 
unsignaled crosswalk in the area further west. 3 
 Mr. Dalton said the applicant could propose upgrades to that crosswalk, but at a minimum 4 
would have to include its current standards with any widening. He said they could propose a rapid-5 
flash beacon system, subject to staff review. 6 
  Councilmember Zegerman said the issue with that intersection is that there are a lot of kids 7 
who use that crosswalk to get to the Salem Village amenities. 8 
 Mr. Dalton said they can evaluate that with changing conditions, and they are open to 9 
looking at improvements. He said the town could also install this separate from zoning. 10 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if this potential change would go into the consideration of the 11 
school’s TIA. 12 
 Mr. Dalton said the school TIA was scoped prior to approval of this development. He said 13 
the MOA for that scoping would not include this development traffic or improvement in the analysis. 14 
He said NCDOT is responsible for recommendations on state roads, so they can’t require the school 15 
to do improvements. 16 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if their TIA was based on Tingen as it exists currently, and 17 
asked if they have it. 18 
 Mr. Dalton said they do not have the analysis yet. 19 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said they wouldn’t be able to have them to anything anyway. He 20 
asked if there was a possibility to rescope their TIA if this gets approved tonight. 21 
 Mr. Dalton said they could revisit that and see what they can do. 22 
 Councilmember Gantt said the internal driveway of that school would be an issue anyway. 23 
 Mr. Dalton said schools follow the NCDOT’s guidelines for stacking within school traffic. He 24 
said that is being updated as carpooling increases over time.  25 
 Councilmember Killingsworth asked if the Bradley Terrace stub does not end at the edge 26 
of the property line. 27 
 Ms. Cowles said it’s an older development, and is a private road. She said there is a side 28 
connection that locals use. She added that the proposal was to stop it short, and if the HOA of 29 
Bradley Terrace wanted to make the connection, they could.  30 
 Councilmember Gantt said it’s a thought for the future in case the connection becomes 31 
desired. He said he thinks it would happen and that’s why he asked for it. 32 
 Councilmember Killingsworth wondered how big the gap was. 33 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if there was a reason why they wouldn’t connecting 34 
Canterbury to the main road. 35 
 Ms. Cowles said it’s a cul-de-sac. 36 
 Councilmember Zegerman said that could be another option there if connectivity is the 37 
goal. 38 
 Ms. Cowles said it was never a stub street connection. 39 
 40 
 Matthew Carpenter, of Parker Poe, on behalf of the applicant, gave the following 41 
presentation in regards to Rezoning No. 23CZ13 – Seymour Mixed Use PUD. 42 
[PH8 APPLICANT – SLIDE 1] 43 

- Page 190 -



Page 69 of 84 
 

 1 
[PH8 APPLICANT – SLIDE 2] 2 

 3 
 4 
 5 
 6 
[PH8 APPLICANT – SLIDE 3] 7 

 8 

- Page 191 -



Page 70 of 84 
 

[PH8 APPLICANT – SLIDE 4] 1 

 2 
[PH8 APPLICANT – SLIDE 5] 3 

 4 
 5 
 6 
[PH8 APPLICANT – SLIDE 6] 7 

 8 

- Page 192 -



Page 71 of 84 
 

[PH8 APPLICANT – SLIDE 7] 1 

 2 
[PH8 APPLICANT – SLIDE 8] 3 

 4 
 5 
 6 
[PH8 APPLICANT – SLIDE 9] 7 

 8 

- Page 193 -



Page 72 of 84 
 

[PH8 APPLICSNT – SLIDE 10] 1 

 2 
[PH8 APPLICANT – SLIDE 11] 3 

 4 
 5 
 6 
[PH8 APPLICANT – SLIDE 12] 7 

 8 

- Page 194 -



Page 73 of 84 
 

 1 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray asked for clarity on timing between houses and road construction, 2 
and if houses would be built before roads were fully operable.  3 
 Mr. Carpenter said no, and that different phases of the project would come at different 4 
times. He said the infrastructure for each phase would be required before the CO’s were issued for 5 
the homes.  6 
 Councilmember Zegerman said part of the property would depend on the big branch 2 7 
pipeline, and that the eastern portion of the property could not be constructed without it. 8 
 Mr. Carpenter said yes, and this would seek to help the overall sewer issue, and that they 9 
could not connect to the Salem Village pump station. 10 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he wanted to make sure they were not having a 11 
conversation 6 months from now about a variance if big branch 2 does not come to fruition.  12 
 Mr. Carpenter said a variance for sewer would be very difficult. 13 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he just wanted to make things clear up front. 14 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said they typically don’t adjudicate sewer capacity through 15 
rezonings, and that it is done through actual capacity calculation. He said the same goes for 16 
stormwater. He says town laws control for those issues. 17 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if a 25-year storm condition was included. 18 
 Mr. Carpenter said yes.  19 
 Councilmember Gantt said that was above and beyond required, and was an EAB 20 
recommendation. 21 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said it may make conditions better then. 22 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked for a minimum type A buffer, rather than removing and 23 
replanting. 24 
 Mr. Carpenter said they look at neighboring uses and intensity, and that’s how they arrived 25 
at the wider, thicker buffer to the south. He said on the west side of Tingen Road the development 26 
would be more compatible with the things in the area, and he thinks that is much more compatible 27 
for size and scale. He said he thinks they chose type B because they would to remove more existing 28 
vegetation with type A. He said the goal is to leave more existing vegetation. 29 
 Councilmember Killingsworth asked what the buffer was on the Salem Village side. 30 
 Mr. Carpenter said it was 15-foot type B. He said there is no buffer along the western 31 
portion, as the Salem Village subdivision did not leave any buffer. He said they are really tight there 32 
at Tingen Road. 33 
 Councilmember Killingsworth asked if there was a reason why that was not required with 34 
Salem Village. 35 
 Ms. Bunce said Salem Village was approved before there was a requirement for there to be a 36 
buffer between residential uses, and that change was around 2015 or 2016.  37 
 Councilmember Gantt confirmed the calculations of the buffers for the single-family homes. 38 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he would like to see a 30-foot buffer between the 39 
residential uses. He said if there is not existing vegetation, type A may not be practical, but where 40 
there is, he is asking for it to remain essentially undisturbed.  41 
 Mr. Carpenter said they are comfortable leaving existing trees and vegetation, but he does 42 
not think they can change the buffer sizes given the constraints.  43 

- Page 195 -



Page 74 of 84 
 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said he asked for a full tree canopy replaced, which he said 1 
seems feasible on that site. He asked why they were unable to commit to doing that. 2 
 Mr. Carpenter said there was a lot of canopy on the eastern side on Tingen and the north 3 
side of the Peakway. He said it was more they don’t have the data yet to make that commitment than 4 
that they already knew they couldn’t do it. He said he didn’t want to make the commitment then not 5 
be able to meet it.  6 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said he had offered some suggestions to mitigate the lack of 7 
school capacity for middle school in the area. He said he recommended a 55+ community, changing 8 
the mix of 1-bedroom and 2-bedroom apartments, and those were not included. 9 
 Mr. Carpenter said they discussed an age restriction, and he said that was at odds with 10 
providing housing for people in the area with different ages, incomes, and conditions. He said that 11 
was the vision of the land use map here, and the age restriction did not accomplish that goal to their 12 
opinion. He said they also didn’t want to place that restriction on the site, and in a year or two have a 13 
solution to the middle school capacity issue, then be stuck with 55+.  14 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said he was concerned about the setback distance, and said they 15 
were pretty tight. He asked them to increase them, but they were not included, and asked if he had 16 
any comments. 17 
 Mr. Carpenter said those were all minimums. He said they are not going to be that small on 18 
every home, as that is not workable. He said the low minimums help with site design and flexibility. 19 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said housing staff asked for a stronger housing condition than 20 
offered, as they are offering 5% of the apartment units to be affordable and the request was for 5% 21 
of all units. He said he would also support a larger affordable housing condition. He asked if he had 22 
comments. 23 
 Mr. Carpenter said a lot of the units would be for-sale, and it is a more difficult and complex 24 
process, and is much more restrictive. He said he has heard from builders that people who are trying 25 
to get loans for affordable-locked homes, as they are seen as capped for appreciation. He said 26 
adding more units as affordable to the apartment construction couldn’t absorb the cost in the pro-27 
forma without government financing. He said that could also cause a phasing issue, since they may 28 
not know the total units during the earlier phases.  29 
 30 
 Mayor Gilbert opened up the Public Hearing for this item.  31 
 32 
 First to speak was Joseph Mayer-Salman of 1971 Drumlin Drive: 33 
 34 
“Real quickly, while you’re getting those I just want to give a shoutout to staff for working with me, I 35 
appreciate their help, they’re responsive, and I can tell they care about what they do. So, thanks to 36 
them. So I am Joseph Mayer-Salman of 1971 Drumlin Drive and I am here to represent Drumlin 37 
Drive. So that’s next page. I am requesting your help with a zoning condition, I know staff cannot 38 
support this, on principle, but I am asking your help and I am entrusting you to consider what I am 39 
about to share, and not connecting Drumlin Drive to the new development with a road, and instead 40 
connect with a sidewalk or a greenway. So we’re going to look through it real quick, about how it’s 41 
not essential, we’re going to take a look at it, and last but not least, safety. Alright, next page. So, the 42 
vehicular connection I believe is not required, not essential, because the two nearest stub streets you 43 
can see on the map with the red arrows will connect. So there’s lot of connectivity in this area, I 44 

- Page 196 -



Page 75 of 84 
 

actually looked to find another place in Apex, I asked staff about it as well, and I could not find 1 
another place with 3 this close that connect. In addition, there are no markings or signs on Drumlin 2 
Drive that it is a stub street, like the other 2 stub streets, or how a stub street should be marked. 3 
Alright next page. It has been built and utilized as a cul-de-sac for over a decade, so traffic flows 4 
around in a circle, it’s less than 600 feet long like a cul-de-sac should be per the UDO, and has a 5 
landscaped center island. Vehicles go around it in a circle without backing up, including the trash 6 
truck. Alright next page. Drumlin Drive also has 150 feet of frontage with an HOA maintained open 7 
space, so today kids of all ages, and I do mean all ages, I’ll show you that shortly, congregate here to 8 
play. When Ticehurst Lane connects, this will be the only safe space remaining for those kids to play. 9 
Next page. So this is a picture of a regular day in October, you can see the lawn inflatables, this is 10 
before Halloween, and you can count 16, there’s really 17 there’s someone behind a tree my wife 11 
said I couldn’t mark them because you couldn’t see them, but they’re out here playing in the open 12 
space out here having fun, they’re actually playing 3 different games. There’s football, there’s 13 
baseball, and there’s volleyball back in the corner. Alright next page, I am going to skip that, 14 
because it’s actually been covered prior to getting to my section, so I will skip it. I think the buffer 15 
piece here has been covered as well, but the other thing I would like to ask for here is having two 16 
story units right along the buffer with Salem Village, and that’s because the homes in Salem Village 17 
are of a similar size and having a three-story thing right on the edge there would be kind of towering 18 
over the homes along the buffer, especially if the buffer is thin and not the 30 foot type A requested 19 
here and asked about before. And I can see I am out of time, so thank you.” 20 
 21 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Mr. Mayer-Salman for his comments. 22 
 23 
 Next to speak was Mettina Damm of 1628 Salem Village Drive: 24 
 25 
“Good night, Mayor and City Council members, I would like the town to review the 23CZ13 26 
Rezoning Project and invalidate the Planning Board vote on January 8th, with a conflict of official 27 
conduct. City Councils and Planning Board members have a tunnel vision in Seymour Rezoning 28 
project, the focus on Apex Peakway and they neglect crucial aspects presented by the Apex citizens. 29 
With a month to review before motions are made to the vote, complete and sound compound traffic 30 
impact report. There is no school capacity at any level, nor will the school be built in the next 5 years. 31 
Sewer lines, foot lines, ecologic preservation, need to go with town guidelines. Our community has 32 
clear demands on this project. Medium density, no more than 400 units, 25% of these units are 33 
residents aged 55+, no commercial areas, preserve at least 30% of the trees, real commitment for 34 
the developer, build a park, 100 years stormwater management plan, conduct a traffic study, include 35 
all projects, Grace Christian, Hughes and Peakway intersection along with bumpers and review traffic 36 
lights. Review the buffers in Salem Village. Only medium density will resolve most of the issues 37 
today, and save millions of dollars. Salem Village has 400 houses, and the land is bigger than the 38 
Seymour one. This will be comparable and fit with the Apex city guidelines. 100 of these units, 25%, 39 
should be 55%, to increase the chance that our kids, not the developer’s kids, not the Seymour kids, 40 
our kids, stay close and don’t spend one hour on the bus. No commercial areas, that comes with 41 
high density. 94 percent tree removal. To the environment zoning board, we implore. Raise your 42 
development standards, and ensure developers cover 50% of the green lights. You approve this 43 
project with only 20%. The developer agreed only with 15 of our 73 suggestion. Don’t kill the trees in 44 

- Page 197 -



Page 76 of 84 
 

Apex. Our children deserve to walk in the park. We refuse to raise casualties due to planning traffic. 1 
We demand you invalidate the Planning Board meeting on January 8th, all past votes where member 2 
Alyssa Byrd has a conflict of interest, her vote to send emails regarding the Seymour 23CZ23 3 
proposal, we have documents recording all the issues in these meetings. If this is approved today 4 
without review, the City of Apex can be held legally, financially, and accountable for potential 5 
frauding, sewer problems, and potential casualties resulting from inadequate planning. City Council 6 
members, you have a serious responsibility. Thank you.” 7 
 8 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Ms. Damm for her comments. 9 
 10 
 Next to speak was Dave Zonca of 1718 Minley Way: 11 
 12 
“Good evening, ladies and gentlemen, I appreciate the time. One of the things that I wanted to bring 13 
up is a little off the radar screen when looking at the presentations. Around this development is the 14 
area of Tingen Road from Apex Peakway to Salem Street, crossing the railroad tracks. And James 15 
Street, from say around Hughes Street, to Apex Peakway. I moved to Apex in 2015, first home built, 16 
October 15th we moved in, Apex Manors. Not Apex Village, Apex Manors, directly behind the 17 
Elementary School. I can frame my future concerns based on today’s state. Today, particularly 18 
around, well there’s been some conversations around Apex Elementary and what the future is and 19 
the traffic loads, I can tell you it’s a mess there. It’s a safety hazard, and it’s a congestion issue. Today, 20 
you can’t make a turn off of James Street crossing over Tingen and see traffic coming both 21 
directions. It’s a hope and a prayer. There are cars parked all along James Street, both sides, 22 
because there’s not enough room to stage. There’s barely enough room for a car to get through 23 
there, and you frequently have to cross over the yellow line into the opposing lane to get around 24 
traffic. There are cars that are double parked on James Street, further down the traffic circle, with 25 
their flash and flashers blinking. Why? Because parents don’t want to sit in that line for staging, so 26 
they park their cars on Miller Street, Minley Way, and on James Street, and they pick up their kids 27 
and take them back to the car. There are times you cannot even access the neighborhood because 28 
the traffic circle is blocked, and there are so many cars on the street that you can’t get through. 29 
That’s today’s state. I think that there are opportunities to improve that, until the development comes 30 
in place. I don’t know what the future impact is going to be, when the Peakway is going to be 31 
extended over Salem Street, when Tingen will be closed at the railroad tracks and what that’s going 32 
to do to traffic patterns. It’s going to be a lot of variables. What’s the staging of the new development 33 
and what are the number of people that are going to be coming into that area. When the Peakway is 34 
going to be completed, when streets are going to be closed. I have no idea how to project that 35 
traffic flow. But what I can tell you is I think the problem is going to move from where it is today, from 36 
everybody staging on James Street, which is not designed for people to be parking on both sides. I 37 
think that’s something we need to address today, but also keep in mind as we’re doing the planning, 38 
what’s the future going to be in that area that I think is being overlooked.” 39 
 40 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Mr. Zonca for his comments. 41 
 42 
 Next to speak was Stephen LaTour of 1560 Ticehurst Lane: 43 
 44 

- Page 198 -



Page 77 of 84 
 

“Mayor and Council, good evening, my name is Stephen LaTour and I live at 1560 Ticehurst Lane, 1 
just west of the proposed development. I have several concerns that I believe require conditions 2 
being attached to this zoning change. I do object to the construction of thru cuts on the current 3 
stubs. There are 3 stubs, all within 150 feet of each other, 2 of the stubs are within 159 feet of each 4 
other, thus the amount of traffic that is going to be generated in a small area could be quite high. I 5 
really don’t think that the UDO should require connections in all cases. These are narrow streets, you 6 
can only have one lane of traffic moving if someone is parked on the side of the road, and there are 7 
sidewalks on only one side. Those kinds of streets should not be subject to stub connection. I do 8 
appreciate changing connections to indirect, that certainly will help, but I don’t think that’s a 9 
sufficient condition. I also believe the minimum distance of only 65 feet between townhomes and the 10 
single-family homes in Salem Village should be increased, I suggest 200 feet. 65 feet is just a little 11 
more than one typical lot width in Salem Village. There’s also a substantial grade level difference at 12 
the top of Ticehurst between the Seymour property and Salem Village, it’s about 15-18 feet higher, 13 
which increases the height of those townhomes relative to the homes in Salem Village. I really think 14 
that minimum distance should be much greater certainly than 65 feet. The minimum lot size of 500 15 
square feet is too small for the portions of track 3 bordering Salem Village. The developers have not 16 
considered consistency with Salem Village as-built. I’m not asking that the minimum lot size be 17 
higher elsewhere, just close to Salem Village. The lots in that area are 8,000 to 10,000 square feet, so 18 
I think the minimum lot size bordering Salem Village there maybe within 200 feet or so should be 19 
8,000 square feet. Those are my concerns and I hope that you will consider them, thank you.” 20 
 21 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Mr. LaTour for his comments. 22 
 23 
 Next to speak was Terry Ryan of 1781 Yately Lane: 24 
 25 
“I’ve been cycling for over 50 years, and I typically put on several thousand miles a year. Now after 26 
Lori Cove was tragically hit up in Cary about 5 years ago, I’ve been concentrating basically off-road. 27 
I’ve been doing the ATT, you know about the push button flashing light, and I’d say about 75% of the 28 
cars actually stop when that is activated. It’s not necessarily a huge issue, I mean it is but the cyclists 29 
are used to looking for vehicles. Now, the kids going across Apex Peakway to the swimming pool are 30 
not going to be used to trhat, so I would ask the Council that as a condition of approving it, the 31 
developer install a push-button flashing stop light at the intersection of Apex Peakway and Padstone, 32 
such that when they hit that, it’s going to make the cars going down Apex Peakway stop. I think that’s 33 
for the kid’s safety. That’s number 1. Number 2 is with Councilmember Zegerman, I absolutely agree 34 
with him that the design of having two 5 foot lanes, and then having a 10 foot elevated one, you’re 35 
better off getting rid of the street level 5-foot lanes and make one 20 foot wide bi-directional bike 36 
lane. And, also like the Councilman, I’ve cycled in Europe and they’re far advanced. And that;’s they 37 
way to go. So I’m just saying it doesn’t cost any more, and it’s going to be a whole lot more effective, 38 
because as a cyclist if I’m going down Tingen, I’m certainly not going to take the bike lane that’s 39 
street level if there’s a bike path that’s available. Number 3, and that is with the two lane bridge 40 
going over US 1. That is a recipe for disaster, because you’ve got 3 lanes both ways, and you’ve got 41 
pedestrians, and when they all meet they’re at the bridge, and it’s a recipe for disaster. And 42 
unfortunately the cyclists will lose. Thank you.” 43 
 44 

- Page 199 -



Page 78 of 84 
 

 Mayor Gilbert thanked Mr. Ryan for his comments. 1 
 2 
 Next to speak was Kyle Corley of 333 Anterbury Drive: 3 
 4 
“I guess before voting the real thing to consider is we keep hearing about the infrastructure. To be 5 
honest, I mean our schools are already capped, so if you build all these multi-family homes, single-6 
family homes, where are you going to put them. I get a high school is going to be built in 5 years, an 7 
elementary school is going to be built in 5 years. But I mean, like someone mentions, what about 8 
Middle Schools? My daughter is in 6th grade, 6th, 7th, 8th and then she goes to high school. So, what 9 
about the middle school people? There’s just no infrastructure to be honest., You’ve got schools, 10 
you’ve got traffic, there’s a new shopping thing built near Wal-Mart, I think one shop has been filled. 11 
And you’ve got employers who are looking and wanting, need employees, so I get you need people 12 
but yet, I don’s see the infrastructure. I’ve grown up in a small town, I’m from Alabama, Homewood 13 
which is right outside Birmingham, small town I get you gotta grow. But to grow successfully you 14 
need to have a stable infrastructure in place, and I just don’t see that right now in Apex. And I think 15 
we need to look at the infrastructure first, get that in place, and then we can add this new 16 
development, and all these homes. The townhomes are right up next to each other, you have no 17 
yards or anything like that, you’re living pretty much on top of each other, that’s like New York, all 18 
Northeast, they live on top of each other. That’s just a recipe for disaster with public health, I mean 19 
Covid showed the nation that. And to go back to the question earlier, there’s only one way in and 20 
out of Anterbury Drive, there’s a pond, there’s a roundabout, cul-de-sac, if you’re going to be 21 
inserting that, having a second exit off Anterbury needs to be discussed. I think that’s everything, 22 
thank y’all for your time.” 23 
 24 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Mr. Corley for his comments.  25 
 26 
 Next to speak was Jean Radke of 340 Anterbury Drive: 27 
 28 
“I just had to present tonight my objections to the Seymour PUD, besides the congestion, noise, the 29 
additional development, the destruction of the property, the woods and things like that. The biggest 30 
concern to me is the traffic, I think it’s going to be a traffic, it’s going to cause traffic misery. With 800 31 
units expected, a conservative estimate might be 1600 more cars right in that area along those local 32 
streets. Then there’s congestion down Tingen at Apex Elementary School, in the other direction 33 
they’re going the build Grace Christian School as I understand it, that will have to accommodate 34 
1200 students, and they do not offer bus service. So that’s how many more vehicles travelling these 35 
roads right in this local area. The only access into my community on Anterbury Drive is right off the 36 
Peakway, about maybe 200 feet from Tingen, and I think if there’s all this traffic and a stop light put 37 
up at the corner at Tingen and Apex Peakway, we’re going to have a hard time getting in and out of 38 
our development, because like I said we’re very close to that intersection. In addition to these traffic 39 
problems, in that local area down the Peakway a little ways across form Wal-Mart was the new 40 
development I believe with 164 apartments. There’s more traffic, more cars on these same few 41 
streets. At the busiest times of day, sometimes coming home on US 1 and exiting and trying to exit 42 
onto Williams Street on Exit 95, some of the traffic is stopped in the lanes out on US 1 where it 43 
should be moving, they’re at a stand still in the travel lanes because there’s that many cars exiting 44 

- Page 200 -



Page 79 of 84 
 

there. So, I would ask you to please make a prudent decision for the citizens of Apex and reject this 1 
proposal for the Seymour PUD, and a couple of my neighbors are with me tonight, they asked that I 2 
let you know that they would also, if this goes forward, at least the 30-foot buffers that you proposed. 3 
Thank you very much for your time.” 4 
 5 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Ms. Radke for her comments. 6 
 7 
 Next to speak was Andre Powell of 311 Anterbury Drive: 8 
 9 
“I don’t want to beat a dead horse, but I’m going to beat it. The issue is traffic. The sexy part of their 10 
proposal is the infrastructure, the issue is you won’t get the infrastructure up to fix the problem. It’s 11 
horrendous. So leaving out of my home in Bradley Terrace, I pick a way to go depending on which 12 
day of the week it is. Because traffic is bad. If I have to go down into Apex, I have to drive around to 13 
beat the traffic, because I can’t pass Apex Elementary. It’s not a fun game, it’s kind of like being in 14 
New York, but there’s no subway. So I say all that to say this, what they are proposing sounds great if 15 
you can actually execute it. I don’t know the company, I’m just being honest. A great plan without 16 
execution is a failure to me. The second thing I would be concerned about, my daughter is at NC 17 
State right now so I don’t have any kids in school, but you know where I wouldn’t move to? A place 18 
that didn’t have schools. If I had to do it all over again, and this is what we were doing to ourselves 19 
on purpose. Not planning for the future of our children, I wouldn’t move to Apex. One of the reasons 20 
we picked Apex was the proximity to Cary where I used to work at, the schools are great, but when 21 
we start picking away the real choices of why people buy homes, you become a less desirable place. 22 
I’ll end with this. I have a friend who lives in Fuquay, I went to see him from Downtown Raleigh. It 23 
took me an hour and 20 minutes to get from downtown Raleigh to Fuquay. You know one of the 24 
biggest complaints is for Fuquay and Holly Springs, the traffic. And I think we’re starting to duplicate 25 
the same problem in Apex. As I am picking on Emily, dude it took me an hour and 20 minutes to 26 
gets here. I go back home, and it’s like, it took me a long time to get back home in Apex, because 27 
the traffic is swelling. Nobody’s fault, but we can actually be more proactive and reduce that issue. 28 
The second concern is the schools. I would not gamble to move to a place that said we’ll see what 29 
happens in 5 years. As all of my kids are grown that’s not the issue. I can think of other smaller, 30 
younger families who do not consider that to be an option. So that’s all.” 31 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Mr. Powell for his comments. 32 
 33 
 Next to speak was Ryan Shealey of 530 Old Mill Village Drive: 34 
 35 
“I walked here, so there was no traffic, So I have some notes out of randomness, we are talking about 36 
this new development, and new is scary I get it. But one thing that I kind of noticed was there was 37 
that crosswalk that I believe Brett wanted, love it, but the idea of yellow flashing crossings which was 38 
an option apparently, may not be sufficient. The traffic might be low enough to never need it, but if it 39 
is ever something that’s coinsdierewd a hawk design is better if you know what that is. It’s basically 40 
you push a button and it’s like a red light out of nowhere. It’s not a full traffic light it’s just a red light. 41 
Going to the bike ability, going to the bike ability, the multi-use path is the sidepath, someone 42 
mentioned that before, no one is going to bike on that better, it’s just a waste of space. But I can 43 
understand that if you want traffic calming and you can’t get tree lined streets that is a way to make it 44 

- Page 201 -



Page 80 of 84 
 

look like there’s a bike lane there so it slows you down, but it does allow for fire and police. So 1 
overall, it’s not horrible if you can’t get an Amsterdam designed street, that’s probably as good as 2 
you’re going to get. I would like to see of course a sidepath on both ends but that; just me I like 3 
biking. In fact, I sold my car when I moved to Old Mill Village, we just have one car we’re a one car 4 
family, I bike everywhere, it’s great. Not everyone is as privileged as me to have access to bike 5 
facilities, so I get it, the Tingen Road looks great form the Peakway going south, but the Peakway 6 
going north could use some improvement. As far as all that traffic going to the elementary school, 7 
we’ve got to get rid of cars. I don’t car what anybody says that ever speaks at this stand, we have too 8 
many cars in America, Amsterdam has 50% of their people having cars, I get it they’ve built that way 9 
since the 70’s and they have crazy high gas prices, but there are better ways to do it here. And if you 10 
know what strong towns is, strong towns is an organization across American trying to fix the urban 11 
experiment, the suburban rather and reduce the number of cars we have and get more places like 12 
downtown Apex everywhere. Parking minimums that’s another thing. So Raleigh and Durham got rid 13 
of their parking minimums so that we can have more diverse developments, I’m just wondering 14 
when Apex and Cary is going to follow suit. I saw the recent plan on the S line development, I’m very 15 
excited about that. Thank you for your time. “ 16 
 17 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Mr. Shealey for his comments.  18 
 19 
 Mayor Gilbert said they would begin with discussion and a possible vote for Public Hearing 20 
7. 21 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked about the connection of Anterbury Drive to the east west 22 
connector earlier. He asked if the proposed improvement would extend to Anterbury Drive.  23 
 Mr. Cash, with Kimley Horn and Associates, said they extended the tapers past Anterbury to 24 
provide left turn lanes into that road.  25 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray said the concerns that have been brought to them on James 26 
Street and around Salem are things they need to get further study on. He asked if staff could take a 27 
look at that. He said he thinks these are transportation changes the town needs to make, so he 28 
would make a motion to approve. 29 
 30 
 A motion to approve was made by Mayor Pro Tempore Gray, seconded by 31 
Councilmember Killingsworth, to approve the Apex Transportation Plan for Rezoning 23CZ13 32 
Seymour PUD.  33 
 34 
 Councilmember Gantt asked what would happen if they approve PH7 if they denied PH8. 35 
 Ms. Cox said they want to discuss 8 before the vote for 7, unless they want to approve the 36 
transportation plan amendments regardless. 37 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he would prefer to discuss item 8 prior to discuss either.  38 
 39 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray withdrew his prior motion. 40 
 41 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked the applicant about the building height of the homes 42 
bordering the existing communities. He asked if he was right to think there would be at least one 43 

- Page 202 -



Page 81 of 84 
 

single-family residence prior to the townhomes, and that the single family residence would be 1 
limited to a two-story building.  2 
 Mr. Carpenter said practically he thinks there will be a row of single-family homes. He said 3 
the condition does not allow townhomes within 65 feet. Of the property line, so they could have 4 
open space then townhomes. He said they do not know for sure yet, and it may be market driven. He 5 
said the height limit is 3 stories on single family and that is the same for townhomes.  6 
 Councilmember Zegerman said they don’t have a precedent of requiring stubs unless there 7 
are extreme conditions. He asked what removing one of those would mean in terms of the other 8 
connections, and if that would work for them. 9 
 Mr. Carpenter said he is okay limiting one or more of those connections, and they know 10 
Council has normally done that. He said that’s how they arrived at indirect connection. He said they 11 
could remove one and have it still work. 12 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he would really like to see the 30-foot properties. 13 
 Mr. Carpenter said he thinks they will stick with 15, he would have to talk about other 14 
options. 15 
 Councilmember Zegerman said it seems like there may be other options, and he thinks now 16 
would be the time to make that commitment. 17 
 Mr. Carpenter asked if he wanted that along the property line or just in the northern section. 18 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he wants that where it borders existing property. 19 
 Mr. Carpenter said he thinks they need to with 15 for now. He said townhomes aren’t much 20 
more intense, especially with a 15 foot buffer.  21 
 Mayor Gilbert asked Director Johnson about his thoughts on this in regards to other things 22 
he has worked on in his career. 23 
 Director Johnson said Wake County’s growth is really strong, and school construction always 24 
seems to be lagging behind. He said eh assumes Wake County will find a way to make the school 25 
issue works. 26 
 Councilmember Gantt said he thinks the Depot 499 is very dense and has two schools close 27 
by. He said that is comparable. 28 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said he is not going to support the project. He said he didn’t get 29 
his trees, and he suggested several mitigations that were not agreed to, and there wer other 30 
conditions that were not included. He said he wanted to be clear that density was not a reason he 31 
was not supporting it. He said the land use map here calls for up to 1000 homes and has for a 32 
decade. He said if it gets turned down, there may be another development that large. He said the 33 
developer has also made an effort to move to the east side of Tingen. He said Wake County caps 34 
schools, and has the existing residence stay. He said the kids that may move in here would have to 35 
go to farther away schools in that scenario. He say Apex Middle is nearly full, but Lufkin is not. He 36 
said the 5-year projections are solid, and those schools are under construction today. He said there’s 37 
longer term stuff for a middle school in the area. He said the carpool for Apex Elementary school, 38 
and it’s the same at any school. He said not to go by the schools during those times.  39 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he has been fretting over this one. He said as a Salem 40 
Village resident, he empathizes with some of the reasons for not liking this development. He said he 41 
has to separate himself from that as a Councilmember. He said he wishes he got his 30 feet of trees 42 
here tonight, and that put him back in the tossup stage. He said that if this does get turned down, 43 
another development may bring more homes than this would. He said Grace Christian is still going 44 

- Page 203 -



Page 82 of 84 
 

to happen, and the traffic would still hit the road. He said this would bring a signal, and Tingen 1 
would be widened with sidewalks and paths, which would not exist without this, or the town would 2 
have to fund it. He said he really wants his 30 feet of trees. He said it will be a last minute decision on 3 
his part and he would want to hear from the rest of Council. 4 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray said his points are illustrating the larger issues that are inherent 5 
when there is something like this. This is a constant balancing act, with a number of factors and 6 
issues to get to a resolution of a problem. He said there can be something to resolve the issue, and 7 
there are some things he wishes they got, such as more affordable housing. He said the traffic issue 8 
is the biggest concern. He said he would love to reduce the number of cars, but that is a larger 9 
societal issue they have to address. He said from the whole town perspective, this solves a lot of the 10 
bigger problems in the area. He said it does so to allow them to deal with other issues that may not 11 
be high priority for the state. He said he agreed with Board Member Sherman a lot, on that they 12 
shouldn’t make big changes to the LUM unless it makes things better. He said this change from the 13 
LUM does make things better. He said they have heard what people have had to say, even if they 14 
may not agree. He said they won’t solve every problem today, like school capacity. He said his kid 15 
goes to Lufkin which is 2/3 full. He said it only is because of a fear of year-round school. He said they 16 
still are great teachers and programs. He said this is a creative solutions for a big problem in the 17 
area, and he has no problems supporting it. 18 
 Councilmember Killingsworth said they have heard the community, and wanted to make 19 
sure they knew that. She said the number 1 problem they hear about in Apex is traffic related. She 20 
said they cannot solve it alone. She said the big problem is with the General Assembly, because they 21 
have created the constraints that have handcuffed the town to have the problem they do with this 22 
now. She said the town has to pay for transportation improvements to schools, including private 23 
schools. Any requirement for those improvements has to be town funded. She said the town is not 24 
allowed to fully address transportation impact, because the state does not allow them to charge 25 
impact fees. She said that is not a town issue, but they have to be the ones to solve. She said they 26 
have solved it within the development that come in, and that’s all they can do. She said state laws are 27 
why the town is behind. She said not doing the stubs will kick them later on. She said creating as 28 
much connectivity as possible is the way to fix the issues. She said this is not a perfect project, but it 29 
solves a lot of issues. She said she would like to see bigger buffer, but she would like to have seen 30 
Salem Village dedicate those buffers in the first place, and then there would not be an issue. She 31 
said the affordable housing is not perfect, but this is getting some built affordable housing. She said 32 
she is in support of this, and feels like it solves their biggest issues in the area. 33 
 Councilmember Gantt said they connect stub streets in Apex, and he hates the request not 34 
to. He said he wishes it would never be asked again. He said he heard that Salem Village folks 35 
wished they would extend that development to Tingen. He said that bugs him because the average 36 
home price in Salem Village recently has been $775,000. He said he thinks that puts everybody who 37 
works for the town, and almost all public employees, out of reach to afford those houses. He said 38 
Depot 499 will be around $450,000. He said apartments are also going to be more attainable for 39 
housing, and none of that would happen if they extended Salem Village further. He said this area will 40 
be much more walkable, and the developer has added more things to further that. 41 
 42 
 A motion was made by Councilmember Gantt, seconded by Mayor Pro Tempore Gray, to 43 
approve the Apex Transportation Plan for Rezoning 23CZ13 Seymour PUD. 44 

- Page 204 -



Page 83 of 84 
 

 1 
 VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0) 2 
 3 
 A motion was made by Councilmember Gantt, seconded by Councilmember 4 
Killingsworth, to approve Rezoning No. 23CZ13 – Seymour Mixed Use PUD.  5 
 6 
 VOTE: 3-2, with Councilmember Mahaffey and Councilmember Zegerman dissenting. 7 
 8 
 9 
[CLOSED SESSION] 10 
 11 
 A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tempore Gray, seconded by Councilmember 12 
Mahaffey, to enter into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS § 143-318.11(a)(5) and NCGS §143-13 
318.11(a)(3) 14 
 15 
 VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0) 16 
 17 
 18 
Council entered into closed session at 11:09 p.m.  19 
 20 
CS1 Steve Adams, Real Estate/Utilities Acquisition Specialist 21 
 22 

NCGS § 143-318.11(a)(5): 23 
” To establish, or to instruct the public body’s staff or negotiating agents concerning the position to 24 
be taken by or on behalf of the public body in negotiating (i) the price and other material terms of a 25 
contract or proposed contract for the acquisition of real property by purchase, option, exchange, or 26 

lease; or (ii) the amount of compensation and other material terms of an employment contract or 27 
proposed employment contract.” 28 

 29 
 30 

CS2 Councilmember Terry Mahaffey   31 
 32 

NCGS §143-318.11(a)(3): 33 
“To consult with an attorney employed or retained by the public body in order 34 

to preserve the attorney-client privilege between the attorney and the public body.” 35 
 36 
 37 

Council returned to open session at 11:38 p.m.  38 
 39 

 40 
[ADJOURNEMENT] 41 
 42 
 Mayor Gilbert adjourned the meeting at 11:39 p.m.  43 

 44 
Jacques K. Gilbert  45 

Apex, Mayor  46 
 47 

- Page 205 -



Page 84 of 84 
 

Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC  1 
 2 
Town Clerk to the Apex Town Council  3 

Submitted for approval by Apex Town Clerk Allen Coleman. 4 

- Page 206 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 1 of 2 
 

TOWN OF APEX 1 

SPECIAL TOWN COUNCIL MEETING   2 

SATURDAY, FEBRUARY 3, 2024 3 

8:30 A.M.  4 

The Apex Town Council met for a Special Meeting on Saturday, February 3, 2024 at 8:30 a.m. 5 

at the Apex Town Hall located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex, North Carolina. 6 

The purpose of the Special Town Council meeting was to enter into closed session pursuant 7 

to North Carolina General Statutes NCGS § 143-318.11(a)(6) – quoted below:  8 

NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6): 9 

 “To consider the qualifications, competence, performance, character, fitness, conditions of 10 

appointment, or conditions of initial employment of an individual public officer or employee 11 

or prospective public officer or employee; or to hear or investigate a complaint, charge, or 12 

grievance by or against an individual public officer or employee.” 13 

 14 

This meeting was open to the public.  15 

 16 

[ATTENDANCE] 17 

 18 

Elected Body  19 

Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert (presiding)  20 

Mayor Pro-Tempore Ed Gray 21 

Councilmember Brett Gantt  22 

Councilmember Audra Killingsworth 23 

Councilmember Terry Mahaffey 24 

Councilmember Arno Zegerman (participated remotely)  25 

Absent: None 26 

 27 

Town Staff  28 

Town Clerk Allen Coleman  29 

All other staff members will be identified appropriately below. 30 

 31 

 Mayor Gilbert called the meeting to order at 8:37 a.m.  32 

 33 

[CLOSED SESSION] 34 

 35 

A motion was made by Mayor Pro-Tempore Gray, seconded by Councilmember 36 

Killingsworth, to enter into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS § 143-318.11(a)(6). 37 

  38 

- Page 207 -



DRAFT MINUTES | SATURDAY, FEBRUARY 3, 2024 
APEX TOWN COUNCIL  

Page 2 of 2 
 

 VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0), with Councilmember Zegerman participating 1 

remotely. 2 

 3 

Council entered into Closed Session at 8:37 a.m.  4 

 5 

Council returned to Open Session at 12:27 p.m.  6 

 7 

Mayor Gilbert announced a recess until 1:00 p.m.   8 

 9 

Mayor Gilbert reconvened the meeting at 1:03 p.m.  10 

 11 

 A motion was made by Mayor Pro-Tempore Gray, seconded by Councilmember 12 

Killingsworth, to enter in to Closed Session pursuant to NCGS § 143-318.11(a)(6). 13 

  14 

 VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0), with Councilmember Zegerman participating 15 

remotely.  16 

 17 

Council entered into Closed Session at 1:03 p.m.  18 

 19 

Council returned to Open Session at 2:26 p.m.  20 

 21 

Mayor Gilbert adjourned the meeting at 2:26 p.m.  22 

 23 

Jacques K. Gilbert 24 

Mayor 25 

 26 

Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 27 

Town Clerk to the Apex Town Council  28 

 29 

Submitted for approval by Town Clerk Allen Coleman and approved on __________________.  30 

 31 

- Page 208 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 1 of 2 
 

TOWN OF APEX 1 

SPECIAL TOWN COUNCIL MEETING   2 

SUNDAY, FEBRUARY 4, 2024 3 

3:00 P.M.  4 

The Apex Town Council met for a Special Meeting on Sunday, February 4, 2024 at 3:00 p.m. 5 

at the Apex Town Hall located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex, North Carolina. 6 

The purpose of the Special Town Council meeting was to enter into closed session pursuant 7 

to North Carolina General Statutes NCGS § 143-318.11(a)(6) – quoted below:  8 

NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6): 9 

 “To consider the qualifications, competence, performance, character, fitness, conditions of 10 

appointment, or conditions of initial employment of an individual public officer or employee 11 

or prospective public officer or employee; or to hear or investigate a complaint, charge, or 12 

grievance by or against an individual public officer or employee.” 13 

 14 

This meeting was open to the public.  15 

 16 

[ATTENDANCE] 17 

 18 

Elected Body  19 

Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert (presiding)  20 

Mayor Pro-Tempore Ed Gray 21 

Councilmember Brett Gantt  22 

Councilmember Audra Killingsworth 23 

Councilmember Terry Mahaffey 24 

Councilmember Arno Zegerman (participated remotely)  25 

Absent: None 26 

 27 

Town Staff  28 

Town Clerk Allen Coleman  29 

All other staff members will be identified appropriately below. 30 

 31 

 Mayor Gilbert called the meeting to order at 3:01 p.m.  32 

 33 

[CLOSED SESSION] 34 

 35 

A motion was made by Mayor Pro-Tempore Gray, seconded by Councilmember 36 

Killingsworth, to enter into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS § 143-318.11(a)(6). 37 

  38 

- Page 209 -



DRAFT MINUTES | SUNDAY, FEBRUARY 4, 2024 
APEX TOWN COUNCIL  
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0), with Councilmember Zegerman participating 1 

remotely. 2 

 3 

Council entered into Closed Session at 3:01 p.m.  4 

 5 

Council returned to Open Session at 6:03 p.m.  6 

 7 

Mayor Gilbert adjourned the meeting at 6:03 p.m.  8 

 9 

Jacques K. Gilbert 10 

Mayor 11 

 12 

Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 13 

Town Clerk to the Apex Town Council  14 

 15 

Submitted for approval by Town Clerk Allen Coleman and approved on __________________.  16 

 17 

- Page 210 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: February 13, 2024 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Jonathan K. Jacobs, P.E., CFM, Assistant Director 

Department(s): Water Resources 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve a Fee-in-Lieu (FIL) in the amount of $10,870.95 for an 8-inch DIP Sewer Main located in 

the Friendship Village Subdivision. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

Staff is recommending collection of a FIL of construction for a segment of 8-inch sewer main as part of the 

Friendship Village Subdivision development project. As required by Section 701.A.1.p of the Town’s 

Engineering Specifications, all development projects shall provide sewer main extensions along any and 

all-natural drainage courses located within the property line boundaries to account for future upstream 

development. Approximately 71 feet of proposed sewer main would impact an existing wetland, which 

cannot be permitted until a future extension is proposed. If upstream development occurs in this location, 

these FIL funds can be utilized to assist in the construction of the sewer main. 

 

 

Attachments 

 CN10-A1: Sealed FIL Estimate - Friendship Village Subdivision - Fee-in-Lieu (FIL) 
 CN10-A2: Utility Plan Excerpt - Friendship Village Subdivision - Fee-in-Lieu (FIL) 

 

 

- Page 211 -



 

 919.439.0100 p 
 jroach@peakengineering.com 
 1125 Apex Peakway ‖ Apex, NC 27502 
Friendship Village – Apex, NC www.PeakEngineering.com 

January 10, 2024 
 
Town of Apex 
Engineering Department 
P.O. Box 250 
Apex, NC 27502 
 
Re: Friendship Village – Engineers Estimate for Fee-in-Lieu 
 Apex, NC  
 
The noted project is located at the intersection of Evans Road and Humie Olive Road.  Per Town 
requirements, a sewer line is required to be installed to “upstream” properties.  Due to existing 
wetlands, extension to one of the project’s boundaries is not possible.  Specifically, a sewer stub 
at Vetrina Way, near proposed lot #59.  Therefore, this project requests a fee-in-lieu payment in 
place of the full sewer extension.  Below is an estimate of the cost to install an 8” DIP sewer line 
where the existing wetland prevents installation.  Unit Prices taken from contractor’s proposal.          

 
Item Unit Cost Quantity Total
8" DIP Sewer 6' Deep $68/LF 71 LF 4,828.00$          
Sewer Manhole 6' Deep $3,625/EA 1 EA 3,625.00$          
Clearing $500/LS 1 LS 500.00$             
Erosion Control $500/LS 1 LS 500.00$             

Total 9,453.00$          

Mobilization - 15% of Estimate = 1,417.95$          

Final Estimate 10,870.95$       

 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Daniel H. Woods, P.E. 
Peak Engineering & Design, PLLC Daniel H. 

Woods

Digitally signed 
by Daniel H. 
Woods 
Date: 2024.01.10 
14:24:29 -05'00'

- Page 212 -

mailto:jroach@peakengineering.com


R
O

W
R

O
W

R
O

W

R
O

W

R
O

W

R
O

W

R

O

W

X

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U
U

U

U

R

O

W

R

O

W

R

O

W

R

O

W

R

O

W

R
O

W

R
O

W

R
O

W

R
O

W

R
O

W

R
O

W

R
O

W

R
O

W

R

O

W

R

O

W

R

O

W

R

O

W

R

O

W

R

O

W

R

O

W

R

O

W

R
O

W

R

O

W

R

O

W

EV
AN

S 
R

O
AD

R

O

W

R

O

W

R

O

W

R

O

W

R

O

W

R

O

W

R
O

W

R
O

W

R
O

W

R
O

W

R
O

W

R
O

W

R
O

W

R
O

W

R
O

W

R
O

W

R
O

W

R
O

W

R
O

W

R
O

W

R
O

W

R

O

W

R

O

W

R
O

W

R

O

W

R

O

W

ROW

ROW

ROW

ROW

W
L

W

L

S

S

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W

L

W

L

W

L

W

L

W

L

W

L

W

L

W

L

W

L

W

L

W

L

W

L

W

L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W

L

W

L

W

L

W

L

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C
R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C
R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C
R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C
R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C
R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C
R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C
R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C
R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C
R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C
R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C
R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C
R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C
R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C
R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C
R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C
R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C
R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C
R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

CRZ

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

CRZ

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

CRZ

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C
R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

CRZ

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

CRZ

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C
R

Z

C

R

Z

C
R

Z

C

R

Z

CRZ

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

C
R

Z

C

R

Z

C

R

Z

W

L

VETRINA WAY
(50' PUBLIC R/W)

VETRINA WAY(50' PUBLIC R/W)

VETRINA WAY
(50' PUBLIC R/W)

5

22

W
A

LD
EN

 R
O

A
D

(5
0'

 P
UB

LI
C

 R
/W

)

MASON JAR LANE
(50' PUBLIC R/W)

SCM #1

SCM #2

W
ALD

EN
 R

OAD

(5
0' 

PU
BL

IC
 R

/W
)

SU
N LE

AF C
OURT

(50' PUBLIC
 R/W

)

M
A

SO
N

 JA
R LA

N
E

(50' PUBLIC
 R/W

)

M

A

I
L

B

O

X

U

S

E

O

N

L

Y

H

C

V

A

N

M

A

I
L

B

O

X

U

S

E

O

N

L

Y

M

A

I
L

B

O

X

U

S

E

O

N

L

Y

20' TYPE B BUFFER

20
' T

YP
E 

B 
BU

FF
ER

20' TYPE B BUFFER

30
' T

YP
E 

B 
BU

FF
ER

30
' T

YP
E 

B 
BU

FF
ER

30
' T

YP
E 

B 
BU

FF
ER

20' TYPE B BUFFER

20
' T

YP
E 

B 
BU

FF
ER

20
' T

YP
E 

B 
BU

FF
ER

20' TYPE B BUFFER

20' TYPE B BUFFER

20
' T

YP
E 

B 
BU

FF
ER

20' TYPE B BUFFER

20
' T

YP
E 

B 
BU

FF
ER

20
' T

YP
E 

B 
BU

FF
ER

30' TOA PUBLIC

SANITARY SEWER

EASEMENT

20' TOA PUBLIC

SANITARY SEWER

EASEMENT

30' TOA PUBLIC

SANITARY SEWER

EASEMENT

58

57

52

53

54

55

47

46

3

2

4

6

1

33

44

45

43

42

40

41

39

38

37

34

36

35

10

12

9

11

7

8

56

51

21

30' TOA PUBLIC

DRAINAGE EASEMENT

30' TOA PUBLIC

DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

30' TOA PUBLIC

DRAINAGE EASEMENT

30' TOA PUBLIC

DRAINAGE EASEMENT

20' TOA PUBLIC

DRAINAGE EASEMENT

SCM MAINTENANCE ACCESS

EASEMENT

SCM MAINTENANCE

ACCESS EASEMENT

30' PRIVATE DRIVEAY

EASEMENT

PUBLIC

SIDEWALK

EASEMENT

PUBLIC SIDEWALK

EASEMENT

 PUBLIC SIDEWALK

EASEMENT

5' TOA PUBLIC

UTILITY EASEMENT

(TYP.)

5' TOA PUBLIC

UTILITY EASEMENT

(TYP.)

5' TOA PUBLIC

UTILITY EASEMENT

(TYP.)

5' TOA PUBLIC

UTILITY EASEMENT

(TYP.)

5' TOA PUBLIC

UTILITY EASEMENT

(TYP.)

5' TOA PUBLIC

UTILITY EASEMENT

(TYP.)

5' TOA PUBLIC

UTILITY EASEMENT

(TYP.)

5' TOA PUBLIC

UTILITY EASEMENT

(TYP.)

5' TOA PUBLIC

UTILITY EASEMENT

(TYP.)

5' TOA PUBLIC UTILITY

EASEMENT (TYP.)

5' TOA PUBLIC

UTILITY EASEMENT

(TYP.)

5' TOA PUBLIC

UTILITY EASEMENT

(TYP.)

10' X 20' SIGN
EASEMENT

VARIABLE WIDTH TOA

PUBLIC DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

20' TOA PUBLIC

DRAINAGE EASEMENT

20' TYPE B BUFFER

60

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

+

+

++

+

+

+

+

+

+

+

+

+

+

+

+

+

+

+

+

+

+

+

+

+

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

VARIABLE WIDTH TOA

PUBLIC SIDEWALK

EASEMENT

AREA RESERVED FOR FUTURE

DEVELOPMENT

48

49

50

X

X

10' TYPE B BUFFER

10' TYPE B BUFFER

10
' T

YP
E 

B 
BU

FF
ER

10
' T

YP
E 

B 
BU

FF
ER

102

104

103

63

64

65

99

101

100

61

66

62

20' TOA PUBLIC

DRAINAGE EASEMENT

20' GREENWAY

EASEMENT

20

19

32

31

30

23

24

29

27

26

25

28

PUBLIC

SIDEWALK

EASEMENT

20' TOA PUBLIC

DRAINAGE EASEMENT

20' TOA PUBLIC

DRAINAGE EASEMENT

20' PRIVATE

DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

10' HOA ACCESS AND

MAINTENANCE

EASEMENT

10' HOA ACCESS

AND MAINTENANCE

EASEMENT

10' HOA ACCESS AND

MAINTENANCE

EASEMENT

10' HOA ACCESS AND

MAINTENANCE

EASEMENT

16

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

RW #2 WITH

FENCE

RW #3 WITH

FENCE

RW #3 WITH

FENCE

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

69

67

68

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

20' GREENWAY

EASEMENT

20' TOA PUBLIC

DRAINAGE EASEMENT

10' PRIVATE

DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

20' TOA PUBLIC

DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

10' PRIVATE

DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

SCM MAINTENANCE

ACCESS EASEMENT

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

10' TOA PUBLIC DRY

UTILITY EASEMENT

10' TOA PUBLIC DRY

UTILITY EASEMENT

VARIABLE WIDTH TOA

PUBLIC DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

20' TEMPORARY

CONSTRUCTION

EASEMENT

17

7' PUBLIC ACCESS PRIVATE

MAINTENANCE EASEMENT

RW #4 WITH

FENCE

10' HOA ACCESS AND

MAINTENANCE

EASEMENT

10' HOA ACCESS AND

MAINTENANCE

EASEMENT

105

10' HOA ACCESS AND

MAINTENANCE

EASEMENT

10' PRIVATE

DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

HW #1 WITH

FENCE

HW #2 WITH

FENCE

HW #3 WITH

FENCE

HW #4 WITH

FENCE

20' TOA PUBLIC

DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

RED WINE STREET

(50' PUBLIC R/W)

14

13

15

18

59

30' TOA PUBLIC

SANITARY

SEWER

EASEMENT

5' PRIVATE

DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

5' PRIVATE

DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

FUTURE PUBLIC GREENWAY

EASEMENT LOCATION TO BE

DEFINED IN A 20FT CORRIDOR

AT THE TIME OF

CONSTRUCTION OF THE TRAIL

FUTURE PUBLIC GREENWAY

EASEMENT LOCATION TO BE

DEFINED IN A 20FT

CORRIDOR AT THE TIME OF

CONSTRUCTION OF THE

TRAIL

FUTURE PUBLIC GREENWAY

EASEMENT LOCATION TO BE

DEFINED IN A 20FT

CORRIDOR AT THE TIME OF

CONSTRUCTION OF THE

TRAIL

PUBLIC

SIDEWALK

EASEMENT

PUBLIC

SIDEWALK

EASEMENT

5' PRIVATE

DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

5' PRIVATE

DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

VARIABLE WIDTH

TOA PUBLIC UTILITY

EASEMENT

VARIABLE WIDTH

TOA PUBLIC UTILITY

EASEMENT

MH #21 - 4' DIA.

MH #19 - 5' DIA.

MH #3 - 5' DIA.

MH #22 - 5' DIA.

MH #23 - 5' DIA.

MH #24 - 4' DIA.

MH #1 - 4' DIA.

MH #2 - 4' DIA.

MH #5 - 5' DIA.
MH #6 - 6' DIA.

 DROP MH MH #10 - 4' DIA.

MH #9 - 5' DIA. DROP MH

MH #16 - 5' DIA.

MH #13 - 4' DIA.

MH #20 - 5' DIA.

MH #11 - 4' DIA. FLAT-TOP

MH #12 - 4' DIA. FLAT-TOP

MH #32 - 5' DIA. FLAT-TOP

MH #33 - 4' DIA. FLAT-TOP

MH #34 - 5' DIA. FLAT-TOP

MH #14 - 4' DIA.

8" DIP WL
8" DIP WL

8"
 D

IP
 W

L

CONNECTING EXISTING
WATERLINE

MH #17 - 4' DIA.

EX
. M

H 
#2

MH #8 - 5' DIA.

MH #4 - 5' DIA.

8" PVC C900 DR18 S/S

8" GV 8" GV

8" TEE

8" TEE

FH ASSEMBLY

FH ASSEMBLY

FH ASSEMBLY

FH ASSEMBLY

FH ASSEMBLY

FH ASSEMBLY

FH ASSEMBLY

8" X 6" TEE

8" GV

8" GV

8" GV

8" GV

6" GV

6" GV

8" GV8" GV

8" GV8" GV6" GV

6" GV

8" GV

8" GV

8" GV

8" GV

8" GV

8" GV
8" TEE

6" GV

8"  TEE

8" GV

8" GV

8" GV

6" GV

8" X 6" TEE

8" X 6" TEE

8" X 6" TEE

8" X 6" TEE

8" GV

BLIND FLANGE W/2"
THREADED PLUG

BLOW-OFF VALVE

8" CROSS

6" GV

8" RESTRAINED JOINT
DUCTILE IRON PIPE WITH,
24" BORE STEEL CARRIER

PIPE SEE SHEET C703

8" CROSS

6" GV
8" X 6" TEE

CONNECT TO EXISTING
8" WL

FH ASSEMBLY

8" DIP WL

8" DIP WL

RETAINING
WALL

MH #36 - 5' DIA. FLAT-TOP

MH #31 - 5' DIA. FLAT-TOP

170°

180°

10
2°

158°
172°

96°

15
5°

17
9°

16
5°

10
0°

16
1°

MH #18 - 4' DIA.

157°

108°

90°

180°

14
9°

45°

45° BEND

45° BEND

45° BEND

45°

45
°

8"
 P

V
C

 S
D

R 
35

 S
/S

8"
 D

IP
 S

/S

8"
 P

V
C

 C
90

0 
D

R1
8 

S/
S

8"
 P

VC C
90

0 D
R1

8 S
/S

8" 
PV

C C
90

0 D
R1

8 S
/S

8" PVC SDR 35 S/S

8" PVC C900 DR18 S/S

8" PVC SDR 35 S/S

8"DIP S/S

8" P
VC SD

R 35 S/
S

8" PVC
 SDR 35 S/S

8"
 P

V
C

 S
D

R 
35

 S
/S

8" PVC SDR 35 S/S

8"
 P

VC
 C

90
0 

D
R1

8 
S/

S

8"
 D

IP
 S

/S

8"
 P

VC
 C

90
0 

DR
18

 S
/S

8" PVC SDR 35 S/S

8"
 P

V
C

 S
D

R 
35

 S
/S

8"
 P

VC SD
R 

35
 S/

S

8"
 P

VC
 S

DR
 3

5 
S/

S

45°

45
°

45°

45
°

45° BEND

45° BEND

14
4°

10
+0

0

11
+0

0

12
+0

0

13+00

14+00

15+00

16
+0

0

17
+0

0

18
+0

0

19
+0

0

20
+0

0

MH #7 - 5' DIA.

8" DIP S/S

10
+0

0
11

+0
0

12
+0

0
12

+2
5

108°

91°

180°
177°

156°

13
1°

94
°

11
7°

CONNECTING EXISTING
WATERLINE

8" RESTRAINED JOINT
DUCTILE IRON PIPE WITH,
24" BORE STEEL CARRIER

PIPE SEE SHEET C703

CONNECT TO EXISTING
8" WL

45° BEND

45° BEND

45° BEND

45° BEND

45° BEND

124°

MH #35 - 5' DIA. FLAT-TOP

8"
 P

V
C

 C
90

0 
D

R1
8 

S/
S

15
4°

16
4°

45
°

45°

U

U

U

U

10+00

10+57

10
+0

0

11
+0

0

11
+9

3

10
+0

0

11
+0

0

11+46

10+00

11+00

11+44

8" PVC SDR 35 S/S

8" D
IP S/S

8" PVC SDR 35 S/S

As Noted

© 2022 Peak Engineering & Design. All Rights Reserved

1
1
2
5
 
A

p
e
x
 
P

e
a
k
w

a
y
 
|
 
A

p
e
x
,
 
N

C
 
2
7
5
0
2

p
h
:
 
9
1
9
.
4
3
9
.
0
1
0
0

w
w

w
.
P

e
a
k
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
.
c
o
m

CONSTRUCTION
DRAWINGS

NC License #P-0673

June 1, 2022

180903

F
R

IE
N

D
SH

IP
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
29

12
 W

A
L

D
E

N
 R

O
A

D
B

U
C

K
H

O
R

N
A

PE
X

, N
O

R
T

H
 C

A
R

O
L

IN
A

 2
75

02

SEAL

JEFFREY  A . ROA CH

24427

E NG I N E E R

N

O

R

T

H

 

C
AR

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

S
S

I

O

N

A

L

The signatures affixed below certify that this sheet has been reviewed and approved solely per the
certifications signed on the cover sheet of these construction plans.

PW-Transportation WR - Stormwater

Planning

Date

Building Inspections

Planning - TransportationWR - Utility Engineering

Fire

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Res.

Electric

WR - S & E

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

0

SCALE: 1" =

25 50 100

50'

SCALE:

UTILITY PLAN NORTH
1"=50'C201

1

N

3
4" TYPE K SOFT COPPER

PIPE WATER SERVICE
LATERALS

4" PVC SANITARY SEWER
SERVICE LATERALS

JE

UTILITY PLAN
NORTH

JR

C201

LEGEND (EXISTING CONDITIONS)

EXISTING TREE LINE

50' EXISTING STREAM BUFFER (ZONE 1 30')

50' EXISTING STREAM BUFFER (ZONE 2 20')

100' EXISTING STREAM BUFFER (ZONE 3 50')

WETLANDS

Jeffrey 
Roach

Digitally signed by 
Jeffrey Roach 
Date: 2023.11.06 
11:22:05 -05'00'

- Page 213 -

rsmith
Approved

lauren.staudenmaier@apexnc.org
Approved

khuegerich
Approved

tyler.gumpright@apexnc.org
Not Applicable

bolin
Not Applicable

bolin
Not Applicable

rhdalton
Not Applicable

junecowles
Not Applicable

stevemiller
Approved

sewens
Not Applicable

Highlight

jjacobs
Cloud+

jjacobs
Cloud+
Fee-in-Lieu Area



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: February 13,  2024 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Steve Adams, Utilities Acquisition / Real Estate  

Department(s): Transportation & Infrastructure Developoment 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve a resolution entitled Resolution to Abandon Portion of Existing Public Utility Easement at 

Primrose School Property, located at 614 Old Mill Village Drive.  

Approval Recommended? 

 

Yes 

 

Item Details 

The Town of Apex currently has a Public Waterline easement on the property at 614 Old Mill Village Drive 

on Book of Maps 2007 Page 907. 

As part of a new construction project the owner is requesting install a new waterline into a new easement 

and abandon the portion of existing easement no longer being utilized. 

Town staff has determined that the area being abandoned is  no longer required and a new easement is 

being dedicated to cover the new waterline. 

 

 

Staff recommends donation of the land and easements.  

Attachments 

 CN11-A1: Resolution - Abandon Existing Utility Easements - Primrose School Site 
 CN11-A2: Map showing original easement area - Resolution - Abandon Existing Utility Easements - 

Primrose School Site 
 CN11-A3: Exhibit A showing area to be abandoned and new dedication - Resolution - Abandon 

Existing Utility Easements - Primrose School Site 
 

 

- Page 214 -



RESOLUTION NO. 24-   

A Resolution to Abandon Existing Public Utility Easement 

 
WHEREAS, Andoria Enterprises, LLC (the “Owner”) is the owner of a certain tract of 

land in or near the Town of Apex which is described in the deed recorded in Deed Book 18897, 

Page 0978, Wake County Registry (the “Subject Property”);  

 

WHEREAS, public utility easement interests across the Subject Property were conveyed 

to the Town by an instrument recorded in Book of Maps 2007, Pages 0907-0908, Wake County 

Registry;   

 

WHEREAS, the Owner desires the Town to abandon any interest that the Town has in 

that public utility easement in that certain area designated as "VARIABLE TOA PUE B.M. 

2007, PG. 908 HEREBY ABANDONED (HATCHED) AS DESCRIBED USING L1 – L8" as 

shown on that certain survey plat entitled “EXHIBIT MAP FOR TOWN OF APEX” prepared by 

Smith & Smith Surveyors, P.A., dated January 19, 2024, said survey being attached hereto as 

Exhibit A; (the "Abandoned Easement"); 

 

WHEREAS, the Abandoned Easement is further labeled and identified on Exhibit A as 

follows: 

 

VARIABLE TOA PUE B.M. 2007, PG. 908 HEREBY ABANDONED (HATCHED) AS 

DESCRIBED USING L1 – L8 

 

WHEREAS, the Town has no need for the Abandoned Easement and it has no market 

value; and 

  

WHEREAS, the Town Council considers it advisable to abandon the Abandoned 

Easement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council as follows: 

1. The Town Council of the Town of Apex hereby abandons any and all 

interest it has in the Abandoned Easement as shown on Exhibit A attached hereto in 

accordance with Paragraph (2) below, provided however, the Town specifically retains 

any and all property interest it may have in the property not specifically identified as 

abandoned herein. 

2. The Abandoned Easement shall be abandoned effective upon, and only 

upon, the recording of instruments at the Wake County Register of Deeds that convey to 

the Town of Apex the area labeled “20’ TOA PUE (WATER) 0.0038 AC. ~ 167 SF. 

(SHADED) AS DESCRIBED USING L9 – L13” as shown on Exhibit A attached hereto. 

3. That the Town Manager or Deputy Town Manager is hereby authorized to 

make, execute, and deliver to the owners of the Subject Property an instrument, in a form 

- Page 215 -



 2 

suitable for recording, releasing whatever interest the Town might have in and to the 

Abandoned Easement. 

Upon motion duly made by Council Member__________________, and duly seconded 

by Council Member _______________________, the above Resolution was duly adopted by the 

Apex Town Council at the meeting held on the ___ day of ________ 2024, in the Town Hall.  

 

 Upon call for a vote the following Council Members voted in the affirmative:   

 _____________________________________________________________________ 

 _____________________________________________________________________ 

 

 and the following Council Members voted in the negative:  

 _____________________________________________________________________ 

 _____________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

  This the ____ day of _____________ 2024.  

 

        TOWN OF APEX 

              

        Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor 

 

 ATTEST:  

       

Allen L. Coleman, Town Clerk, CMC, NCCCC 

 
 

 
 

- Page 216 -



- Page 217 -



- Page 218 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: February 13, 2024 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): June Cowles, Senior Planner 

Department(s): Planning 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve Statement of the Town Council and Ordinance for Rezoning Case No. 23CZ13 Seymour 

Mixed Use PUD, Barnett Properties, LLC, petitioner, for the property located at 0, 0, and 0 Tingen Road (PINs 

0741142574; 0741152543; 0741155913). 

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning Department recommends approval. 

Item Details 

Rezoning Case No. 23CZ13 was approved at the January 23, 2024 Town Council meeting. 

 

Attachments 

 CN12-A1: Statement and Ordinance - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ13 Seymour Mixed Use PUD – 
Statement and Ordinance  

 CN12-A2: Legal Description - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ13 Seymour Mixed Use PUD – Statement and 
Ordinance  

 CN12-A3: Attachment B – Seymore Mixed-Use Planned Unit Development (PUD) - Rezoning Case 
No. 23CZ13 Seymour Mixed Use PUD – Statement and Ordinance  

 

- Page 219 -



STATEMENT OF TOWN COUNCIL AND ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE 
TOWN OF APEX TO CHANGE THE ZONING OF APPROXIMATELY 81.9 ACRES LOCATED AT 0, 0, and 0 TINGEN 
ROAD FROM RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURAL (RA) AND HIGH DENSITY SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (HDSF) TO 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT-CONDITIONAL ZONING (PUD-CZ) 

#23CZ13 

WHEREAS, Barnett Properties, LLC (the “Applicant”), submitted a completed application for a conditional zoning 
on the 3rd day of July 2023 (the “Application”). The proposed conditional zoning is designated #23CZ13; 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Director for the Town of Apex, Dianne Khin, caused proper notice to be given (by 
publication and posting) of a public hearing on #23CZ13 before the Planning Board on the 8th day of January 
2024; 
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Planning Board held a public hearing on the 8th day of January 2024, gathered facts, received 
public comments and formulated a recommendation regarding the application for conditional zoning #23CZ13.  
A motion was made by the Apex Planning Board to recommend approval; the motion passed by a vote of 5 to 4 
for the application for #23CZ13; 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C.G.S. §160D-601 and Sec. 2.2.11.E of the Unified Development Ordinance, the 
Planning Director caused proper notice to be given (by publication and posting), of a public hearing on #23CZ13 
before the Apex Town Council on the 23rd day of January 2024; 
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council held a public hearing on the 23rd day of January 2024.  June Cowles, Senior 
Planner, presented the Planning Board's recommendation at the public hearing; 
 
WHEREAS, all persons who desired to present information relevant to the application for #23CZ13 were allowed 
to present evidence at the public hearing before the Apex Town Council. No one who wanted to speak was 
turned away;  
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is not consistent with the 2045 Land 
Use Plan and other adopted plans in that: The 2045 Land Use Map designates this area as Medium Density 
Residential, Medium/High Density Residential, High Density Residential, and Office Employment and approval 
of this rezoning will automatically amend the 2045 Land Use Map to Medium Density Residential, Medium/High 
Density Residential, High Density Residential, Office Employment and Commercial Services. This designation on 
the 2045 Land Use Map includes the zoning district Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) with 
a maximum number of 800 residential units. The rezoning to Planned Unit Developmen-Conditional Zoning 
(PUD-CZ) will provide commercial services and flexibility to accommodate the growth in population and 
infrastructure consistent with that contemplated by the 2045 Land Use Map; 
 

WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is reasonable and in the public interest 
in that the rezoning includes widening of the Apex Peakway along the project frontage to the ultimate section 
width; widening of Tingen Road along the project frontage with a roundabout, bike lanes, a 10 foot wide side 
path on the western side and a 5 foot wide sidewalk on the eastern side; Greenway construction completed and 
accepted prior to 50% of the units west of Tingen Road being permitted; if warranted by NCDOT, traffic signal 
will be provided at Apex Peakway and TIngen Road; permitted commercial uses that are limited to those that 
are more compatible with surrounding proposed residential land use; and reduced building height and increased 
buffer opacity between apartments and existing adjacent residential land use; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council by a vote of 3 to 2 approved Application #23CZ13 rezoning the subject tract 
located at 0, 0, and 0 Tingen Road from Residential Agricultural (RA) and High Density Single-Family Residential 
(HDSF) to Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF APEX 

Section 1:  The lands that are the subject of the Ordinance are those certain lands described in 
Attachment “A” – Legal Description which is incorporated herein by reference, and said lands are hereafter 
referred to as the “Rezoned Lands.” 

- Page 220 -



Ordinance Amending the Offical Zoning District Map #23CZ13 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Section 2:  The Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance, including the Town of Apex North 
Carolina Official Zoning District Map which is a part of said Ordinance, is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
classification of the “Rezoned Lands” from Residential Agricultural (RA) and High Density Single-Family 
Residential (HDSF) to Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ), subject to the conditions stated 
herein. 

Section 3:  The Planning Director is hereby authorized and directed to cause the said Official Zoning 
District Map for the Town of Apex, North Carolina, to be physically revised and amended to reflect the zoning 
changes ordained by this Ordinance. 

Section 4:  The “Rezoned Lands” are subject to all of the following conditions in Attachment “B” Seymour 
Mixed Use PUD which are imposed as part of this rezoning: 

Section 5:  The “Rezoned Lands” shall be perpetually bound to the conditions imposed including the 
uses authorized, unless subsequently changed or amended as provided for in the Unified Development 
Ordinance. Site plans for any development to be made pursuant to this amendment to the Official Zoning District 
Map shall be submitted for site plan approval as provided for in the Unified Development Ordinance. 

Section 6:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 Motion by Council Member___________________________________ 

 Seconded by Council Member__________________________________ 

 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "aye." 

 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "no." 

 This the _____ day of _________________ 2024. 

  TOWN OF APEX 

  
Jacques K. Gilbert 
Mayor 

ATTEST:   

Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 
Town Clerk 

  

APPROVED AS TO FORM:   
   

Town Attorney   
 

- Page 221 -



EXHIBIT A 
Legal Description 

The Property 

PIN 0741142574; 57.878 acres 

Attachment A

- Page 222 -



2 

Attachment A

- Page 223 -



3 

Attachment A

- Page 224 -



4 

Attachment A

- Page 225 -



5 

PIN 0741155913; 2.426 
Beginning at an existing rebar, said rebar having NC grid coordinates (NAD 83  2011) of 
N=715,860.13, E=2,041,971.52, thence from said beginning point North 88°24'37" West 847.05 
feet to a point, thence North 02°57'16" East 102.53 feet to an existing iron pipe, thence North 
88°35'52" East 850.23 feet to an existing iron pipe, thence South 03°19'54" West 146.95 feet to 
the point and place of beginning, containing an area of 2.426 acres (105,669 Sq Ft) more or less. 

PIN 0741152543; 21.597 
Beginning at an existing rebar, said rebar having NC grid coordinates (NAD 83  2011) of 
N=715,860.13, E=2,041,971.52, thence from said beginning point South 06°39'18" West 348.46 
feet to a new iron pipe on the western right of way of Tingen Road (SR 1153) (Variable Width 
Public R/W), thence with said right of way South 35°13'07" West 9.66 feet to a new iron pipe, 
thence South 30°40'58" West 57.42 feet to a new iron pipe, thence South 25°24'31" West 15.82 
feet to a new iron pipe, thence South 23°19'17" West 26.54 feet to a new iron pipe, thence 
South 23°01'21" West 54.24 feet to a new iron pipe, thence South 23°02'29" West 103.42 feet 
to a new iron pipe, thence South 23°14'49" West 8.44 feet to a new iron pipe, thence North 
66°11'00" West 10.66 feet to a new iron pipe, thence South 23°49'00" West 125.59 feet to a 
new iron pipe, thence leaving said right of way along a curve to the right having a radius of 
50.00 feet, an arc length of 67.55 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of South 62°31'20" 

Attachment A

- Page 226 -



6 

West 62.53 feet to an existing iron pipe on the northern right of way of Apex Peakway (Variable 
Width Public R/W), thence with said right of way along a curve to the left having a radius of 
450.00 feet, an arc length of 69.82 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of North 83°13'01" 
West 69.75 feet to an existing iron pipe, thence North 87°39'41" West 584.19 feet to an existing 
iron pipe, thence along a curve to the right having a radius of 876.00 feet, an arc length of 
522.41 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of North 70°34'37" West 514.71 feet to a new 
iron pipe, thence leaving said right of way North 02°33'05" East 570.82 feet to an existing iron 
pipe, thence South 88°20'16" East 539.99 feet to a point, thence South 88°24'37" East 847.05 
feet to the point and place of beginning, containing an area of 21.597 acres (940,753 Sq Ft) 
more or less. 

Attachment A

- Page 227 -



1 
 

SEYMOUR MIXED-USE 

Planned Unit Development 

Apex, North Carolina 

Submittal Dates 
First Submittal: July 3, 2023 
Second Submittal: September 8, 2023 
Third Submittal:  October 6, 2023 
Fourth Submittal:  November 3, 2023 
Fifth Submittal:  December 1, 2023 
Sixth Submittal:  December 20, 2023 
Seventh Submittal: January 3, 2024 
Eighth Submittal:  January 11, 2024 
Ninth Submittal:  January 22, 2024 
Approved January 23, 2024 
 
Developer 
Barnett Properties, LLC 
7610 Falls of Neuse Road 
Suite 150 
Raleigh, NC 27615 
 
Civil Engineer 
Jeff Roach 
Peak Engineering & Design 
1125 Apex Peakway 
Apex, NC 27502 
 
Land Use Attorney 
Matthew J. Carpenter 
Parker Poe Adams & Bernstein LLP 
301 Fayetteville Street, Suite 1400 
Raleigh, NC 27601 
   

Attachment B

- Page 228 -



2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

VICINITY MAP ............................................................................................................. 3 

PROJECT DATA ........................................................................................................... 4 

PURPOSE STATEMENT  ............................................................................................... 6 

PERMITTED USES ....................................................................................................... 9 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING ............................................................................................ 11 

DESIGN CONTROLS ................................................................................................... 12 

ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS .................................................................................. 16 

PARKING AND LOADING........................................................................................... 19 

SIGNAGE ................................................................................................................... 19 

CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC ......................................................................................... 20 

NATURAL RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENTAL DATA  ............................................. 20 

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT ................................................................................ 22 

PARKS AND RECREATION ......................................................................................... 22 

PUBLIC FACILITIES .................................................................................................... 23 

PHASING ................................................................................................................... 28 

CONSISTENCY WITH LAND USE PLAN ....................................................................... 28 

COMPLIANCE WITH UDO ......................................................................................... 31  

Attachment B

- Page 229 -



3 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

  

Attachment B

- Page 230 -



4 
 

PROJECT DATA 
 
Name of Project:  Seymour Mixed-Use PUD 
 
Property Owner:  See attached Exhibit B 
 
Developer:     Barnett Properties, LLC 

7610 Falls of Neuse Road 
Suite 150 
Raleigh, NC 27615 

 
Prepared by:  Parker Poe Adams & Bernstein LLP 
  301 Fayetteville Street, Suite 1400 
  Raleigh, NC 27601 
 
  Peak Engineering & Design 
  1125 Apex Peakway 
  Apex, NC 27502 

Current Zoning:  Residential Agricultural (PINs 0741142574 & 
0741152543); High Density Single Family (PIN 
0741155913) 

 
Proposed Zoning:  Planned Unit Development Conditional Zoning (PUD-

CZ) 
 
Current 2045 LUM Designations:  PIN 0741155913:  Medium Density Residential 

PIN 0741152543:  Medium Density Residential & 
Medium-High Density Residential/High Density 
Residential 
PIN 0741142574 (west of Tingen Road):  Medium-High 
Density Residential 
PIN 0741142574 (east of Tingen Road):  Medium-High 
Density Residential & Office Employment 

 
Proposed 2045 LUM Designations:  PIN 0741155913:  Medium Density Residential 

PIN 0741152543:  Medium Density Residential & 
Medium-High Density Residential 
PIN 0741142574 (west of Tingen Road):  Medium-High 
Density Residential 
PIN 0741142574 (east of Tingen Road):  Medium-High 
Density Residential, High Density Residential, and 
Office Employment/Commercial Services 
 

Attachment B

- Page 231 -



5 
 

For more information regarding LUM designations, see 
Table on pg. 26. 

  
Site Address:  0 Tingen Road 
 
Property Identification Number:  0741142574; 0741152543; 0741155913 (the 

“Property”) 
 
Total Acreage:  81.9 acres  
 
Area Designated as Mixed Use on LUM:  None 
 
Area Proposed as Non-Residential:  Approximately 3.37 acres 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment B

- Page 232 -



6 
 

PURPOSE STATEMENT 
 
This document and the accompanying exhibits submitted herewith (collectively, the “PUD”) are 
provided pursuant to the Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance (“UDO”) Planned Unit 
Development provisions.  This PUD addresses the development of an approximately 81.9-acre infill 
site along Tingen Road and Apex Peakway.  The Property is undeveloped and within the Town’s 
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction.  Seymour Mixed-Use PUD will be a mixed-use community with four 
districts - the Single-Family District, the Mixed Residential District, the Multi-Family District, and 
the Non-Residential District as shown on the attached Concept Plan (the “Concept Plan”).   
 
Seymour Mixed-Use PUD will feature a mix of single-family homes, rear loaded townhouses, front 
loaded townhouses, multi-family, and neighborhood office and commercial uses with walking 
paths and open space.  The mix of housing types will serve residents with varying budgets, 
backgrounds, and family needs.  The community will be conveniently located to existing goods and 
services and have access to highways and existing infrastructure.  The PUD is intended to create 
flexibility in design and land uses to deliver a high-quality mixed-use development that fits the 
context of existing development in the area.   
 
As discussed in greater detail on pg. 25 of this PUD, The Town of Apex 2045 Land Use Map (the 
“LUM”) provides a variety of LUM designations which generally recommend medium to high 
density residential uses (including single-family, townhouses, and apartments) across the 
property, and office/non-residential uses on a portion of the property.  The four districts set forth 
in this PUD - and the related development standards, housing types, and densities applicable to 
each district - are designed to achieve the mix of uses and housing types envisioned by the LUM.  
 
CONSISTENCY WITH PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS  

(i) The uses proposed to be developed in the PD plan for PUD-CZ are those uses permitted in 
Sec. 4.2.2 Use Table 

 
RESPONSE:  The uses permitted within this PUD are permitted within this designation in the UDO 
Section 4.2.2 Use Table.  
 
(ii) The uses proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ can be entirely residential, entirely non-

residential, or a mix of residential and non-residential uses, provided a minimum 
percentage of non-residential land area is included in certain mixed-use areas as specified 
on the 2045 Land Use Map.  The location of the uses proposed by the PUD-CZ must be 
shown in the PD Plan with a maximum density for each type of residential use and a 
maximum square footage for each type of non-residential use.  

 
RESPONSE:  The Seymour Mixed-Use PUD is a mixed-use community with a mix of housing types 
and non-residential uses outlined in this PUD.  None of the parcels in the PUD have three stripes 
on the LUM.  Accordingly, this PUD is not required to designate 30% of the property as non-
residential. 
 

Attachment B

- Page 233 -



7 
 

(iii) The dimensional standards in Sec. 5.1.3 Table of Intensity and Dimensional Standards, 
Planned Development Districts may be varied in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ.  The PUD-CZ 
shall demonstrate compliance with all other dimensional standards of the UDO, North 
Carolina Building Code, and North Carolina Fire Code.  

 
RESPONSE:  This PUD specifies intensity and dimensional standards for the project.  The proposed 
PUD is consistent with the UDO Planned Unit Development standards – to provide site specific, 
high-quality neighborhoods that preserve natural features and exhibit compatibility with, and 
connectivity to, surrounding land uses.  Except as specifically stated in this PUD, the development 
will comply with all requirements of the UDO and will comply with all applicable requirements of 
the North Carolina Building Code and the North Carolina Fire Code.  
 
(iv) The development proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ encourages cluster and compact 

development to the greatest extent possible that is interrelated and linked by pedestrian 
ways, bikeways and other transportation systems.  At a minimum, the PD Plan must show 
sidewalk improvements as required by the Advance Apex: The 2045 Transportation Plan 
and the Town of Apex Standard Specifications and Standard Details, and greenway 
improvements as required by the Town of Apex Parks, Recreation, Greenways, and Open 
Space Plan and the Advance Apex: The 2045 Transportation Plan.  In addition, sidewalks 
shall be provided on both sides of all streets for single-family detached homes.  

 
RESPONSE:  The development has been designed to prioritize pedestrians and will include the 
construction of over 2,000 feet of new sidewalk on the east side Tingen Road and a 10-foot side 
path on the west side of Tingen Road.  As discussed on pg. 24, the project proposes an amendment 
to the 2045 Transportation Plan to construct Tingen Road as a median divided road with a 10-foot 
side path and roundabout; a reduced street section that prioritizes pedestrian safety and helps 
reduce vehicle speeds in residential areas.  
 
(v) The design of development in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ results in land use patterns that 

promote and expand opportunities for walkability, connectivity, public transportation, 
and an efficient compact network of streets.  Cul-de-sacs shall be avoided unless the 
design of the subdivision and the existing or proposed street system in the surrounding 
area indicate that a through street is not essential in the location of the proposed cul-de-
sac, or where sensitive environmental areas such as streams, floodplains, and wetlands 
would be substantially disturbed by making road connections.  

 
RESPONSE:  The proposed street layout has been designed to enhance pedestrian and vehicular 
connectivity while protecting sensitive environmental features and being mindful of existing 
residential development.  The development will facilitate the vision of the Transportation Plan by 
improving Tingen Road into a multi-modal street.  The development will also complete several 
cross-access connections by connecting to existing stub streets within adjacent subdivisions.  
 
(vi) The development proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ is compatible with the character of 

surrounding land uses and maintains and enhances the value of surrounding properties.  
 

Attachment B

- Page 234 -



8 
 

RESPONSE:  The proposed development is compatible with the character of the existing and 
planned uses in the surrounding area.  This area of the Town is at the intersection between growing 
sections of downtown Apex and increasing development activity in southern Wake County.   
 
Adjacent properties are largely residential subdivisions. Nearby residential developments include 
James Street Station, Salem Village, Iron Gate, and Bradley Terrace.  James Street Station, Salem 
Village, and Iron Gate are all single-family subdivisions and Bradley Terrace is a townhome 
community. To the south of the property, south of US-1, is the Veridea project which will include 
8,000 residential units, 12 million square feet of office/industrial, 3.5 million square feet of retail, 
and unrestricted hospitality, healthcare, and community uses. Seymour Mixed-Use PUD will 
provide a mix of housing types and neighborhood serving commercial uses that offer a logical 
transition between existing neighborhoods and future development to the east and south.  
 
(vii) The development proposed in the PD Plan for PUD-CZ has architectural and design 

standards that are exceptional and provide higher quality than routine developments.  
All residential uses proposed in a PD Plan for PUD-CZ shall provide architectural 
elevations representative of the residential structures to be built to ensure the Standards 
of this Section are met.  

 
RESPONSE:  The development will feature high quality and thoughtful design.  Architectural 
standards, design controls, and conceptual elevations are included in this PUD.  

CONSISTENCY WITH CONDITIONAL ZONING STANDARDS  

Seymour Mixed-Use PUD is consistent with the conditional zoning standards set forth in UDO 
Section 2.3.3.F.1-10.  Please see the accompanying PUD-CZ Application for the statements of 
consistency addressing each standard.    

Attachment B

- Page 235 -



9 
 

PERMITTED USES 
 
The Property may be used for the uses listed below. The permitted uses are subject to the 
limitations and regulations stated in the UDO and any additional limitations or regulations stated 
below. For convenience, some relevant sections of the UDO may be referenced; such references 
do not imply that other sections of the UDO do not apply.  Homeowners Association covenants 
shall not restrict the construction of accessory dwelling units.  
 
The following uses shall be permitted: 
 

 
Single-Family 

District: 

Mixed 
Residential 
District***: 

Multi-Family 
District: 

Non-
Residential 

District*****: 

Residential     

Single-family P P   

Townhouse  P P  

Duplex  P P  

Small-scale multi-family*     P**  

Multi-family or apartment     P**  

Condominium   P  

Accessory apartment P P P  

Recreational Uses     

Park, active P P P  

Greenway P P P  

Park, passive P P P  

Recreation facility, private P P P  

Utility, minor P P P  

Non-Residential Uses     

Restaurant, general    P 

Restaurant, drive-through    P**** 

Medical or dental office or 
clinic 

   P 

Medical or dental laboratory    P 

Office, business or 
professional 

   P 

Publishing office    P 

Artisan Studio    P 

Barber and beauty shop    P 

Book store    P 

Convenience store    P 

Dry cleaners and laundry 
service 

   P 

Financial institution     P 

Attachment B

- Page 236 -



10 
 

 
Single-Family 

District: 

Mixed 
Residential 
District***: 

Multi-Family 
District: 

Non-
Residential 

District*****: 

Floral shop    P 

Grocery, general    P 

Grocery, specialty    P 

Health/fitness center or spa    P 

Newsstand or gift shop    P 

Personal service    P 

Pharmacy    P 

Printing and copying service    P 

Real estate sales    P 

Retail sales, general    P 

Studio for art    P 

Tailor shop    P 

Upholstery shop    P 

Pet services    P 

Day care facility    P 

Drop-in or short-term day 
care 

   P 

Veterinary clinic or hospital    P 

Utility, minor    P 

 
*Small scale multi-family shall be defined as:  a building constructed to accommodate between 
two and ten dwelling units that are vertically or horizontally integrated.  Multiple small-scale multi-
family buildings may be located on one Lot.  

**Multi-family or apartment is only permitted south of the East-West Major Collector as shown 
on the Concept Plan.  Small scale multi-family is permitted throughout the Multi-Family District.  

***The portion of the Mixed Residential District south of Apex Peakway and west of Tingen Road 
shall have a minimum of two residential uses.  

****Standalone restaurant drive-throughs shall not be permitted.  However, restaurant drive-
throughs as part of a multi-tenant building are permitted.  

***** The Non-Residential District shall have a minimum of two uses.  
 

 

 

 

Attachment B

- Page 237 -



11 
 

 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING 

The following affordable housing commitment shall apply to apartments in the Multi-Family 
District (but shall not apply to Small-Scale Multifamily units):  

A minimum of five percent (5%) of the total residential apartment units (as shown on the first site 
plan submittal for apartments) shall be designated as restricted low-income affordable housing 
rental units (the “Affordable Units”) for a minimum affordability period of ten (10) years starting 
from the date of issuance of the first residential Certificate of Occupancy (the “Affordable 
Restriction Period”).   

• The Affordable Units shall be occupied by low-income households earning no more than 
eighty percent (80%) of the Raleigh, NC Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) Area Median 
Income, adjusted for family size, as most recently published by the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD)(the “AMI”).   

• The Affordable Units shall be rented to low-income households during the Affordable 
Restriction Period at maximum rent limits per bedroom size, no greater than eighty percent 
(80%) AMI and stipulated by the most recently published North Carolina Housing Finance 
Agency Low-Income Housing Tax Credit Multifamily Tax Subsidy Program income and rent 
limits for the Wake County Metropolitan Area.   

• If the Affordable Units calculation results in a fraction between 0.50 and 0.99, the number 
of Affordable Units shall be rounded up to the nearest whole number.   

• Prior to issuance of the first residential Certificate of Occupancy for the Apartment District, 
a restrictive covenant between the Town and property owner shall be executed and 
recorded in the Wake County Registry to memorialize the affordable housing terms and 
conditions.   

• During the Affordable Restriction Period, the property owner shall be responsible for 
performing all property management and administration duties to ensure compliance with 
this affordable housing condition and shall submit annual compliance reports to the Town 
verifying compliance.   

• Following expiration of the Affordable Restriction Period, this affordable housing condition 
shall expire, and the property owner shall be relived of all obligations set forth in this 
affordable housing condition, and the Affordable Units may be freely marketed and leased 
at market-rate rents.  

 

 

Attachment B

- Page 238 -



12 
 

 

DESIGN CONTROLS 

Acreages for each district are approximate and may increase or decrease by up to 20% based on 
updated surveys at Master Subdivision Plan.  

 
Development shall comply with the following minimum design controls: 

• All dwelling units shall be pre-configured with conduit for a solar energy system.  

• For multi-family (but not Small-Scale Multi-Family), the project shall install at least one (1) 
pet waste station per multi-family building.  For single-family, the project shall install at 
least one (1) pet waste station per 25 homes.  
 

ALL DISTRICTS 

Maximum Residential Units 800 

 

SINGLE-FAMILY DISTRICT 

Approximate Acreage 14.88 acres 

Maximum Density 6 units/acre 

Maximum Built-Upon Area 60% 

Single-Family   

     Minimum Lot Size 5,000 square feet 

     Minimum Lot Width 50 ft. 

     Minimum Setbacks  

          Front  20 ft. 

          Side  5 ft. 

          Rear 10 ft.  

          Corner Side 10 ft. 

     Maximum Building Height 3 stories; 45 ft. 

     Minimum Buffer/RCA Setbacks Buildings: 10 ft. 
Parking: 5 ft. 

 
 

MIXED RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 

Approximate Acreage 33.28 acres 

Maximum Residential Density 8 units/acre 

Maximum Built-Upon Area 65% 

  Townhouses* Single-Family 

Minimum Lot Size None 5,000 square feet 

Minimum Lot Width 20 ft. 50 ft. 

Minimum Setbacks   

Attachment B

- Page 239 -



13 
 

Front  10 ft.: Rear loaded 
and parking lot style 
20 ft.: Front loaded 

20 ft. 

Side  0 ft. (3 ft. for end 
units) 

5 ft. 

Rear  10 ft. 10 ft. 

Corner Side  10 ft.  10 ft. 

Minimum Building Separation 10 ft.  

Maximum Building Height 3 stories; 45 ft. 3 stories; 45 ft. 

Minimum Buffer/RCA Setbacks Buildings: 10 ft. 
Parking: 5 ft. 

Buildings: 10 ft. 
Parking: 5 ft. 

 
*Townhouses shall not be located within 65 feet of existing single-family lots in Salem Village that 
share a property line with the property and front the existing stub streets of Drumlin Drive, Tice 
Hurst Lane, and Hawkes Drive.  
 

Attachment B

- Page 240 -



14 
 

MULTI-FAMILY DISTRICT 

Approximate 
Acreage 

30.39 acres 

Maximum Built-
Upon Area 

70% 

 Multi-family or 
apartment 

Small Scale 
Multi-family 

Townhouses 

Maximum Density 20 units/acre 12 units/acre 12 units/acre 

Minimum Lot Size N/A N/A None 

Minimum Lot 
Width 

N/A 20 FT. 20 ft. 

Minimum 
Setbacks 

   

Front  10 ft. 10 ft. 10 ft.: Rear 
loaded and 

parking lot style 
20 ft.: Front 

loaded 

Side  20 ft. 0 ft. (3 ft. for 
end units) 

0 ft. (3 ft. for end 
units) 

Rear 20 ft. 10 ft. 10 ft. 

Corner Side 20 ft. 10 ft. 10 ft. 

Minimum from 
Buffer/RCA 

Buildings: 10 ft. 
Parking: 5 ft. 

Buildings: 10 
ft. 

Parking: 5 ft. 

Buildings: 10 ft. 
Parking: 5 ft. 

Maximum 
Building Height 

4 stories; 60 ft.* 3 stories; 45 
ft. 

3 stories; 45 ft. 

Minimum Building 
Separation 

N/A 10 ft. 10 ft. 

 
*Multi-family or apartment building facades that face Tingen Road, the Iron Gate neighborhood, 
or the Bradley Terrace neighborhood, shall not exceed a maximum height of three stories and 50 
feet.   
 
In the portion of the Multi-family District south of the Major Collector, parking lots shall not be 
permitted between apartment buildings and Tingen Road.  All other development shall comply 
with minimum parking standards set forth in UDO Section 8.3. 
 

Attachment B

- Page 241 -



15 
 

 

NON-RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT DESIGN CONTROLS 

Approximate Acreage 3.37 acres 

Maximum Square Footage 50,000 sf 

Maximum Built-Upon Area 70% 

Minimum Setbacks  

Front  20 ft. 

Side  20 ft. 

Rear 20 ft. 

Minimum Buffer/RCA Setbacks Buildings: 10 ft. 
Parking: 5 ft. 

Maximum Building Height 48 ft. 

 
One of the required Community Amenities for the Non-Residential District shall be public art.  
The public art shall be reviewed and approved by the Planning Director as set forth in UDO 
Section 8.4.5 and the location shall be determined by developer during Site Plan review for the 
Non-Residential District. 
 

RESIDENTIAL PRIVATE AMENITY DESIGN CONTROLS 

Maximum Square Footage 50,000 sf 

Maximum Built-Upon Area 70% 

Minimum Setbacks  

Front  20 ft. 

Side  20 ft. 

Rear 20 ft. 

Minimum Buffer/RCA Setbacks Buildings: 10 ft. 
Parking: 5 ft. 

Maximum Building Height 48 ft. 

 

LANDSCAPING, BUFFERING, AND SCREENING 

Perimeter buffers shall be built and planted to the following lot width and planting standards: 

Location: Buffer Size & Type: 

Adjacent to existing single-family homes, 
Townhouses, or HOA Common Area (unless set 
forth more specifically below) 

15 ft. Type B 

Adjacent to Salem Village common area (PIN 
0741034400) parallel with Widger Lane 

15 ft. Type A 

Adjacent to Salem Village common area (PIN 
0741153031) 

10 ft. Type B 

Attachment B

- Page 242 -



16 
 

Location: Buffer Size & Type: 

Along the shared property line with Iron Gate 
subdivision 

30 ft. Type A 

Along the north side of Apex Peakway and the 
south side of Apex Peakway east of Tingen 
Road 

30 ft. Type B 

Along the east side of Tingen Road north of the 
Non-Residential District 

30 ft. Type B 

Along the west side of Tingen Road and the 
east side of Tingen Road from the south side of 
the Major Collector Street to the 
southernmost boundary of the Multi-Family 
District 

30 ft. Type B but may be reduced to 15 ft. 
Type E as shown below* 

 

*Where rear loaded townhouse units front Tingen Road, developer may elect, at the time of 
Master Subdivision/Site Plan review, to reduce the Tingen Road Thoroughfare buffer to a 15 ft. 
Type E buffer.  Buffer reduction shall be in accordance with UDO Section 8.1.2.C.7.  

Along Tingen Road on the western side from Driveway #3 to the roundabout, utility easements 
shall be counted towards required RCA and buffer standards.  

At least 75% of plants shall be native species.  Landscaping will be coordinated with and approved 
by the Planning Department at site or subdivision review.  

Landscaping shall include at least four (4) native hardwood tree species throughout the 
Development.  

The project shall plant drought resistant warm season grasses or clover lawns throughout the 
development to minimize irrigation and chemical use.  

HOA rules may not prohibit the installation of clover lawns within the single-family and townhome 
portions of the development.  

 
ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS 
 
Seymour Mixed-Use PUD offers the following architectural controls to ensure a consistency of 
character throughout the development, while allowing for enough variety to create interest and 
avoid monotony. Elevations included are conceptual examples.  Final elevations must comply with 
these architectural standards but may vary from the conceptual elevations.  Further details may 
be provided at the time of Residential Master Subdivision Plan submittal.  
 
RESIDENTIAL DESIGN GUIDELINES  
 
Single-Family: 

Attachment B

- Page 243 -



17 
 

1. Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements and trim are 
permitted.  

2. Garage doors shall have windows, decorative details or carriage-style adornments on them. 
3. The garage shall not protrude more than 1 foot out from the front façade and front porch.  

However, the garage may protrude beyond 1 foot out from the front façade and front porch 
if the garage is accessed from the side via a J-driveway. 

4. The visible side of a home on a corner lot facing the public street shall contain at least 3 
decorative elements such as, but not limited to, the following elements:  

• Windows 

• Bay window  

• Recessed window 

• Decorative window 

• Trim around the windows 

• Wrap around porch or side porch 

• Two or more building materials 

• Decorative brick/stone 

• Decorative trim 

• Decorative shake 

• Decorative air vents on gable 

• Decorative gable 

• Decorative cornice 

• Column 

• Portico 

• Balcony 

• Dormer 

5. A varied color palette shall be utilized on homes throughout the subdivision to include a 
minimum of three (3) color families for siding and shall include varied trim, shutter, and 
accent colors complementing the siding color. 

6. The rear and side elevations of the units that can be seen from the right-of-way shall have 
trim around the windows. 

7. No more than 25% of lots may be accessed with J-driveways. There shall be no more than 
3 such homes in a row on any single block. Any lots eligible for a J-driveway home shall be 
identified on the Final Plat.  

8. All single-family garages will be wired with a 220/240-volt electric outlet.  
 

Townhouses (front and rear loaded) and Small-Scale Multi-Family: 

1. Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements and trim are 
permitted.  

2. The roofline for townhouses and small-scale multi-family cannot be a single mass; it must 
be broken up horizontally and vertically between every other unit. 

3. Front facing garage doors must have windows, decorative details or carriage-style 
adornments on them. 

4. The project shall include a minimum of two (2) or more garage door styles for the front-
loaded townhouses.  

5. Entrances shall have a covered porch/stoop area leading to the front door.   
6. The garage cannot protrude more than 1 foot out from the front façade or front porch.   
7. The visible side of a townhome or small-scale multi-family building on a corner lot facing 

the public street shall contain at least 3 decorative elements such as, but not limited to, 
the following elements:  

• Windows 

• Bay window  

• Recessed window 

• Decorative window 

Attachment B

- Page 244 -



SEYMOUR MIXED-USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

18 

 

• Trim around the windows 

• Wrap around porch or side porch 

• Two or more building materials 

• Decorative brick/stone 

• Decorative trim 

• Decorative shake 

• Decorative air vents on gable 

• Decorative gable 

• Decorative cornice 

• Column 

• Portico 

• Balcony 

• Dormer 

8. A varied color palette shall be utilized on homes throughout the subdivision to include a 
minimum of three (3) color families for siding and shall include varied trim, shutter, and 
accent colors complementing the siding color. 

9. The rear and side elevations of the units facing public right-of-way shall have trim around 
the windows. 

10. Side and rear elevations shall include architectural features to break up the flat walls both 
vertically and horizontally.  

11. Townhouse buildings shall have no more than one unadorned side-gabled roof in a row 
within a single building.  

 

Multi-Family/Apartments/Condominiums: 
 

1. Vinyl siding is not permitted; however, vinyl windows, decorative elements, and trim are 
permitted. 

2. Rear and side elevations of units that have right-of-way frontage shall have trim around 
the windows.  

3. A minimum of four of the following decorative features shall be used on each building:  
a. Decorative shake 
b. Board and batten 
c. Decorative porch railing/posts 
d. Shutters 
e. Decorative/functional air vents on roof or foundation 
f. Recessed windows 
g. Decorative windows 
h. Decorative brick/stone 
i. Decorative gables 
j. Decorative cornices 
k. Tin/metal roof 

4. Garage doors must have windows, decorative details, or carriage-style adornments on 
them.  

5. Siding materials shall be varied in type and/or color on at least 30% of each façade on 
each building. 

6. Windows must vary in size and/or type.  
7. Windows that are not recessed must be trimmed.  
8. To reduce the Urban Heat Island Effect and conserve energy, for multi-family and non-

residential buildings, all flat roofs shall be light or white colored or utilize a cool roof 
material.  

Attachment B

- Page 245 -



SEYMOUR MIXED-USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

19 

 

 
NON-RESIDENTIAL DESIGN GUIDELINES 

1. Architectural treatments such as varying roof forms, façade articulation, breaks in roof, 
walls with texture materials and ornamental details shall be incorporated to add visual 
interest.  

2. Large expanses of blank walls greater than 25 feet in length or height shall be broken up 
with windows or other architectural features to reduce visual impacts.  

3. Roof features may include flat roofs with parapet, hip roofs or awnings with metal or 
canvas material. 

4. Non-residential exteriors shall incorporate variation in materials.  The front façade and 
other facades located along a public right-of-way may include:  
a. Brick and/or stone masonry 
b. Decorative concrete block (integral color or textured) 
c. Stone accents 
d. Aluminum storefronts with anodized or pre-finished colors 
e. EIFS cornices, and parapet trim 
f. EIFS or synthetic stucco shall not be used in the first four feet above grade and 

shall be limited to only 25% of each building façade 
g. Precast concrete  
h. Soffit and fascia materials to be considered include EIFS with crown trim elements 
i. Cementitious siding 
 

5. Rear elevations of non-residential buildings facing opaque landscape buffers or not visible 
from vehicular use areas or public rights-of-way may incorporate decorative concrete 
masonry, metal coping, or EIFS trim. 

6. To reduce the Urban Heat Island Effect and conserve energy, for multi-family and non-
residential buildings, all flat roofs shall be light or white colored or utilize a cool roof 
material.  

PARKING AND LOADING 

Multi-Family and Small-Scale Multi-family buildings shall provide the following minimum parking 
spaces per dwelling unit based on the number of bedrooms:  
 

Bedrooms per unit Minimum ratio 

1 or 2 1.3 spaces per dwelling unit 

3 1.8 spaces per dwelling unit 

 
In the portion of the Multi-family District south of the Major Collector, parking lots shall not be 
permitted between apartment buildings and Tingen Road.  All other development shall comply 
with minimum parking standards set forth in UDO Section 8.3. 
 

Attachment B

- Page 246 -



SEYMOUR MIXED-USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

20 

 

SIGNAGE 
 
Signage shall comply with UDO Section 8.7. 
 

CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC 
 
To the greatest extent practicable, all heavy-duty construction traffic shall enter and exit the site 
via Tingen Road and Apex Peakway.  “No Construction Traffic” signage shall be posted at the 
intersection of Drumlin Drive and the Property line and Tice Hurst Lane and the Property line. 
 

NATURAL RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENTAL DATA  
 
RIVER BASINS AND WATERSHED PROTECTION OVERLAY DISTRICTS 

The property is in the Secondary Watershed Protection Overlay District as shown on the Town of 
Apex Watershed Protection Overlay Map 2019.  This PUD will comply with all built upon area, 
vegetated conveyances, structural SCMs and riparian stream buffer requirements of UDO Section 
6.1.8. 

Resource Conservation Areas (RCA) 

The Property is divided by Apex Peakway with approximately 24.03 acres north of Apex Peakway 
and 57.92 acres south of Apex Peakway.  UDO Section 8.1.2 requires minimum Resource 
Conservation Area (“RCA”) of 10% for property north of Apex Peakway and 20% for property 
south of Apex Peakway.  To provide a uniform standard and greater RCA than required by the 
UDO, the development shall designate a minimum of 20% of the Property as RCA.   

If the development is mass graded, it shall not be required to provide the additional 5% RCA 
required for mass grading under UDO Section 7.2.5.B.8.  The RCA requirement shall apply to the 
entire property.  For example, a Site Plan for a portion of the property may provide less than 20% 
on-site RCA provided a minimum of 20% of the total property acreage is RCA.  Otherwise, 
designated RCAs will be consistent with UDO Section 8.1.2(B).  Preserved streams, wetlands, and 
associated riparian buffers provide the primary RCAs throughout the Property.  Additional RCAs 
may include portions of the stormwater control measures permitted by the UDO, side paths, and 
perimeter buffers.  

No clearing or land disturbance shall be permitted within the riparian buffer, except the minimum 
necessary to install required road and utility infrastructure and SCM outlets.  The SCM water 
storage and treatment shall not be permitted within the riparian buffer.  Sewer infrastructure 
shall be designed to minimize impacts to riparian buffers.   

Floodplain 

The project site does not sit within a designated current or future 100-year floodplain as shown 
on the Town of Apex Watershed & FEMA Map dated April 2015. FIRM Panel 3720072200J dated 
May 2, 2006 does not include a floodplain within the property boundary. 

Attachment B

- Page 247 -



SEYMOUR MIXED-USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

21 

 

 
Historic Structures 
 
There are no known historic structures present on the Property.   
 
Environmental Commitments Summary 
 
As shown elsewhere in the PUD, the following environmental conditions shall apply to the 
Development:  
 

• All dwelling units shall be pre-configured with conduit for a solar energy system. 

• The project shall install at least one (1) sign per SCM discouraging the use of fertilizer and to 
reduce pet waste near SCM drainage areas.  The sign(s) shall be installed in locations that are 
publicly accessible, such as adjacent to, but outside of public property and/or public 
easement(s), amenity centers, sidewalks, greenways, or side paths. 

• For multi-family, the project shall install at least one (1) pet waste station per multi-family 
building.  For single-family, the project shall install at least one (1) pet waste station per 25 
homes.  

• The project shall plant drought resistant warm season grasses or clover lawns throughout the 
development to minimize irrigation and chemical use. 

• HOA rules may not prohibit the installation of clover lawns within the single-family and 
townhome portions of the development. 

• Stormwater control devices shall be designed and constructed so that post development peak 
runoff does not exceed pre-development peak runoff conditions for the 24-hour, 1-year, 10-
year, and 25-year storm events. 

• Landscaping shall include at least four (4) native hardwood tree species throughout the 
Development. 

• No clearing or land disturbance shall be permitted within the riparian buffer, except the 
minimum necessary to install required road and utility infrastructure and SCM outlets.  The 
SCM water storage and treatment shall not be permitted within the riparian buffer.  Sewer 
infrastructure shall be designed to minimize impacts to riparian buffers.  

• At least 75% of plants shall be native species.  Landscaping will be coordinated with and 
approved by the Planning Department at site or subdivision review.  

• To reduce the Urban Heat Island Effect and conserve energy, for multi-family and non-
residential buildings, all flat roofs shall be light or white colored or utilize a cool roof material.  

• All single-family garages will be wired with a 220/240-volt electric outlet.  

• Apartments (excluding Small Scale Multi-family) south of the Major Collector street shall be 
designed to meet the requirements for one of the following green building certifications:  
LEED, Energy Star, BREEAM, Green Globes, NGBS Green, NAHB, or GreenGuard.  A third-

Attachment B

- Page 248 -



SEYMOUR MIXED-USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

22 

 

party consultant shall be hired to evaluate the project and certify to the Town of Apex that 
the project meets the standards for the certification.  Prior to issuance of a certificate of 
occupancy for a building, the developer shall demonstrate to the Town that  the building 
has been certified as a green building by providing a copy of the green building certification.   

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 
 
Stormwater control devices shall be designed and constructed to exceed UDO standards so that 
post development peak runoff does not exceed pre-development peak runoff conditions for the 
24-hour, 1-year, 10-year, and 25-year storm events.  Otherwise, the Development shall meet all 
stormwater management requirements for quality and quantity treatment in accordance with 
Section 6.1 of the UDO.   
 
Acceptable stormwater structures shall include detention ponds, constructed wetlands, bio-
retention areas, or other approved devices consistent with the NC DEQ Stormwater Design 
Manual and the Town of Apex UDO. 
 
No clearing or land disturbance shall be permitted within the riparian buffer, except the minimum 
necessary to install required road and utility infrastructure and SCM outlets.  The SCM water 
storage and treatment shall not be permitted within the riparian buffer.  Sewer infrastructure 
shall be designed to minimize impacts to riparian buffers.  
 
The project shall install at least one (1) sign per SCM discouraging the use of fertilizer and to 
reduce pet waste near SCM drainage areas.  The sign(s) shall be installed in locations that are 
publicly accessible, such as adjacent to, but outside of public property and/or public easement(s), 
amenity centers, sidewalks, greenways, or side paths.  
 

PARKS AND RECREATION 
 
On September 27, 2023, the Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Advisory Commission 
recommended a fee-in-lieu of dedication with credit for construction of greenway for a maximum 
combination of 740 single-family detached, single-family attached and multi-family residential 
units.  The current 2023 rate of $4,016.66 per single-family unit, $2,705.23 per single-family 
attached unit, and $2,381.87 per multi-family or apartment unit which shall be deposited with 
the Town at final plat. Rates are adjusted each year and the rate shall be updated at final plat 
when the fee is due.  The greenway shall be completed and accepted prior to 50% of the units 
West of Tingen Road receiving a building permit. 
 
Single-family Units:    $4,016.66/Unit x ____ Units = $ ______  
Single-family attached Units:   $2,705.23/Unit x ____ Units = $ ______ 
Multi-family and Apartment Units  $2,381.87/Unit x ____ Units = $ ______ 
Total residential fee in lieu:        $ _________ 
 
Acres of Land Dedication   _____ acres 

Attachment B

- Page 249 -



SEYMOUR MIXED-USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

23 

 

Public Greenway Trail Construction  YES 
 
The final unit count and total fee-in-lieu will be calculated at Master Subdivision Plan and 
Construction Document review.  
 
In addition, the project shall convey to the town a greenway easement (the “Greenway 
Easement”) over the property to facilitate a future pedestrian connection to the planned Big 
Branch Greenway corridor over PIN 0741243405.  The exact location of the Greenway Easement 
shall be determined by the Developer and Town during Master Subdivision Plan review but shall 
generally be located along the southern property line of PIN 0741240185 west of the existing 
stream.  
 

PUBLIC FACILITIES 
 
The proposed PUD shall meet all Public Facilities requirements as set forth in UDO Section 
2.3.4(F)(1)(f) and be designed to comply with the Town’s Sewer and Water Master Plan and 
Standards and Specifications. Road and utility infrastructure shall be as follows: 
 
TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS 
 
The following conditions regarding transportation improvements apply and shall be phased 
consistent with the Traffic Impact Analysis that has been performed for this rezoning, which is on 
file with the Town of Apex.  All proposed driveway access and improvements on state-maintained 
roadways are subject to both Apex and NCDOT review and approval.  Except as set forth herein, 
all proposed roadway infrastructure and right-of-way dedications will be consistent with the 
Town of Apex Comprehensive Transportation Plan, as amended with this rezoning. 
 
1. Tingen Road.  Developer shall improve Tingen Road for the length of the Property’s 

Tingen Road frontage to a 3-Lane Thoroughfare street section as shown in the attached 
Exhibit C (the “Tingen Road Section”), including a 10-foot side path on the west side of 
Tingen Road.   The Director of Transportation and Infrastructure Development may 
administratively approve modifications to dimensions and design elements of the 
Tingen Road Section.  

2. East/West Major Collector.  Developer shall construct a Major Collector Street with 
marked and signed bike lanes from Tingen Road eastward to the boundary of the 
riparian buffer.  Developer shall pay a fee in lieu based on estimated construction costs 
to extend the street from the riparian buffer to the property line. 

3. Roundabout.  Developer shall construct a single-lane roundabout at the intersection of 
the Major Collector Street and Tingen Road.  

4. Apex Peakway.  Developer shall widen Apex Peakway through the intersection with 
Tingen Road westward to provide the ultimate 4-lane median divided section along the 

Attachment B

- Page 250 -



SEYMOUR MIXED-USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

24 

 

project frontage, with lane transitions eastbound and westbound as shown in the 
attached Exhibit D (the “Peakway Section”), subject to permitting requirements and 
right of way/easement acquisition set forth below.  The Director of Transportation and 
Infrastructure Development may administratively approve modifications to dimensions 
and design elements of the Peakway Section. In addition, Developer shall construct the 
following improvements along Apex Peakway. 

a. Traffic Signal.  Install a metal strain pole traffic signal at the intersection of Apex 
Peakway and Tingen Road when permitted by NCDOT.  A warrant study shall be 
performed prior to platting 300 single-family or townhouse residential units or site 
plan final plat for up to 300 apartment dwelling units, at the direction of Apex 
staff.  If NCDOT does not permit the traffic signal at that time, Developer shall pay 
a fee-in-lieu for the estimated cost of design and installation of the metal strain 
pole traffic signal and dedicate all necessary easements and rights of way based 
on a conceptual engineering layout to be provided by Developer.  Minimum turn 
lane lengths shall be constructed/striped as follows:  

i. Northbound left turn lane with 150 feet of storage, plus deceleration and 
taper 

ii. Northbound right turn lane with 100 feet of storage, plus deceleration and 
taper 

iii. Southbound left turn lane with 175 feet of storage, plus deceleration and 
taper 

iv. Eastbound left turn lane with 175 feet of storage, plus deceleration and 
taper  

v. Westbound left turn lane with 150 feet of storage, plus deceleration and 
taper 

5.  
a. Westbound Approach.  Widen the westbound approach to Tingen Road to provide 

a left turn lane and taper/transition to set the curb line, as shown in the attached 
Peakway Section (the “Taper”), within the existing Apex Peakway right of way 
adjacent to PINs 0741159109 and 0741250245 (the “Cemetery Property”).  
Provided, however, that if plans for the Taper (a) require grading that disturbs 
existing graves on the Cemetery Property or in the right-of-way, or (b) require 
relocation of one or more existing graves on the Cemetery Property or in the right-
of-way, Developer may narrow the road width for the Taper (the “Revised Taper”) 
to avoid any impact on existing graves.  In no event shall Developer be required to 
relocate existing graves.  If the Revised Taper is required, Developer may reduce 
the width of the Peakway Section west of the intersection of Apex Peakway and 
Tingen Road to provide an appropriate transition from the Revised Taper.  

b. Permitting.  There are two existing streams on PIN 0741152543 (the “Peakway 
Property”) that cross Apex Peakway through two existing culverts located in the 
Apex Peakway right of way (the “Culverts”).  Construction of the Peakway Section 
will require extending the Culverts which will disturb the streams (the “Stream 

Attachment B

- Page 251 -



SEYMOUR MIXED-USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

25 

 

Disturbance”) and require one or more permits from the United States Army Corps 
of Engineers (the “USACE”), or other relevant governmental agency (together, the 
“Permitting Body”).  During plan review for the Peakway Property, but no later 
than Construction Drawing review, Developer shall file an application with the 
Permitting Body to permit the Stream Disturbance and construction of the 
Peakway Section the “Permit Application”) and the Town shall serve as applicant.  
Developer shall prepare, and pay the costs of preparing, the Permit Application, 
including all required design work (the “Design Costs”) and permitting/mitigation 
costs.  The Permit Application shall be a separate application from other 
environmental permit applications that may be required for other portions of the 
project (the “Additional Permit Applications”).  If the Permitting Body denies the 
Permit Application, or requires the Permit Application and the Additional Permit 
Applications to be submitted and reviewed as one application (“Individual 
Permit”) and the sole justification for the requirement of an individual Permit is 
the construction of the Peakway Section, then Developer shall construct a reduced 
Apex Peakway section that terminates at the western boundary of Site Driveway 
1 and pay a fee in lieu for all costs to construct the portion of the Peakway Section 
from Site Driveway 1 to the eastern boundary of Padstone Drive.  The fee in lieu 
estimate shall include all costs, including design, environmental 
permitting/mitigation and construction.  Developer shall dedicate all right of way, 
permanent and temporary easements necessary to accommodate the future 4-
lane divided roadway section.  

c. Right of Way/Easement Acquisition.  Construction of the Peakway Section may 
require acquisition of rights of way and easements over PIN 0741055626 owned 
by the Salem Village Homeowners’ Association (the “HOA Property”).  Developer 
shall make good faith efforts to acquire the rights of way and easements 
necessary to construct the Peakway Section as shown in the attached Exhibit D.  
If the Developer is unable to acquire such rights of way and easements through 
private negotiation and the Town is unwilling or unable to assist in the 
acquisition of said easements and rights of way, Developer shall redesign the 
Peakway Section to not require acquisition of rights of way or easements over 
the HOA Property.  

d. Side Path.  Construct a 10-foot side path along the property’s Apex Peakway 
frontage along the north side of Apex Peakway (the “Peakway Side Path”) that 
terminates at Padstone Drive.  The Peakway Side Path shall be included in the 
Permit Application.  The Peakway Side Path may require acquisition of one or 
more easements (the “HOA Easements”) over the HOA Property.  If the Permitting 
Body does not approve the Peakway Side Path, the Peakway Side Path shall 
terminate at the eastern boundary of Site Driveway 1 and Developer shall pay a 
fee in lieu for the costs of constructing the portion of the Peakway Side Path from 
the eastern boundary of Site Driveway 1 to Padstone Drive.  If Developer is unable 
to acquire the HOA Easements for market value through reasonable means, the 
Peakway Side Path shall be relocated closer to the back of curb of Apex Peakway 

Attachment B

- Page 252 -



SEYMOUR MIXED-USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

26 

 

in a location that does not require the HOA Easements.  If Developer is unable to 
acquire the HOA Easements and is unable to design the Peakway Side Path in a 
manner that does not require acquisition of the HOA Easements, the Peakway Side 
Path shall terminate at the western boundary of the property’s Apex Peakway 
frontage.  

6. Construct Site Driveway 1 at Apex Peakway/Salem Village Drive including: 
a. an eastbound left turn lane with 50 feet of storage, plus deceleration and taper 
b. a continuous westbound right turn lane 

7. Construct Site Driveway 2 at Tingen Road (north of Apex Peakway) as right-in/right-out 
only.  

8. Construct Site Driveway 3 at Tingen Road (south of Apex Peakway) as right-in/right-out 
only on both driveway approaches.  

9. Construct Site Driveway 4/Major Collector Street at Tingen Road (south of Site Driveway 
3) as a single-lane roundabout.  

10. Construct Site Driveway 5 at Tingen Road (south of Site Driveway 4/Major Collector 
Street) as right-in/right-out only on both driveway approaches.  

11. Developer shall extend the Side Path along the western boundary of Tingen Road south 
of PIN 0741142574 to stub to the northern boundary of the Grace Christian School 
Property (PIN 0741019204)(the “Grace Connection”).  The Grace Connection may require 
acquisition of off-site rights of way and/or easements over off-site property including, but 
not limited to, PIN 0741034400, PIN 0741026971, PIN 0741023701, and PIN 0741022140 
(collectively, the “Off-Site Rights-of-way”).  Developer shall work to acquire the Off-Site 
Rights-of-way prior to Master Subdivision Plan approval.  If Developer is unable to acquire 
the Off-Site Rights-of-way for market value, in Developer’s discretion, Developer shall pay 
a fee-in-lieu in the amount of the estimated cost of the Grace Connection.   

12. Developer shall pay a fee in lieu to the Town for Developer’s share of the estimated costs 
to design and install a metal strain pole traffic signal at the intersection of Apex Peakway 
and Perry Road (the “Perry Road Signal”).  Developer’s share shall be 18% of the total 
estimated costs to design and install the Perry Road Signal.   

13. The developer shall install an indirect street connection from Drumlin Drive to Tingen 
Road requiring drivers to make one or more turns between the Drumlin Drive stub 
street and Tingen Road.  Developer shall install an indirect street connection from Tice 
Hurst Lane to Tingen Road requiring drivers to make one or more turns between the 
Tice Hurst Lane stub street and Tingen Road.  

The project shall construct two public bus stops along Tingen Road with exact locations to be 
determined at the time of Site Plan or Master Subdivision Plan and according to the specifications 
outlined below.  The bus stops shall meet the approved Town of Apex bus stop standard 
construction specifications (“Town Standards”) and be located in the public right of way, subject 
to approval of Town and NCDOT staff.   

• If no bus service is in operation along the Property’s Tingen Road frontage at the time of 
Master Subdivision Construction Drawing approval, developer shall only be required to 

Attachment B

- Page 253 -



SEYMOUR MIXED-USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

27 

 

construct the concrete pad to Town standards.  No other amenities (bench, trash 
receptacle, bike racks) shall be required.  

• If bus service is in operation along the Property’s Tingen Road frontage at the time of 
Master Subdivision Construction Drawing approval, developer shall construct the 
complete bus stop to Town Standards including a bench, trash receptacle, and two bike 
racks.  

• The bus stops shall comply with all ADA and PROWAG accessibility guidelines. 

CROSS ACCESS/STREAM BUFFERS 

There are two existing street stubs, Wragby Lane and Padstone Drive (collectively, the “Street 
Stubs” and each, a “Street Stub”), along the northern property line of the portion of the Property 
north of Apex Peakway (the “Northern Section”).  There is an existing stream running diagonally 
across the Northern Section as shown on the Concept Plan (the “Stream”).  The project intends 
to construct internal streets that will connect to the Street Stubs, cross the Stream, and connect 
to Apex Peakway and/or Tingen Road.  These connections will require approval of one or more 
stream crossings from the Army Corps of Engineers and/or other applicable government 
agencies.  If the Army Corps or other government agency does not permit the stream crossing 
necessary to extend a Street Stub, the Street Stub may be extended south onto the Property to 
serve the project and terminate as a cul-de-sac north of the Stream (the “New Cul-de-sac”), in 
which case the New Cul-de-sac shall not be required to meet UDO maximum cul-de-sac length 
regulations and shall not be in violation of any other UDO provision that requires cross-access. If 
a street connection is not permitted across the stream, a pedestrian connection shall be 
constructed to link the two sides of the subdivision, subject to approval of the Town and any 
other applicable governing body. 

Developer shall construct an internal street and 5-foot sidewalk that terminates at or before the 
existing private stub street in Bradley Terrace extending west from Anterbury Drive over PIN 
0741241622 in a manner that allows the Bradley Terrace Homeowners’ Association to complete 
the cross-access connection if connectivity is desired in the future.   

PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE IMPROVEMENTS 
 
Per the Town of Apex Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan Map and UDO requirements, the 
developer shall construct sidewalks, side paths, bike lanes, and marked bike buffers as follows: 

• Sidewalks shall be provided along both sides of all streets other than Tingen Road which 
shall have a 10-foot Side Path on the west side in lieu of a sidewalk.  In addition to on 
street sidewalks, The Mixed Residential District west of Tingen Road and south of Apex 
Peakway shall provide a minimum of two pedestrian connections to the Tingen Road Side 
Path.  

• Tingen Road shall include bike lanes and bike buffers consistent with the Tingen Road 
streetscape recommended by the Transportation Plan, as amended.   

Attachment B

- Page 254 -



SEYMOUR MIXED-USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

28 

 

• The project shall include marked and signed bike lanes on the Major Collector Street and 
signalized pedestrian crosswalks at the intersection of Apex Peakway and Tingen Road.   

• Developer shall install a high-visibility mid-block crosswalk on Tingen Road between 
Baberton Drive and the project driveway on Tingen Road north of Apex Peakway.  The 
final location of the crosswalk shall be determined during Master Subdivision Plan review 
and is subject to review and approval of NCDOT and Town of Apex staff.  

 
WATER AND SANITARY SEWER 
 
All lots within the Development will be served by Town of Apex water and sanitary sewer. The 
utility design will be finalized at the time of Master Subdivision Plan or Site Plan approval and be 
based on available facilities adjacent to the site at that time. The design will meet the current 
Town of Apex Sewer and Water Master Plan and Standards and Specifications.  A conceptual 
utility plan is included in the PUD Concept Plan for reference.  
 
OTHER UTILITIES 
 
Electricity will be provided by Apex Electric. Phone, cable, and gas will be provided by the 
Developer and shall meet Town of Apex standards as outlined in the UDO.   
 

PHASING 
 
The Development will be completed in phases.  Final locations of phases will be determined at 
the time of Master Subdivision Review and Approval.   
 

CONSISTENCY WITH LAND USE PLAN 
 
The proposed Development is consistent with Advance Apex, the 2045 Plan and the 2045 Land 
Use Map (“LUM”).  The LUM recommends a mix of housing types and densities across the 
Property.  As shown in the chart below, the housing types and densities proposed by this PUD 
are generally consistent with the requisite LUM designations, with one change.  The LUM 
designates the eastern portion of the Property north of Apex Peakway as Medium-High Density 
Residential/High Density Residential which recommends single-family homes, Townhouses, and 
apartments at an overall density between 14 and 20 units/acre.  This PUD proposes to move the 
apartment designation south.  The primary justifications for the change are:  

• PIN 0741152543 has a stream and possible wetlands running diagonally across the 
property from south to north.  Development of apartments - and the required parking - 
on this parcel would require disturbance of the stream.  Townhouses and single-family 
homes can be more easily laid out to avoid unnecessary disruptions to the stream.  

• The proposed new location of the Apartments will allow residents to travel south along 
Tingen Road to access US-1 rather than coming out onto Apex Peakway.  

Attachment B

- Page 255 -



SEYMOUR MIXED-USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

29 

 

• The goal was to place the apartments near the office/commercial uses.  Because PIN 
0741142574 is narrow between Tingen Road and Bradley Terrace, it is difficult to locate 
a driveway on Apex Peakway.  Accordingly, the Office/Services District has been placed in 
the center of the Multi-Family District along the future Tingen Road to Perry Road 
Collector Street.  

 

Attachment B

- Page 256 -



PPAB 10297474v1 

Parcel Approx 
Acreage 

LUM 
Designation 

LUM 
Recommended 
Housing Types 

LUM 
Recommended 

Density 
 (DU/Acre) 

LUM 
Max 
Units 

Proposed LUM 
Designation 

Proposed PUD Housing 
Types 

Proposed 
PUD 

Density 
(DU/Acre) 

PUD Max 
Units 

Tract 1 14.88 Medium 
Density 
Residential 

Single-Family; 
Townhouses 

3-7 104 Medium Density 
Residential 

Single-Family  6 89 
 

Tract 2  9.14 Medium-
High Density 
Residential/  
High Density 
Residential 

Single-Family; 
Townhouses;  
Multi-Family 

8 - 14; 
Min. 14 

146 Medium-High Density 
Residential 

Single-Family; 
Townhouses 

8 73 

Tract 3  24.084 Medium-
High Density 
Residential 

single-family 
homes, 
duplexes, 
triplexes, 
quadplexes, 
townhomes, 

8 - 14  337 Medium-High Density 
Residential 

Single-Family; 
Townhouses 

8  193 

Tracts 4 
& 5 

13.724  Medium-
High Density 
Residential 
Office 
Employment 

Single-Family; 
Townhouses; 
Office 

8 - 14 192 Medium-High Density 
Residential; Office 
Employment/Commercial 
Services 

Small Scale Multi-Family; 
Townhouses; Office 
Employment/Commercial 
Services 

12 
 

165 

Tract 6  20.08 Medium-
High Density 
Residential 
/Office 
Employment 

Townhomes, 
triplexes, 
quadplexes, 
and 
apartments 
Office Uses 

8 - 14  281 High Density Residential Multi-Family; Small Scale 
Multi-Family 

20  402 

Total 
Res. 
Units: 

    1,061    800 per 
zoning 

condition 

Attachment B

- Page 257 -



PPAB 10297474v1 

COMPLIANCE WITH UDO 
 
The development standards proposed for this PUD comply with those set forth in the Town’s 
Unified Development Ordinance (UDO). This PUD shall be the primary governing document for 
the development of Seymour Mixed-Use PUD.  All standards and regulations in this PUD shall 
control over general standards of the UDO.  Provided, however, that if a specific regulation is not 
addressed in this PUD, UDO regulations shall control.  

  

Attachment B

- Page 258 -



SEYMOUR MIXED-USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

32 

 

EXHIBIT A 
Legal Description 

The Property 
 

PIN 0741142574; 57.878 acres 
 
Tract 1A (portion of PIN west of Tingen Road) 

Beginning at a point on the centerline of Tingen Road (SR 1153) (60’ Public R/W), said point having NC grid 

coordinates (NAD 83 – 2011) of N=714,981.31, E=2,041,723.24, thence from said beginning point with 

said centerline South 23°25'02" West 63.24 feet to a point, thence South 23°57'24" West 97.36 feet to a 

point, thence South 24°26'36" West 92.47 feet to a point, thence South 25°06'17" West 59.76 feet to a 

point, thence South 26°16'53" West 52.09 feet to a point, thence South 27°57'15" West 99.30 feet to a 

point, thence South 28°01'32" West 106.09 feet to a point, thence along a curve to the left having a radius 

of 715.88 feet, an arc length of 280.03 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of South 19°19'56" West 

278.25 feet to a point, thence South 07°37'37" West 107.82 feet to a point, thence South 08°28'32" West 

130.97 feet to a point, thence along a curve to the right having a radius of 814.07 feet, an arc length of 

217.77 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of South 17°59'27" West 217.12 feet to a point, thence 

South 24°06'54" West 110.88 feet to a point, thence South 24°35'47" West 103.44 feet to a point, thence 

South 24°35'57" West 106.01 feet to a point, thence South 24°26'31" West 102.75 feet to a point, thence 

South 23°49'47" West 90.16 feet to a point, thence South 22°33'59" West 106.51 feet to a point, thence 

along a curve to the left having a radius of 1,423.87 feet, an arc length of 182.99 feet, and a chord bearing 

and distance of South 19°00'25" West 182.86 to a point, thence South 15°37'11" West 15.50 feet to a 

point, thence leaving said centerline North 89°01'35" West 471.57 feet to a point, thence North 01°40'54" 

East 1,109.12 feet to an existing iron pipe, thence South 89°00'54" East 563.31 feet to an existing iron pipe, 

thence North 02°35'35" East 886.13 feet to a new iron pipe, thence South 88°06'47" East 592.52 feet to 

the point and place of beginning, containing an area of 25.548 acres (1,112,857 Sq Ft) more or less. 

Save and Except the following Public Right of Way: 

Beginning at a point on the centerline of Tingen Road (SR 1153) (60’ Public R/W), said point having NC grid 

coordinates (NAD 83 – 2011) of N=714,981.31, E=2,041,723.24, thence from said beginning point with 

said centerline South 23°25'02" West 63.24 feet to a point, thence South 23°57'24" West 97.36 feet to a 

point, thence South 24°26'36" West 92.47 feet to a point, thence South 25°06'17" West 59.76 feet to a 

point, thence South 26°16'53" West 52.09 feet to a point, thence South 27°57'15" West 99.30 feet to a 

point, thence South 28°01'32" West 106.09 feet to a point, thence along a curve to the left having a radius 

of 715.88', an arc length of 280.03', and a chord bearing and distance of South 19°19'56" West 278.25 feet 

to a point, thence South 07°37'37" West 107.82 feet to a point, thence South 08°28'32" West 130.97 feet 

to a point, thence along a curve to the right having a radius of 814.07 feet, an arc length of 217.77 feet, 

and a chord bearing and distance of South 17°59'27" West 217.12 feet to a point, thence South 24°06'54" 

West 110.88 feet to a point, thence South 24°35'47" West 103.44 feet to a point, thence South 24°35'57" 

West 106.01 feet to a point, thence South 24°26'31" West 102.75 feet to a point, thence South 23°49'47" 

West 90.16 feet to a point, thence South 22°33'59" West 106.51 feet to a point, thence along a curve to 

the left having a radius of 1,423.87 feet, an arc length of 182.99 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of 

South 19°00'25" West 182.86 feet to a point, thence South 15°37'11" West 15.50 feet to a point, thence 

leaving said centerline North 89°01'35" West 31.01 feet to a new iron pipe on the western right of way of 

Attachment B

- Page 259 -



SEYMOUR MIXED-USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

33 

 

Tingen Road (SR 1153) (60’ Public R/W), thence with said right of way North 15°37'11" East 23.27 feet to 

a new iron pipe, thence along a curve to the right having a radius of 1,453.87 feet, an arc length of 186.74 

feet, and a chord bearing and distance of North 19°00'28" East 186.61 feet to a new iron pipe, thence 

North 22°33'59" East 106.81 feet to a new iron pipe, thence North 23°49'47" East 90.66 feet to a new iron 

pipe, thence North 24°26'31" East 102.95 feet to a new iron pipe, thence North 24°35'57" East 106.05 feet 

to a new iron pipe, thence North 24°35'47" East 103.31 feet to a new iron pipe, thence North 24°06'54" 

East 111.16 feet to a new iron pipe, thence along a curve to the left having a radius of 784.07 feet, an arc 

length of 209.66 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of North 18°01'22" East 209.04 feet to a point, 

thence North 08°28'32" East 130.26 feet to a new iron pipe, thence North 07°37'37" East 107.73 feet to a 

new iron pipe, thence along a curve to the right having a radius of 745.88 feet, an arc length of 291.24 

feet, and a chord bearing and distance of North 19°18'06" East 289.39 feet to a new iron pipe, thence 

North 28°01'32" East 105.42 feet to a new iron pipe, thence North 27°57'15" East 98.85 feet to a new iron 

pipe, thence North 26°16'53" East 51.35 feet to a new iron pipe, thence North 25°06'17" East 59.28 feet 

to a new iron pipe, thence North 24°26'36" East 92.17 feet to a new iron pipe, thence North 23°57'24" 

East 97.09 feet to a new iron pipe, thence North 23°25'02" East 51.27 feet to a new iron pipe, thence 

leaving said right of way South 88°06'47" East 32.25 feet to the point and place of beginning, containing 

an area of 1.464 acres (63,756 Sq Ft) more or less. 

Tract 1B (portion of PIN east of Tingen Road) 

Beginning at a point on the centerline of Tingen Road (SR 1153) (60’ Public R/W), said point having NC grid 

coordinates (NAD 83 – 2011) of N=714,981.31, E=2,041,723.24, thence from said beginning point leaving 

said centerline South 88°06'47" East 155.35 feet to a new iron pipe on the southern right of way of Apex 

Peakway (Variable Width Public R/W), thence with said right of way along a curve to the left having a radius 

of 617.60 feet, an arc length of 121.30 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of South 86°52'28" East 

121.10 feet to a new iron pipe, thence South 03°58'40" West 624.02 feet to a new iron pipe, thence leaving 

said right South 04°00'20" West 436.18 feet to a new iron pipe, thence South 89°53'29" East 342.63 feet 

to the centerline of Reedy Branch creek, thence with said centerline South 45°59'57" East 23.54 feet to a 

point, thence North 72°48'38" East 3.15 feet to a point, thence North 75°15'06" East 7.35 feet to a point, 

thence North 33°10'05" East 10.52 feet to a point, thence South 87°46'19" East 4.17 feet to a point, thence 

South 54°39'36" East 5.14 feet to a point, thence South 26°52'35" East 6.27 feet to a point, thence South 

20°43'30" East 5.83 feet to a point, thence South 17°30'23" East 26.61 feet to a point, thence South 

00°46'07" West 17.43 feet to a point, thence South 41°53'01" East 17.39 feet to a point, thence South 

80°40'52" East 3.58 feet to a point, thence North 64°11'19" East 10.70 feet to a point, thence North 

77°37'26" East 8.01 feet to a point, thence North 57°26'38" East 10.89 feet to a point, thence South 

39°31'24" East 5.85 feet to a point, thence South 16°35'15" East 18.37 feet to a point, thence South 

52°00'14" West 6.84 feet to a point, thence South 86°55'46" West 2.50 feet to a point, thence North 

72°28'55" West 7.42 feet to a point, thence South 49°09'46" West 4.26 feet to a point, thence South 

30°48'02" West 9.18 feet to a point, thence South 05°29'05" West 12.58 feet to a point, thence South 

45°26'24" West 14.06 feet to a point, thence South 31°17'05" West 17.08 feet to a point, thence North 

73°30'37" West 8.10 feet to a point, thence North 23°04'10" West 5.83 feet to a point, thence North 

58°50'48" West 5.96 feet to a point, thence South 67°39'22" West 14.33 feet to a point, thence North 

75°24'16" West 12.70 feet to a point, thence South 75°30'50" West 6.52 feet to a point, thence South 

50°39'50" West 9.78 feet to a point, thence South 70°43'21" West 6.02 feet to a point, thence North 

84°04'50" West 7.27 feet to a point, thence South 88°14'07" West 6.43 feet to a point, thence South 

32°57'14" West 12.23 feet to a point, thence South 09°13'26" East 11.02 feet to a point, thence South 

Attachment B

- Page 260 -



SEYMOUR MIXED-USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

34 

 

63°40'59" West 7.26 feet to a point, thence South 35°43'18" West 2.50 feet to a point, thence South 

22°56'31" East 6.85 feet to a point, thence South 43°58'43" East 22.14 feet to a point, thence South 

33°07'42" East 6.85 feet to a point, thence South 44°25'37" West 4.93 feet to a point, thence South 

51°32'26" West 7.42 feet to a point, thence South 02°43'51" West 11.17 feet to a point, thence South 

61°27'14" West 19.32 feet to a point, thence North 82°36'48" West 5.54 feet to a point, thence North 

53°31'02" West 9.54 feet to a point, thence South 88°36'59" West 9.49 feet to a point, thence South 

22°02'30" West 5.70 feet to a point, thence South 18°20'34" East 15.39 feet to a point, thence South 

25°37'43" West 3.15 feet to a point, thence South 54°07'06" West 13.28 feet to a point, thence South 

34°52'02" West 10.35 feet to a point, thence South 09°23'18" West 10.61 feet to a point, thence South 

44°07'39" West 4.22 feet to a point, thence South 89°47'26" West 8.89 feet to a point, thence North 

80°07'48" West 5.77 feet to a point, thence South 65°53'06" West 5.32 feet to a point, thence South 

15°32'10" West 4.41 feet to a point, thence South 23°55'15" East 10.55 feet to a point, thence South 

15°11'19" East 21.46 feet to a point, thence South 35°01'48" West 6.12 feet to a point, thence South 

26°01'17" West 9.60 feet to a point, thence South 06°36'28" East 12.87 feet to a point, thence South 

11°03'20" West 10.19 feet to a point, thence South 25°40'29" East 14.41 feet to a point, thence South 

34°17'23" West 5.28 feet to a point, thence South 79°48'16" West 9.03 feet to a point, thence South 

65°51'20" West 8.26 feet to a point, thence South 52°11'41" West 1.76 feet to a point, thence South 

08°11'55" West 9.70 feet to a point, thence South 26°03'32" East 24.42 feet to a point, thence South 

35°44'54" East 8.26 feet to a point, thence South 24°23'03" West 5.72 feet to a point, thence North 

89°45'08" West 3.90 feet to a point, thence South 73°20'10" West 4.45 feet to a point, thence South 

61°29'12" West 2.31 feet to a point, thence South 21°12'21" West 6.40 feet to a point, thence South 

33°05'35" East 10.05 feet to a point, thence South 59°21'18" East 21.66 feet to a point, thence North 

54°11'23" East 2.39 feet to a point, thence North 42°50'40" East 3.89 feet to a point, thence North 

10°37'44" East 16.46 feet to a point, thence North 40°30'56" East 6.51 feet to a point, thence North 

77°03'47" East 11.15 feet to a point, thence South 71°44'26" East 2.27 feet to a point, thence South 

31°13'39" East 9.65 feet to a point, thence South 07°04'43" East 19.93 feet to a point, thence South 

41°22'14" West 12.19 feet to a point, thence South 12°53'55" East 5.36 feet to a point, thence South 

68°10'25" East 14.80 feet to a point, thence South 43°34'27" East 6.47 feet to a point, thence South 

22°10'19" East 2.68 feet to a point, thence South 32°04'22" West 9.18 feet to a point, thence South 

10°02'38" West 3.84 feet to a point, thence South 51°23'30" East 17.86 feet to a point, thence South 

14°34'28" East 4.76 feet to a point, thence South 26°55'19" West 2.80 feet to a point, thence South 

48°09'33" West 11.86 feet to a point, thence South 15°13'15" West 4.85 feet to a point, thence South 

40°38'00" East 4.46 feet to a point, thence South 78°40'18" East 3.42 feet to a point, thence South 

56°50'32" East 11.21 feet to a point, thence South 16°28'14" East 9.82 feet to a point, thence South 

02°23'20" West 2.19 feet to a point, thence South 32°26'48" West 9.27 feet to a point, thence South 

80°13'52" West 7.07 feet to a point, thence South 44°01'57" West 2.27 feet to a point, thence South 

02°34'15" East 6.80 feet to a point, thence South 31°15'37" East 13.55 feet to a point, thence South 

75°12'40" East 11.31 feet to a point, thence South 21°53'48" East 3.77 feet to a point, thence South 

08°57'43" East 4.34 feet to a point, thence South 09°09'45" West 7.09 feet to a point, thence South 

21°58'35" West 8.02 feet to a point, thence South 32°59'50" West 3.04 feet to a point, thence South 

23°58'52" East 5.48 feet to a point, thence South 52°07'55" East 13.11 feet to a point, thence South 

25°26'04" East 13.81 feet to a point, thence South 51°03'25" East 11.15 feet to a point, thence South 

35°51'01" East 8.96 feet to a point, thence South 71°58'21" East 3.42 feet to a point, thence North 

51°21'46" East 12.63 feet to a point, thence South 85°48'11" East 21.94 feet to a point, thence South 

61°09'23" East 5.40 feet to a point, thence South 37°21'25" East 12.74 feet to a point, thence South 

Attachment B

- Page 261 -



SEYMOUR MIXED-USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

35 

 

05°25'52" East 10.46 feet to a point, thence South 57°01'18" East 17.03 feet to a point, thence South 

18°45'31" West 10.60 feet to a point, thence South 25°18'11" East 4.17 feet to a point, thence South 

44°04'01" East 3.46 feet to a point, thence South 59°21'42" East 12.66 feet to a point, thence South 

04°30'56" West 1.71 feet to a point, thence South 28°38'46" West 6.53 feet to a point, thence South 

26°16'08" East 9.09 feet to a point, thence South 65°13'05" East 13.27 feet to a point, thence South 

14°08'04" East 8.89 feet to a point, thence South 18°40'48" West 16.78 feet to a point, thence South 

10°41'09" East 15.70 feet to a point, thence South 34°15'35" West 10.32 feet to a point, thence South 

03°55'21" East 7.89 feet to a point, thence South 41°45'42" East 9.95 feet to a point, thence South 

23°51'26" East 8.02 feet to a point, thence South 16°12'37" West 10.57 feet to a point, thence South 

49°58'33" West 8.82 feet to a point, thence North 86°38'37" West 12.88 feet to a point, thence South 

60°11'38" West 24.51 feet to a point, thence South 31°05'54" West 41.51 feet to a point, thence South 

43°09'26" East 9.06 feet to a point, thence South 75°45'47" East 13.08 feet to a point, thence South 

00°06'38" West 19.75 feet to a point, thence South 25°10'31" East 16.98 feet to a point, thence South 

59°36'47" East 25.37 feet to a point, thence South 21°55'00" East 21.34 feet to a point, thence South 

10°42'09" West 10.94 feet to a point, thence South 16°29'47" East 6.15 feet to a point, thence South 

65°32'43" East 10.64 feet to a point, thence North 72°03'41" East 10.80 feet to a point, thence North 

51°29'17" East 5.64 feet to a point, thence North 28°19'04" East 27.17 feet to a point, thence North 

65°19'26" East 3.68 feet to a point, thence South 80°11'52" East 5.79 feet to a point, thence South 

50°54'22" East 9.76 feet to a point, thence South 28°29'33" East 7.14 feet to a point, thence South 

30°59'48" West 10.68 feet to a point, thence South 11°44'49" West 13.20 feet to a point, thence leaving 

said centerline of creek North 89°01'35" West 1,444.72 feet to a point on the centerline of Tingen Road 

(SR 1153) (60’ Public R/W),thence with said centerline of road North 15°37'11" East 15.50 feet to a point, 

thence along a curve to the right having a radius of 1,423.87 feet, an arc length of 182.99 feet, and a chord 

bearing and distance of North 19°00'25" East 182.86 feet to a point, thence North 22°33'59" East 106.51 

feet to a point, thence North 23°49'47" East 90.16 feet to a point, thence North 24°26'31" East 102.75 feet 

to a point, thence North 24°35'57" East 106.01 feet to a point, thence North 24°35'47" East 103.44 feet to 

a point, thence North 24°06'54" East 110.88 feet to a point, thence along a curve to the left having a radius 

of 814.07 feet, an arc length of 217.77 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of North 17°59'27" East 

217.12 feet to a point, thence North 08°28'32" East 130.97 feet to a point, thence North 07°37'37" East 

107.82 feet to a point, thence along a curve to the right having a radius of 715.88 feet, an arc length of 

280.03 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of North 19°19'56" East 278.25 feet to a point, thence North 

28°01'32" East 106.09 feet to a point, thence North 27°57'15" East 99.30 feet to a point, thence North 

26°16'53" East 52.09 feet to a point, thence North 25°06'17" East 59.76 feet to a point, thence North 

24°26'36" East 92.47 feet to a point, thence North 23°57'24" East 97.36 feet to a point, thence North 

23°25'02" East 63.24 feet to the point and place of beginning, containing an area of 35.258 acres 

(1,535,852 Sq Ft) more or less. 

Save and Except the following Public Right of Way: 

Beginning at a point on the centerline of Tingen Road (SR 1153) (60’ Public R/W), said point having NC grid 

coordinates (NAD 83 – 2011) of N=714,981.31, E=2,041,723.24, thence from said beginning point leaving 

said centerline South 88°06'47" East 32.25 feet to a new iron pipe on the eastern right of way of Tingen 

Road (SR 1153) (60’ Public R/W), thence with said right of way South 23°25'02" West 75.22 feet to a new 

iron pipe, thence South 23°57'24" West 97.63 feet to a new iron pipe, thence South 24°26'36" West 92.77 

feet to a new iron pipe, thence South 25°06'17" West 60.24 feet to a new iron pipe, thence South 26°16'53" 

West 52.84 feet to a new iron pipe, thence South 27°57'15" West 99.76 feet to a new iron pipe, thence 

Attachment B

- Page 262 -



SEYMOUR MIXED-USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

36 

 

South 28°01'32" West 106.77 feet to a new iron pipe, thence along a curve to the left having a radius of 

685.88 feet, an arc length of 268.82 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of South 19°21'53" West 267.10 

feet to a new iron pipe, thence South 07°37'37" West 107.91 feet to a new iron pipe, thence South 

08°28'32" West 131.67 feet to a new iron pipe, thence along a curve to the right having a radius of 844.07 

feet, an arc length of 225.87 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of South 17°57'37" West 225.20 feet 

to a new iron pipe, thence South 24°06'54" West 110.60 feet to a new iron pipe, thence South 24°35'47" 

West 103.57 feet to a new iron pipe, thence South 24°35'57" West 105.97 feet to a new iron pipe, thence 

South 24°26'31" West 102.55 feet to a new iron pipe, thence South 23°49'47" West 89.67 feet to a new 

iron pipe, thence South 22°33'59" West 106.21 feet to a new iron pipe, thence along a curve to the left 

having a radius of 1,393.87 feet, an arc length of 179.24 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of South 

19°00'21" West 179.12 feet to a new iron pipe, thence South 15°37'11" West 7.74 feet to a new iron pipe, 

thence leaving said right of way North 89°01'35" West 31.01 feet to a point on the centerline of Tingen 

Road (SR 1153) (60’ Public R/W), thence with said centerline North 15°37'11" East 15.50 feet to a point, 

thence along a curve to the right having a radius of 1,423.87 feet, an arc length of 182.99 feet, and a chord 

bearing and distance of North 19°00'25" East 182.86 feet to a point, thence North 22°33'59" East 106.51 

feet to a point, thence North 23°49'47" East 90.16 feet to a point, thence North 24°26'31" East 102.75 feet 

to a point, thence North 24°35'57" East 106.01 feet to a point, thence North 24°35'47" East 103.44 feet to 

a point, thence North 24°06'54" East 110.88 feet to a point, thence along a curve to the left having a radius 

of 814.07 feet, an arc length of 217.77 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of North 17°59'27" East 

217.12 feet to a point, thence North 08°28'32" East 130.97 feet to a point, thence North 07°37'37" East 

107.82 feet to a point, thence along a curve to the right having a radius of 715.88 feet, an arc length of 

280.03 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of North 19°19'56" East 278.25 feet to a point, thence North 

28°01'32" East 106.09 feet to a point, thence North 27°57'15" East 99.30 feet to a point, thence North 

26°16'53" East 52.09 feet to a point, thence North 25°06'17" East 59.76 feet to a point, thence North 

24°26'36" East 92.47 feet to a point, thence North 23°57'24" East 97.36 feet to a point, thence North 

23°25'02" East 63.24 feet to a point, which is the point and place of beginning, containing an area of 1.464 

acres (63,753 Sq Ft) more or less. 

PIN 0741155913; 2.426 
Beginning at an existing rebar, said rebar having NC grid coordinates (NAD 83 – 2011) of 
N=715,860.13, E=2,041,971.52, thence from said beginning point North 88°24'37" West 847.05 
feet to a point, thence North 02°57'16" East 102.53 feet to an existing iron pipe, thence North 
88°35'52" East 850.23 feet to an existing iron pipe, thence South 03°19'54" West 146.95 feet to 
the point and place of beginning, containing an area of 2.426 acres (105,669 Sq Ft) more or less. 
 
PIN 0741152543; 21.597 
Beginning at an existing rebar, said rebar having NC grid coordinates (NAD 83 – 2011) of 
N=715,860.13, E=2,041,971.52, thence from said beginning point South 06°39'18" West 348.46 
feet to a new iron pipe on the western right of way of Tingen Road (SR 1153) (Variable Width 
Public R/W), thence with said right of way South 35°13'07" West 9.66 feet to a new iron pipe, 
thence South 30°40'58" West 57.42 feet to a new iron pipe, thence South 25°24'31" West 15.82 
feet to a new iron pipe, thence South 23°19'17" West 26.54 feet to a new iron pipe, thence South 
23°01'21" West 54.24 feet to a new iron pipe, thence South 23°02'29" West 103.42 feet to a new 
iron pipe, thence South 23°14'49" West 8.44 feet to a new iron pipe, thence North 66°11'00" 
West 10.66 feet to a new iron pipe, thence South 23°49'00" West 125.59 feet to a new iron pipe, 

Attachment B

- Page 263 -



SEYMOUR MIXED-USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

37 

 

thence leaving said right of way along a curve to the right having a radius of 50.00 feet, an arc 
length of 67.55 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of South 62°31'20" West 62.53 feet to an 
existing iron pipe on the northern right of way of Apex Peakway (Variable Width Public R/W), 
thence with said right of way along a curve to the left having a radius of 450.00 feet, an arc length 
of 69.82 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of North 83°13'01" West 69.75 feet to an existing 
iron pipe, thence North 87°39'41" West 584.19 feet to an existing iron pipe, thence along a curve 
to the right having a radius of 876.00 feet, an arc length of 522.41 feet, and a chord bearing and 
distance of North 70°34'37" West 514.71 feet to a new iron pipe, thence leaving said right of way 
North 02°33'05" East 570.82 feet to an existing iron pipe, thence South 88°20'16" East 539.99 
feet to a point, thence South 88°24'37" East 847.05 feet to the point and place of beginning, 
containing an area of 21.597 acres (940,753 Sq Ft) more or less. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment B

- Page 264 -



SEYMOUR MIXED-USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

38 

 

EXHIBIT B 
Property Information 

 
PIN: 0741142574 
Site Address: 0 Tingen Road 
Deed Reference (book/page): 12054/774 
Acreage: 57.878 
Owner: Seymour Farm Properties LLC, a North Carolina limited liability company 
Owner Address: PO Box 177, Apex, NC 27502 
 
PIN: 0741155913 
Site Address: 0 Tingen Road 
Deed Reference (book/page): 18392/326; Estate File 09-E-2614 
Acreage: 2.426 
Owner: Tracey Seymour Hedrick; Susan Seymour Mills 
Owner Address: 107 S. Salem Street, Apex, NC 27502 
 
PIN: 0741152543 
Site Address: 0 Tingen Road 
Deed Reference (book/page): 18392/326; Estate File 09-E-2614 
Acreage: 21.597 
Owner: Thomas E. Seymour; Susan Seymour Mills; Tracey Seymour Hedrick; Jason Mills  
Owner Address: 117 Ribbon Walk Lane, Holly Springs, NC 27540 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Attachment B

- Page 265 -



SEYMOUR MIXED-USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

39 

 

 
EXHIBIT C 

The Tingen Road Section 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment B

- Page 266 -



CL

OF WAY

RIGHT

OF WAY

RIGHT

0.02
0.02

0.02
0.02

PAVEMENT DESIGN:

10" AGGREGATE BASE COURSE

4"  ASPHALT CONCRETE INTERMEDIATE COURSE

3"  ASPHALT CONCRETE SURFACE COURSE

10'

M.U.P.

2.5' 2' 11' 1.5' 7.5' 7.5' 1.5' 11' 2' 5'

SW

1'

18' MEDIAN

59' ROADWAY

3'

80' ROW

5' 2.5'5' 7'

Attachment B

- Page 267 -



SEYMOUR MIXED-USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

40 

 

EXHIBIT D 
The Peakway Section  

 
 
 

Attachment B

- Page 268 -



30' TYPE D BUFFER

B.M. 2005, PG. 2002

2
5
' 
T
Y
P
E 

B
 B

UF
FE

R
B
.M
. 
2
0
0
5
, 
P
G
. 
2
0
0
2

2
5
' 
T
Y
P
E 

B
 B

UF
FE

R
B
.M
. 
2
0
0
6
, 
P
G
. 
2
6
2
2

2
5
' 
T
Y
P
E 

B
 B

UF
FE

R
 

B
.M
. 
2
0
0
6
, 
P
G
. 
8
2
0

2
5
' 
T
Y
P
E 

B
 B

UF
FE

R
B
.M
. 
2
0
0
1,
 P

G
. 
2
3
5
2
-2
3
5
7

30
' T

YP
E D
 ST

RE
ET
 FR

ON
T 
BU
FF
ER

B.
M.
 2
00
1, 
PG
. 2
35
2-
23
57

POND

POND

25' TYPE B BUFFER B.M. 2006, PG. 2622

S

S

S

S

S

S
S

S

S

S

S

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

CO

2-CO

CO

CO

CO
E

E

E

E

E

PP

PP

PP

LP

PP

PP

PP

PP

PP PP

SP

PP

PP

EBX

TRAN

TRAN

EBX

EBX

BO

BO

W

W

WV

WV

WV

FH

WMH

WM

BFP

FH

WV WV

WV

WV

WV

WV

WV

WV
WV WV WVWV

WM

WM
WM

FH

2-WV

WV

WV

WM

WM

WM

WV

WVFH

WV

WV

FH

WV

WV

WV

FH

WM

BFP WM

WV

FH WV

3-WV

WV 2-WV
FH WV

 S

 S

 S

 S

 S

 S

 S

 S

 S

 S

FOB

FOB

FOB

FOB

FOB

FOB

FOB

FOB

FOB

FOB

FOB

FOB

FOB

LP

LP

UGEB

UGGLM

FM?

C

C

C

THH

THH

THH

C

CTHH

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

MB

CBX

CBX

CBX

CBX

CBX

UGTB

UGTB

UGTB

UGTB

TLP

TLP

S

S

S

S

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

S

S SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

UGGLM
GV

WW

W
W

WW

UGGLM
GV

BARRICADES

WOOD

BARRICADES

WOOD

G
AT

E

DIRT
 & G

RAV
EL D

RIVE

TO
B

TOB

TO
B

TO
B

TOB

TOB

TOB

TOB

T
O
B

T
O
B

TO
B

TO
B

T
O
B

T
O
B

E
O
P

E
O
P

E
O
P

E
O
P

E
O
P

E
O
P

E
O
P

E
O
P

0

GRAPHIC SCALES

050 25 50 100

DATE:

PROJECT#:011483010
C 2023

CLIENT:

FAX: (919) 677-2050

PHONE: (919) 677-2000

RALEIGH, NC 27601

SUITE 600

421 FAYETTEVILLE STREET
01-19-2024

1/
19
/
2
0
2
4

K
:\

R
A

L
_

R
o
a
d

w
a
y
\
0
11
4
8
3
0
10
 
-
 

A
p
e

x
 

S
e

y
m

o
u
r
 

O
f
f
s
it

e
\

R
o
a
d

w
a
y
\

P
r
o
j
\
a
p
e

x
_
s
e

y
m

o
u
r
_
r
d
y

_
r
o
ll
p
lo
t
_
c
u
lv

e
r
t
_
e

x
t
_
1.
d
g
n

DO NOT USE FOR CONSTRUCTION
PRELIMINARY PLANS

INCOMPLETE PLANS
DO NOT USE FOR R/W ACQUISITION

TINGEN ROAD & APEX PEAKWAY
OFFSITE IMPROVEMENTS

APEX SEYMOUR

10
' 

M
U
P

5
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L
K

2
'-

6
" 
C

&
G

2
'-

6
" 
C

&
G

C
R

C
R

C
R

C
R

C
R

C
R

C
R

C
R

5
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L
K10
' 

M
U
P

2
'-

6
" 
C

&
G

2
'-

6
" 
C

&
G

5
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L
K

10
' 

M
U
P

2
'-

6
" 
C

&
G

2
'-

6
" 
C

&
G

5
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L

K

10
' 

M
U
P

2
'-

6
" 
C

&
G

2
'-

6
" 
C

&
G

5
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L
K

10
' 

M
U
P

2
'-

6
" 
C

&
G

5
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L
K

10
' 

M
U
P

2
'-

6
" 
C

&
G2
'-

6
" 
C

&
G

2
'-

6
" 
C

&
G

10
' 

M
U
P

10
' 

M
U
P

5
' 
S
ID

E
W

A
L
K

2
'-

6
" 
C

&
G

2
'-

6
" 
C

&
G

10
' 

M
U
P

Attachment B

- Page 269 -



As Noted

© 2023 Peak Engineering & Design. All Rights Reserved

1
1
2
5
 
A

p
e
x
 
P

e
a
k
w

a
y
 
|
 
A

p
e
x
,
 
N

C
 
2
7
5
0
2

p
h
:
 
9
1
9
.
4
3
9
.
0
1
0
0

w
w

w
.
P

e
a
k
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
.
c
o
m

(PUD PLAN)

NC License #P-0673

221101

SE
Y

M
O

U
R

 M
IX

ED
-U

SE
 P

U
D

T
IN

G
E

N
 R

O
A

D
 @

 A
PE

X
 P

E
A

K
W

A
Y

W
H

IT
E

 O
A

K
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
A

PE
X

, N
O

R
T

H
 C

A
R

O
L

IN
A

 2
75

02

SEAL

JEFFREY  A . ROA CH

24427

E NG I N E E R

N

O

R

T

H

 

C
AR

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

S
S

I

O

N

A

L

PRELIMINARY

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

JULY 3, 2023

JR JR JR JR

FS

PUD
COVER SHEET

JR

C000

SEYMOUR MIXED-USE
<PUD REZONING>

TINGEN ROAD @ APEX PEAKWAY
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502

PROJECT NUMBER: 221101

VICINITY MAP SCALE: 1" = 800'
N

RIPARIAN BUFFERS AND WETLANDS:
RIPARIAN BUFFERS AND WETLANDS LOCATED ON SITE BY
INVER ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, LLC TO BE CONFIRMED
BY THE US ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS AND TOWN OF APEX.
TOWN OF APEX PROJECT 23-002.

INDEX OF DRAWINGS:
C000 COVER SHEET

C001 EXISTING CONDITIONS
C002 EXISTING CONDITIONS TREE SURVEY

C100 CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN/
CONCEPTUAL UTILITY PLAN

C120 BUILDING ELEVATIONS - RESIDENTIAL
C121 BUILDING ELEVATIONS - TOWNHOUSE &

SMALL SCALE MULTI-FAMILY
C122 BUILDING ELEVATIONS - NON-RESIDENTIAL/

MULTI-FAMILY CLUBHOUSE
C123 BUILDING ELEVATIONS - MULTI-FAMILY

REZONING CASE #23CZ13
SUBMITTED JULY 3, 2023

PROPERTY DATA
Parcel Property Owner Site Address PIN   Deeded Acreage Deed Book/Plat Book

Mills, Susan S. 0 Tingen Road 0741-15-5913 2.426 acres Estate File 09-E-2614
Parcel 1 Hedrick, Tracey Seymour DB18392 Pg326

107 S. Salem Street
Apex, NC 27502-1822

Seymour, Thomas E. 0 Tingen Road 0741-15-2543 21.597 acres DB18392 Pg326
Parcel 2 Tracey Seymour Hedrick

Mills, Susan S. / Jason Mills BM2009 Pg1350
PO Box 177
Apex, NC 27502-0177

Seymour Farm Properties, LLC 0 Tingen Road 0741-14-2574 57.878 acres DB12054 Pg774
Parcel 3 P.O. Box 177 DB352 PG178

Apex, NC 27502-177 BM2006 Pg706

Total Surveyed Acreage: 81.901 acres 3,567,607 sf
(Deeded information and final Survey data may vary slightly)

SITE DATA TABLE
Township: White Oak Township

Flood Zone Information: Firm Panel 3720074100J effective May 2, 2006 does not show the presence of flood zones on the properties
(flood zones are not located within 100' of the property)

Watershed Information: Secondary Watershed Protection Overlay District, Big Branch Creek, Harris Lake Watershed, Cape Fear River

Historical: NC SHPO does not show any existing historical structures

Annexation: Annexation required prior to Construction Document approval (located within the Apex ETJ)

Existing Zoning: Residential Agricultural (RA) - Town of Apex [PIN 0741-14-2574 & 0741-15-2543]
High-Density Single-Family (HDSF) - Town of Apex [PIN 0741-15-5913]

Proposed Zoning: PUD - CZ (Planned Unit Development - Conditional Zoning)
Existing 2045 Land Use Map: Medium Density Residential

Medium/High Density and High Density Residential
High Density Residential
High Density Residential and Office Employment
(No areas within the LUM are shown with 3-stripes for mixed use requirements)

Proposed 2045 Land Use Map: Medium/High Density Residential; High Density Residential; Office Employment,Commercial

Existing Use: Vacant Residential Property
Proposed Uses: Single-Family District

Accessory apartment * Single-family
Park, active Park, passive Greenway Recreation facility, private Utility, minor
* Homeowners Association covenants shall not restrict the construction of Accessory apartments

Mixed Residential Districts
Accessory apartment * Single-family Townhouse
Park, active Park, passive Greenway Recreation facility, private Utility, minor
* Homeowners Association covenants shall not restrict the construction of Accessory apartments

Multi-Family District
Accessory apartment * Multi-family or apartment Townhouse Small Scale Multi-Family
Park, active Park, passive Greenway Recreation facility, private Utility, minor
* Homeowners Association covenants shall not restrict the construction of Accessory apartments

Non-Residential District
Restaurant, general **Restaurant, drive-through Medical or dental office or clinicMedical or dental laboratory Office, business or professional
Publishing office Artisan Studio Barber and beauty shop Book store Convenience store
Dry cleaners and laundry service Financial institution Floral shop Grocery, general Grocery, specialty
Health/fitness center or spa Newsstand or gift shop Personal service Pharmacy Printing and copying service
Real estate sales Retail sales, general Studio for art Tailor shop Upholstery shop Pet services
Day care facility Drop-in or short term day care Veterinary clinic or hospital Utility, minor Recreation facility, private
* Refer to PD Text for a list of uses and other zoning standards
** Restaurant, drive-thru only permitted if within a multi-tenant commercial building

District Standards Single-Family Mixed Residential Multi-Family Small Scale Non-Residential
Townhouse   Townhouse Multi-Family (includes private amenity)

(front loaded) (rear loaded/parking lot style)
Max Density / Max SF 6 DU/acre 8 DU/acre 8 DU/acre 20 DU/acre 12 DU/acre 50,000 SF
Minimum Lot Size 5,000 SF N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Minimum Lot Width 50 feet 20 feet 20 feet N/A 20 feet N/A
Front Setback 20 feet 20 feet 10 feet 20 feet 10 feet 20 feet
Side Setback 5 feet 0 feet (int)/3 feet (end) 0 feet (int)/3 feet (end) 20 feet 0 feet (iint)/3 feet (end) 20 feet
Side (corner) Setback 10 feet 10 feet 10 feet 20 feet 10 feet 20 feet
Rear Setback 10 feet 10 feet 10 feet 20 feet 10 feet 20 feet
Minimum building separation N/A 10 feet 10 feet N/A 10 feet N/A
Buffer/RCA setback - building 10 feet 10 feet 10 feet 10 feet 10 feet 10 feet
Buffer/RCA setback - parking 5 feet 5 feet 5 feet 5 feet 5 feet 5 feet
Max Building Height 45 feet (3 story) 45 feet (3story) 45 feet (3 story) *60 feet (4 story) 45 feet (3 story) 48 feet
Max BUA 60% 65% 65% 70% 70% 70%
* Multi-Family building facades facing Iron Gate, Bradley Terrace, and Tingen Road shall be limited to a maximum building height of three (3) stories (50 feet).
Parking Requirements: Parking shall be provided as noted below or per UDO 8.3

Single-family 2 spaces/dwelling unit
Townhouse 2 spaces/dwelling unit + 0.25 guest spaces/unit    (attached or detached)
Multi-family, apartment, Carriage House 1.3 spaces/dwelling unit for 1 and 2 bedroom units; 1.8 space/dwelling unit for 3 bedroom units
Private Recreation Facility Parking is based upon UDO 8.3.2
Office Employment/Commercial Parking is based upon UDO 8.3.2

RCA Required: Project shall designate a minimum of 20% of the property as RCA. If the Residential (single-family) District is mass graded, it
shall designate a minimum of 20% of the Property as RCA and shall not be required to provide an additional 5% RCA
required for mass grading under UDO Section 7.2.5.B.8.

Grading: Site to be "Mass Graded"
% of lots graded prior to first plat: 100% (grading limitations shall not apply due to existing site conditions)
% of pre-development drainage areas
preserved within their natural basins: 90%

APPLICANT
BARNETT PROPERTIES, LLC
ALAN MANESS, P.E.
7610 FALL OF NEUSE ROAD SUITE 150
RALEIGH, NC 27615
(919) 846-8708
www.BarnettProp.com

ENGINEER/LAND PLANNER
PEAK ENGINEERING & DESIGN, PLLC
JEFF ROACH, P.E.
1125 APEX PEAKWAY
APEX, NC 27502
(919) 439-0100
www.PeakEngineering.com

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT
INVER ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS, LLC
PHIL MAY
105 WEST 4TH STREET  SUITE 700
WINSTON-SALEM, NC 27101
(336)946-1269
www.InverEnv.com

LAND USE ATTORNEY
PARK, POE, ADAMS, & BERNSTEIN LLP
MATTHEW CARPENTER
301 FAYETTEVILLE STREET SUITE 1400
RALEIGH, NC 27601
(919) 835-4032
www.ParkerPoe.com

SURVEYOR
WITHERSRAVENEL, INC.
TIM BOWES, PLS
115 MacKENAN DRIVE
CARY, NC 27511
(919) 469-3340
www.WithersRavenel.com

TRAFFIC ENGINEER
KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES
LYLE OVERCASH, P.E.
421 FAYETTEVILLE STREET SUITE 600
RALEIGH, NC 27601
(919) 677-2000
www.Kimley-Horn.com

PARKS AND RECREATION DATA TABLE
DATE REVIEWED BY PRCR ADVISORY COMMISSION: SEPTEMBER 27, 2023
FEE-IN-LIEU: 2022-2023 RATES

SINGLE-FAMILY DETACHED UNITS $4,016.66 / DWELLING UNIT x  ???? UNITS = $
SINGLE-FAMILY ATTACHED UNITS $2,705.23 / DWELLING UNIT x  ???? UNITS = $
MULTI-FAMILY UNITS $2,381.87 / DWELLING UNIT x  ???? UNITS = $

ACRES OF LAND DEDICATION:             ACRES
PUBLIC GREENWAY TRAIL CONSTRUCTION YES  XX     NO      .

The Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Advisory Commission on September 27, 2023 recommended a fee-in-lieu

of dedication with credit for construction of greenway for a maximum combination of 740 single-family

detached, single-family attached and multi-family residential units.  The current 2023 rate of $4,016.66 per

single-family detached, $2,705.23 per single-family attached, and $2,381.87 per multi-family units which would

be deposited with the Town at the time of the final plat. If the project is not approved by Town Council this

year, the rates would be adjusted in January to the 2024 rate. Staff supports the request to have the

construction timing of the greenway to be completed and accepted prior to 50% of the units West of Tingen

Road receiving a building permit.

PROJECT AERIAL SCALE: 1" = 800'
N

*Refer to the PUD Text for  the full list of 
permitted uses, restrictions, zoning standards, 
and design controls

Attachment B

- Page 270 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
project:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
title:

AutoCAD SHX Text
proj #:

AutoCAD SHX Text
date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
dwg by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
chkd by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
sheet:

AutoCAD SHX Text
seal:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
October 6, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
November 3, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
December 1, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
December 20, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS



Parcel 2

APEX PEAKWAY100' PUBLIC R/W

APEX PEAKWAY
100' PUBLIC R/W

APEX PEAKW
AY

100' PUBLIC
 R/W

PADSTONE DR.

VARIABLE WIDTH PUBLIC
 R/W

PADSTO
NE DR.

50' PUBLIC
 R/W

W
RA

G
BY

 L
A

N
E

50
' P

UB
LI

C
 R

/W

PADSTONE DR.

50' PUBLIC R/W

TIN
GEN RD.

NCSR 1153

70' PUBLIC
 R/W

TIN
G

EN
 R

D.
NC

SR
 1

15
3

60
' P

UB
LIC

 R
/W

TIN
G

EN
 R

D
.

N
C

SR
 1

15
3

60
' P

UB
LIC

 R
/W

TIN
G

EN
 R

D
.

N
C

SR
 1

15
3

60
' P

UB
LIC

 R
/W

SALEM VILLA
GE DR.

50' PUBLIC
 R/W

DRUMLINE DR.

50' PUBLIC R/W

TICE HURST LN.
50' PUBLIC R/W

HA
W

KE
S 

D
R.

50
' P

UB
LI

C
 R

/W

M
O

ST
YN

 LN
.

50
' P

UB
LIC

 R
/W

STANWOOD DR.

50' PUBLIC R/W

WIDGER LN.
60' PUBLIC R/W

INGRAHAM DR.50' PUBLIC R/W

MOSTYN LN.

50' PUBLIC R/W

A
N

TE
RB

UR
Y 

D
R.

PR
IV

A
TE

 A
C

C
ES

S

FANWOOD CT.

PRIVATE ACCESS

A
N

TE
RB

UR
Y 

D
R.

PR
IV

A
TE

 A
C

C
ES

S

SHA
C

KLETO
N

 RD
.

60' PUBLIC
 R/W

LEXINGTON FARM RD.
50' PUBLIC R/W

SH
A

C
KL

ET
O

N
 R

D
.

60
' P

UB
LIC

 R
/W

SH
AC

KL
ET

O
N 

RD
.

60
' P

UB
LIC

 R
/W

A
N

TERBURY D
R.

PRIV
A

TE A
C

C
ESS FORTHVIEW WAY

PRIVATE ACCESS

ELD
O

N
 LN

.
PRIV

A
TE A

C
C

ESS

BABERTON DR.

PRIVATE ACCESS

SHELTER HAVEN DR.

50' PUBLIC
 R/W

PORT H
AVEN

 DR.

50
' P

UBLIC
 R/W

BR
OOMHURS

T L
N.

50
' P

UBL
IC

 R/
W

YATELEY LN.
50' PUBLIC R/W

N/F SEYMOUR, THOMAS E. &
MILLS, SUSAN S.

DB 18392 PG 0326
PIN 0741-15-2543

ZONING: RA
USE: VACANT

N/F SEYMOUR FARM
PROPERTIES, LLC

DB 12054/352 PG 774/178
PIN 0741-14-2574

ZONING: RA
USE: SINGLE FAMILY

N/F SEYMOUR FARM
PROPERTIES, LLC

DB 12054/352 PG 774/178
PIN 0741-14-2574

ZONING: RA
USE: SINGLE FAMILY

N/F SEYMOUR FARM
PROPERTIES, LLC

DB 12054/352 PG 774/178
PIN 0741-14-2574

ZONING: RA
USE: SINGLE FAMILY

N/F SEYMOUR FARM
PROPERTIES, LLC

DB 12054/352 PG 774/178
PIN 0741-14-2574

ZONING: RA
USE: SINGLE FAMILY

N/F MILLS, SUSAN S. &
HEDRICK, TRACEY S.

DB 1457 PG 027
PIN 0741-15-5913

ZONING: RA
USE: VACANT

1

2 3
4

5
6 7 8

10

11

12

13

14

N/F SURE & STEADFAST
PROPERTY LTD PRNRP

DB 8494 PG 1585
PIN 0741-33-1566

ZONING: RA
USE: VACANT

N/F TOWN OF APEX
DB 8494 PG

PIN 0741-32-6706
ZONING: LI

USE: TOWN SERVICES

15161718192021222324252627

N/F SALEM VILLAGE OWNERS
ASSOCIATION
DB 8494 PG

PIN 0741-03-4400
ZONING: MD-CZ

USE: OPEN SPACE/SUBDIVISION

28

29

30

31

32

33
34 35 36 37 38

39

40

41

42

43

44

9

N/F SEYMOUR, THOMAS E. &
MILLS, SUSAN S.
DB 18392 PG 0326
PIN 0741-15-2543

ZONING: RA
USE: VACANT

60"RCP SD WW

WW

WW

TOB

TOB

TO
B

TO
B

TO
B

TO
B

TO
B

TO
B

20'

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH
SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

20'

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH
SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

EX. POND
(to be drained)

EX. POND
(to be drained)

X

X

LP

DIRT & GRAVEL DRIVE

/
/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

PP

PP

PP

WELL

DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

D.B. 14798, PG. 2448

20' DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

D.B. 14798, PG. 2448

N/F APEX FIRST BAPTIST
CHURCH TRUSTEE
DB 10636 PG 2551
PIN 0741-15-9109

ZONING: RA
USE: CEMETERY

N/F SALEM VILLAGE HOA
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AREA

N/F SALEM VILLAGE HOA
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AREA

N/F SALEM VILLAGE HOA
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AREA

Tract 1

Tract 2
Parcel 2

Parcel 1

Tract 3
Parcel 3

Tract 3
Parcel 3

Tract 4
Parcel 3

Tract 5
Parcel 3

Tract 6
Parcel 3

ADJACENT PROPERTY OWNERS
# OWNER PIN USE ZONING

1 SALEM VILLAGE OWNERS ASSOC 0741-05-5626 VACANT/FUT DEVELOPMENT MD-CZ
2 SALEM VILLAGE OWNERS ASSOC 0741-06-7076 OPEN SPACE MD-CZ
3 SALEM VILLAGE OWNERS ASSOC 0741-06-9223 OPEN SPACE MD-CZ
4 JOHNSON WHITE, JOHN & CARISSA 0741-05-9982 SINGLE FAMILY MD-CZ
5 HINDLE, JEFFREY & JENNIFER 0741-16-1092 SINGLE FAMILY HD-SF
6 KALUKA, JESSE & MIRANDA 0741-16-3075 SINGLE FAMILY HD-SF
7 PRESNALL, HUNTER & SHERRY 0741-16-5016 SINGLE FAMILY HD-SF
8 MACDONAGH, MICHAEL & ALISON 0741-16-8015 SINGLE FAMILY HD-SF
9 SALEM VILLAGE OWNERS ASSOC 0741-16-7239 OPEN SPACE HD-SF
10 WESTHAVEN TOWNHOMES HOA 0741-26-1195 OPEN SPACE HD-MF
11 BRADLEY TERRACE HOMEOWNERS ASSN 0741-24-2677 OPEN SPACE HD-MF
12 BRADLEY TERRACE HOMEOWNERS ASSN 0741-24-1622 OPEN SPACE HD-MF
13 BRADLEY TERRACE HOMEOWNERS ASSN 0741-24-0185 OPEN SPACE HD-MF
14 TOWN OF APEX 0741-24-3405 STREAM BUFFER/OPEN SPACE MH-CU
15 LASSITER, ROBERT M. SR 0741-22-2951 VACANT RESIDENTIAL RR
16 CLINKSCALE, TRACI L. 0741-22-1859 VACANT RESIDENTIAL RR
17 CLINKSCALE, TRACI L. 0741-22-0858 VACANT RESIDENTIAL RR
18 HOLLAND, FLORA ANN 0741-12-9847 VACANT RESIDENTIAL RR
19 LASSITER, ROBERT MCCOY 0741-12-8837 VACANT RESIDENTIAL RR
20 SMITH, CHANTA R. 0741-12-7837 VACANT RESIDENTIAL RR
21 LASSITER, ROBERT & VANESSA 0741-12-6837 VACANT RESIDENTIAL RR
22 LASSITER, ROBERT & VANESSA 0741-12-5847 RESIDENTIAL RR
23 ATKINS, JOHN T. 0741-12-4848 VACANT RESIDENTIAL RR
24 GREENE, MARGARET 0741-12-3857 RESIDENTIAL RR
25 RICKENBAKER, THOMAS & HEATHER 0741-12-2838 RESIDENTIAL RR
26 MEDERO, ANGEL & SIERRA-TORRES, TAMIA 0741-12-1839 RESIDENTIAL RR
27 BYRD, LEVANDER 0741-12-0818 RESIDENTIAL RR
28 FRANZEL, NICHOALS & CARMELA 0741-03-4851 RESIDENTIAL MD-CZ
29 MCLAUGHLIN, SHIRLEY & SCHENCK, SCOTT 0741-03-4868 RESIDENTIAL MD-CZ
30 DAUM, ERIC & JULIA 0741-03-4964 RESIDENTIAL MD-CZ
31 CRIBBS, ADAM & MELISSA 0741-04-4060 RESIDENTIAL MD-CZ
32 BALDRIDGE, CLIFFORD & NICHOLE 0741-04-4066 RESIDENTIAL MD-CZ
33 INGHAM, CHRISTOPHER & AMANDA 0741-04-4153 RESIDENTIAL MD-CZ
34 SALEM VILLAGE OWNERS ASSOC 0741-04-3481 OPEN SPACE MD-CZ
35 GALLINGER, SCOTT 0741-04-8108 RESIDENTIAL MD-CZ
36 BIANCO, FANK & ANNE 0741-04-8178 RESIDENTIAL MD-CZ
37 KALYNA, ANDRIY & TETYANA 0741-04-9197 RESIDENTIAL MD-CZ
38 ROYAL, DAVID & NETA 0741-14-0167 RESIDENTIAL MD-CZ
39 GARNER, DAMON & MINERVA 0741-14-0375 RESIDENTIAL MD-CZ
40 MOORE, STEVEN & SARAH 0741-14-0479 RESIDENTIAL MD-CZ
41 BUNCE, MICHAEL & MICHELLE 0741-14-0781 RESIDENTIAL MD-CZ
42 WELCH, CHRISTINE 0741-14-0857 RESIDENTIAL MD-CZ
43 NEELABH, APOORVA & MAMTA 0741-14-0974 RESIDENTIAL MD-CZ
44 SALEM VILLAGE OWNERS ASSOC 0741-15-3034 OPEN SPACE/BUFFER/SIGN ESMT MD-CZ/RA

As Noted

© 2023 Peak Engineering & Design. All Rights Reserved

1
1
2
5
 
A

p
e
x
 
P

e
a
k
w

a
y
 
|
 
A

p
e
x
,
 
N

C
 
2
7
5
0
2

p
h
:
 
9
1
9
.
4
3
9
.
0
1
0
0

w
w

w
.
P

e
a
k
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
.
c
o
m

(PUD PLAN)

NC License #P-0673

221101

SE
Y

M
O

U
R

 M
IX

ED
-U

SE
 P

U
D

T
IN

G
E

N
 R

O
A

D
 @

 A
PE

X
 P

E
A

K
W

A
Y

W
H

IT
E

 O
A

K
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
A

PE
X

, N
O

R
T

H
 C

A
R

O
L

IN
A

 2
75

02

SEAL

JEFFREY  A . ROA CH

24427

E NG I N E E R

N

O

R

T

H

 

C
AR

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

S
S

I

O

N

A

L

PRELIMINARY

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

JULY 3, 2023

JR JR JR JR

FS

EXISTING
CONDITIONS

PLAN

JR

C001

PROJECT PERIMETER BOUNDARY

PROPOSED WATER CONNECTIONS

PROPOSED SEWER CONNECTIONS

POTENTIAL ACCESS POINTS

PLAN SHEETS ARE INTENDED FOR
ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY

*

EXISTING CONDITIONS NOTES:
1. BOUNDARY SURVEY PROVIDED BY WITHERSRAVENEL.

2. TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION FROM WAKE COUNTY GIS AND SURVEYOR DATA.

3. NO SLOPES EQUAL TO OR GREATER THAN 3:1 FOUND ON THE SITE.

4. NO HISTORIC INVENTORY SITES OR NATURAL INVENTORY AREAS LOCATED ON OR WITHIN
100' OF THIS PROPERTY AS NOTED WITHIN THE SITE DATA TABLE.

5. PROPOSED GREENWAY OR TRAILS ARE SHOWN WITHIN THE ADOPTED PARK AND
GREENWAY MASTER PLAN.

6. 100-YR FLOOD PLAIN IS NOT LOCATED ON OR WITHIN 100' OF THE PROPERTIES.

7. PROPERTIES ARE LOCATED WITHIN THE SECONDARY WATERSHED PROTECTION OVERLAY
DISTRICT, BIG BRANCH BASIN, HARRIS LAKE WATERSHED, CAPE FEAR RIVER BASIN.

RIPARIAN BUFFERS AND WETLANDS:
RIPARIAN BUFFERS AND WETLANDS LOCATED ON SITE BY
INVER ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, LLC TO BE CONFIRMED
BY THE US ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS AND TOWN OF APEX.
TOWN OF APEX PROJECT 23-002.

0

SCALE: 1" =

75 150 300

150'

SCALE:

EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN
1"=150'C001

1

N

STREAM BUFFERSZONE 1 ZONE 2 ZONE 3

Attachment B

- Page 271 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND AREA "WG"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND AREA "WD"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND AREA "WC"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND AREA "WA"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND AREA "WB"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND AREA "WF"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND AREA "WE"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND AREA "WN"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND AREA "WH"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND AREA "WI"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND AREA "WJ"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND AREA "WK"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND AREA "WL"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND AREA "WM"

AutoCAD SHX Text
project:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
title:

AutoCAD SHX Text
proj #:

AutoCAD SHX Text
date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
dwg by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
chkd by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
sheet:

AutoCAD SHX Text
seal:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
October 6, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
November 3, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
December 1, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
December 20, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS



Parcel 2

APEX PEAKWAY100' PUBLIC R/W

APEX PEAKWAY
100' PUBLIC R/W

APEX PEAKW
AY

100' PUBLIC
 R/W

PADSTONE DR.

VARIABLE WIDTH PUBLIC
 R/W

PADSTO
NE DR.

50' PUBLIC
 R/W

W
RA

G
BY

 L
A

N
E

50
' P

UB
LI

C
 R

/W

PADSTONE DR.

50' PUBLIC R/W

TIN
GEN RD.

NCSR 1153

70' PUBLIC
 R/W

TIN
G

EN
 R

D.
NC

SR
 1

15
3

60
' P

UB
LIC

 R
/W

TIN
G

EN
 R

D
.

N
C

SR
 1

15
3

60
' P

UB
LIC

 R
/W

TIN
G

EN
 R

D
.

N
C

SR
 1

15
3

60
' P

UB
LIC

 R
/W

SALEM VILLA
GE DR.

50' PUBLIC
 R/W

DRUMLINE DR.

50' PUBLIC R/W

TICE HURST LN.
50' PUBLIC R/W

HA
W

KE
S 

D
R.

50
' P

UB
LI

C
 R

/W

M
O

ST
YN

 LN
.

50
' P

UB
LIC

 R
/W

STANWOOD DR.

50' PUBLIC R/W

WIDGER LN.
60' PUBLIC R/W

INGRAHAM DR.50' PUBLIC R/W

MOSTYN LN.

50' PUBLIC R/W

A
N

TE
RB

UR
Y 

D
R.

PR
IV

A
TE

 A
C

C
ES

S

FANWOOD CT.

PRIVATE ACCESS

A
N

TE
RB

UR
Y 

D
R.

PR
IV

A
TE

 A
C

C
ES

S

SHA
C

KLETO
N

 RD
.

60' PUBLIC
 R/W

LEXINGTON FARM RD.
50' PUBLIC R/W

SH
A

C
KL

ET
O

N
 R

D
.

60
' P

UB
LIC

 R
/W

SH
AC

KL
ET

O
N 

RD
.

60
' P

UB
LIC

 R
/W

A
N

TERBURY D
R.

PRIV
A

TE A
C

C
ESS FORTHVIEW WAY

PRIVATE ACCESS

ELD
O

N
 LN

.
PRIV

A
TE A

C
C

ESS

BABERTON DR.

PRIVATE ACCESS

SHELTER HAVEN DR.

50' PUBLIC
 R/W

PORT H
AVEN

 DR.

50
' P

UBLIC
 R/W

BR
OOMHURS

T L
N.

50
' P

UBL
IC

 R/
W

YATELEY LN.
50' PUBLIC R/W

N/F SEYMOUR, THOMAS E. &
MILLS, SUSAN S.
DB 18392 PG 0326
PIN 0741-15-2543

ZONING: RA
USE: VACANT

N/F SEYMOUR FARM
PROPERTIES, LLC

DB 12054/352 PG 774/178
PIN 0741-14-2574

ZONING: RA
USE: SINGLE FAMILY

N/F SEYMOUR FARM
PROPERTIES, LLC

DB 12054/352 PG 774/178
PIN 0741-14-2574

ZONING: RA
USE: SINGLE FAMILY

N/F SEYMOUR FARM
PROPERTIES, LLC

DB 12054/352 PG 774/178
PIN 0741-14-2574

ZONING: RA
USE: SINGLE FAMILY

N/F SEYMOUR FARM
PROPERTIES, LLC

DB 12054/352 PG 774/178
PIN 0741-14-2574

ZONING: RA
USE: SINGLE FAMILY

N/F MILLS, SUSAN S. &
HEDRICK, TRACEY S.

DB 1457 PG 027
PIN 0741-15-5913

ZONING: RA
USE: VACANT

1

2 3
4

5
6 7 8

10

11

12

13

14

N/F SURE & STEADFAST
PROPERTY LTD PRNRP

DB 8494 PG 1585
PIN 0741-33-1566

ZONING: RA
USE: VACANT

N/F TOWN OF APEX
DB 8494 PG

PIN 0741-32-6706
ZONING: LI

USE: TOWN SERVICES

15161718192021222324252627

N/F SALEM VILLAGE OWNERS
ASSOCIATION
DB 8494 PG

PIN 0741-03-4400
ZONING: MD-CZ

USE: OPEN SPACE/SUBDIVISION

28

29

30

31

32

33
34 35 36 37 38

39

40

41

42

43

44

9

N/F SEYMOUR, THOMAS E. &
MILLS, SUSAN S.
DB 18392 PG 0326
PIN 0741-15-2543

ZONING: RA
USE: VACANT

60"RCP SD WW

WW

WW

TOB

TOB

TO
B

TO
B

TO
B

TO
B

TO
B

TO
B

20'

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH
SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

20'

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH
SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

EX. POND
(to be drained)

EX. POND
(to be drained)

X

X

LP

DIRT & GRAVEL DRIVE

/
/

/
/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

PP

PP

PP

WELL

DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

D.B. 14798, PG. 2448

20' DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

D.B. 14798, PG. 2448

N/F APEX FIRST BAPTIST
CHURCH TRUSTEE
DB 10636 PG 2551
PIN 0741-15-9109

ZONING: RA
USE: CEMETERY

N/F SALEM VILLAGE HOA
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AREA

N/F SALEM VILLAGE HOA
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AREA

N/F SALEM VILLAGE HOA
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AREA

Tract 1

Tract 2
Parcel 2

Parcel 1

Tract 3
Parcel 3

Tract 3
Parcel 3

Tract 4
Parcel 3

Tract 5
Parcel 3

Tract 6
Parcel 3

As Noted

© 2023 Peak Engineering & Design. All Rights Reserved

1
1
2
5
 
A

p
e
x
 
P

e
a
k
w

a
y
 
|
 
A

p
e
x
,
 
N

C
 
2
7
5
0
2

p
h
:
 
9
1
9
.
4
3
9
.
0
1
0
0

w
w

w
.
P

e
a
k
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
.
c
o
m

(PUD PLAN)

NC License #P-0673

221101

SE
Y

M
O

U
R

 M
IX

ED
-U

SE
 P

U
D

T
IN

G
E

N
 R

O
A

D
 @

 A
PE

X
 P

E
A

K
W

A
Y

W
H

IT
E

 O
A

K
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
A

PE
X

, N
O

R
T

H
 C

A
R

O
L

IN
A

 2
75

02

SEAL

JEFFREY  A . ROA CH

24427

E NG I N E E R

N

O

R

T

H

 

C
AR

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

S
S

I

O

N

A

L

PRELIMINARY

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

JULY 3, 2023

JR JR JR JR

FS

EXISTING
CONDITIONS

TREE SURVEY

JR

C002

RIPARIAN BUFFERS AND WETLANDS:

RIPARIAN BUFFERS AND WETLANDS LOCATED ON SITE BY
INVER ENVIRONMENTAL TO BE CONFIRMED BY THE US ARMY
CORPS OF ENGINEERS AND TOWN OF APEX.
TOWN OF APEX PROJECT 23-002.

EXISTING CONDITIONS NOTES:
1. BOUNDARY SURVEY PROVIDED BY WITHERSRAVENEL.

2. TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION FROM WAKE COUNTY GIS AND SURVEYOR DATA.

3. NO SLOPES EQUAL TO OR GREATER THAN 3:1 FOUND ON THE SITE.

4. NO HISTORIC INVENTORY SITES OR NATURAL INVENTORY AREAS LOCATED ON OR WITHIN
100' OF THIS PROPERTY AS NOTED WITHIN THE SITE DATA TABLE.

5. PROPOSED GREENWAY OR TRAILS ARE SHOWN WITHIN THE ADOPTED PARK AND
GREENWAY MASTER PLAN.

6. 100-YR FLOOD PLAIN IS NOT LOCATED ON OR WITHIN 100' OF THE PROPERTIES.

7. PROPERTIES ARE LOCATED WITHIN THE SECONDARY WATERSHED PROTECTION OVERLAY
DISTRICT, BIG BRANCH BASIN, HARRIS LAKE WATERSHED, CAPE FEAR RIVER BASIN.

PROJECT PERIMETER BOUNDARY

PLAN SHEETS ARE INTENDED FOR
ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY

ALL LARGE TREES ON-SITE HAVE BEEN
INCLUDED FOR REFERENCE ONLY.

FUTURE PRESERVATION AND AVOIDANCE OF
EXISTING VEGETATION TO BE COORDINATED

WITH STAFF.

REQUIRED PLAN NOTES:

1) NO SITE DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITY INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, TESTING, CLEARING, INSTALLATION OF
S&E MEASURES, OR GRADING SHALL OCCUR UNTIL REQUIRED TREE PROTECTION FENCING HAS BEEN
INSTALLED AND INSPECTED. A TREE PROTECTION FENCING INSTALLATION PERMIT MAY BE OBTAINED AT THE
PLANNING DEPARTMENT OR ONLINE AT HTTP://WWW.APEXNC.ORG/215/APPLICATIONS-SCHEDULES.

2) TREE PROTECTION FENCING MUST BE PLACED:

a. ONE FOOT AWAY FROM ANY SAVED TREE FOR EACH INCH OF DIAMETER AT BREAST HEIGHT;

b. ALONG THE OUTSIDE LINE OF THE 100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN AND THE OUTSIDE EDGE OF ANY RIPARIAN
BUFFER; AND

c. AT LEAST 10 FEET AWAY FROM ANY OTHER DESIGNATED RCA SUCH AS, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, HISTORIC
BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES, WETLANDS, AND PONDS.

3) ADDITIONAL TREE PROTECTION FENCING MAY BE REQUIRED IN OTHER LOCATIONS CLOSE TO
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY WHERE IT IS DEEMED NECESSARY BY THE ZONING ENFORCEMENT OFFICER; SUCH
AREAS MAY INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO, COMMON PROPERTY LINES OR NEAR PUBLIC AREAS
(SIDEWALKS, ETC.).

0

SCALE: 1" =

75 150 300

150'

SCALE:

EXISTING CONDITIONS TREE SURVEY
1"=150'C002

1

N

STREAM BUFFERSZONE 1 ZONE 2 ZONE 3

Attachment B

- Page 272 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
project:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
title:

AutoCAD SHX Text
proj #:

AutoCAD SHX Text
date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
dwg by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
chkd by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
sheet:

AutoCAD SHX Text
seal:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
October 6, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
November 3, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
December 1, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
December 20, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS



EX PERRY ROAD
PUMP STATION

Parcel 2

2

0

'

R

/

W

D

E

D

I

C

A

T

I

O

N

2
0
'

R

/
W

D

E

D

I
C

A

T
I
O

N

2

0

'

R

/

W

D

E

D

I

C

A

T

I

O

N

2

0

'

R

/

WD

E

D

I

C

A

T

I

O

N

APEX PEAKWAY100' PUBLIC R/W

APEX PEAKWAY
100' PUBLIC R/W

APEX PEAKW
AY

100' PUBLIC
 R/W

PADSTONE DR.

VARIABLE WIDTH PUBLIC
 R/W

PADSTO
NE DR.

50' PUBLIC
 R/W

W
RA

G
BY

 L
A

N
E

50
' P

UB
LI

C
 R

/W

PADSTONE DR.

50' PUBLIC R/W

TIN
GEN RD.

NCSR 1153

70' PUBLIC
 R/W

TIN
G

EN
 R

D.
NC

SR
 1

15
3

60
' P

UB
LIC

 R
/W

TIN
G

EN
 R

D
.

NC
SR

 1
15

3
60

' P
UB

LIC
 R

/W

TIN
G

EN
 R

D
.

N
C

SR
 1

15
3

60
' P

UB
LIC

 R
/W

SALEM VILLA
GE DR.

50' PUBLIC
 R/W

DRUMLINE DR.

50' PUBLIC R/W

TICE HURST LN.
50' PUBLIC R/W

HA
W

KE
S 

D
R.

50
' P

UB
LI

C
 R

/W

M
O

ST
YN

 LN
.

50
' P

UB
LIC

 R
/W

STANWOOD DR.

50' PUBLIC R/W

WIDGER LN.
60' PUBLIC R/W

INGRAHAM DR.50' PUBLIC R/W

MOSTYN LN.

50' PUBLIC R/W

IRONGATE DR.
NCSR 1209

60' PUBLIC R/W
IRONGATE DR.

NCSR 1209
60' PUBLIC R/W

A
N

TE
RB

UR
Y 

D
R.

PR
IV

A
TE

 A
C

C
ES

S

FANWOOD CT.

PRIVATE ACCESS

A
N

TE
RB

UR
Y 

D
R.

PR
IV

A
TE

 A
C

C
ES

S

SHA
C

KLETO
N

 RD
.

60' PUBLIC
 R/W

LEXINGTON FARM RD.
50' PUBLIC R/W

SH
A

C
KL

ET
O

N
 R

D
.

60
' P

UB
LIC

 R
/W

SH
AC

KL
ET

O
N 

RD
.

60
' P

UB
LIC

 R
/W

A
N

TERBURY D
R.

PRIV
A

TE A
C

C
ESS FORTHVIEW WAY

PRIVATE ACCESS

ELD
O

N
 LN

.
PRIV

A
TE A

C
C

ESS

BABERTON DR.

PRIVATE ACCESS

SHELTER HAVEN DR.

50' PUBLIC
 R/W

PORT H
AVEN

 DR.

50
' P

UBLIC
 R/W

BR
OOMHURS

T L
N.

50
' P

UBL
IC

 R/
W

YATELEY LN.
50' PUBLIC R/W

N/F SEYMOUR, THOMAS E. &
MILLS, SUSAN S.
DB 18392 PG 0326
PIN 0741-15-2543

ZONING: RA
USE: VACANT

N/F SEYMOUR FARM
PROPERTIES, LLC

DB 12054/352 PG 774/178
PIN 0741-14-2574

ZONING: RA
USE: SINGLE FAMILY

N/F SEYMOUR FARM
PROPERTIES, LLC

DB 12054/352 PG 774/178
PIN 0741-14-2574

ZONING: RA
USE: SINGLE FAMILY

N/F SEYMOUR FARM
PROPERTIES, LLC

DB 12054/352 PG 774/178
PIN 0741-14-2574

ZONING: RA
USE: SINGLE FAMILY

N/F SEYMOUR FARM
PROPERTIES, LLC

DB 12054/352 PG 774/178
PIN 0741-14-2574

ZONING: RA
USE: SINGLE FAMILY

N/F MILLS, SUSAN S. &
HEDRICK, TRACEY S.

DB 1457 PG 027
PIN 0741-15-5913

ZONING: RA
USE: VACANT

1

2 3
4

5
6 7 8

10

11

12

13

14

N/F SURE & STEADFAST
PROPERTY LTD PRNRP

DB 8494 PG 1585
PIN 0741-33-1566

ZONING: RA
USE: VACANT

N/F TOWN OF APEX
DB 8494 PG

PIN 0741-32-6706
ZONING: LI

USE: TOWN SERVICES

15161718192021222324252627

N/F SALEM VILLAGE OWNERS
ASSOCIATION
DB 8494 PG

PIN 0741-03-4400
ZONING: MD-CZ

USE: OPEN SPACE/SUBDIVISION

28

29

30

31

32

33
34 35 36 37 38

39

40

41

42

43

44

9

N/F SEYMOUR, THOMAS E. &
MILLS, SUSAN S.

DB 18392 PG 0326
PIN 0741-15-2543

ZONING: RA
USE: VACANT

60"RCP SD WW

WW

WW

TOB

TOB

TO
B

TO
B

TO
B

TO
B

TO
B

TO
B

20'20'

EX. POND
(to be drained)

EX. POND
(to be drained)

X

X

LP

DIRT & GRAVEL DRIVE

/
/

/
/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

PP

PP

PP

WELL

N/F APEX FIRST BAPTIST
CHURCH TRUSTEE
DB 10636 PG 2551
PIN 0741-15-9109

ZONING: RA
USE: CEMETERY

N/F SALEM VILLAGE HOA
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AREA

N/F SALEM VILLAGE HOA
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AREA

N/F SALEM VILLAGE HOA
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AREA

EAST-WEST MAJOR
COLLECTOR

(REVISED PER CURRENT
TRANSPORTATION PLAN)

15
' T

YP
E 

'B
' B

UF
FE

R
(R

ED
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
BU

FF
ER

)

15' TYPE 'B' BUFFER

15' TYPE 'B' BUFFER

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 B
UF

FE
R

30' TYPE 'B' BUFFER
30' TYPE 'B' BUFFER

15
' T

YP
E 

'B
' B

UF
FE

R

10' TYPE 'B' BUFFER
LA

ND
SC

AP
E 

BU
FF

ER

15
' T

YP
E 

'B
' B

UF
FE

R

15
' T

YP
E 

'B
' B

UF
FE

R

30
' T

YP
E 

'B
' B

UF
FE

R

15' TYPE 'B' BUFFER

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
BU

FF
ER

15
' T

YP
E 

'B
' B

UF
FE

R
15

' T
YP

E 
'B

' B
UF

FE
R 15' TYPE 'A' BUFFER

15' TYPE 'A' BUFFER

15' TYPE 'B' BUFFER

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
BU

FF
ER

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
BU

FF
ER

30' TYPE 'B' BUFFER

15
' T

YP
E 

'A
' B

UF
FE

R

15
' T

YP
E 

'A
' B

UF
FE

R

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 B
UF

FE
R

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
BU

FF
ER

30' TYPE 'A' BUFFER
30' TYPE 'A' BUFFER

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
BU

FF
ER

15
' T

YP
E 

'B
' B

UF
FE

R

PROPOSED PUBLIC
GREENWAY ALIGNMENT

FINAL GREENWAY
ALIGNMENT TO BE

COORDINATED WITH STAFF

FINAL ALIGNMENT TO BE
COORDINATED WITH STAFF

OPEN SPACE/RESOURCE
CONSERVATION AREA

OPEN SPACE/RESOURCE
CONSERVATION AREA

PROPOSED TRAFFIC
CIRCLE/ROUNDABOUT

POSSIBLE STREAM
CROSSING

POSSIBLE STREAM
CROSSING

Tract 1

Tract 2
Parcel 2

Parcel 1

Tract 3
Parcel 3

Tract 3
Parcel 3

Tract 4
Parcel 3

Tract 5
Parcel 3

Tract 6
Parcel 3

PROPOSED PUBLIC GREENWAY
(FINAL ALIGNMENT TO BE
COORDINATED DURING SITE DESIGN

As Noted

© 2023 Peak Engineering & Design. All Rights Reserved

1
1
2
5
 
A

p
e
x
 
P

e
a
k
w

a
y
 
|
 
A

p
e
x
,
 
N

C
 
2
7
5
0
2

p
h
:
 
9
1
9
.
4
3
9
.
0
1
0
0

w
w

w
.
P

e
a
k
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
.
c
o
m

(PUD PLAN)

NC License #P-0673

221101

SE
Y

M
O

U
R

 M
IX

ED
-U

SE
 P

U
D

T
IN

G
E

N
 R

O
A

D
 @

 A
PE

X
 P

E
A

K
W

A
Y

W
H

IT
E

 O
A

K
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
A

PE
X

, N
O

R
T

H
 C

A
R

O
L

IN
A

 2
75

02

SEAL

JEFFREY  A . ROA CH

24427

E NG I N E E R

N

O

R

T

H

 

C
AR

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

S
S

I

O

N

A

L

PRELIMINARY

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

JULY 3, 2023

JR JR JR JR

0

SCALE: 1" =

75 150 300

150'

SCALE:

CONCEPTUAL UTILITY PLAN
1"=150'C100

1

N

FS

CONCEPTUAL
SITE PLAN/

CONCEPTUAL
UTILITY PLAN

JR

C100

CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN/

SITE AND UTILITY NOTES:
1. DEVELOPMENT ACCESS AND STUB STREET LOCATIONS SHALL BE FINALIZED AT MASTER SUBDIVISION PLAN DESIGN AND

APPROVAL.

2. FINAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION AREA (RCA), OPEN SPACE, AND PLAY LAWN LOCATIONS SHALL BE COORDINATED
WITH STAFF AND BUILDER DURING MASTER SUBDIVISION PLAN DESIGN AND APPROVAL.

3. ALL ZONING PLAN SHEETS ARE PROVIDED FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY. FINAL DESIGN COMPONENTS ARE
DETERMINED AT MASTER SUBDIVISION PLAN.

4. REFER TO PD TEXT DOCUMENTS FOR A LIST OF ALLOWABLE USES, ZONING CONDITIONS, AND OTHER DESIGN STANDARDS
FOR THE DEVELOPMENT.

5. ENVIRONMENTAL FEATURES ARE SUBJECT TO FINAL REVIEW CONCURRENCE WITH VARIOUS REGULATING AGENCIES.

6. PUBLIC PEDESTRIAN AND VEHICULAR ACCESS IS SHOWN FOR CONCEPTUAL PURPOSES AND ARE SUBJECT TO REVISIONS
DURING THE MASTER SUBDIVISION PLAN DESIGN AND APPROVAL.

7. ALL SITE ELEMENTS ARE REQUIRED TO MEET OR EXCEED TOWN OF APEX, NCDOT, OR OTHER REVIEW AUTHORITY STANDARD
DESIGN SPECIFICATIONS.

8. PROJECT WILL COMPLY WITH ADOPTED TOWN MASTER PLANS INCLUDING TRANSPORTATION, WATER, SEWER, AND
GREENWAYS.

9. THE PROJECT IS REQUESTING FULL TOWN SERVICES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO WATER, SEWER AND ELECTRICITY.

10. THE PROJECT WILL NOT UTILIZE PRIVATE SEWAGE DISPOSAL.

11. NO SITE DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITY INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, TESTING, CLEARING, INSTALLATION OF S&E MEASURES,
OR GRADING SHALL OCCUR UNTIL REQUIRED TREE PROTECTION FENCING HAS BEEN INSTALLED AND INSPECTED. A TREE
PROTECTION FENCING INSTALLATION PERMIT MAY BE OBTAINED AT THE PLANNING DEPARTMENT OR ONLINE AT
HTTP://WWW.APEXNC.ORG/215/APPLICATIONS-SCHEDULES.

12. TREE PROTECTION FENCING MUST BE PLACED:
a. ONE FOOT AWAY FROM ANY SAVED TREE FOR EACH INCH OF DIAMETER AT BREAST HEIGHT;
b. ALONG THE OUTSIDE LINE OF THE 100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN AND THE OUTSIDE EDGE OF ANY RIPARIAN BUFFER; AND
c. AT LEAST 10 FEET AWAY FROM ANY OTHER DESIGNATED RCA SUCH AS, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, HISTORIC BUILDINGS AND

STRUCTURES, WETLANDS, AND PONDS.

13. ADDITIONAL TREE PROTECTION FENCING MAY BE REQUIRED IN OTHER LOCATIONS CLOSE TO CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY
WHERE IT IS DEEMED NECESSARY BY THE ZONING ENFORCEMENT OFFICER. SUCH AREAS MAY INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT
LIMITED TO, COMMON PROPERTY LINES OR NEAR PUBLIC AREAS (SIDEWALKS, ETC.).

POTENTIAL ACCESS POINTS:
Potential Access Points shown on the Conceptual Site Plan / Conceptual Utility Plan (C100)
are not shown in exact locations but show proposed connections. Connections can only be
removed from the subdivision connectivity requirements of the PUD if the developer shows
to the satisfaction of the Planning Director, in consultation with the Technical Review
Committee (TRC), that the construction of the connection would be impractical based on
environmental conditions found in the field at the time of Master Subdivision Plan approval.

*

MULTI-FAMILY
DISTRICT

PROJECT PERIMETER BOUNDARY

PRELIMINARY PUBLIC GREENWAY
(FINAL ALIGNMENT COORDINATED WITH STAFF)

POTENTIAL WATER CONNECTIONS

POTENTIAL SEWER CONNECTIONS

POTENTIAL ACCESS POINTS

PLAN SHEETS ARE INTENDED FOR
ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY

*

*

*

* *

*

*

*
NON-RESIDENTIAL

DISTRICT

MULTI-FAMILY
DISTRICT

SINGLE-FAMILY
DISTRICT

MIXED RESIDENTIAL
DISTRICT

MIXED RESIDENTIAL
DISTRICT

MIXED RESIDENTIAL
DISTRICT

NON-RESIDENTIAL
DISTRICT

RIGHT-OF-WAY
DEDICATION

BUFFERS/RCA/
OPEN SPACE

SINGLE-FAMILY
(SINGLE-FAMILY)

MULTI-FAMILY
(MULTI-FAMILY/APARTMENT AND/OR
SMALL SCALE MULTI-FAMILY)

MIXED RESIDENTIAL
(SINGLE-FAMILY AND/OR
TOWNHOUSE)

RIPARIAN BUFFERS AND WETLANDS:

RIPARIAN BUFFERS AND WETLANDS LOCATED ON SITE BY INVER
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, LLC TO BE CONFIRMED BY THE
US ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS AND TOWN OF APEX.
TOWN OF APEX PROJECT 23-002.

STREAM BUFFERSZONE 1 ZONE 2 ZONE 3

PADSTONE DRIVE CUL-DE-SAC:
IF PADSTONE DRIVE IS UNABLE TO EXTEND DUE TO ENVIRONMENTAL
CONSTRAINTS, THE MAXIMUM LENGTH OF THE CUL-DE-SAC MAY EXCEED UDO
STANDARDS.

WRAGBY DRIVE CUL-DE-SAC:
IF WRAGSBY DRIVE IS UNABLE TO EXTEND DUE TO ENVIRONMENTAL
CONSTRAINTS AND A CUL-DE-SAC IS REUQIRED, THE MAXIMUM LENGTH OF
THE CUL-DE-SAC MAY EXCEED UDO STANDARDS.

TINGEN ROAD LANDSCAPE BUFFER:
THE LANDSCAPE BUFFER ALONG TINGEN ROAD SHALL BE ESTABLISHED AT TIME
OF MSP BASED UPON FRONT OR REAR LOADED TOWNHOUSE PRODUCT,
MULTI-FAMILY BUILDING LOCATION, AND STAFF COORDINATION.

Attachment B

- Page 273 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
project:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
title:

AutoCAD SHX Text
proj #:

AutoCAD SHX Text
date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
dwg by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
chkd by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
sheet:

AutoCAD SHX Text
seal:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
October 6, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
November 3, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
December 1, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
December 20, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS



As Noted

© 2023 Peak Engineering & Design. All Rights Reserved

1
1
2
5
 
A

p
e
x
 
P

e
a
k
w

a
y
 
|
 
A

p
e
x
,
 
N

C
 
2
7
5
0
2

p
h
:
 
9
1
9
.
4
3
9
.
0
1
0
0

w
w

w
.
P

e
a
k
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
.
c
o
m

(PUD PLAN)

NC License #P-0673

221101

SE
Y

M
O

U
R

 M
IX

ED
-U

SE
 P

U
D

T
IN

G
E

N
 R

O
A

D
 @

 A
PE

X
 P

E
A

K
W

A
Y

W
H

IT
E

 O
A

K
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
A

PE
X

, N
O

R
T

H
 C

A
R

O
L

IN
A

 2
75

02

SEAL

JEFFREY  A . ROA CH

24427

E NG I N E E R

N

O

R

T

H

 

C
AR

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

S
S

I

O

N

A

L

PRELIMINARY

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

JULY 3, 2023

JR JR JR JR

FS

CONCEPTUAL
BUILDING

ELEVATIONS
SINGLE-FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL

JR

C120

SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 'A' SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 'B' SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 'C' SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 'D'

SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 'E'

TYPICAL BUILDING ELEVATIONS. WINDOW CONFIGURATIONS, DOOR STYLES,
COLORS, AND OTHER ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS MAY VARY FROM
HOME-TO-HOME AND BUILDING-TO-BUILDING.

ALL FLAT ROOFED NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS SHALL BE LIGHT OR WHITE
COLORED OR UTILIZE A COOL ROOFING MATERIAL.

ELEVATIONS ARE FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY. CONDITIONS ARE
INCLUDED WITHIN THE ZONING PD TEXT DOCUMENT.

SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 'F' SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 'G' SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 'H'

SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 'I' SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 'J' SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 'K'

SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 'L' SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 'M'

Attachment B

- Page 274 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
project:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
title:

AutoCAD SHX Text
proj #:

AutoCAD SHX Text
date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
dwg by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
chkd by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
sheet:

AutoCAD SHX Text
seal:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
October 6, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
November 3, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
December 1, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
December 20, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS



As Noted

© 2023 Peak Engineering & Design. All Rights Reserved

1
1
2
5
 
A

p
e
x
 
P

e
a
k
w

a
y
 
|
 
A

p
e
x
,
 
N

C
 
2
7
5
0
2

p
h
:
 
9
1
9
.
4
3
9
.
0
1
0
0

w
w

w
.
P

e
a
k
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
.
c
o
m

(PUD PLAN)

NC License #P-0673

221101

SE
Y

M
O

U
R

 M
IX

ED
-U

SE
 P

U
D

T
IN

G
E

N
 R

O
A

D
 @

 A
PE

X
 P

E
A

K
W

A
Y

W
H

IT
E

 O
A

K
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
A

PE
X

, N
O

R
T

H
 C

A
R

O
L

IN
A

 2
75

02

SEAL

JEFFREY  A . ROA CH

24427

E NG I N E E R

N

O

R

T

H

 

C
AR

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

S
S

I

O

N

A

L

PRELIMINARY

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

JULY 3, 2023

JR JR JR JR

FS

CONCEPTUAL
BUILDING

ELEVATIONS
TOWNHOUSE &
SMALL SCALE

MULTI-FAMILY

JR

C121

TYPICAL BUILDING ELEVATIONS. WINDOW
CONFIGURATIONS, DOOR STYLES, COLORS, AND
OTHER ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS MAY VARY
FROM HOME-TO-HOME AND
BUILDING-TO-BUILDING.

ALL FLAT ROOFED NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS
SHALL BE LIGHT OR WHITE COLORED OR UTILIZE A
COOL ROOFING MATERIAL.

ELEVATIONS ARE FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY.
CONDITIONS ARE INCLUDED WITHIN THE ZONING
PD TEXT DOCUMENT.

TOWNHOUSE / SMALL SCALE MULTI-FAMILY 'A' TOWNHOUSE / SMALL SCALE MULTI-FAMILY 'C' TOWNHOUSE / SMALL SCALE MULTI-FAMILY 'D'TOWNHOUSE / SMALL SCALE MULTI-FAMILY 'B'

TOWNHOUSE / SMALL SCALE MULTI-FAMILY 'E' TOWNHOUSE / SMALL SCALE MULTI-FAMILY 'F' TOWNHOUSE / SMALL SCALE MULTI-FAMILY 'G'

TOWNHOUSE / SMALL SCALE MULTI-FAMILY 'J'TOWNHOUSE / SMALL SCALE MULTI-FAMILY 'I'TOWNHOUSE / SMALL SCALE MULTI-FAMILY 'H'

TOWNHOUSE / SMALL SCALE MULTI-FAMILY 'K' TOWNHOUSE / SMALL SCALE MULTI-FAMILY 'L' TOWNHOUSE / SMALL SCALE MULTI-FAMILY 'M'

BUILD
ING ELEVATIO

N REMOVED

BUILD
ING ELEVATIO

N REMOVED

Attachment B

- Page 275 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
project:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
title:

AutoCAD SHX Text
proj #:

AutoCAD SHX Text
date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
dwg by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
chkd by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
sheet:

AutoCAD SHX Text
seal:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
October 6, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
November 3, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
December 1, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
December 20, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS



As Noted

© 2023 Peak Engineering & Design. All Rights Reserved

1
1
2
5
 
A

p
e
x
 
P

e
a
k
w

a
y
 
|
 
A

p
e
x
,
 
N

C
 
2
7
5
0
2

p
h
:
 
9
1
9
.
4
3
9
.
0
1
0
0

w
w

w
.
P

e
a
k
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
.
c
o
m

(PUD PLAN)

NC License #P-0673

221101

SE
Y

M
O

U
R

 M
IX

ED
-U

SE
 P

U
D

T
IN

G
E

N
 R

O
A

D
 @

 A
PE

X
 P

E
A

K
W

A
Y

W
H

IT
E

 O
A

K
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
A

PE
X

, N
O

R
T

H
 C

A
R

O
L

IN
A

 2
75

02

SEAL

JEFFREY  A . ROA CH

24427

E NG I N E E R

N

O

R

T

H

 

C
AR

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

S
S

I

O

N

A

L

PRELIMINARY

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

JULY 3, 2023

JR JR JR JR

FS

CONCEPTUAL
BUILDING

ELEVATIONS
MULTI-FAMILY/

CARRIAGE
HOUSE

JR

C122

SMALL SCALE MULTI-FAMILY 'A'
(REAR GARAGE)

MULTI-FAMILY BUILDING ELEVATION 'E'

TYPICAL BUILDING ELEVATIONS. WINDOW CONFIGURATIONS, DOOR
STYLES, COLORS, AND OTHER ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS MAY VARY
FROM HOME-TO-HOME AND BUILDING-TO-BUILDING.

ALL FLAT ROOFED NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS SHALL BE LIGHT OR WHITE
COLORED OR UTILIZE A COOL ROOFING MATERIAL.

ELEVATIONS ARE FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY. CONDITIONS ARE
INCLUDED WITHIN THE ZONING PD TEXT DOCUMENT.

SMALL SCALE MULTI-FAMILY 'B'
(STREET PARKING)

MULTI-FAMILY BUILDING
ELEVATION 'A'

SMALL SCALE MULTI-FAMILY 'C' SMALL SCALE MULTI-FAMILY 'D'

MULTI-FAMILY BUILDING
ELEVATION 'C'

MULTI-FAMILY BUILDING
ELEVATION 'D'

MULTI-FAMILY BUILDING
ELEVATION 'B'

SMALL SCALE
MULTI-FAMILY 'E'

SMALL SCALE
MULTI-FAMILY 'F'

SMALL SCALE
MULTI-FAMILY 'H'

SMALL SCALE
MULTI-FAMILY 'G'

BUILD
ING ELEVATIO

N REMOVED

BUILD
ING ELEVATIO

N REMOVED

Attachment B

- Page 276 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
project:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
title:

AutoCAD SHX Text
proj #:

AutoCAD SHX Text
date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
dwg by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
chkd by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
sheet:

AutoCAD SHX Text
seal:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
October 6, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
November 3, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
December 1, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
December 20, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS



As Noted

© 2023 Peak Engineering & Design. All Rights Reserved

1
1
2
5
 
A

p
e
x
 
P

e
a
k
w

a
y
 
|
 
A

p
e
x
,
 
N

C
 
2
7
5
0
2

p
h
:
 
9
1
9
.
4
3
9
.
0
1
0
0

w
w

w
.
P

e
a
k
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
.
c
o
m

(PUD PLAN)

NC License #P-0673

221101

SE
Y

M
O

U
R

 M
IX

ED
-U

SE
 P

U
D

T
IN

G
E

N
 R

O
A

D
 @

 A
PE

X
 P

E
A

K
W

A
Y

W
H

IT
E

 O
A

K
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
A

PE
X

, N
O

R
T

H
 C

A
R

O
L

IN
A

 2
75

02

SEAL

JEFFREY  A . ROA CH

24427

E NG I N E E R

N

O

R

T

H

 

C
AR

O

L

I

N

A

P

R

O

F

E

S
S

I

O

N

A

L

PRELIMINARY

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

JULY 3, 2023

JR JR JR JR

FS

CONCEPTUAL
BUILDING

ELEVATIONS
NON-RESIDENTIAL/

MULTI-FAMILY
CLUBHOUSE

JR

C123

NON-RESIDENTIAL 'A' NON-RESIDENTIAL 'B'

MULTI-FAMILY CLUBHOUSE 'C' MULTI-FAMILY CLUBHOUSE 'D'

TYPICAL BUILDING ELEVATIONS. WINDOW CONFIGURATIONS, DOOR STYLES,
COLORS, AND OTHER ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS MAY VARY FROM
HOME-TO-HOME AND BUILDING-TO-BUILDING.

ALL FLAT ROOFED NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS SHALL BE LIGHT OR WHITE
COLORED OR UTILIZE A COOL ROOFING MATERIAL.

ELEVATIONS ARE FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY. CONDITIONS ARE
INCLUDED WITHIN THE ZONING PD TEXT DOCUMENT.

MULTI-FAMILY
CLUBHOUSE 'A'

NON-RESIDENTIAL 'C'

NON-RESIDENTIAL 'E' NON-RESIDENTIAL 'F'

NON-RESIDENTIAL 'D'

MULTI-FAMILY
CLUBHOUSE 'B'

Attachment B

- Page 277 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
project:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
title:

AutoCAD SHX Text
proj #:

AutoCAD SHX Text
date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
dwg by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
chkd by:

AutoCAD SHX Text
scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
sheet:

AutoCAD SHX Text
seal:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
October 6, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
November 3, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
December 1, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
December 20, 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF APEX - ZONING COMMENTS



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: February 13, 2024 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Liz Loftin, Senior Planner 

Department(s): Planning  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve the Statement of the Town Council and Ordinance for Rezoning Case No. 23CZ14 Salem 

Street Townhome PUD, Bateman Civil Survey Company, petitioner, for the property located at 0, 0, 720 South 

Salem Street (PINs 0741178829, 0741179910, 0741179971). 

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning Department recommends approval. 

Item Details 

Rezoning Case No. 23CZ14 was approved at the January 23, 2024 Town Council meeting.  

Attachments 

 CN13-A1: Statement and Ordinance - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ14 Salem Street Townhome PUD – 
Statement and Ordinance 

 CN13-A2: Attachment A – Legal Description - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ14 Salem Street Townhome 
PUD – Statement and Ordinance 

 CN13-A3: Attachment B – Salem Street Townhomes PD Plan Text - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ14 
Salem Street Townhome PUD – Statement and Ordinance  
 

 

- Page 278 -



SALEM CREEK OUTER BOUNDARY LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

BEING THE OUTER BOUNDARY OF THOSE THREE PARCELS OF LAND NOW OR FORMERLY OF SALEM 

STREET TOWNES, LLC (PINS: 0741178829, 0741179910, & 0741179971) AS DESCRIBED IN DEED BOOK 

19262 AT PAGE 540 AND IN BOOK OF MAPS 2023 AT PAGE 226 OF THE WAKE COUNTY REGISTER OF 

DEEDS. LYING IN THE TOWN OF APEX, WHITE OAK TOWNSHIP, WAKE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA, AND 

BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT A 3/4” IRON PIPE FOUND ON THE NORTHWESTERN CORNER OF THE PARCEL NOW OR 

FORMERLY OF SALEM STREET TOWNES, LLC (PIN: 0741178829) AS DESCRIBED IN DEED BOOK 19262 AT 

PAGE 540 AND IN BOOK OF MAPS 2023 AT PAGE 226 OF THE WAKE COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS, SAID 

IRON HAVING NORTH CAROLINA STATE PLAIN COORDINATES OF N: 718,001.19’ AND E: 2,041,782.02’; 

THENCE, FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING, S88°25’51”E A DISTANCE OF 59.83 FEET TO A 3/4” IRON PIPE 

FOUND; THENCE, S88°25’51”E A DISTANCE OF 31.13 FEET TO A 3/4” IRON PIPE SET; THENCE, 

S88°25’51”E A DISTANCE OF 18.79 FEET TO A 3/4” IRON PIPE FOUND; THENCE, S88°25’51”E A DISTANCE 

OF 77.21 FEET TO A 3/4” IRON PIPE FOUND; THENCE, S88°25’51”E A DISTANCE OF 9.21 FEET TO A 1” 

IRON PIPE FOUND; THENCE, S01°05’47”E A DISTANCE OF 140.68 FEET TO A 1/2” IRON PIPE FOUND; 

THENCE S01°05’57”E A DISTANCE OF 140.68 FEET TO A 1/2” IRON PIPE FOUND; THENCE, S01°05’47”E A 

DISTANCE OF 21.43 FEET TO A 1” IRON PIPE FOUND; THENCE, S77°55’54”W A DISTANCE OF 12.82 FEET 

TO A 3/4” IRON PIPE SET; THENCE, S00°04’39”W A DISTANCE OF 105.00 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT; 

THENCE, N88°25’51”W A DISTANCE OF 96.00 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT; THENCE, N00°04’39”E A 

DISTANCE OF 37.47 FEET TO A COMPUTED POINT ON THE CENTERLINE OF SOUTH SALEM STREET; 

THENCE, CONTINUING WITH SAID CENTERLINE, ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 

2,897.00 FEET AND A CHORD OF 96.00 FEET BEARING S71°22’12”W AND AN ARC LENGTH OF 96.00 FEET 

TO A COMPUTED POINT; THENCE, LEAVING SAID CENTERLINE, N00°04’39”E A DISTANCE OF 30.93 FEET 

TO A COMPUTED POINT; THENCE, N00°04’39”E A DISTANCE OF 234.77 FEET TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING. 

SAID OUTER BOUNDARY CONTAINING 50,369 SQUARE FEET OR 1.16 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

LESS AND EXCEPT THOSE PORTIONS OF THE PROPERTIES LYING WITHIN THE RIGHT OF WAY OF SOUTH 

SALEM STREET AND THE RIGHT OF WAY OF CSX TRANSPORTATION, INC. 

"Attachment A" 

- Page 279 -



1 | P a g e

Salem Street Townhomes PD Plan Text 

Sec�on 1: Table of Contents- 

Vicinity Map 
Base Items 
Purpose Statement- Planned Unit Development Standards 
Purpose Statement- Condi�onal Zoning Standards 
Proposed Design Controls 
Proposed Architectural Controls 
Parking and Loading 
Sign Statement 
Natural Resource and Environmental Data 
Stormwater Requirements 
Projected must be reviewed by Parks, Recrea�on and Culture Commissions 
Public Facili�es Requirements 
Phasing Plan 
Consistency with Land Use Plan 
Compliance with relevant por�ons of the UDO 
Building Eleva�ons  

Sec�on 2: Vicinity Map 

"Attachment B" 

- Page 280 -



2 | P a g e  
 

Sec�on 3: Project Data  

• Name of Project- Salem Street Townhomes 
• Preparer’s Informa�on: 

Bateman Civil Survey Company 
Phone: 919-577-1080 Fax: 919-577-1081 
engineering@batemancivilsurvey.com 
 
Owner’s Informa�on: 
P&R Proper�es Group, LLC 
Kevin Poythress 
Phone: 919-463-5403 
kevin@pccbuilder.com 
 

• Current Zoning Designa�on: MD, Small Town Character Overlay District 
• Proposed Zoning Designa�on: PUD-CZ, Small Town Character Overlay District 
• Current 2045 Land Use Map Designa�on: Medium/High Density Residen�al, Office 

employment 
• Area of Tract: 1.04 Acres  
• Area designated as mixed use on 2045 LUM: 0.00 Acres 
• Area of mixed use property proposed as non-residen�al development: 0.00 Acres 
• Percent of mixed use areas proposed as non-residen�al development: 0.0% 

 
• Permited Uses: 

The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below. The 
permited uses are subject to the limita�ons and regula�ons stated in the UDO and any 
addi�onal limita�ons or regula�ons stated below. For convenience, some relevant 
sec�ons of the UDO may be referenced, such references do not imply that other 
sec�ons of the UDO do not apply.  
 
Residen�al Uses: 
Townhouse  
Accessory Apartment  
 
Recrea�on Uses: 
Recrea�on facility, private  
Greenway  
Park, ac�ve  
Park, passive  
U�lity, minor 
 
 
 
 

- Page 281 -

mailto:engineering@batemancivilsurvey.com
mailto:kevin@pccbuilder.com


3 | P a g e  
 

 

Sec�on 4: Purpose Statement- Planned Unit Development Standards 

The PUD-CZ proposes an 8-unit single townhome building which will serve as an extension of the 
exis�ng Salem Creek Townhome community. The PUD-CZ shows a roadway patern that 
interconnects Regents Lane and Topaz Lane and will provide for a future stub street on the 
western property line. The PUD-CZ dedicates Right-Of-Way along South Salem Street. The PUD-
CZ shall contain parking, open space and buffers as shown on the plan. The proposal shall 
endeavor to meet all of the Legisla�ve Considera�ons as detailed in Sec. 2.3.3.F 1-10 of the UDO 
to the extent prac�cable.  

 

Sec�on 5: Purpose Statement- Condi�onal Zoning Standards 

The PUD-CZ proposes an 8-unit single townhome building which will serve as an extension of the 
exis�ng Salem Creek Townhome community. The PUD-CZ shows a roadway patern that 
interconnects Regents Lane and Topaz Lane and will provide for a future stub street on the 
western property line. The PUD-CZ shall contain parking, open space and buffers as shown on 
the plan. The proposal shall endeavor to meet all of the Legisla�ve Considera�ons as detailed in 
Sec. 2.3.3.F 1-10 of the UDO to the extent prac�cable.  

 

Sec�on 6: Proposed Design Controls 

• Maximum Square Footage per Non-Residen�al Use: 0 SF 
• Max Densi�es per Residen�al Use: 10 DU/Acre 
• Lot Sizes for Residen�al Use: 1,618 SF to 3,779 SF 
• Maximum Height of Buildings: Max height is 37’ from FFE. Number of stories varies from 

1.5 to 2.5 stories.  
• Front, side, and rear setbacks: 15’, 0’, 15’ 
• Amount and Percentage of Built Upon Area Allowed: 0.68 Ac., 65% 
• Amount and Percentage of Built Upon Area: 0.44 Ac., 42.3% 

 

Sec�on 7: Proposed Architectural Controls  

1. Proposed Materials-James Hardie or equal lap siding, James Hardie or equal decora�ve shake 
siding, James Hardie or equal soffits, Decora�ve cultured stone or brick veneer, Miratec or equal 
corner boards, fascia boards, frieze boards, column and window wraps. CertainTeed Landmark or 
equal architectural shingles, vinyl single-hung windows, vinyl shuters, decora�ve wood main 
entry doors 

2. Proposed Structural Materials- Covered main entrances via porches or stoops, main roof 
overhangs 12”. 

3. Vinyl siding is not permited; however, vinyl windows, decora�ve elements and trims are 
permited. 

- Page 282 -



4 | P a g e  
 

4. The roofline cannot be a single mass; it must be broken up horizontally and ver�cally between 
every unit. 

5. Garage doors must have windows, decora�ve details or carriage-style adornments on them. 
6. House entrances for units with front-facing single-car garages shall have a prominent covered 

porch/stoop area leading to the front door. 
7. The garage cannot protrude more than 1 foot out from the front façade or front porch.  
8. The visible side of a townhome on a corner lot facing the public street shall contain at least 3 

decora�ve elements such as, but not limited to, the following elements: 
a. Windows, bay window, recessed window, decora�ve window, trim around the 

window, wrap around porch or side porch, two or more building materials, 
decora�ve brick/stone, decora�ve trim, decora�ve shake, decora�ve air vents 
on gable, decora�ve gable, decora�ve cornice, column, por�co, balcony, dormer 

9. Building facades shall have horizontal relief achieved by the use of recesses and projec�ons.  
10. A varied color palete shall be u�lized on homes throughout the subdivision to include a 

minimum of three-color families for siding and shall include varied trim, shuter, and accent 
colors complemen�ng the siding color. 

11. The rear and side eleva�ons of the units that can be seen from the right-of-way shall have trim 
around the windows.  

 

Sec�on 8: Parking and Loading 

Parking calcula�ons are based on Apex UDO Sec. 8.3. The required is 2 spaces/unit plus .25 per unit for 
guest, therefore requiring 18 spaces. Our development provides 26 spaces. Each unit provides 2 parking 
spaces. The mail kiosk area provides 3 parking spaces. There are an addi�onal 7 parking spaces to 
accommodate for guest parking. 

Sec�on 9: Signage  

 All signage will comply with UDO sec�on 8.7. 

Sec�on 10: Natural Resource and Environmental Data 

• The site is located in a Secondary Watershed Protec�on Overlay District. 
• The site does not contain a FEMA designated 100 year floodplain.  
• Gross square footage and percent of RCA required: Exempt by being in a small town 

character overlay district per UDO 6.3.1. 
• Gross square footage and percent of RCA provided: Exempt by being in a small town 

character overlay district, per UDO 6.3.1.  
• The site does not contain a historic structure.  

Sec�on 11: Stormwater Management 

This site disturbs less than 1.0 acres, therefore no SCM is required for this development. 

 

 

- Page 283 -



5 | P a g e  
 

Sec�on 12: Parks and Recrea�on  

Per Sec�on 14.1.2 Exemp�ons of the UDO, only a payment of fees-in-lieu shall be required. The fee rate 
will be $2,705.23 per single-family detached unit paid at the �me of plat.  

Sec�on 13: Public Facili�es  

The PD plan for the PUD-CZ demonstrates a safe and adequate on-site transporta�on circula�on system 
by connec�ng two exis�ng stub streets and providing for a future stub to the west. The PD Plan 
demonstrates a safe and adequate on-site system of potable water and wastewater lines which will 
provide a loop system with the exis�ng community which is integrated into exis�ng off-site potable 
water and wastewater facili�es. Water and sewer infrastructure will be designed to comply with the 
Town’s Sewer and Water Master Plan and Standards and Specifica�ons at the �me of CD. There are 
adequate off-site facili�es to serve the proposal including a potable water supply, sewage disposal, solid 
waste disposal, electrical supply, and fire protec�on.   

The roads are planned and programmed for the development and the development is conveniently 
located in rela�on to schools and police protec�on services as permited by the town. The developer will 
dedicate public right of way along South Salem Street. The developer is not proposing direct access to 
South Salem Street and is not proposing roadway frontage improvements along South Salem Street. The 
exis�ng 5-foot sidewalk along South Salem Street shall remain. The developer shall dedicate public right-
of-way extending 60 feet northward from the south side edge of asphalt (60 feet north of CSXT right of 
way) along the en�rety of the project limits along South Salem Street. The PD Plan demonstrates 
compliance with the parks and recrea�on and open space requirements of Sec. Ar�cle 14 & Sec. 7.3.1.  

Sec�on 14: Phasing Plan  

This project will be constructed in one phase. 

Sec�on 15: Compliance with the UDO 

The 2045 Apex Land Use Plan shows a future land classifica�on as Medium/High Density Residen�al 
which supports townhome use withing the Town Center with a recommended density of 7-14 units per 
acre. This development plan shows 8 units on 1.04 acres.  

Sec�on 16: Compliance with the UDO  

Since this property is in the Small-Town Character Overlay District, no buffers are required per UDO 
Sec�on 6.3.1.D.6. All buffers shown on the plan are being offered but not required. This development 
has provided a variable type A streetscape to the south along South Salem Street and an 8’ plan�ng area 
to the west.  

Sec�on 17: Eleva�ons 
Building eleva�ons showing all sides of the structure have been provided in this submital. The max 
height is 37’ from FFE. The number of stories varies from 1.5 to 2.5 stories.  

 
 
  

- Page 284 -



G

G

G

G

G

G

G

U

U

U

U

U

U

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

HH

HH

C

C C

Project #:

SHEET

p:\
20

23
 pr

oje
cts

\23
00

23
 sa

lem
 cr

ee
k t

ow
nh

om
es

\E
NG

\D
WG

\S
he

ets
\P

23
00

23
_C

00
0_

CO
VR

.dw
g

Date:

DESCRIPTIONDATEREV #

PRELIMINARYSALEM STREET TOWNHOMES
APEX PUD REZONING
SUBMITTAL 1: 07.03.23
SUBMITTAL 2: 09.08.23
SUBMITTAL 3: 10.06.23
SUBMITTAL 4: 11.08.23

720 S SALEM STREET
APEX, NC 27502
WAKE COUNTY

PROJECT PLAN
SCALE: 1" = 500'

P2
30

02
3_

SA
LE

M_
ST

RE
ET

_T
OW

NH
OM

ES

C000

VICINITY MAP
SCALE: NTS

ENGINEER:
BATEMAN CIVIL SURVEY COMPANY

THOMAS S. SPEIGHT, JR, PE.
2524 RELIANCE AVE.

APEX, NC 27539

DEVELOPER:
THE COLEY GROUP

CONTACT: SCOTT MOORE
4350 LASSITER AT NORTH HILLS AVE, SUITE 256

RALEIGH, NC 27609
P: 919.526.0401

OWNER:
P&R PROPERTIES GROUP, LLC

KEVIN POYTHRESS
1011 CLASSIC ROAD

APEX, NC 27536
P: 919.463.5403

xx.xx.23

P230023

Bateman Civil Survey Company
Engineers     Surveyors     Planners

2524 Reliance Avenue, Apex, North Carolina 27539
Phone: 919.577.1080   Fax: 919.577.1081

NCBELS FIRM No. C-2378

KNOW WHAT IS BELOW
CALL BEFORE YOU DIG

  R

SITE

SHEET INDEX
SHEET NUMBER SHEET TITLE

C000 COVER

C100 EXISTING CONDITIONS

C101 TREE SURVEY

C200 OVERALL SITE PLAN

C400 UTILITY AND STORMWATER PLAN

NOTES:
· THIS PROJECT WILL BE COMPLETED IN ONE PHASE
· THIS PROJECT WILL BE REQUESTING FULL TOWN SERVICES (WATER, SEWER, AND ELECTRIC)
· THE DISTURBED ACREAGE ON THIS PROJECT IS LESS THAN 1 ACRE. THEREFORE, NO SCM IS

REQUIRED.

- Page 285 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
20234

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A



EX. 10' TYPE A BUFFER

REGENTS LANE

(50' PUBLIC ROW)

TO
PA

Z 
LA

NE
(5

0' 
PU

BL
IC

 R
OW

)

SOUTH SALEM STREET

(50' PUBLIC ROW)

EX. 10' TYPE A BUFFER

N/F NARANG RAHUL & NISHTHA
PIN: 0741-18-8012

ACREAGE: 0.03 AC.
DB. 16894, PG. 1659

TYPE / USE: SINGLFAM
ZONING: PUD-CZ

N/F P&R PROPERTIES GROUP LLC
PIN: 0741-17-8829

ACREAGE: 0.45 AC.
DB. 19259, PG. 1927

TYPE / USE: SINGLFAM
ZONING: MD

EX. WELL
TO BE REMOVED

EX. GAS METER
TO BE REMOVED

EX. CO
TO BE REMOVED

20' WATER ESMT.

EX. 15'
TYPE A BUFFER

N/F SALEM STREET TOWNES, LLC.
PIN: 0741-17-9910

ACREAGE: 0.40 AC.
DB. 19262, PG. 540

TYPE / USE: SINGLFAM
ZONING: MD

N/F SALEM STREET TOWNHOMES
RESIDENTIAL OWNERS ASSOC., INC.

PIN: 0741-18-6390
ACREAGE: 0.21 AC.
DB. 17350, PG. 856

TYPE / USE: HOA

N/F SALEM STREET TOWNHOMES
RESIDENTIAL OWNERS ASSOC., INC.

PIN: 0741-18-9060
ACREAGE: 0.10 AC.
DB. 17350, PG. 856

TYPE / USE: HOA

N/F MCKINNISH, LORI
PIN: 0741-17-6996

ACREAGE: 1.75 AC.
DB. 16540, PG. 2062

TYPE / USE: SINGLFAM
ZONING: O&I-CZ

N/F SALEM STREET TOWNHOMES
RESIDENTIAL OWNERS ASSOC., INC.
PIN: 0741-27-0991
ACREAGE: 0.11 AC.
DB. 17350, PG. 856
TYPE / USE: HOA

SD

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C
C

C
C

C C

E

E

E

E

E
E

E E

E E E
E

E

E

E
E

E
E

E E

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

G
G

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

TTT

T
T

T
T

T

T

T

T

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W

W W W W

W WW
W

W

W

E

E

E

E

SD

SD

E

SS SS SS SS SS SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

E

SS
SS

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD SD

EXISTING
19" OAK

EXISTING
32" OAK

EXISTING
31" OAK

EXISTING
18" CEDAR

EXISTING
18" OAK

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

EX. 15" RCP
INV.: 461.71'
(CENTER OF BOX)

EX. 15" RCP
FES: 469.66'

EX. 15" RCP
FES: 469.63'

EX. 15" RCP
INV.: 469.20'

EX. 15" RCP
INV.: 468.79'

EX. 15" RCP
INV.: 467.36'

EX. 15" RCP
INV.: 467.67'

S

EX. 8" DIP
INV.: 454.78''

S

EX. 8" DIP
INV. IN: 450.49'

INV. OUT: 450.39'

S

EX. 8" DIP
INV. IN: 454.34'

S
EX. 8" DIP

INV.: 463.07'

S

EX. 8" DIP
INV.IN: 460.20'
INV. OUT: 460.10'

S
EX. 8" DIP
INV.IN: 461.72'

S
EX. 8" DIP
INV.: 466.68'

H Y

DW

H Y

D

H
YD

W

HH HH

HH

HH

HH

C

C C

TEL

EX. 10' TYPE A BUFFER

EX. 8" DIP

EX. 8" DIP

EX. 8" DIP
E E E E

E

E

E

N/F P&R PROPERTIES GROUP LLC
PIN: 0741-17-9971
ACREAGE: 0.04 AC.
DB. 19259, PG. 1927
TYPE / USE:SINGLFAM
ZONING: MD

470

469

471

472

472

470

468

469

471

472

473

47
3

N
00

° 
04

' 3
9"

E
23

4.
21

'

N
00

° 
04

' 3
9"

E
31

.4
9'

S88° 25' 51"E
59.83'

S88° 25' 51"E
31.13'

S88° 25' 51"E
18.79'

S88° 25' 51"E
77.21'

S88° 25' 51"E
9.21'

S
00

° 
04

' 3
9"

W
20

4.
53

'

S00° 05' 16"W
28.01'

N
00

° 
04

' 3
9"

E
37

.4
7'

N88° 25' 51"W

96.00'

S
00

° 
04

' 3
9"

W
10

5.
00

'
N

00
° 

04
' 3

9"
E

16
5.

00
'

S77° 55' 54"W
12.82'

S
01° 05' 47"E

15.52'
S

01° 05' 47"E

140.68'

C100

EX
IS

TI
NG

 C
ON

DI
TI

ON
S

Project #:

SHEET

Design By:

p:\
20

23
 pr

oje
cts

\23
00

23
 sa

lem
 cr

ee
k t

ow
nh

om
es

\E
NG

\D
WG

\S
he

ets
\P

23
00

23
_C

10
0_

EX
ST

.dw
g

Date:

Ba
te

m
an

 C
iv

il 
Su

rv
ey

 C
om

pa
ny

En
gin

ee
rs

    
 Su

rv
ey

or
s  

   P
la

nn
er

s
25

24
 R

el
ia

nc
e 

Av
en

ue
, A

pe
x,

 N
or

th
 C

ar
ol

in
a 

27
53

9
Ph

on
e:

 9
19

.5
77

.1
08

0 
  F

ax
: 9

19
.5

77
.1

08
1

NC
BE

LS
 F

IR
M

 N
o.

 C
-2

37
8

02.XX.22

SO
UT

H 
SA

LE
M 

ST
RE

ET
RE

ZO
NI

NG

P230023

72
0 S

AL
EM

 S
TR

EE
T

AP
EX

, N
C 

27
50

2

WA
KE

  C
OU

NT
Y

MEM

DESCRIPTIONDATEREV #

PRELIMINARY

N

NAD 83 / NSRS 2011

0

SCALE 1"=20'

40'20'

- Page 286 -



EX. 10' TYPE A BUFFER

REGENTS LANE

(50' PUBLIC ROW)

TO
PA

Z 
LA

NE
(5

0' 
PU

BL
IC

 R
OW

)

SOUTH SALEM STREET

(50' PUBLIC ROW)

EX. 10' TYPE A BUFFER

N/F NARANG RAHUL & NISHTHA
PIN: 0741-18-8012

ACREAGE: 0.03 AC.
DB. 16894, PG. 1659

TYPE / USE: SINGLFAM
ZONING: PUD-CZ

N/F P&R PROPERTIES GROUP LLC
PIN: 0741-17-8829

ACREAGE: 0.45 AC.
DB. 19259, PG. 1927

TYPE / USE: SINGLFAM
ZONING: MD

EX. CO
TO BE REMOVED

20' WATER ESMT.

EX. 15'
TYPE A BUFFER

N/F SALEM STREET TOWNES, LLC.
PIN: 0741-17-9910

ACREAGE: 0.40 AC.
DB. 19262, PG. 540

TYPE / USE: SINGLFAM
ZONING: MD

N/F SALEM STREET TOWNHOMES
RESIDENTIAL OWNERS ASSOC., INC.

PIN: 0741-18-6390
ACREAGE: 0.21 AC.
DB. 17350, PG. 856

TYPE / USE: HOA

N/F SALEM STREET TOWNHOMES
RESIDENTIAL OWNERS ASSOC., INC.

PIN: 0741-18-9060
ACREAGE: 0.10 AC.
DB. 17350, PG. 856

TYPE / USE: HOA

N/F MCKINNISH, LORI
PIN: 0741-17-6996

ACREAGE: 1.75 AC.
DB. 16540, PG. 2062

TYPE / USE: SINGLFAM
ZONING: O&I-CZ

N/F SALEM STREET TOWNHOMES
RESIDENTIAL OWNERS ASSOC., INC.
PIN: 0741-27-0991
ACREAGE: 0.11 AC.
DB. 17350, PG. 856
TYPE / USE: HOA

SD

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C
C

C
C

C C

E

E

E

E

E
E

E E

E E E
E

E

E

E
E

E
E

E E

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

TTT

T
T

T
T

T

T

T

T

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W

W W W W

W WW
W

W

W

E

E

E

E

SD

SD

E

SS SS SS SS SS SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

E

SS
SS

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD SD

EXISTING
19" OAK

EXISTING
32" OAK

EXISTING
31" OAK

EXISTING
18" CEDAR

EXISTING
18" OAK

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

EX. 15" RCP
INV.: 461.71'
(CENTER OF BOX)

EX. 15" RCP
FES: 469.66'

EX. 15" RCP
FES: 469.63'

EX. 15" RCP
INV.: 469.20'

EX. 15" RCP
INV.: 468.79'

EX. 15" RCP
INV.: 467.36'

EX. 15" RCP
INV.: 467.67'

S

EX. 8" DIP
INV.: 454.78''

S

EX. 8" DIP
INV. IN: 450.49'

INV. OUT: 450.39'

S

EX. 8" DIP
INV. IN: 454.34'

S
EX. 8" DIP

INV.: 463.07'

S

EX. 8" DIP
INV.IN: 460.20'
INV. OUT: 460.10'

S
EX. 8" DIP
INV.IN: 461.72'

S
EX. 8" DIP
INV.: 466.68'

H Y

D

H
YD

HH HH

HH

HH

HH

C

C C

TEL

EX. 10' TYPE A BUFFER

EX. 8" DIP

EX. 8" DIP

EX. 8" DIP
E E E E

E

E

E

N/F P&R PROPERTIES GROUP LLC
PIN: 0741-17-9971
ACREAGE: 0.04 AC.
DB. 19259, PG. 1927
TYPE / USE:SINGLFAM
ZONING: MD

N
00

° 
04

' 3
9"

E
23

4.
21

'

N
00

° 
04

' 3
9"

E
31

.4
9'

S88° 25' 51"E
59.83'

S88° 25' 51"E
31.13'

S88° 25' 51"E
18.79'

S88° 25' 51"E
77.21'

S88° 25' 51"E
9.21'

S
00

° 
04

' 3
9"

W
20

4.
53

'

S00° 05' 16"W
28.01'

N
00

° 
04

' 3
9"

E
37

.4
7'

N88° 25' 51"W

96.00'

S
00

° 
04

' 3
9"

W
10

5.
00

'
N

00
° 

04
' 3

9"
E

16
5.

00
'

S77° 55' 54"W
12.82'

S
01° 05' 47"E

15.52'
S

01° 05' 47"E

140.68'

C101

TR
EE

 S
UR

VE
Y

Project #:

SHEET

Design By:

p:\
20

23
 pr

oje
cts

\23
00

23
 sa

lem
 cr

ee
k t

ow
nh

om
es

\E
NG

\D
WG

\S
he

ets
\P

23
00

23
_C

10
0_

EX
ST

.dw
g

Date:

Ba
te

m
an

 C
iv

il 
Su

rv
ey

 C
om

pa
ny

En
gin

ee
rs

    
 Su

rv
ey

or
s  

   P
la

nn
er

s
25

24
 R

el
ia

nc
e 

Av
en

ue
, A

pe
x,

 N
or

th
 C

ar
ol

in
a 

27
53

9
Ph

on
e:

 9
19

.5
77

.1
08

0 
  F

ax
: 9

19
.5

77
.1

08
1

NC
BE

LS
 F

IR
M

 N
o.

 C
-2

37
8

02.XX.22

SO
UT

H 
SA

LE
M 

ST
RE

ET
RE

ZO
NI

NG

P230023

72
0 S

AL
EM

 S
TR

EE
T

AP
EX

, N
C 

27
50

2

WA
KE

  C
OU

NT
Y

MEM

DESCRIPTIONDATEREV #

PRELIMINARY

N

NAD 83 / NSRS 2011

0

SCALE 1"=20'

40'20'

- Page 287 -



15' TYPE A BUFFER

MAIL KIOSK / CBU 27' B-B
50' ROW

20' FRONT PARKING SETBACK

21' - 8" 19' - 8" 19' - 8" 21' - 8"19' - 8"

8'

7.5'

19' - 8"

L=95.109, R=198.000
S89° 55' 21.34"E

63.586

S0
0°

 0
4'

 3
8.

66
"W

60
.8

26

S89° 55' 21.34"E
84.805

50'
ROW

27'
B-B

3 PARKING SPACES 7 PARKING SPACES

EX. 10' TYPE A BUFFER

REGENTS LANE

(50' PUBLIC ROW)

TO
PA

Z 
LA

NE
(5

0' 
PU

BL
IC

 R
OW

)

SOUTH SALEM STREET

(50' PUBLIC ROW)

EX. 10' TYPE A BUFFER

N/F NARANG RAHUL & NISHTHA
PIN: 0741-18-8012

ACREAGE: 0.03 AC.
DB. 16894, PG. 1659

TYPE / USE: SINGLFAM
ZONING: PUD-CZ

20' WATER ESMT.

EX. 15'
TYPE A BUFFER

N/F SALEM STREET TOWNHOMES
RESIDENTIAL OWNERS ASSOC., INC.

PIN: 0741-18-6390
ACREAGE: 0.21 AC.
DB. 17350, PG. 856

TYPE / USE: HOA

N/F SALEM STREET TOWNHOMES
RESIDENTIAL OWNERS ASSOC., INC.

PIN: 0741-18-9060
ACREAGE: 0.10 AC.
DB. 17350, PG. 856

TYPE / USE: HOA

N/F MCKINNISH, LORI
PIN: 0741-17-6996

ACREAGE: 1.75 AC.
DB. 16540, PG. 2062

TYPE / USE: SINGLFAM
ZONING: O&I-CZ

N/F SALEM STREET TOWNHOMES
RESIDENTIAL OWNERS ASSOC., INC.
PIN: 0741-27-0991
ACREAGE: 0.11 AC.
DB. 17350, PG. 856
TYPE / USE: HOA

C

C

C
C

C C

E

E

E E E
E

E

E

E
E

E E

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

TTTT
T

T

T

T

T

T

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W

W

W WW

W

W

E

E

SD

SD

E

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

E

SS
SS SD

SD

SD

SD

SS

SS

SS

SS

EX. 15" RCP
INV.: 469.20'

EX. 15" RCP
INV.: 468.79'

EX. 15" RCP
INV.: 467.36'

EX. 15" RCP
INV.: 467.67'

S

EX. 8" DIP
INV. IN: 454.34'

S
EX. 8" DIP

INV.: 463.07'

S

EX. 8" DIP
INV.IN: 460.20'
INV. OUT: 460.10'

S
EX. 8" DIP
INV.: 466.68'

H Y

D

H
YD

HH

HH

C C

TEL

EX. 10' TYPE A BUFFER

EX. 8" DIP

EX. 8" DIP
E E E E

E

E

E

10' DRY UTILITY EASEMENT

ROW DEDICATION

10' WATER ESMT.

N
00

° 
04

' 3
9"

E
23

4.
21

'

S88° 25' 51"E
59.83'

S88° 25' 51"E
31.13'

S88° 25' 51"E
18.79'

S88° 25' 51"E
77.21'

S88° 25' 51"E
9.21'

S
01° 05' 47"E

140.68'

Project #:

SHEET

Design By:

p:\
20

23
 pr

oje
cts

\23
00

23
 sa

lem
 cr

ee
k t

ow
nh

om
es

\E
NG

\D
WG

\S
he

ets
\P

23
00

23
_C

20
0_

SI
TE

.dw
g

Date:

Ba
te

m
an

 C
iv

il 
Su

rv
ey

 C
om

pa
ny

En
gin

ee
rs

    
 Su

rv
ey

or
s  

   P
la

nn
er

s
25

24
 R

el
ia

nc
e 

Av
en

ue
, A

pe
x,

 N
or

th
 C

ar
ol

in
a 

27
53

9
Ph

on
e:

 9
19

.5
77

.1
08

0 
  F

ax
: 9

19
.5

77
.1

08
1

NC
BE

LS
 F

IR
M

 N
o.

 C
-2

37
8

02.XX.22

SO
UT

H 
SA

LE
M 

ST
RE

ET
RE

ZO
NI

NG

P230023

72
0 S

AL
EM

 S
TR

EE
T

AP
EX

, N
C 

27
50

2

WA
KE

  C
OU

NT
Y

MEM

DESCRIPTIONDATEREV #

PRELIMINARY

C200

OV
ER

AL
L S

IT
E 

PL
AN

0

SCALE 1"=20'

40'20'

N

NAD 83 / NSRS 2011

NOTE:
PLAN SHEETS ARE INTENDED FOR
ILLUSTRATIVE USE ONLY.

- Page 288 -



15' TYPE A BUFFER

MAIL KIOSK / CBU

8'

7.5'

EX. 10' TYPE A BUFFER

REGENTS LANE

(50' PUBLIC ROW)

TO
PA

Z 
LA

NE
(5

0' 
PU

BL
IC

 R
OW

)

SOUTH SALEM STREET

(50' PUBLIC ROW)

EX. 10' TYPE A BUFFER

N/F NARANG RAHUL & NISHTHA
PIN: 0741-18-8012

ACREAGE: 0.03 AC.
DB. 16894, PG. 1659

TYPE / USE: SINGLFAM
ZONING: PUD-CZ

20' WATER ESMT.

EX. 15'
TYPE A BUFFER

N/F SALEM STREET TOWNHOMES
RESIDENTIAL OWNERS ASSOC., INC.

PIN: 0741-18-6390
ACREAGE: 0.21 AC.
DB. 17350, PG. 856

TYPE / USE: HOA

N/F SALEM STREET TOWNHOMES
RESIDENTIAL OWNERS ASSOC., INC.

PIN: 0741-18-9060
ACREAGE: 0.10 AC.
DB. 17350, PG. 856

TYPE / USE: HOA

N/F MCKINNISH, LORI
PIN: 0741-17-6996

ACREAGE: 1.75 AC.
DB. 16540, PG. 2062

TYPE / USE: SINGLFAM
ZONING: O&I-CZ

N/F SALEM STREET TOWNHOMES
RESIDENTIAL OWNERS ASSOC., INC.
PIN: 0741-27-0991
ACREAGE: 0.11 AC.
DB. 17350, PG. 856
TYPE / USE: HOA

C

C

C
C

C C

E

E

E E E
E

E

E

E
E

E E

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T
T

T

T

T

T

T

TTTT
T

T

T

T

T

T

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W

W

W WW

W

W

E

E

SD

SD

E

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

E

SS
SS SD

SD

SD

SD

SS

SS

SS

SS

EX. 15" RCP
INV.: 469.20'

EX. 15" RCP
INV.: 468.79'

EX. 15" RCP
INV.: 467.36'

EX. 15" RCP
INV.: 467.67'

S

EX. 8" DIP
INV. IN: 454.34'

S
EX. 8" DIP

INV.: 463.07'

S

EX. 8" DIP
INV.IN: 460.20'
INV. OUT: 460.10'

S
EX. 8" DIP
INV.: 466.68'

H Y

D

H
YD

HH

HH

C C

TEL

EX. 10' TYPE A BUFFER

EX. 8" DIP

EX. 8" DIP
E E E E

E

E

E

10' DRY UTILITY EASEMENT

ROW DEDICATION

C400

UT
ILI

TY
 A

ND
 S

TO
RM

W
AT

ER
 P

LA
N

Project #:

SHEET

Design By:

p:\
20

23
 pr

oje
cts

\23
00

23
 sa

lem
 cr

ee
k t

ow
nh

om
es

\E
NG

\D
WG

\S
he

ets
\P

23
00

23
_C

40
0_

UT
IL.

dw
g

Date:

Ba
te

m
an

 C
iv

il 
Su

rv
ey

 C
om

pa
ny

En
gin

ee
rs

    
 Su

rv
ey

or
s  

   P
la

nn
er

s
25

24
 R

el
ia

nc
e 

Av
en

ue
, A

pe
x,

 N
or

th
 C

ar
ol

in
a 

27
53

9
Ph

on
e:

 9
19

.5
77

.1
08

0 
  F

ax
: 9

19
.5

77
.1

08
1

NC
BE

LS
 F

IR
M

 N
o.

 C
-2

37
8

02.XX.22

SO
UT

H 
SA

LE
M 

ST
RE

ET
RE

ZO
NI

NG

P230023

72
0 S

AL
EM

 S
TR

EE
T

AP
EX

, N
C 

27
50

2

WA
KE

  C
OU

NT
Y

MEM

DESCRIPTIONDATEREV #

PRELIMINARY

0

SCALE 1"=20'

40'20'

N

NAD 83 / NSRS 2011

NOTE:
PLAN SHEETS ARE INTENDED FOR
ILLUSTRATIVE USE ONLY.

- Page 289 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: February 13, 2024 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

Department(s): Planning 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve Statement of the Town Council and Ordinance for Rezoning Case No. 23CZ15 Apex 

Gateway Phase 2 Amendment.  The applicant is Gray Harrell, Beacon Development for the properties 

located at: 314, 450, 482, 472, 546, 610, 696, 527, 0, & 0 NC Hwy 751; 0, 0, & 0 Hwy 64 East; 0 & 44 New 

Hill Road (PINs 071200461386, 071200460876, 071200367945, 071200470121, 071200378303, 

071200376549, 071200372751, 071200261673, 071200350755, 071200245813, 071200245419, 

071200246438, 071200435356, 071200452105, and 071200543241). 

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning Department recommends approval. 

Item Details 

Rezoning Case No. 23CZ15 Apex Gateway Phase 2 Amendment was approved at the January 23, 2024 

Town Council meeting. 

Attachments 

 CN14-A1: Statement and Ordinance - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ15 Apex Gateway Ph. 2 Amendment 
Statement and Ordinance 

 CN14-A2: Exhibits - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ15 Apex Gateway Ph. 2 Amendment Statement and 
Ordinance 

 CN14-A3: Attachment A – Legal Description - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ15 Apex Gateway Ph. 2 
Amendment Statement and Ordinance 

 

 

- Page 290 -



STATEMENT OF TOWN COUNCIL AND ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF 
THE TOWN OF APEX TO CHANGE THE ZONING OF APPROXIMATELY 243.48 ACRES LOCATED AT 314, 450, 
482, 472, 546, 610, 696, 527, 0 & 0 NC HWY 751; 0, 0, & 0 US 64 HWY E; 0 & 44 NEW HILL ROAD FROM 
LIGHT INDUSTRIAL-CONDITIONAL ZONING (LI-CZ #22CZ26) TO LIGHT INDUSTRIAL-CONDITIONAL ZONING 
(LI-CZ) & PLANNED COMMERCIAL-CONDITIONAL ZONING (PC-CZ) 
 

#23CZ15 

WHEREAS, Gray Harrell, Beacon Development, owner/applicant (the “Applicant”), submitted a completed 
application for a conditional zoning on the 1st day of August 2023 (the “Application”). The proposed 
conditional zoning is designated #23CZ15; 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Director for the Town of Apex, Dianne Khin, caused proper notice to be given (by 
publication and posting) of a public hearing on #23CZ15 before the Planning Board on the 8th day of January 
2024; 
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Planning Board held a public hearing on the 8th day of January 2024, gathered facts, 
received public comments and formulated a recommendation regarding the application for conditional 
zoning #23CZ15. A motion was made by the Apex Planning Board to recommend approval; the motion passed 
unanimously for the application for #23CZ15; 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C.G.S. §160D-601 and Sec. 2.2.11.E of the Unified Development Ordinance, the 
Planning Director caused proper notice to be given (by publication and posting), of a public hearing on 
#23CZ15 before the Apex Town Council on the 23rd day of January 2024; 
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council held a public hearing on the 23rd day of January 2024. Amanda Bunce, 
Current Planning Manager, presented the Planning Board's recommendation at the public hearing; 
 
WHEREAS, all persons who desired to present information relevant to the application for #23CZ15 were 
allowed to present evidence at the public hearing before the Apex Town Council. No one who wanted to 
speak was turned away;  
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is partially consistent with the 2045 
Land Use Plan and other adopted plans in the the 2045 Land Use Map designates the area north of Highway 
64 as Industrial Employment and the area south of Highway 64 as Commercial Services/Industrial 
Employment. Approval of this rezoning will automatically amend the area to be zoned Planned Commercial-
Conditional Zoning north of Highway 64 to Commercial Services. These designations on the 2045 Land Use 
Map include the zoning districts Light Industrial-Conditional Zoning (LI-CZ) and Planned Commercial-
Conditional Zoning (PC-CZ) and the Apex Town Council has further considered that the proposed rezoning to 
Light Industrial-Conditional Zoning (LI-CZ) and Planned Commercial-Conditional Zoning (PC-CZ) will maintain 
the character and appearance of the area and provide the flexibility to accommodate the growth in 
population, economy, and infrastructure consistent with that contemplated by the 2045 Land Use Map; 
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is reasonable and in the public 
interest in that: The rezoning includes only minor amendments to the existing zoning conditions in the LI-CZ 
zoned areas and the proposed PC-CZ districts will allow for greater variety in the types of commercial uses 
allowed. The additional commercial uses will benefit the employees and users of the development in the LI-
CZ zoned areas as well as the residential areas in the general vicinity. The proposed rezoning will encourage 
compatible development of the property and allow for uses that will generate jobs and increase the tax base; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council by a vote of 5 to 0 approved Application #23CZ15 rezoning the subject 
tract located at 314, 450, 482, 472, 546, 610, 696, 527, 0 & 0 NC HWY 751; 0, 0, & 0 US 64 HWY E; 0 & 44 
New Hill Road from Light Industrial-Conditional Zoning (LI-CZ #22CZ26) to Light Industrial-Conditional 
Zoning (LI-CZ) & Planned Commercial-Conditional Zoning (PC-CZ). 

 

- Page 291 -



Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning District Map #23CZ15 

Page 2 of 8 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF APEX 

Section 1:  The lands that are the subject of the Ordinance are those certain lands described in 
Attachment “A” – Legal Description which is incorporated herein by reference, and said lands are hereafter 
referred to as the “Rezoned Lands.” 

Section 2:  The Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance, including the Town of Apex North 
Carolina Official Zoning District Map which is a part of said Ordinance, is hereby amended by changing the 
zoning classification of the “Rezoned Lands” from Light Industrial-Conditional Zoning (LI-CZ #22CZ26) to Light 
Industrial-Conditional Zoning (LI-CZ) & Planned Commercial-Conditional Zoning (PC-CZ) District, subject to 
the conditions stated herein and in attached exhibits. 

Section 3:  The Planning Director is hereby authorized and directed to cause the said Official Zoning 
District Map for the Town of Apex, North Carolina, to be physically revised and amended to reflect the zoning 
changes ordained by this Ordinance. 

Section 4:  The “Rezoned Lands” are subject to all of the following conditions which are imposed as 
part of this rezoning: 

 
Limitiation of Uses: 
The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below. The permitted uses are 
subject to the limitations and regulations stated in the UDO and any additional limitations or regulations 
stated below. For convenience, some relevant sections of the UDO may be referenced; such references do 
not imply that other sections of the UDO do not apply.  
 
Permitted Uses and Limitations: Light Industrial-Conditional Zoning (LI-CZ) 
1. Government service 
2. Communication tower, commercial (SUP) 
3. Utility, minor 
4. Wireless support structure 
5. Wireless communication facility 
6. Broadcasting station (radio & television) 
7. Radio and television recording studio 
8. Commissary 
9. Restaurant, general 
10. Retail sales, general 
11. Medical or dental office or clinic 
12. Medical or dental laboratory 
13. Office, business or professional 
14. Building supplies, wholesale [subject to 

additional use condition restrictions] 
15. Laboratory, industrial research [subject to 

additional use condition restrictions] 
16. Machine or welding shop [retained at the 

request of the neighbors with existing shop or 
welding businesses on NC-751] 

17. Warehousing, general [subject to additional 
use condition restrictions] 

18. Woodworking or cabinetmaking 
19. Wholesaling distribution center [subject to 

additional use condition restrictions] 
20. Warehousing fulfillment center [subject to 

additional use condition restrictions] 

21. Brewery [subject to additional use condition 
restrictions] 

22. Distillery [subject to additional use condition 
restrictions] 

23. Manufacturing & processing [subject to 
additional use condition restrictions] 

24. Microbrewery or Microdistillery 
25. Research facility 
26. Glass sales [subject to additional use condition 

restrictions] 
27. Health/Fitness center or spa 
28. Manufacturing & processing, minor 
29. Entertainment indoor 
30. Entertainment outdoor (SUP) 
31. Greenway 
32. Pet services 
33. Parking lot, public 
34. Day care facility (%) 
35. Veterinary clinic or hospital 
36. Vocational school [subject to additional use 

condition restrictions] 
37. Drop-in or short-term day care 
38. Botanical garden 
39. Park, active 
40. Park, passive 

 

- Page 292 -



Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning District Map #23CZ15 

Page 3 of 8 

Permitted Uses and Limitations Planned Commercial-Conditional Zoning (PC-CZ) 

1. Daycare facility 24. Book store 
2. Drop-in or short-term day care 25. Convenience store 
3. Veterinary clinic or hospital 26. Convenience store with gas sales (subject to 

additional use restrictions) 
4. Communication tower, commercial (SUP) 27. Financial institution 
5. Communication tower, constructed stealth (SUP)  28. Floral shop 
6. Utility minor 29. Gas and fuel, retail (subject to additional use 

restrictions) 
7. Wireless support structure 30. Greenhouse or nursery, retail 
8. Wireless communication facility 31. Grocery, general 
9. Entertainment, indoor 32. Grocery, specialty 
10. Entertainment, outdoor (SUP) 33. Health/fitness center or spa 
11. Greenway 34. Laundromat 
12. Park, active 35. Newsstand or gift shop 
13. Park, passive 36. Personal services 
14. Youth or day camps 37. Pharmacy 
15. Bar, nightclub, wine bar, or taproom 38. Printing and copying services 
16. Restaurant, drive-through (subject to additional  

use restrictions)  
39. Real estate sales 

17. Restaurant, general (subject to additional use 
restrictions) 

40. Retail sales, general 

18. Medical or dental office or clinic 41. Studio for art 
19. Medical or dental laboratory 42. Tailor shop 
20. Office, business or professional 43. Theater 
21. Bed and breakfast 44. Pet services 
22. Hotel or motel 45. Microbrewery 
23. Barber and beauty shop 46. Parking lots, public  

Zoning Conditions: 

Use Conditions LI-CZ: 
1. Machine or welding shop: This use is allowed with the exception of welding associated with 

automobiles. 
2. Manufacturing and processing: This use shall be prohibited on any parcels south of US 64 and 

prohibited within 500’ of the northern boundary of the area to be rezoned. 
3. Laboratory, industrial research: This use shall be prohibited within 500’ of the northern boundary 

of the area to be rezoned and prohibited within 500’ of the centerline of New Hill Road and New 
Olive Chapel Road. 

4. Retail sales, general: This use shall be allowed in both freestanding retail buildings as well as mixed 
use buildings with no gross floor area percentage restrictions. Such use shall not be required to be 
associated with an Industrial use. 

5. Building supplies, wholesale: This use shall not exceed 200,000 square feet north of US 64 and shall 
not include more than 15% of the building's square footage as outdoor storage. This use shall not 
exceed 50,000 square feet south of US 64 and shall not include more than 15% of the building's 
square footage as outdoor storage. This use shall be prohibited within 500’ of the centerline of 
New Hill Road and New Olive Chapel Road. Outdoor storage to be screened with 10' slotted fence. 

6. Manufacturing and processing, minor: This use shall be prohibited within 500’ of the centerline of 
New Hill Road and New Olive Chapel Road. 

- Page 293 -



Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning District Map #23CZ15 

Page 4 of 8 

7. Glass sales: This use shall be prohibited within 500’ of the centerline of New Hill Road and New 
Olive Chapel Road. This use shall be all indoors except what is stored on trucks. Outdoor truck 
parking must be fully screened from any public right-of-way. 

8. Brewery: This use shall be prohibited within 500’ of the centerline of New Hill Road and New Olive 
Chapel Road. 

9. Distillery: This use shall be prohibited within 500’ of the centerline of New Hill Road and New Olive 
Chapel Road. 

10. Vocational school: This use is allowed with the exception of a truck driving school, or related 
programing that would require the use of trucks. 

11. There shall be a minimum of 3 acres in the LI-CZ zoning acreage, reserved north of US 64 that will 
allow for the following uses: Restaurant, general; Medical or dental office or clinic; Office, business 
or professional; Retail sales general; Pet services; Health / Fitness center or spa; Veterinary clinic or 
hospital; Day care facility; Drop-in or short-term day care;  

12. Warehousing, general: This use shall not exceed 95,000 total square feet south of US 64. This use 
shall be prohibited within 500’ of the centerline of New Hill Road and New Olive Chapel Road. 

13. Warehousing fulfillment: This use shall not exceed 95,000 total square feet south of US 64. This use 
shall be prohibited within 500’ of the centerline of New Hill Road and New Olive Chapel Road. 

14. Wholesaling distribution center: This use shall not exceed 95,000 total square feet south of US 64. 
This use shall be prohibited within 500’ of the centerline of New Hill Road and New Olive Chapel 
Road. 

 
Use Conditions PC-CZ: 

1. The approximately 12.07-acre tract at the south east corner of the US 64 and NC 751 intersection, 
framed between Hwy 64, New Hill Road, and New Hill Olive Road, shall exclude the following uses: 
Gas and fuel, retail and Convenience store with gas sales. 

2. The approximately 12.07-acre tract at the southeast corner of the US 64 and NC 751 intersection, 
between New Hill Road and New Hill Olive Chapel Road, shall contain no more than two (2) 
Restaurant, drive-through uses and no more than two (2) Restaurant, general uses. 

3. In addition to the allowable UDO signage requirements, two larger sign installations that shall be 
limited to 14-feet in height and have a maximum area of no greater than 180 square feet shall 
be allowed in the PC-CZ rezoning area. These signs will serve as project branding for the Apex 
Gateway development. 

4. The “Convience store with gas sales” use shall be limited to a single store location, and be prohibited 
in any acreage north of the US 64 or to the east of New Hill Road.  

 
Environmental Conditions: 

1. On the north side of US 64, within existing PIN’s 071200461386, 071200460876, 071200470121, 
071200367945, 071200378303, 071200376549, 071200372751, 071200261673, 071200350755, 
071200245813, 071200245419, 071200246438, and a portion of 071200435356, existing trees 
greater than 18" in diameter that are removed by site development shall be replaced by planting a 
1.5" caliper native tree from the Town of Apex Design and Development Manual either on-site or at 
an alternative location approved by the Town Planning Staff, above and beyond UDO requirements. 

2. On the south side of US 64, within existing PIN 071200435356 (Lots 2 and 3), existing trees greater 
than 24" in diameter that are removed by site development shall be replaced by planting a 1.5" 
caliper native tree from the Town of Apex Design and Development Manual either on-site or at an 
alternative location approved by the Town Planning Staff, above and beyond UDO requirements. 

3. The northern property boundary of the rezoning limits shall have the following buffers: PIN 0712-
00-26-1673 – 100’ average buffer; PIN 0712-00-37-2751 – minimum 100’ buffer. The approximate 
location of the buffer is shown in Exhibit 3. 

4. Post development peak runoff shall not exceed pre-development peak runoff for the 24-hour, 1-
year, 10-year, and 25-year storm events in accordance with the Unified Development Ordinance. 

- Page 294 -



Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning District Map #23CZ15 

Page 5 of 8 

Additionally, the developer shall commit to a minimum of 2 acres of wetlands to be constructed 
north of US 64 to facilitate additional nutrient removal above the Unified Development Ordinance 
requirements. 

5. On site stormwater treatment shall also include Green Stormwater Infrastructure measures within 
the project limits (above Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance requirements). At least two 
of the following Green Stormwater Infrastructure measures shall be included prior to the 3rd 

building CO: bio-retention areas totaling a minimum of 6,000 sf; a minimum of 5,000 sf of 
permeable pavement systems; and rainwater harvesting (cisterns) with a minimum capacity of 
2,500 gallons. Educational signage will be displayed where Green Stormwater Infrastructure 
devices are located, and such locations shall be open to the public and community groups for 
educational purposes. 

6. The project shall install at least one (1) sign per SCM about not using fertilizer near an SCM 
drainage area. The sign(s) shall be installed in locations that are publicly accessible, such as 
adjacent to amenity centers, sidewalks, greenways, or side paths. 

7. The project shall preserve a minimum of 10% of the existing tree canopy. 
8. The project shall preserve an additional 30’ of buffer along intermittent and perennial streams 

north of US 64 above the Town of Apex requirements. 
9. To improve energy efficiency, the project area to the north of US 64 shall plant evergreen trees on 

the northern side of all buildings to act as a windbreak. This shall not apply where loading docks are 
proposed along a building facade. 

10. To improve energy efficiency, a combination of large and small deciduous shade trees shall be 
planted on the southern side of any buildings. This shall not apply to commercial outparcels with 
highway frontage or where loading docks are proposed along a building facade. 

11. The project shall plant only drought tolerant native plants. Landscaping shall be coordinated with 
and approved by the Planning Department at the time of Site Plan or Master Subdivision Plan 
review. 

12. At least (1) information sign or other marking shall be provided at the boundary of an area 
dedicated as Resource Conservation Area (RCA) indicating that the area beyond the sign is RCA and 
is not to be disturbed. 

13. The project shall install light timers or other smart lighting technology on at least 50% of the 
fixtures in the parking lot so they are automatically turned off or reduced in level of lighting when 
the business is closed. 

14. Outdoor lighting shall be shielded in a way that focuses lighting to the ground. 
15. Outdoor lighting shall have a color temperature of no more than 3000 Kelvins. 
16. Development shall construct an activated open space / outdoor amenity along the proposed multi-

use path committed in Transportation Condition #5, and shall also include an adjacent pollinator 
garden. Approximate location depicted in Exhibit 2. The multi-use path and amenity programming / 
pollinator garden shall be constructed in conjunction with the development of these parcels (and 
shall not be required until development commences on the parcels). 

17. Removal of trees greater than 10" in diameter onsite for the sole purpose of making room to 
replant trees shall not be allowed. 

18. To further illustrate the project's commitment to preserving and re-establishing tree canopy in our 
region, prior to Site Plan approval, the developer will provide a donation of $100,000 to the 
Triangle Land Conservancy and an additional $100,000 donation to Trees for the Triangle. 

19. There shall be no tree clearing within the riparian buffer zones with the exception of required Town 
of Apex utilities and public street connections. 

20.  Any required public road crossing within a riparian buffer shall be narrowed to the greatest extent 

possible, subject to Town of Apex design requirements and staff approval, in order to limit 

environmental impacts. 

 

- Page 295 -



Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning District Map #23CZ15 

Page 6 of 8 

Architectural Conditions - Industrial 
1. EIFS or synthetic stucco shall not be used in the first four feet above grade and shall be limited to 

only 25% of each building façade. 
2. The buildings shall have more than one parapet height. 
3. Windows and glazing shall be divided to be either square or vertical in proportion so that each 

section is taller than it is wide. 
4. The main entry shall be human scaled and emphasized through the use of features such as, but not 

limited to, columns, piers, windows, recessed entries, sheltering elements, rooflines, trim, color 
change, material change and masonry patterns. Recessed arcades, entries flush with the building 
face and small entries without adjacent windows shall be avoided. 

 
Architectural Conditions - Commercial 

1. Buildings shall have vertical proportions. Expanses of blank wall shall not exceed sixty (60) feet in 
width without being interrupted with an architectural feature such as, but not limited to, a column, 
recess in or projection from the building façade. Permitted setbacks can be used to articulate bays 
of a building to break up its width. Architectural features such as, but not limited to, columns, piers, 
rooflines, and brick patterns can be used to divide and create vertical orientation on building 
facades. This would also include reveals in concrete tilt construction with integrated thin brick and 
contrasting paint colors, which add visual interest. The percentage of brick required on the facades 
will be 65 percent for a single-story building, 50 percent for a two story building, and only the first 
floor for a three story building. 

2. The main entry shall be human scaled and emphasized through the use of features such as, but not 
limited to, columns, piers, windows, recessed entries, sheltering elements, rooflines, trim, color 
change, material change and masonry patterns. Recessed arcades, entries flush with the building 
face and small entries without adjacent windows shall be avoided. 

3. Buildings on corners are to be treated as gateways with quality design. 
4. Corner buildings shall match or exceed the height of adjacent commercial buildings. 
5. Corner buildings shall have two facades which maintain a relationship to each other although they 

do not need to be identical. 
6. The orientation of drive-thru lanes, pick-up windows, and other utilitarian building functions should 

not be oriented toward or located adjacent the street. If drive-thru lanes must be located adjacent 
to a street, they shall be screened through the use of low walls and/or landscaping. Pick-up 
windows shall be de-emphasized through screening and/or architectural elements. 

7. Each façade shall have a rhythm that is repeated through the pattern of wall and openings. The 
building façade shall have an identifiable base, body, and cap with horizontal elements separating 
these components. The body of the building shall constitute a minimum of 50% of the total building 
height. Buildings shall not have blank side walls creating a false front appearance. 

8. The street level of the facades shall provide human scaled entries including, but not limited to, 
recessed entries, sheltering elements and adjacent storefront windows. Facades shall incorporate a 
minimum of two (2) continuous details refined to the scale of twelve (12) inches or less within the 
first ten (10) feet of the building wall, measured vertically at street level. Recessed arcades, entries 
flush with the building face, and small entries without adjacent windows shall be avoided. 

9. Windows and storefront glazing shall be divided to be either square or vertical in proportion so that 
each section is taller than it is wide. 

10. Simple parapet roof edges with varying coping shall be used on most buildings. The roofline height 
shall vary from building to building as well as within buildings with wide street frontage. 

11. The building shall have more than one parapet height. 
12. Roof features may include hip roofs or awnings with metal or shingle roofs. 
13. Buildings shall be architecturally compatible by way of colors and use of materials. The building 

exterior shall have more than one material color. 

- Page 296 -



Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning District Map #23CZ15 

Page 7 of 8 

14. The exterior materials shall include a combination of building materials. The primary (front) façade 
of the main buildings to be considered include: 
a. Brick masonry 
b. Decorative concrete block (either integrally colored or textured) 
c. Stone accents 
d. Aluminum storefronts with anodized or pre-finished colors. 
e. EIFS cornices and parapet trim. 
f. Precast concrete 
g. Concrete tilt with a base wall paint color in conjunction with varying complimentary accent 

paint colors and integral thin brick, with associative percentages as outlined in item 1 above. 
15. Exterior materials that shall not be allowed are as follows: 

a. Vinyl siding 
b. Painted, smooth faced concrete block (decorative blocks are acceptable) 
c. Metal walls 

16. EIFS or synthetic stucco shall not be used in the first four feet above grade and shall be limited to 
only 25% of each building façade 

17. Soffit and fascia materials shall be EIFS, architectural metal panels (ACM), or tongue and groove 
wood. 

 
Transportation Conditions 

1. Development shall dedicate public right-of-way for the future interchange at US 64 and NC 751 
consistent with the area shown in Exhibit 1. This area is based on the outside limits of the 
interchange concept known as “ALT 1” evaluated by the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation at the time of rezoning. This dedication shall be included in development plans and 
occur at the time of Subdivision Final Plat or Site Plan Final Plat, whichever occurs first, for any 
parcel(s) adjacent to US 64 and NC 751 as applicable. If NCDOT has approved an interchange design 
prior to the first Subdivision Final Plat or Site Plan Final Plat that is less than shown on Exhibit 1, the 
development shall only be required to dedicate the right-of-way shown in the approved 
interchange design. 

2. All collector roads (as reflected in Exhibit 1) shall be constructed to Town of Apex major collector 
street standards. Development shall construct and dedicate a 60-foot right-of-way from NC 751 to 
the eastern boundary of the rezoning limits. Exhibit 2 reflects approximate location of connection 
that shall be further defined at site plan. This shall not be required until these parcels are 
developed. 

3. Development shall construct and dedicate a 60-foot right-of-way from NC 751 to the western 
boundary of the rezoning limits. Exhibit 2 reflects approximate location of connection that shall be 
further defined at site plan. This shall not be required until these parcels are developed. 

4. Development shall increase the sidewalk width to a 10’ multi-use path for a portion of the road 
committed in Transportation Condition #3 from NC 751 to the eastern stream buffer as depicted on 
Exhibit 2. This shall not be required until these parcels are developed. 

5. Development shall connect the multi-use path committed in Transportation Condition #4 back to 
NC 751 along the approximate location shown on Exhibit 2. Multi-use path shall be at a minimum 
10’ wide and of stone material. This shall not be required until these parcels are developed. 

6. The development shall construct a minimum of two stub street connections to adjacent parcels 
that have no frontage along public streets or only have frontage along NC 751. The location of the 
stub streets shall be subject to Town review and approval. 

7. Development shall construct a 5-foot sidewalk on the west side of NC 751 along the frontage of 
existing PIN’s 071200277607 and 071200278263 at the time of development of the northwest 
quadrant (existing PIN’s 071200261673 and 071200350755) subject to readily available right-of-way 
or easement from the property owner(s). 

- Page 297 -



Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning District Map #23CZ15 

Page 8 of 8 

8. A 10 ft shared use path shall be provided along the northern property boundary of existing PIN 
71200435356 Lot 2 (south of NC 64 and west of New Hill Road) at the time this parcel is developed. 

9. Development shall, in conjunction with NCDOT, investigate the feasibility of the addition of a 10’ 
multi-use path or it’s easement area from the terminus of the Reedy Branch Greenway at the 
intersection of New Hill Olive Chapel Road and Amberlight Road to the proposed multi-use path 
stated in Transportation Condition #5 at the time this parcel (PIN 071200435356 Lot 3 – South of 
NC 64 and east of New Hill Road) is developed. 

10. Development shall construct a 5-foot sidewalk on the east side of NC 751 along the frontage of 
existing PIN 071200452843 at the time of development of the northeast quadrant subject to 
readily available right-of-way (and NC DOT approval) or easement dedication from the property 
owner. 

11. The development shall construct and designate 10 park and ride spaces for public use within Apex 
Gateway Phase 2. Park and ride spaces shall be located south of US 64 and no more than 1,000 feet 
from the center of the US 64 and NC 751 intersection. 

 

Section 5:  The “Rezoned Lands” shall be perpetually bound to the conditions imposed including the 
uses authorized, unless subsequently changed or amended as provided for in the Unified Development 
Ordinance. Site plans for any development to be made pursuant to this amendment to the Official Zoning 
District Map shall be submitted for site plan approval as provided for in the Unified Development Ordinance. 

Section 6:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 Motion by Council Member___________________________________ 

 Seconded by Council Member__________________________________ 

 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "aye." 

 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "no." 

 This the _____ day of _________________ 2024. 

  TOWN OF APEX 

  
Jacques K. Gilbert 
Mayor 

ATTEST:   

Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 
Town Clerk 

  

APPROVED AS TO FORM:   
   

Town Attorney   
 

- Page 298 -



A
PE

X 
G

A
TE

W
A

Y
EX

H
IB

IT

B
EA

C
O

N
 P

A
R

TN
ER

S

Checked By:

Project Number:

Drawing Number:

Scale:

Drawn By:

Date:

EX
H

IB
IT

 1

- Page 299 -



A
PE

X 
G

A
TE

W
A

Y 
- P

H
A

SE
 2

EX
H

IB
IT

B
EA

C
O

N
 P

A
R

TN
ER

S

Checked By:

Project Number:

Drawing Number:

Scale:

Drawn By:

Date:

EX
H

IB
IT

 2

APPROXIMATE LOCATION
OF FUTURE MAJOR
COLLECTOR PUBLIC ROAD

APPROXIMATE LOCATION 
OF FUTURE MAJOR
COLLECTOR PUBLIC ROAD

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF FUTURE
MAJOR COLLECTOR PUBLIC ROAD

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
FUTURE MAJOR COLLECTOR
PUBLIC ROAD

- Page 300 -



WAKE COUNTYNEW HILL OLIVE CHAPEL RD
CHATHAM COUNTY

CHAT
WAK

US 64 HIGHW
AY

NC 75
1

*

*

NEW HILL RD

*********
DRDRL RDRL RLLL R

LL
HILLILHILHI

W HIHW HW H
EWW

NEWEW
NEWENE

A
PE

X 
G

A
TE

W
A

Y 
- P

H
A

SE
 2

M
A

ST
ER

 P
LA

N

B
EA

C
O

N
 P

A
R

TN
ER

S

Checked By:

Project Number:

Drawing Number:

Scale:

Drawn By:

Date:

EN
H

A
N

C
ED

 B
U

FF
ER

 E
XH

IB
IT

LEGEND

PROPOSED CONDITIONS

- Page 301 -



AFFIDAVIT OF OWNERSHIP: EXHIBIT A- LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Application #: Submittal Date: 

Insert legal description below. 

ITUATED AND LYING IN THE STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA, CHATHAM COUNTY, 
OWNSHIP OF NEW HOPE, BEING ALL OF THAT LAND DEPICTED IN DEED BOOK 318 

PAGE 352. ALL REFERENCES TO DEED BOOKS AND PLAT BOOKS IN THIS 
DESCRIPTION REFER TO THE RECORDS OF THE CHATHAM COUNTY REGISTER OF 
DEEDS OFFICE, NORTH CAROLINA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY BOUNDED AND 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

OMMENCING AT A FOUND NGS HORIZONTAL CONTROL MONUMENT FOUND 
(HAVING NORTH CAROLINA STATE PLANE COORDINATES OF N: 724864.40' E: 

014802.13'), THENCE FROM SAID POINT COMMENCING SOUTH 77 DEGREES 40 
MINUTES 11 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 33.66 FEET TO A CALCULATED POINT, 

AJD POINT HAVING NORTH CAROLINA STATE PLANE COORDINATES N: 724864.40' E: 
014802.13' AND BEING THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
HENCE SOUTH 55°47'03" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 30.91 FEET TO A CALCULATED 

POINT IN THE CENTERLINE OF NC 751; THENCE WITH THE CENTER OF SAID ROAD 
NORTH 34°

05'41" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 79.53 FEET TO A CALCULATED POINT; 
HENCE NORTH 34°05'41" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 336.89 FEET TO A CALCULATED 

POINT; THENCE NORTH 33°44'47" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 176.66 FEET TO A 
ALCULATED POINT; THENCE LEAVING THE CENTERLINE OF NC 751 NORTH 
6°08'40" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 30.04 FEET TO A 1/2" IRON PIPE FOUND; THENCE 

NORTH 55°54'54" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 1,122.10 FEET TO A 1 /2" IRON PIPE FOUND; 
HENCE SOUTH 00°

41'08" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 979.44 FEET TO A 1" IRON PIPE 
FOUND; THENCE SOUTH 81°58'20" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 315.77 FEET TO A SET 5/8 
IRON REBAR WITH CAP; THENCE NORTH 34°07'21" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 73.59 FEET 

0 A 1/2" IRON PIPE FOUND; THENCE SOUTH 55°47'03" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 279.92 
FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING; 

ONTAINING 617,420 SQ. FT. OR 14.17 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS. 
BEING 17,790 SQ. FT. OR 0.41 ACRES WITHIN NC 751 RIGHT OF WAY. 

10 of 11 Rezoning Application Last Updated: August 30, 2019 

Attachment A

- Page 302 -



- Page 303 -



- Page 304 -



- Page 305 -



- Page 306 -



- Page 307 -



- Page 308 -



- Page 309 -



- Page 310 -



- Page 311 -



- Page 312 -



- Page 313 -



- Page 314 -



- Page 315 -



- Page 316 -



- Page 317 -



- Page 318 -



- Page 319 -



- Page 320 -



- Page 321 -



- Page 322 -



- Page 323 -



- Page 324 -



- Page 325 -



- Page 326 -



- Page 327 -



- Page 328 -



- Page 329 -



WAKE COUNTYNEW HILL OLIVE CHAPEL RD
CHATHAM COUNTY

CHAT
WAK

US 64 HIGHW
AY

NC 75
1

*

*

NEW HILL RD

*********
DRDRL RDRL RLLL R

LL
HILLILHILHI

W HIHW HW H
EWW

NEWEW
NEWENE

A
PE

X 
G

A
TE

W
A

Y 
- P

H
A

SE
 2

M
A

ST
ER

 P
LA

N

B
EA

C
O

N
 P

A
R

TN
ER

S

Checked By:

Project Number:

Drawing Number:

Scale:

Drawn By:

Date:

EN
H

A
N

C
ED

 B
U

FF
ER

 E
XH

IB
IT

LEGEND

PROPOSED CONDITIONS

Attachment "A"

- Page 330 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: February 13, 2024 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

Department(s): Planning  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve the Statement of the Town Council and Ordinance for Rezoning Case No. 23CZ12 

Sweetwater PUD Amendment, David Schmidt, ExperienceOne Homes, LLC, petitioner, for the properties 

located at 1451 Richardson Rd; 1051 & 1075 Newland Ave; 2800, 2810 Teachey Pl, & 2820 Teachey Pl; 0 

Core Banks St and 0 Little Gem Lane (PINs 0722550034, 0722544876, 0722544404, 0722457646, 

0722454406, 0722443942, 0722441499, and 0722441386). 

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning Department recommends approval. 

Item Details 

Rezoning Case No. 23CZ20 was approved at the January 23, 2024 Town Council meeting.  

 

Attachments 

 CN15-A1: Statement and Ordinance - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ20 Sweetwater PUD Amendment - 
Statement and Ordinance 

 CN15-A2: Attachment A – Legal Description - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ20 Sweetwater PUD 
Amendment - Statement and Ordinance 

 CN15-A3: Attachment B – Sweetwater PUD Amendment Text - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ20 
Sweetwater PUD Amendment - Statement and Ordinance 
 

 

- Page 331 -



STATEMENT OF TOWN COUNCIL AND ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF 
THE TOWN OF APEX TO CHANGE THE ZONING OF APPROXIMATELY 41.33 ACRES LOCATED AT 1451 
RICHARDSON RD; 1051 & 1075 NEWLAND AVE; 2800, 2810 TEACHEY PL, & 2820 TEACHEY PL; 0 CORE 
BANKS ST AND 0 LITTLE GEM LANE FROM PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT-CONDITIONAL ZONING (PUD-
CZ #22CZ03 & #23CZ12) TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT-CONDITIONAL ZONING (PUD-CZ) 

#23CZ20 

WHEREAS, David Schmidt, ExperienceOne Homes, LLC, owner/applicant (the “Applicant”), submitted a 
completed application for a conditional zoning on the 2nd day of October 2023 (the “Application”). The 
proposed conditional zoning is designated #23CZ20; 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Director for the Town of Apex, Dianne Khin, caused proper notice to be given (by 
publication and posting) of a public hearing on #23CZ20 before the Planning Board on the 8th day of 
January 2024; 
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Planning Board held a public hearing on the 8th day of January 2024, gathered facts, 
received public comments and formulated a recommendation regarding the application for conditional 
zoning #23CZ20. A motion was made by the Apex Planning Board to recommend approval; the motion 
passed unanimously for the application for #23CZ20; 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C.G.S. §160D-601 and Sec. 2.2.11.E of the Unified Development Ordinance, the 
Planning Director caused proper notice to be given (by publication and posting), of a public hearing on 
#23CZ20 before the Apex Town Council on the 23rd day of January 2024; 
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council held a public hearing on the 23rd day of January 2024. Amanda Bunce, 
Current Planning Manager, presented the Planning Board's recommendation at the public hearing; 
 
WHEREAS, all persons who desired to present information relevant to the application for #23CZ20 were 
allowed to present evidence at the public hearing before the Apex Town Council. No one who wanted to 
speak was turned away;  
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is consistent with the 2045 Land 
Use Plan and other adopted plans in that: The 2045 Land Use Map designates this area as Mixed Use: High 
Density Residential/Office Employment/Commercial Services. This designation on the 2045 Land Use Map 
includes the zoning district Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) and the Apex Town 
Council has further considered that the rezoning to Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-
CZ) will allow development to accommodate the growth in population, economy, and infrastructure 
consistent with that contemplated by the 2045 Land Use Map; 
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council finds that the approval of the rezoning is reasonable and in the public 
interest in that: The rezoning will allow increased building height north of Core Banks Street which is 
needed for a potential hotel use and will allow for more of the development to be commercial uses rather 
than office. The proposed rezoning will increase the tax base and provide services to the nearby 
community; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Apex Town Council by a vote of 5 to 0 approved Application #23CZ20 rezoning the subject 
tract located at 1451 Richardson Rd; 1051 & 1075 Newland Ave; 2800, 2810 Teachey Pl, & 2820 Teachey 
Pl; 0 Core Banks St and 0 Little Gem Lane from Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ 
#22CZ03 & #23CZ12) to Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF APEX 

 Section 1:  The lands that are the subject of the Ordinance are those certain lands described in 
Attachment “A” – Legal Description which is incorporated herein by reference, and said lands are 
hereafter referred to as the “Rezoned Lands.” 

- Page 332 -



Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning District Map #23CZ20 

Page 2 of 2 

Section 2:  The Town of Apex Unified Development Ordinance, including the Town of Apex North 
Carolina Official Zoning District Map which is a part of said Ordinance, is hereby amended by changing the 
zoning classification of the “Rezoned Lands” from Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ 
#22CZ03 and #23CZ12) to Planned Unit Development-Conditional Zoning (PUD-CZ) District, subject to the 
conditions stated herein. 

Section 3:  The Planning Director is hereby authorized and directed to cause the said Official 
Zoning District Map for the Town of Apex, North Carolina, to be physically revised and amended to reflect 
the zoning changes ordained by this Ordinance. 

Section 4:  The “Rezoned Lands” are subject to the conditions in Attachment “B” Sweetwater PUD 
which are imposed as part of this rezoning. 

Section 5:  The “Rezoned Lands” shall be perpetually bound to the conditions imposed including 
the uses authorized, unless subsequently changed or amended as provided for in the Unified 
Development Ordinance. Site plans for any development to be made pursuant to this amendment to the 
Official Zoning District Map shall be submitted for site plan approval as provided for in the Unified 
Development Ordinance. 

Section 6:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 Motion by Council Member___________________________________ 

 Seconded by Council Member__________________________________ 

 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "aye." 

 With ____ Council Member(s) voting "no." 

 This the _____ day of _________________ 2024. 

  TOWN OF APEX 

  Mayor 
ATTEST:   

Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC  
Town Clerk 
 

  

APPROVED AS TO FORM:   
   

Town Attorney   
 

- Page 333 -



Attachment A

- Page 334 -



- Page 335 -



BK018792PG00051 WAKE COUNTY, NC 

TAMMY L. BRUNNER 

REGISTER OF DEEDS 

PRESENTED & RECORDED ON 

11-10-2021 AT 16:42:26 

BOOK: 018792 PAGE: 00051 - 00055 

NORTH CAROLINA SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 

Excise Tax: $NI A 

Real Estate Identification Nos.: 0120755 and 0148944 

Return to: �G=ran=t�ee�---------------------

This instrument was prepared by: Weatherspoon & Voltz LLP 

Brief description for the Index: Lots 8 and 9A. Sweetwater Subdivision, Apex, NC 

THIS DEED is made this lb {f> r day of November, 2021, by and between: 

GRANTOR 

KEPEl GLOBAL, LLC, 

GRANTEE 

KEPEl STC, LLC, 
a North Carolina limited liability company a North Carolina limited liability company 

c/o The Kalikow Group 
7001 Brush Hollow Road, Suite 200 
Westbury, NY 11590 

c/o The Kalikow Group 
7001 Brush Hollow Road, Suite 200 
Westbury, NY 11590 

The designation Grantor and Grantee as used herein shall include said parties, their heirs, successors, and assigns, and 
shall include singular, plural, masculine, feminine or neuter as required by context. 

WI'INESSETH, that the Grantor, for a valuable consideration paid by the Grantee, the receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged, has and by these presents does grant, bargain, sell and convey unto the Grantee in fee simple those certain 
lots or parcels ofland situated in White Oak Township, Wake County, North Carolina and being described as follows: 

Set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference . 

The property hereinabove described was acquired by Grantor by instrument recorded in Book 18791 
2386 , Wake County Registry. 

submitted electronically by "Weatherspoon & Voltz LLP" 
in compliance with North Carolina statutes governing recordable documents 
and the terms of the submitter agreement with the wake county Register of Deeds. 

, Page 

- Page 336 -



- Page 337 -



- Page 338 -



- Page 339 -



- Page 340 -



- Page 341 -



- Page 342 -



- Page 343 -



- Page 344 -



- Page 345 -



- Page 346 -



- Page 347 -



- Page 348 -



- Page 349 -



- Page 350 -



- Page 351 -



- Page 352 -



- Page 353 -



- Page 354 -



- Page 355 -



- Page 356 -



- Page 357 -



- Page 358 -



- Page 359 -



- Page 360 -



- Page 361 -



- Page 362 -



- Page 363 -



- Page 364 -



Sweetwater PUD Amendment 

Proposed Rezoning Changes 

December 11,2023 

The PUD will retain all of the conditions from rezoning #17CZ21, #18CZ01, #22CZ03 and #23CZ12 except: 

I. Revisions to Section 6:

Section 6:  Design Controls 

NONRESIDENTIAL/MIXED-USE AREAS: 

Office: A minimum of 55,000 20,000 square feet of office will be provided in this section. 

Building Height: 

Maximum Height: 62 Feet (5 Story) 77 Feet (6 Stories) 
39 Feet (2 Story) – PINs 0722-44-1499 & 0722-44-1386 

23CZ20 Attachment B

- Page 365 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: February 13, 2024 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Christy Wentzell, Captain 

Department(s): Police  

Requested Motion 

 

Motion to approve the terms and conditions for purchase and use of Gladiator Forensics’ software license 

and permission to use Wake County Sheriff’s Office Gladiator Forensics Server, and to authorize the Interim 

Town Manager, or their designee, to execute on behalf of the Town.  

 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

Gladiator Forensics provides forensics intelligence gathering and analytical tools.  They have two platforms, 

ESPA (Enterprise Sensor Processing and Analytics) and GAR (Gladiator Autonomous Receiver) that were 

designed by telecommunication experts with intimate knowledge of crime investigation protocols.  The 

company is a proven, reliable wireless network forensics platform that can discover and present highly 

accurate facts regarding activity on cellular and Wi-Fi networks and devices, both historically and in real-time. 

It is widely used by federal, state, and local law enforcement agencies to include the DEA, SBI, and Wake 

County Sheriff’s Office (WCSO).  A few noted highlights of Gladiator Forensics include: 

 Crime investigation methods using telecom geo-location data 

 Autonomous wireless-network Recon solution for border security, apprehension, and search and 

rescue operations 

 CALEA compliant lawfully intercepted electronic surveillance solution 

 Patented True-Coverage mapping, which defines and prioritizes target search areas based on actual 

cellular network coverage and configuration 

 Call detail records and geo-location analysis, mapping, and reporting 

 Forensic phone evidence reports for prosecution and court presentations 

- Page 366 -



 

The ESPA Platform is Gladiator’s forensics geographic information system which unifies case management, 

data storage, and analytics from all of Gladiator’s intelligence gathering and analytical tools.  It is considered 

a unified command center for real-time monitoring, network recon, and geo-location data, for a complete 

and comprehensive assessment of telecom evidentiary data.  

The GAR Platform is a wireless network Recon platform, uses patented analytics to prioritize and confine 

search areas in-line with actual RF network coverage and cell-tower activity. GAR is fully configurable to 

support all wireless access technologies globally, including the 5G networks. Gladiator’s Recon 

measurements and analytics are fully customizable and can be configured remotely. 

Gladiator Forensics also provides Smart Track and Sentinel.  Smart Track is an automated live monitoring 

system for geo-fencing, alerts, and mapping GPS and email pings. Sentinel is an electronic solution that 

allows monitoring a subject’s real time location and mobility tailored with detail views including location and 

update messages.   

Wake County Sheriff’s Office currently owns and operates a Gladiator Forensics Server.  They are allowing 

access to the server, with only the purchase of a Gladiator license.  This will allow the police department to 

have access to real-time crime mapping, geo-fencing, and intelligence gathering.  Currently, the Holly 

Springs Police Department and Cary Police Department along with other Sheriff’s Offices in the region have 

partnered with WCSO to utilize the Gladiator Server.  

 

Attachments 

 CN16-A1: Gladiator Forensics Quote - Software License - Gladiator Forensics 
 CN16-A2: Gladiator Forensics Terms and Conditions - Software License - Gladiator Forensics 

 

 

- Page 367 -



Gladiator Forensics, LLC

100 Rialto Place Ste 605
Melbourne, FL  32901
(202) 465-4753
sales@gladiator-forensics.com
www.gladiator-forensics.com

Quote
ADDRESS

Captian Christy Wentzell
Apex Police Department

QUOTE # Apex-2024-01-02 OSS
DATE 01/02/2024

EXPIRATION DATE 03/02/2024

  

ITEM DESCRIPTION SKU QTY
UNIT 

PRICE $
SUB-

TOTAL $

Enterprise Pkg - Real Time
ESPA/ST/PRTT (1) concurrent license includes total of three 
named users

E-RT-PKG 1 9,100.00 9,100.00

OSS Network Access (annual
OSS Network Access (Annual)

E-OSS-ACCESS 1 600.00 600.00

Enterprise Mobile App - Annual
G-Scout Mobile app per user (Annual)

E-APP 3 400.00 1,200.00

 

1 Gladaitor OSS license (3 users, 1 concurrent) 
on the WCSO OSS Server.  3 Mobile app licenses 
(Annual License)

SUBTOTAL 10,900.00
TAX 0.00
TOTAL $10,900.00

Accepted By Accepted Date

- Page 368 -



TERMS & CONDITIONS 
This TERMS & CONDITIONS OF USAGE (the “Terms”) set forth the terms and conditions for 
use of the Gladiator Forensics LLC (“Gladiator”) software available through this 
portal.  Gladiator reserves the right to change these Terms from time to time and such changes 
shall be published on the Gladiator website. 

  

1. DEFINITIONS 
a.        “Materials” shall mean the written materials relating to the operation and use of the Gladiator Software 

including, but not limited to, user guides, technical support, release notes, and online help files 
regarding use of the Gladiator Software, and any other materials prepared in connection with any 
Gladiator Software modification, correction, or enhancement, and shall include any updated versions of 
Materials as may be provided by Gladiator from time to time (1) in the ordinary course of Gladiator’s 
business; (2) as part of an online tutorials or help files provided; or (3) in the course of providing web 
seminars or other information sessions for customers and users of the Software. 

b.       “Base Components” means the hardware, software, and hosting environment that Gladiator makes 
available for use by You as part of the Service. 

c.        “Cloud Hosting” means the provision of products and services in a hosted, virtualized environment, 
accessible via the internet. 

d.       “Enterprise” means the provision of products and services in a self-hosted environment, on your own 
premises, using your own servers, hardware and associated IT support services. 

e.        “Gladiator Software” means Gladiator proprietary software applications and user interfaces provided 
by Gladiator and made available to You by Gladiator as part of the Service.  Gladiator Software may 
contain third-party components licensed to Gladiator.  

f.        "Your Data" means all data, files, including hypertext markup language files, documents, audio and 
visual information, graphics, scripts, programs, applets or servlets that You create, install, upload to or 
transfer in or through the Service or provides in the course of using the Service, excluding identification 
and other information provided by You relative to Your Users. 

g.       “Electronic Communications” shall mean any transfer of signs, signals, text, images, sounds, data or 
intelligence of any nature transmitted in whole or part electronically to or from the Service. 

h.       “Infrastructure Support Services” shall mean the support provided by Gladiator for the maintenance 
and stability of the computer hardware and hosting environment provided as part of the Service. 

i.         “Product Support Services” shall mean the support provided by Gladiator to remediate, correct, or 
abate errors in the Gladiator Software that is provided as part of the Service. 

j.         "Purchase Order Form(s)" refers to Your document, in either electronic or written form, issued by You 
to confirm Your purchase of the Service.  The parties acknowledge and agree that the terms and 
conditions of any such Purchase Order Form shall not be binding upon Gladiator, or in any way modify, 
amend, or supersede the terms and conditions of these Terms.  

k.       “Service” shall mean the software and infrastructure in a hosted environment provided and maintained 
by Gladiator to which You are being granted access under these Terms via a web site or another 
designated IP address.  Service shall also include any hardware purchased from Gladiator including, 

- Page 369 -



without limitation, the Gladiator GAR.  Service or Services includes Product Support Services described 
in these Terms. 

l.         “Term” means any Initial Term or Renewal Term as defined in these Terms. 

m.     “Third Party Products” means application software products provided by third party vendors, including 
operating system and application software with which the Gladiator Software interfaces and which 
provides certain functionality essential to the operation of the Gladiator Software.  Third Party Products 
are licensed to Gladiator for incorporation and use in the hosted environment as part of the Service.  For 
the sake of clarity, the term Third-Party Products does not refer to third-party software components, if 
any, incorporated into Gladiator Software.  

n.       "User(s)" means You, Your employees, representatives, consultants, contractors or agents who are 

authorized to use the Service and have been supplied authorization, user identifications and passwords 
by You (as necessary) or on Your behalf.  

  

2. PRIVACY 
Your Privacy is important to us.  While processing is based on consent and to the extent permitted 
by law, by agreeing to these Terms and Conditions, you consent to Gladiator’s collection, and use of 
Your Content and Data, strictly for the purposes of rendering the support requested by You as the 
user.  In some cases, we may provide separate notice and request your consent for the strict 
purpose of providing you with the requested support services. 

  

3. YOUR Data 
Some of our Services will allow you to store or share Your Data with others or receive material or 
information from others.  We do not claim ownership of Your Data.  Your Data remains Your Data 
and you are responsible for it. 

  If you share Your Data with others, you understand that they may be able to, on a worldwide basis, 
use, save, record, reproduce, broadcast, transmit, share and display Your Data. If you do not want others 
to have that ability, do not use the Services to share Your Data. You represent and warrant that for the 
duration of these Terms, you have (and will have) all the rights necessary for Your Data that is uploaded, 
stored, or shared on or through the Services and that the collection, use, and retention of Your Data will 
not violate any law or rights of others. Gladiator cannot be held responsible for Your Data or the material 
others upload, store or share using the Services. 
 

  To the extent necessary to provide the Services to you and others, to protect you and the 
Services, and to improve Gladiator’s products and services, you grant to Gladiator access, to make 
copies of, retain, transmit, reformat, display, and distribute via communication tools Your Data on the 
Services. 

  

4. CODE OF CONDUCT 
By agreeing to these Terms, you’re agreeing that, when using the Services, you: 

- Page 370 -



         Will not do anything illegal. 

         Will not engage in any activity that exploits, harms, or threatens to harm children. 

         Will not send spam. Spam is unwanted or unsolicited bulk email, postings, contact requests, SMS (text 
messages), or instant messages. 

         Will not circumvent any restrictions on access to or availability of the Services. 

         Will not engage in activity that is harmful to you, the Services, or others (e.g., transmitting viruses, 
stalking, posting terrorist content, communicating hate speech, or advocating violence against others). 

         Will not infringe upon the rights of others (e.g., unauthorized sharing of copyrighted material, resale or 
other distribution). 

         Will not engage in activity that illegally violates the privacy of others. 

         Will not help others break these rules. 

         Will not use third-party content or data without proper authority. 

         Will not engage in activity without proper authority including, without limitation, obtaining necessary 
court ordered documentation such as a search warrant or other order of a court of competent jurisdiction 
as required in the circumstances. 

Enforcement. If you violate these Terms, Gladiator may stop providing Services to you, or close 
your Gladiator account, or both. Gladiator may also block delivery of a communication to or from the 
Services in an effort to enforce these Terms or we may remove or refuse to publish Your Content for 
any reason. When investigating alleged violations of these Terms, Gladiator reserves the right to 
audit usage of services by your users in order to resolve the issue. However, we cannot monitor the 
entire Services and make no attempt to do so. 

  

5. INSTALLATION/LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 
You will ensure that Your computer systems are compatible with the requirement necessary to use 
the Gladiator Software.  You acknowledge that the system requirements may change from time to 
time, primarily as a result of modifications to the Gladiator Software and Service.  Gladiator shall not 
be liable, or responsible, for any deficiency, malfunction, or operational error, in Your 
system.  Gladiator shall not be liable, or responsible, for any breach of security attributable to Your 
system, software, security, practices, or any other reason under Your control. 

  

6. LICENSE GRANT 
LICENSE GRANT BY GLADIATOR TO YOU.  Subject to the terms and conditions of these Terms, 
Gladiator grants to You during the Term of these Terms the nontransferable, nonexclusive, 
worldwide right to permit Users to (a) use the Service, including the Base Components, (b) display 
and print Your Data, and (c) use the Materials solely in connection with the Service, all solely for 
Your own internal business operations, provided such internal business operations shall not include 
commercial time-sharing, rental, outsourcing, service bureau or similar use.  For purpose of this 
license grant, the term “You” shall include any outsourced or other third-party consultants or similar 
personnel supporting You as part of their typical business practices, acting under Your direction, and 

- Page 371 -



for whom You are fully responsible hereunder.  You acknowledge and agrees that the license 
granted herein, is bound by the rights granted to You in these Terms are subject to all of the 
following agreements and restrictions: (i) the maximum number of Users that You authorize to 
access the Service shall not exceed the number of licenses You have been granted; (ii) licenses 
may be reassigned from time to time to new Users who are replacing former Users who are no 
longer permitted to access the Service; (iii) You shall not license, sell, rent, lease, transfer, assign, 
distribute, display, host, outsource, disclose, or otherwise commercially exploit, or make the Service, 
or the Materials, available to any third party other than an authorized User; (iv) You shall not modify, 
make derivative works of, disassemble, reverse compile, or reverse engineer, any part of the 
Service, including, without limitation, the Gladiator Software or Materials that are provided as a part 
thereof, or access the Service or Materials in order to build a similar, or competitive, product or 
service; (v) You shall not create Internet "links" to the Service, or "frame" or "mirror" any part of the 
Service, including any content contained in the Service, on any other server or device; (vi) except as 
expressly stated herein, no part of the Service, or Materials, may be copied, reproduced, distributed, 
republished, downloaded, displayed, posted, or transmitted in any form, or by any means, including, 
but not limited to, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, or other means; (vii) You agree to 
make every reasonable effort to prevent unauthorized third parties from accessing the Service; (viii) 
You acknowledge and agree that Gladiator, or its Third Party vendors, shall own all right, title and 
interest in and to all intellectual property rights in the Service, and the Materials, and any 
suggestions, enhancement requests, feedback, or recommendations provided by You, or Your 
Users, relating to the Service, or the Materials, including all unpatented inventions, patent 
applications, patents, design rights, copyrights, trademarks, service marks, trade names, know-how, 
and other trade secret rights, and all other intellectual property rights, derivatives, or improvements 
thereof; (ix) unauthorized use, resale, or commercial exploitation of any part of the Service or 
Materials in any way is expressly prohibited; (x) You do not acquire any rights in the Service or 
Materials, express or implied, other than those expressly granted in these Terms, and all rights not 
expressly granted to You are reserved by Gladiator and Third Party vendors; and (xi) these Terms is 
not a sale and does not convey any rights of ownership in, or related to, the Service, Gladiator 
Software, Third Party Products, Materials, or any other items that are provided under this license, to 
You. 

  

LICENSE GRANT BY YOU TO GLADIATOR.  Subject to the Terms, You grant to Gladiator, and its 
Third Party vendors, the non-exclusive, nontransferable worldwide right to copy, store, record, 
transmit, display, view, print, or otherwise use (a) Your Content or Data solely to the extent 
necessary to provide the Service, and Materials, to You, and (b) any trademarks that You provide 
Gladiator for the purpose of including them in Your user interface of the Service (“Your 
Trademarks”).  You acknowledge and agree that Your Data, and information regarding You or Your 
Users, that is provided to Gladiator and its Third-Party vendors in connection with these Terms, may 
be (a) processed by Gladiator and its Third-Party vendors to the extent necessary to provide the 
Service, and (b) transferred outside of the country or any other jurisdiction where You or Your Users 
are located.  In addition, You acknowledge and agree that it is Your obligation to inform Your Users 
and customers of the processing of Your Data and information regarding You and Your Users 
pursuant to these Terms, and to ensure that such Users or customers have given any necessary 
consent to such processing as required by all applicable data protection legislation.  You shall have 
sole responsibility for the accuracy, quality, integrity, legality, reliability, appropriateness, and 
copyright, of all of Your Data and information regarding You or Your Users.  You agree that the 
license to the Your Data shall survive termination of these Terms solely for the purpose of storing 
backup copies of Your Data in accordance with these Terms. 

By providing You with the Services, Gladiator does not acquire any right, title, or interest, in the 
content material (including but not limited to text, software, scripts, trademarks, logos, HTML coding, 
domain names, links, graphics, audio, video, and any data) that You make available for use by 

- Page 372 -



Users by means of the Services (collectively “Content”).  Except as expressly set forth 
herein, You are solely responsible for all Content.  

  

7. PROPRIETARY RIGHTS 
You acknowledge and agree that the Service, and any necessary software used in connection with 
the Service, contains proprietary and confidential information that is protected by applicable 
intellectual property laws, and other laws.  You further acknowledge and agree that the content, or 
information, presented to You during a trial or through the Service may be protected by copyrights, 
trademarks, service marks, patents, or other proprietary rights, and laws.  Except where expressly 
provided otherwise by Gladiator, nothing in the Service, the Materials, or the Terms, shall be 
construed to confer any license to any of Gladiator's (or its third-party manufacturer’s, author’s, 
developer’s, vendor’s, and service provider’s ("Third Party vendors"), intellectual property rights, 
whether by estoppel, implication, or otherwise.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, any 
names or trademarks of the Gladiator Software, and other Gladiator service marks, logos, and 
product service names, are marks of Gladiator (the “Gladiator Marks”).  You agree not to display or 
use the Gladiator marks, or the marks of any Third-Party vendor, in any manner without the owner’s 
express prior written permission.  Gladiator reserves the right to subcontract any or all services 
provided hereunder to third parties. 

  

8. LICENSE FEE, TERM AND PAYMENT 
You will pay the required licensing, support, and maintenance fees for each hosted or enterprise 
product license purchased.  For the Annual Hosted Services, the term (“Term”) for such service will 
commence on the date You access the Service, and shall be entitled to continue using the Services 
until the anniversary renewal date of the subscription. Should You decide not to renew their 
subscription, Gladiator will delete all related data to the account. Any data that You need must be 
retrieved prior to the termination of the annual subscription. For Gladiator-OSS enterprise 
installations, the usage of the Gladiator products and services will be stipulated by the terms and 
conditions of the enterprise contract.  You shall not have access to the Gladiator Software of Service 
until the fee is paid in full. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Gladiator assumes no liability or responsibility for any loss of Your 
Data or information that is lost or corrupted due to system crashes, erroneous deletions, or other 
unplanned events.  

  

9. REQUIREMENTS 

9.1. Service Extensions or Updates 
You further agree that, unless explicitly stated otherwise, any new features that augment or enhance 
the Service, and or any new Service subsequently purchased by You pursuant to an amendment 
accepted by Gladiator referencing these Terms will be subject to these Terms. 

- Page 373 -



9.2. You Must Have Internet Access 
In order to use the Service, You must have or must obtain access to the World Wide Web, either 
directly or through devices that access Web-based Content.  You must also provide all equipment 
necessary to make (and maintain) such connection to the World Wide Web. 

9.3. Email and Notices 
You agree to provide Gladiator with Your e-mail address, and to accept emails (or other Electronic 
Communications) from Gladiator at the e-mail address You specify.  Notwithstanding any provision 
in these Terms to the contrary, acknowledgement by one of Your officers is not required with respect 
to e-mail communications pertaining to Your use of the Service, including without limitation 
communications relating to support, maintenance, or updating of the Service.  You further agree the 
Gladiator may provide any required notices, including legal notices to You, through either e-mail (or 
other electronic transmission), by mail, or by express delivery service. 

9.4. Passwords, Access and Notification 
You may designate up to the number of Users that corresponds to the number of permitted 
Users.  You will provide and assign unique password and user names to each authorized User for 
each license purchased.  You acknowledge and agree that You are prohibited from sharing 
passwords and or user names with unauthorized users.  You will be responsible for the 
confidentiality and use of Your (including Your employees’) passwords and user names.  You will 
also be responsible for all Electronic Communications, including those containing business 
information, account registration, account holder information, financial information, Your Data, and 
all other data of any kind, contained within emails or otherwise entered electronically through the 
Service, or under Your account.  Gladiator will act as though any Electronic Communications it 
receives under Your passwords, User name, or account number will have been sent by You.  You 
agree to notify Gladiator if You become aware of any loss, theft, or unauthorized use, of any of Your 
passwords, user names, or account number.  The foregoing shall also apply to any Purchase Order 
Forms submitted by the You for further User licenses. 

9.5. Your Responsibilities 
You agree to comply with all applicable local, state, national, and foreign laws, treaties, regulations, 
and conventions, in connection with its use of the Service, including without limitation those related 
to data privacy, international communications, and the exportation of technical or personal 
data.  You will ensure that any use of the Service by Your Users is in accordance with the terms of 
these Terms.  You agree to notify Gladiator immediately of any unauthorized use of any password, 
account, or any other known or suspected breach of security, or any known, or suspected, 
distribution of Your Data.  You acknowledge and agree that the Service is subject to the U.S. Export 
Administration Laws and Regulations.  You agree that no part of the Service, or information obtained 
through use of the Service, is being or will be acquired for, shipped, transferred, or re-exported, 
directly or indirectly, to proscribed or embargoed countries, or their nationals, nor be used for nuclear 
activities, chemical biological weapons, or missile projects, unless authorized by the U.S. 
Government.  Proscribed countries are set forth in the U.S. Export Administration Regulations, and 
are subject to change without notice, and You must comply with the list as it exists in fact.  You 
certify that neither You nor any Users are on the U.S. Department of Commerce's Denied Persons 
List, or affiliated lists, or on the U.S. Department of Treasury's Specially Designated Nationals 
List.  You agrees to comply strictly with all U.S. export laws and assumes sole responsibility for 
obtaining licenses to export or re-export as may be required.  Any unauthorized use of the Service 

- Page 374 -



may violate copyright laws, trademark laws, the laws of privacy and publicity, and communications 
regulations, and statutes.  The Service may use encryption technology that is subject to licensing 
requirements under the U.S. Export Administration Regulations, 15 C.F.R. Parts 730-774 and 
Council Regulation (EC) No. 1334/2000. 

You are solely responsible for obtaining all licenses and permissions necessary related to Your 
Data, including without limitation, licenses for any third-party software included in the Your Data. 

You shall not resell the Services directly or indirectly to third parties. 

9.6. Transmission of Data 
You understand that the technical processing and transmission of Your Electronic Communications 
is fundamentally necessary to Your use of the Service.  You expressly consent to Gladiator’s 
interception and storage of Electronic Communications or Your Data, and You acknowledge and 
understand that Your Electronic Communications will involve transmission over the internet, and 
over various networks, only part of which may be owned or operated by Gladiator.  You 
acknowledge and understand that changes to Your Electronic Communications may occur in order 
to conform and adapt such data to the technical requirements of connecting networks or 
devices.  You further understand that Electronic Communications may be accessed by unauthorized 
parties when communicated across the Internet, network communications facilities, telephone, or 
other electronic means.  You agree that Gladiator is not responsible for any Electronic 
Communications or Your Data which are lost, altered, intercepted or stored, without authorizations 
during the transmission of any data whatsoever across networks not owned or operated by 
Gladiator. 

9.7. Gladiator’s Support 
Gladiator will make commercially reasonable efforts to promote Your successful utilization of the 
Service, including but not limited to maintenance and support of the Base Components, providing 
user guides and on-line help, and product support.  Infrastructure Support Services shall be provided 
as reasonably deemed necessary by Gladiator. Infrastructure Support Services pertain to the 
maintenance of the computer hardware and hosting environment provided as part of the Service 
exclusively for the organization that has purchased the services and has a current and active 
contract.  Gladiator will also provide Product Support for Gladiator Software or Gladiator hardware 
employed as part of the Service.  Product Support pertains to support designed to remedy errors in 
Gladiator Software or hardware that cause it to deviate from the specifications as described in the 
Materials.    

9.8. Confidential Information 
Each party may have access to information that is confidential to the other party (“Confidential 
Information”).  For purposes of these Terms, Confidential Information shall include any information 
that is clearly identified in writing at the time of disclosure as confidential, as well as any information 
that, based on the circumstances under which it was disclosed, a reasonable person would believe 
to be confidential.  Your Confidential Information shall include, but not be limited to, Your Data.  A 
party’s Confidential Information shall not include information that (i) is or becomes a part of the 
public domain through no act or omission of the other party; (ii) was in the other party’s lawful 
possession prior to the disclosure without any obligation of confidentiality, and had not been 
obtained by the other party either directly or indirectly from the disclosing party; (iii) is lawfully 
disclosed to the other party by a third party without restriction on disclosure; (iv) is independently 
developed by the other party without use of, or reference, to the other party’s Confidential 

- Page 375 -



Information, as established by written records. The parties agree to use commercially reasonable 
efforts not to make each other’s Confidential Information available in any form to any third 
party.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, You acknowledge and agree that Gladiator may disclose Your 
Confidential Information to Gladiator’s Third-Party vendors solely to the extent necessary to provide 
products or services under these Terms.  This Section will not  be construed to prohibit disclosure of 
Confidential Information to the extent that such disclosure is required by law, or valid order of a 
court, or other governmental authority; provided, however, that a party who has been subpoenaed, 
or otherwise compelled by a valid law or court order, to disclose Confidential Information (the 
“Responding Party”) shall first have given sufficient and prompt written notice to the other party of 
the receipt of any subpoena or other request for such disclosure, so as to permit such party an 
opportunity to obtain a protective order, or take other appropriate action.  The Responding Party will 
cooperate in the other party's efforts to obtain a protective order, or other reasonable assurance that 
confidential treatment will be afforded protection as Confidential Information.  If the Responding 
Party is compelled as a matter of law to disclose the Confidential Information, it may disclose to the 
party compelling the disclosure only that part of the Confidential Information as is required by law to 
be disclosed.   

The obligations in this Section shall not apply to the recipient of Confidential Information or Gladiator 
with respect to Your Data to the extent disclosure of Confidential Information or You Data is required 
to comply with laws, or respond to requests by a regulatory or judicial body, or as otherwise required 
for legal process. In the event that any such disclosure is required, the recipient, or Gladiator with 
respect to Your Data, reserves the right to charge the other party on a time-and-materials basis for 
recipient’s/Gladiator’s reasonable efforts related to its compliance and response, including, if 
applicable, reasonable attorney’s fees. 

  

10. SUSPENSION/TERMINATION 

10.1. Suspension for Delinquent Account 
Gladiator reserves the right to suspend access, support or use of the Service for any account for 
which any payment is due but remains unpaid.  You agree that Gladiator shall not be liable to You, 
or to any third party, for any suspension of the Service resulting from Your non-payment of the fees 
as described in this Section. 

10.2. Suspension for Ongoing Harm 
You agree that Gladiator may, with reasonably contemporaneous telephonic or electronic mail notice 
to You, suspend Your access to the Service if Gladiator reasonably concludes that Your use of the 
Service is causing immediate and ongoing harm to Gladiator or others.  Gladiator will use 
commercially reasonable efforts to resolve the issues causing the suspension of Service.  You agree 
that Gladiator will not be liable to You or to any third party for any suspension of the Service under 
such circumstances as described in this Section.   

10.3. Handling of Your Data in the Event of Termination 
You acknowledge and agree that following termination of the Service, You will return all Materials 
(except that it may retain a copy for archival purposes or as otherwise provided in these Terms) to 
Gladiator, and Gladiator may immediately deactivate Your account.  Furthermore, unless otherwise 

- Page 376 -



agreed-upon by the Parties in writing, Gladiator shall remove or overwrite all of Your Data from 
Gladiator’s systems following the effective date of termination or cancellation, in accordance with 
Gladiator’s standard procedures.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing shall preclude Gladiator 
from maintaining one copy of Your Data if required by law. 

10.4. Handling of Application in the Event of Termination 
Upon termination of Your use of the Services, you are solely responsible for the retention of Your 
Data, and Your application documentation updated during the hosting period by Your users (if any) 
as defined in these Terms. 

  

11. 
MODIFICATION/DISCONTINUATION/MAINTEN
ANCE 

11.1. Modification to or Discontinuation of the Service 
Gladiator reserves the right at any time and from time to time to modify, temporarily or permanently, 
the Service (or any part thereof).  Notwithstanding the foregoing, except for routinely scheduled 
down time, or as otherwise provided in these Terms, Gladiator shall use commercially reasonable 
efforts to notify You prior to any such modification; further, Gladiator shall consider Your validation 
needs and requirements in connection with any modification of the Service.  You acknowledge that 
Gladiator reserves the right to discontinue offering the Service at any time.  You agree that Gladiator 
will not be liable to You or any third party for any modification or discontinuance of the Service as 
described in this Section 11. 

11.2. Modification to Third Party Software and Support Cost 
In the event that Gladiator incur any increased cost from Third party software licenses or annual 
support fees during the term of these Terms, Gladiator reserves the right to pass these costs to 
You.   

11.3.Maintenance 
In order to perform maintenance, including infrastructure and application upgrades, there will be 
routinely scheduled down time.  Gladiator further reserves the right to issue new releases in which 
Gladiator adds functionality to the Service.  You acknowledge that these periodic major releases can 
take several hours to complete. 

In order to perform maintenance services, your account with Gladiator must be current and active. 
Gladiator reserves the right to discontinue any and all product related support and services upon the 
expiration date of maintenance services. 

In the event that Gladiator, in its sole discretion, determines that any maintenance is necessary that 
would affect Your use of the Service, Gladiator will use commercially reasonable efforts to notify You 
as soon as it becomes aware of such need. 

- Page 377 -



 
 

12. WARRANTIES 

12.1.Warranty of Functionality 
Gladiator warrants to You that the Service will comply with the material functionality described in the 
Materials and that such functionality will be maintained in all material respects in subsequent 
upgrades to the Service. The warranty granted by Gladiator is subject to normal product usage and 
does not cover damages caused from misuse of the product or by Force Majeure.  Your sole and 
exclusive remedy for Gladiator’s breach of this warranty shall be that Gladiator shall use 
commercially reasonable efforts to correct such errors, or modify the Service, to achieve the material 
functionality described in the Materials within a reasonable period of time.  However, Gladiator shall 
have no obligation with respect to this warranty claim unless notified of such claim within (30) days 
of the first material functionality problem.  Further, Gladiator shall have no obligation with respect to 
this warranty claim, and You may not terminate the Agreement, where any alleged nonconformity is 
due to User error as reasonably determined by the parties after investigation and analysis by 
Gladiator’s Product Support Center.  Gladiator does not warrant that the Service will be free of non-
material errors, bugs, or minor interruption, or that all such errors will be corrected. 

12.2. Data Maintenance and Backup Warranty 
Gladiator warrants during the Term of this Agreement, that it will, at a minimum, utilize and maintain 
the backup procedures for its Hosted services.  In the event of a breach of this provision, Gladiator 
will use commercially reasonable efforts to correct Your Data or restore Your Data within ten (10) 
business days.  

12.3. Non-Infringement Warranty 
Gladiator warrants that it is the sole owner of, and or has full power and authority to grant, the 
license and use of the Service and other rights granted by the Agreement to You with respect to the 
Service; and that neither the performance by You in its utilization of the Service, nor the license of 
and authorized use by You of the Service, as described herein, will in any way constitute an 
infringement or other violation of any U. S. copyright, trade secret, trademark, patent, invention, 
proprietary information, non-disclosure, or other rights of any third party. 

  

13. DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES 
Except as otherwise stated in section 12 above, gladiator does not represent that your use of the 
service will be secure, timely, uninterrupted or error free; or that the service will meet your 
requirements; or that all errors in the service or documentation will be corrected; or that the system 
that makes the service available will be free of viruses or other harmful components; or the service 
will operate in combination with other hardware, software, systems, or data, not provided by 
gladiator; or the operation of the services will be secure; or that gladiator and its third party vendors 
will be able to prevent third parties from accessing your data or your confidential information; or any 
errors will be corrected; or any of your data will be accurate or reliable.  The warranties stated in 

- Page 378 -



section 12 above are the sole and exclusive warranties offered by gladiator.  There are no other 
warranties or conditions, express or implied, including without limitation, those of merchantability or 
fitness for a particular purpose.  Except as stated in section 12 above, the service is provided to you 
on an “as is” and “as available” basis and is for commercial use only.  You assume all responsibility 
for determining whether the service or the information generated thereby is accurate or sufficient for 
your purpose. 

  

14. LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY 

14.1. No Consequential Damages 
Neither party shall be liable to the other party for exemplary, punitive, special, incidental, indirect or 
consequential damages including without limitation, interruption of business, lost profits, lost or 
corrupted data or content, lost revenue arising out of these terms (including without limitation the 
service, the use of the service or the inability to use service), even if the party has been advised of 
the possibility of such damages. 

  

14.2. Direct Damage Limitations 
14.2.1. In no event shall the aggregate liability of gladiator or any third-party vendors arising out of or 
in connection with these terms, including any license, use, or other employment of the service, 
whether such liability arises from any claim based on breach or repudiation of contract, breach of 
warranty, tort, or otherwise, exceed the total amounts actually paid by you for the particular case or 
matter related to the claim. 

14.2.2. Except for a failure of gladiator to comply with its obligations with respect to hosted services, 
and subject to section 14.2.1 above, gladiator shall not be liable for any damages resulting from the 
loss or corruption of any data or content whether resulting from delays, no deliveries, mis deliveries, 
service interruptions or otherwise. Further, gladiator shall not be liable for any use, identification, 
misidentification, or other consequence of your use of the service in connection with your business. 

  

14.3. Exclusions 
The limitations of liability set forth in sections 14.1 and 14.2 shall not apply with respect to: (i) 
damages to persons or tangible property occasioned by the willful misconduct or gross negligence of 
a party, (ii) breaches by you of license terms applicable to gladiator provided software and third party 
products as set forth in section 6 above, (iii) your unauthorized use of gladiator’s or third-party 
vendor’s intellectual property, materials or assets; (iv) damages incurred as a result of a breach by a 
party of its obligations under section 9.8 that result in the disclosure of confidential information of the 
other party, or (v) claims that are the subject of indemnification pursuant to section 14 (which are 
subject to the limits, if any contained therein). Damages as limited by this section 14 are your sole 
and exclusive remedy if another remedy is provided and such remedy is deemed to fail of its 
essential purpose. 

- Page 379 -



  

15. INDEMNIFICATION 

15.1. Personal Injury and Property Damage 
Each party (the “Indemnifying Party”) agrees to defend at its expense and indemnify and hold 
harmless the other party and its affiliates, directors, officers, employees, agents, successors and 
assigns (each an “Indemnified Party”), in accordance with the procedures described in this Section, 
from and against any and all losses, costs, damages, liabilities and expenses including without 
limitation, reasonable legal fees and expenses paid to or for the benefit of an unaffiliated third party 
(collectively, “Losses”) arising from or in connection with any such third party claim for:  (i) the death 
or bodily injury of any person caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the Indemnifying 
Party; or (ii) the damage, loss or destruction of any real or tangible personal property caused by the 
negligence or willful misconduct of the Indemnifying Party.  

15.2. Infringement 
Gladiator will indemnify, defend and hold You harmless for Losses You incur as a direct result of any 
unaffiliated third party claim based on any claim that the Service infringes any U.S. copyright, 
trademark or trade secret, except to the extent resulting from (i) Your modification of the Service, or 
combination by You of the Services with other products or services, if the Service would not have 
been infringing but for such combination or modification, (ii) Your use of the Service in a manner not 
authorized herein or for which it was not designed, (iii) Your failure to use an updated non-infringing 
version of the applicable intellectual property to the extent You were notified that the update cured 
an infringement, (iv) changes to the Service made by Gladiator at the direction of You, or (v) Your 
Data.  If any item for which Gladiator has an indemnification obligation under this Section becomes, 
or in Gladiator’s reasonable opinion is likely to become, the subject of an infringement or 
misappropriation claim or proceeding, Gladiator will, in addition to indemnifying You as provided in 
this Section, promptly take the following actions, at no additional charge to You, in the listed order of 
priority:  (a) secure the right to continue using the item or (b) replace or modify the item to make it 
non-infringing.  If neither of such actions can be accomplished by Gladiator using commercially 
reasonable efforts, and only in such event, Gladiator will remove the item from the Service and the 
applicable Service fee will be equitably adjusted to reflect such removal. This Section 15.2 states 
Your sole and exclusive remedy for Gladiator’s infringement or misappropriation of intellectual 
property of a third party. 

15.3. Your Indemnity 
You shall defend and indemnify Gladiator and its Third Party Vendors against any and all Losses 
incurred by Gladiator and its Third Party Vendors arising out of or in connection with a claim by a 
third party (i) alleging that Your Data or Your Trademarks, or any use thereof, infringes the rights of, 
or has caused harm to, a third party, or (ii) arising out of Your breach of Sections 9.5 and 9.8. 

You will indemnify, defend and hold harmless Gladiator, its affiliates, successors, and assigns, 
including the applicable officers, directors, employees, and agents thereof for damages, costs and 
attorneys’ fees Gladiator incurs from any unaffiliated third-party claim arising from Your Content, or 
use of the Services by You or any end user.  

- Page 380 -



15.4. Indemnification Procedures 
The party seeking indemnification shall give prompt notice of the claim and will tender the defense; 
provided, however, that such party’s failure to provide notification shall not affect the indemnifying 
party’s indemnification obligations except to the extent that the failure to notify delays or prejudices 
the indemnifying party’s ability to defend the applicable claim.  The indemnifying party shall conduct 
the defense and shall have control of the litigation, and the indemnified party shall cooperate in 
defending against the claim.  The indemnified party shall have the right, at any time and at its own 
expense, to participate in the defense of the claim with counsel of its own choosing.  The 
indemnifying party shall not make any settlement of the claim that results in any liability or imposes 
any obligation on the indemnified party without the prior written consent of the indemnified party.  If 
the indemnifying party fails to (i) respond to the notice of a claim, or (ii) assume the defense of a 
claim, the party seeking indemnification shall have the right to defend the claim in such manner as it 
may deem appropriate, at the reasonable cost, expense, and risk of the indemnifying party, and the 
indemnifying shall promptly reimburse the indemnified party for all such costs and expenses. 

  

16. NOTICES 
Except as otherwise provided in Section 9.3 above, any notice required or permitted under the terms 
of these Terms or required by law must be in writing and must be delivered by email whose receipt is 
acknowledged by an officer of the receiving Party.  The proper email addresses shall be (i) for 
Gladiator, the email address provide on Gladiator’s Portal; and for You, the primary email address 
used by You for accessing the Service.  Notices shall be considered to have been given upon 
receipt of machine confirmation of successful transmission email as described herein. 

  

17. NO ASSIGNMENT 
You may not assign this Agreement without the prior written approval of Gladiator.  Any purported 
assignment in violation of this section shall be void. 

  

18. U.S. GOVERNMENT RESTRICTED RIGHTS 
Any use of the Service by or on behalf of the United States of America, its agencies and/or 
instrumentalities (“U.S. Government”), is provided with Restricted Rights.  Use, duplication, or 
disclosure by the U.S. Government is subject to restrictions as set forth in subparagraph I(1)(ii) of 
the Rights in Technical Data and Computer Software clause at DFARS 252.227-7013 or 
subparagraphs I(1) and (2) of the Commercial Computer Software – Restricted Rights at 48 CFR 
52.227-19, as applicable. 

  

19. FORCE MAJEURE 

- Page 381 -



Neither party will be liable to the other for any failure or delay in the performance of such party’s non-
monetary obligations due to causes beyond its control, such as failure or delay caused, directly or 
indirectly, by fire, flood, earthquakes, other elements of nature, acts of war, terrorism, riots, civil 
disorders, rebellions or revolutions, epidemics, communications line or power failures, or 
governmental laws, court orders, and regulations imposed after the fact.  

  

20. GENERAL PROVISIONS & BINDING 
ARBITRATION 
Any action related to these Terms will be governed by Florida law and controlling U.S. federal 
law.  No choice of law rules of any jurisdiction will apply.  Any disputes, actions, claims or causes of 
action arising out of or in connection with these Terms or the Service shall be subject to the 
exclusive jurisdiction of the State of Florida.  Any dispute arising from or related to these Terms shall 
first be subject to Mediation under the Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration Association and 
such Mediation shall take place in Brevard County, Florida.  Any dispute that is not resolved 
between the parties or through Mediation as provided above, shall be subject to binding arbitration 
under the Rules of the America Arbitration Association using the Expedited Procedures for 
Commercial Disputes.  Such arbitration shall take place in Brevard County, Florida.  These Terms 
represents the parties’ entire understanding relating to the use of the Service and supersedes any 
prior or contemporaneous, conflicting or additional, communications.  No text or information set forth 
on any Purchase Order Form, preprinted form or document shall add to or vary the terms and 
conditions of these Terms.  If any provision of these Terms is held to be invalid or unenforceable, 
then such provision(s) shall be construed, as nearly as possible, to reflect the intentions of the 
invalid or unenforceable provision(s), with all other provisions remaining in full force and effect.  No 
joint venture, partnership, employment, or agency relationship exists between Gladiator and You as 
a result of these Terms or use of the Service.  The failure of Gladiator to enforce any right or 
provision in these Terms shall not constitute a waiver of such right or provision unless acknowledged 

and agreed to by Gladiator in writing Gladiator reserves the right to assign its right to receive and 

collect payments hereunder.  Any rights not expressly granted herein are reserved by Gladiator. 

 

- Page 382 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: February 13, 2024 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Captain Joey Best 

Department(s): Police  

Requested Motion 

Motion to declare one badge and service weapon (Glock Model 19, 9mm handgun, Serial Number 

XWZ747) as surplus property, and award these items to retired Sergeant John Jones. 

.Approval Recommended? 

 

Item Details 

North Carolina General Statute 20-187.2(a) allows the governing body of a municipality to, upon request, 

declare as surplus the badge and side arm of a retiring police officer.  The statute states that the badge is to 

be awarded at “no cost” to the retiring member and that the side arm be awarded “at a price determined 

by such governing body”.   

 

Sergeant John Jones retired from the Apex Police Department on December 31, 2023 and has made a 

request to be awarded his badge and service handgun. 

 

In recognition of his 30 years of service in law enforcement to the Apex Police Department, Captain Best 

requests that one “Retired” badge and one handgun (described below) be declared surplus, that the price 

for such handgun be set at $1.00, and that the badge and handgun be awarded to retired Sergeant John 

Jones.  

 

- Glock Model 19, 9mm handgun, Serial Number XWZ747 

 

Attachments 

N/A 

 

- Page 383 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: February 13,2024 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Steve Maynard, Purchasing Manager 

Department(s): Finance 

Requested Motion 

Motion to declare the following two (2) vehicles as surplus, authorize the sale of both vehicles, and authorize 

the Purchasing Manager and Interim Town Manager, or their designee, to sign documents necessary to 

complete the sale:  

Vehicle A – 1999 GMC C8500 Vin # 1GDP7H1CXXJ512964 

Vehicle B – 2008 International Workstar 7300 Vin # 1HTZZAAR98J047097 

 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes  

Item Details 

State law (G.S. 160A-265) provides authority to local governments to sell personal property that is no loner 

of use. The Town must receive consideration or compensation for the property. Per Town’s Policy property 

estimated at $30,000 and greater must be declare surplus by Town Council. 

 

The value of each vehicle is estimated to be $30,000. The Town is partnering with Auctions International, 

an online auction to ensure the Town receives the maximum price for the surplus vehicles.  

 

Vehicles 

A. 1999 GMC C8500 Vin # 1GDP7H1CXXJ512964 

B. 2008 International Workstar 7300 Vin # 1HTZZAAR98J047097 

 

Attachments 

 CN18-A1: Vehicle Inspection Form – Unit 13A - 2008 International Workstar 7300 – Surplus 
Vehicles  

 CN18-A2: Vehicle Inspection Form – Unit  84A – 1999 GMC C8500 – Surplus Vehicles  

 
- Page 384 -



- Page 385 -



- Page 386 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: February 13, 2024 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Allen Coleman, Town Clerk 

Department(s): Town Clerk’s Office 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve Apex Tax Reports dated January 9, 2024.    

 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

The Wake County Board of Commissioners, in regular session on February 5, 2024, approved and 

accepted the enclosed tax report for the Town of Apex, dated January 9, 2024 for the period of December 

1, 2023 through December 31, 2023.  

 

Attachments 

 CN19-A1: Tax Report for December 2023 

 

- Page 387 -



- Page 388 -



- Page 389 -



- Page 390 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: PRESENTATION 

 Meeting Date: February 13, 2024 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Councilmember Terry Mahaffey, Sponsor  

Barbara Conroy Co-Founder and President of Apex Public School Foundation  

Department(s): Governing Body 

Apex Public School Foundation 

Requested Motion 

Presentation of the Peak S.T.A.R. Award for the 2nd Quarter of the 2024-2025 School Year.  

 

Approval Recommended? 

N/A 

Item Details 

The Apex Town Council is pleased to work in partnership with the Apex Public School Foundation (APSF) to 

present the Peak S.T.A.R. Award to a deserving Apex school staff member, teacher, or someone in school 

administration.  This award will be presented quarterly by the Apex Town Council and the APSF. 

 

Attachments 

 N/A 

 

- Page 391 -



Proclamation 
  Black History Month 2024 

from the Office of the Mayor 

WHEREAS, During the observance of Black History Month, the Town of Apex 

intentionally highlights the substantial contributions made by Black Americans and 

those of African descent to our town, community, and country; and, 

WHEREAS, The origin of Black History Month traces back to Dr. Carter G. 

Woodson in 1926, who wanted to bring national attention to the contributions 

African Americans have made to the history of our nation; and, 

WHEREAS, We affirm that Black history is American history, with the essence of 

Black culture, narratives, and achievements serving as the cornerstone of our national 

identity; and, 

WHEREAS, The Town of Apex acknowledges the historical stains of slavery, Jim 

Crow, and redlining, as well as the ongoing repercussions these systems have created 

within the Black Community; and, 

 WHEREAS, In honor of Black History Month, The Town of Apex is proud to 

present A Hip-Hop Dance Class on February 10th at the Senior Center, and the 

Counter History Ice Cream Social and panel discussion on February 15th at the Halle 

Cultural Arts Center, which will explore two programs documenting Black History in 

the south: The Counter History Royal Ice Cream Sit-In and the Virtual MLK Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor of Apex, North Carolina, do 

hereby proclaim the Month of February, 2024, Black History Month in the Town of 

Apex, and invite residents to join us in enriching our knowledge of the contributions 

of Black Americans, and in celebrating their lives and culture throughout the year. 

I hereby set my hand and have caused the Seal of the Town of Apex,  

North Carolina, to be affixed this the 13th day of February 2024 

 

 

Jacques Gilbert, Mayor 

- Page 392 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: PRESENTATION 

 Meeting Date: February 13, 2024 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Nicole Kreiser, Deputy Tax Administrator   

Department(s): Wake County Tax Administration   

Requested Motion 

Receive as information results of the Wake County 2024 Revaluation.  

 

Approval Recommended? 

No.  

Item Details 

Nicole Kriesier, Deputy Tax Administrator with Wake County Department of Tax Administration will present 

the results of the 2024 Revaluation. This process is required by the North Carolina General Statutes and to 

evaluate real property at least once every 8 years, however, in 2016 Wake County transitioned from an 8-

year to a 4-year revaluation cycle.  

 

Attachments 

 PR3 – PowerPoint Presentation - Wake County 2024 Revaluation Results 

 

- Page 393 -



Town of Apex
February 13, 2024

- Page 394 -



Overview

2

• Brief description of revaluation and why it is required

• Revaluation project 

• Revaluation results

• Information for property owners

• Next steps

- Page 395 -



What is Revaluation?

3

The process of updating Wake County’s
real property values to reflect fair market 
value as of January 1, 2024

- Page 396 -



Why Perform a Revaluation?
Required by NC General Statutes
North Carolina law requires all counties to revalue real 
property at least once every 8 years. 

Note: Wake County transitioned from an 8-year to a 4-year 
revaluation cycle in 2016.

Tax Equity and Fairness
Revaluation ensures property values accurately reflect their 
market value, so that the property tax burden is spread 
equitably across all taxpayers.

4- Page 397 -



5

Revaluation Includes:
• Real property or all residential and commercial land and structures, 

which includes homes, apartments, condominiums, office buildings, 
stores and warehouses. 

• Fair market value is the most probable price a property would bring 
at sale in an open and competitive market.

• Effective date is January 1, 2024. The last revaluation was 
conducted 4 years ago with an effective date of January 1, 2020. 

Revaluation impacts approximately 89% of Apex’s 
property tax base.

- Page 398 -



6

Personal property such as business computers, 
office furniture, machinery, manufacturing 
equipment

Vehicles: registered motor vehicles, other 
vehicles, trailers, campers, boats, airplanes

Public utility property: electric/nuclear power 
generation, gas companies, bus lines, railroads 

Revaluation Excludes:

These property types are appraised annually; 11 percent of Apex’s tax 
base.

- Page 399 -



7

• Mass appraisal is the process of appraising a large number of properties 
as of a given effective date, using data, standardized methods, and 
statistical analysis to arrive at uniform and equitable values.

• General revaluations are conducted by applying mass appraisal 
techniques, with thorough analysis from appraisal staff and the use of 
computer-assisted mass appraisal (CAMA) software system. 

• The sales approach, cost approach, and income approach to value are all 
considered when applicable to appraise all real property.

Mass Appraisal

- Page 400 -



Revaluation Steps

- Page 401 -



9

Wake County Revaluation Review 
Activity

Property Type Office Reviews Field Reviews

Residential 220,553 151,798

Rural 13,744 16,457

Commercial 14,534 9,200

Total Reviewed 248,831 177,455

- Page 402 -



10

Wake County Revaluation History
1992 2000 2008 2016 2020

Total Parcels 165,000 230,000 325,000 360,000 395,000

Single Family 105,000 150,000 258,000 283,700 312,000

% Change from Reappraisal 43% 43% 40% 5% 23%

Taxable Value Post Reappraisal $21 B $43 B $94 B $118.3 B $162.2 B

Taxable Value After Growth
(New Construction) $30 B $67 B $112.3 B $131.3 B $178.5 B

- Page 403 -



11

Wake County Real Property as of 1/1/24

Residential Parcels 403,886

Commercial Parcels 23,641

Total Parcels 427,527

- Page 404 -



12

Apex Real Property as of 1/1/24

Residential Parcels 26,501

Commercial Parcels 1,098

Total Parcels 27,599

- Page 405 -



13

Wake County 2024 Revaluation Results

Real Property Component Overall Change

Residential 53%

Commercial 45%

Total 51%

- Page 406 -



14

Apex 2024 Revaluation Results

Real Property Component Overall Change

Residential 57%

Commercial 53%

Total 56%

- Page 407 -



15

Percent Change by Jurisdiction
Jurisdiction Residential Change Commercial Change Overall Change

Apex 57% 53% 56%

Cary 56% 39% 51%

Fuquay-Varina 54% 52% 54%

Garner 54% 59% 56%

Holly Springs 53% 80% 58%

Knightdale 51% 67% 57%

Morrisville 55% 37% 45%

Raleigh 52% 43% 48%

Rolesville 51% 52% 51%

Wake Forest 51% 50% 51%

Wendell 63% 75% 65%

Zebulon 48% 50% 49%

Unincorporated 52% 41% 51%

Wake County Overall 53% 45% 51%

- Page 408 -



16

Apex Change in Assessed Value

< 35%

35% - 50%

50%  - 65%

65%  - 90%

> 90%

- Page 409 -



17

Apex Median Single-Family Home

Before Revaluation After Revaluation

$366,837 $570,997

- Page 410 -



18

Commercial Real Property Tax Base

Before Revaluation After Revaluation

Total $2.0 B $3.1 B

- Page 411 -



19

Apex Commercial Value Drivers

Property Type Total Change

Mini-Storage 119%

Industrial 78%

Apartment 52%

Retail 42%

Restaurants 26%

Office 18%

- Page 412 -



20

Apex: 
Percent Residential/Commercial

Real Property 
Component

Before 
Revaluation

Percent
After 

Revaluation
Percent

Residential $9.5 B 82% $14.8 B 83%

Commercial $2.0 B 18% $3.1 B 17%

Total $11.5 B 100% $17.9 B 100%

- Page 413 -



21

Municipal Total Tax Base
Jurisdiction Estimated 

FY 24 Base
Estimated 
FY 25 Base

Average Annual 
Growth

Apex $12.49 B $19.39 B 6.43%

Cary $34.40 B $49.68 B 2.10%

Fuquay-Varina $6.46 B $10.24 B 10.88%

Garner $5.89 B $9.00 B 7.91%

Holly Springs $8.12 B $12.56 B 8.60%

Knightdale $2.75 B $4.27 B 4.19%

Morrisville $6.87 B $9.42 B 3.84%

Raleigh $81.77 B $115.63 B 2.41%

Rolesville $1.63 B $2.51 B 8.12%

Wake Forest $7.64 B $11.36 B 4.67%

Wendell $1.60 B $2.79 B 13.31%

Zebulon $1.82 B $2.47 B 10.21%

Wake County Overall $207.2 B $301.05 B 3.44%
- Page 414 -



22

Resources Available to the Public

- Page 415 -



Tools for Property Owners: 
Informational Brochure
• Included in each Notice of Assessment 

• What is Revaluation and Why is it Important?

• How is Revaluation Conducted?

• Will My Value Stay The Same Between Revaluations?

• Will This Affect My Property Tax Bill?

• What if I Disagree With My Value?

• How Do I File an Appeal?

• Tax Relief Programs

- Page 416 -



Tools for Property Owners: Updated 
Information Online

• Wake.gov/revaluation
• Frequently Asked Questions

• Appeals 

• Revaluation Statistics

• Tax Portal

• Property Search

• Comparable Sales

• Revenue-Neutral Calculator

• Schedule of Values
- Page 417 -



25

Tools for Property Owners: 
Residential Comparable Sales Search

- Page 418 -



26

Tools for Property Owners: Revenue 
Neutral Calculator

- Page 419 -



27

Tools for Property Owners: Online 
Tutorial about Appeals 

- Page 420 -



28

Tax Relief Programs: 2024
Seniors and Disabled 

Program
(Elderly or Disabled 

Homestead Exclusion)

Tax Deferment 
Program

(Circuit Breaker Tax 
Deferment Program)

Disabled Veterans 
Program (Disabled 

Veterans Exclusion)

Who Can Apply
(These requirements 
MUST be met as of 
January 1, 2024)

65 years & older

OR

Anyone totally and permanently 
disabled

65 years & older OR Anyone 
totally and permanently 
disabled
AND
Owned and occupied home 
for at least five years

Veterans of any age with a 
total & permanent disability 
connected to their military 
service or their unmarried 
surviving spouse

Gross Income 
Requirement
(Income BEFORE taxes or 
other deductions are 
taken out. It is NOT 
Adjusted Income.)

$36,700 or less during 2023 
(Combined income for married 
couples)

$55,050 or less during 2023 
(Combined income for 
married couples)

NONE

Tax Relief Benefit
(Home value includes the 
residence, related 
improvements, and up to 
one acre of the building 
site.)

$25,000 or 50% off home value, 
whichever is greater.

Taxes limited to 4% of income 
if gross income is $36,700 or 
less

Taxes limited to 5% of income 
if gross income is $36,700 to 
$55,050

Last 3 years of deferred taxes 
(with interest) may become 
due if a disqualifying event 
occurs.

Home value is reduced by 
$45,000

Deadline to Apply: June 1, 2024
Late applications may be accepted on a case-by-case basis. 
Forgetting or not knowing about the program are typically not 
valid reasons for lateness. Examples of good cause may 
include: physical or mental illness, death of an immediate 
family member, military deployment, or delay in receiving 
disability certification.

To find out more, visit 
wake.gov/taxrelief or call 
919-856-5400 - Page 421 -



Remaining 2024 Revaluation Schedule 

January

January 16, 2024 • Presentation of Revaluation Results
• Information online at wake.gov/revaluation

January 17, 2024 • New assessed value notices mailed

March 1, 2024 • Deadline for property owners to file informal assessment 
reviews

April 24, 2024 • Board of Equalization and Review (BOER) convenes for 2024

May 15, 2024 • Deadline for property owners to file a formal appeal to the 
BOER

Through Fall 
2024

• BOER considers all timely filed formal appeals

- Page 422 -



30

Customer Service
• Revaluation Call Center: 919-857-3800

• Dedicated Revaluation Email: 
revaluation@wake.gov

• Tax Administration office in Wake County 
Justice Center

- Page 423 -

mailto:revaluation@wake.gov


Wake County Tax Administration

919-857-3800

revaluation@wake.gov

Wake.gov/revaluation

- Page 424 -

mailto:revaluation@wake.gov


 

1 

STAFF REPORT 
Amendments to the Unified Development Ordinance 

February 13, 2024 Town Council Meeting  
 

 
Requested by Planning Staff: 
 
1. Amendments to Sec. 12.2 Terms Defined in order to expand the boundaries of the Downtown 

Festival District. 
 

Background: In May 2022, the Downtown Festival District was created in order to allow more 
flexibility in the number of promotional events allowed in the downtown area and to set a 
reduced setback for outdoor operations of certain retail, restaurant and alcohol related uses and 
outdoor areas associated with promotional events than that required outside of the district. 

 
12.2 Terms Defined 

… 
Downtown Festival District 
The purpose and intent of the Downtown Festival District is to celebrate the Salem Street corridor 
and vicinity and encourage a diversity of activities and programming by allowing more outdoor 
entertainment options on public and private properties than in other areas of Town while being 
cognizant of the surrounding residential neighborhoods. Legal description of boundaries: 
Beginning at an iron pipe being the southwest property corner of the Town of Apex Police 
Department and being the northwest corner of the Kenneth E. and Cheryl H. Koch, Jr. property; 
thence along the western property line of the Town of Apex Police Department N 29°37’50” E 
91.05’ to a point; thence continuing along said property line N 30°23’22” E 13.01’ to a point; thence 
along the same property line N 40°38’29” E 142.69’ to a point on the northern right-of-way of 
Saunders Street; thence along the Saunders Street northern right-of-way S 64°28’48” E 19.44’ to a 
point; thence S 64°15’35” E 89.31’ to a point on the aforementioned right-of-way; thence leaving 
the northern right-of-way of Saunders Street the following three (3) calls: N 18°01’23” E 184.23’, 
N 65°08’53” W 31.82’, and N 02°37’34” W 87.12’ to a point on the southern boundary of the 
Brittany Trace neighborhood; then along the southern boundary of Brittany Trace, also being the 
rear property line for Lots 38 through 47, the following three (3) calls: S 89°48’07” E 14.82’, N 
89°06’04” E 194.87’, and S 88°48’57” E 398.32’ to a point; thence N 89°04’55” E 16.80’ to a point; 
thence S 88°02’04” E 272.91’ to a point on the western right-of-way of North Salem Street; thence 
along the North Salem Street western right-of-way the following six (6) calls: N 14°58’41” E 62.09’, 
N 18°22’46” E 40.83’, N 18°51’26” E 493.54’, N 17°19’26” E 95.95’, N 12°19’09” E 53.97’, and N 
14°51’47” E 151.61’ to a point in the centerline of Hunter Street; thence with the Hunter Street 
centerline S 75°57’32” E 104.78’ to a point in the centerline of the mainline track for CSX 
Transportation; thence along the CSX Transportation mainline track centerline N 02°16’41” E 
1282.52’ to a point; thence leaving the centerline of the mainline track for CSX Transportation and 
following the northern property line of the Town of Apex Hunter Street Park property S 87°43’03” 
E 580.19’ to a point in the centerline of Ambergate Station; thence with the Ambergate Station 
centerline the following five (5) calls: S 02°43’42” W 159.30’, S 02°06’51” W 103.90’, S 03°09’44” 
W 15.57’, S 05°10’12” W 20.26’, and S 07°23’46” W 1.63’ to a point; thence leaving the centerline 
of Ambergate Station S 87°56’20” E 157.12’ to a point on the western right-of-way of CSX 
Transportation; thence along the CSX Transportation western right-of-way S 26°14’00” W 1091.25’ 
to a point on the northern right-of-way of Hunter Street; thence along the Hunter Street northern 
right-of-way S 76°01’18” E 103.87’ and S 75°58’18” E 78.32’ to a point also being the western right-
of-way of Metro Station; thence leaving the northern right-of-way of Hunter Street and following 
the Metro Station western right-of-way the next three (3) calls: N 26°17’55” E 139.57’, N 29°35’10” 

- Page 425 -



 

2 

E 20.07’, and N 36°09’34” E 20.07’ to a point; thence leaving the western right-of-way of Metro 
Station and following the centerline of Massapequa Station S 63°41’13” E 394.10’ to a point; thence 
leaving the Massapequa Station centerline S 26°15’45” W 14.12’ to a point on the eastern right-of-
way of Grand Central Station; thence leaving the Grand Central Station eastern right-of-way and 
following the northern property line of Lot 105 (56 Hunter Street) Villages of Apex South Village – 
Phase 1A S 63°44’15” E 97.58’ to a corner; thence crossing the Villages of Apex South Common 
Area and following a property line of Lot 1 Villages of Apex South N 75°06’49” E 272.40’ to a point; 
thence continuing with the edge of said property S 79°37’44” E 169.41’ to a corner; thence crossing 
Lot 1 S 57°13’29” E 172.79’ to a point in the centerline of Laura Duncan Road (N.C.S.R. 1308); 
thence along the Laura Duncan Road centerline the following seven (7) calls: S 30°28’38” W 15.53’, 
S 36°13’57” W 28.13’, S 36°18’01” W 50.25’, S 38°00’41” W 69.01’, S 40°05’16” W 110.45’, S 
39°37’43” W 106.22’, and S 42°26’17” W 78.36’ to the intersection of Laura Duncan Road and 
Hunter Street; thence leaving the intersection and continuing along the North Mason Street 
centerline the following twelve (12) calls: S 41°38’01” W 54.75’, S 40°12’33” W 85.20’, S 41°26’40” 
W 75.54’, S 39°39’03” W 66.30’, S 39°31’22” W 29.69’, S 35°22’20” W 29.09’, S 33°41’24” W 20.46’, 
S 31°48’32” W 25.12’, S 27°58’46” W 17.85’, S 28°10’00” W 27.49’, S 25°34’30” W 29.63’, and S 
25°01’01” W 26.26’ to a point; thence leaving the centerline of North Mason Street and continuing 
along the northern property line of Town of Apex, also being the southern limit of an abandoned 
railroad easement, the following three (3) calls: S 57°30’04” E 71.43’, S 51°04’36” E 36.87’, and S 
45°31’56” E 40.38’ to a point; thence crossing the aforementioned Town of Apex property S 
20°27’19” W 222.17’ to its southern property line; thence along the southern property line of Town 
of Apex N 69°32’41” W 120.00’ to a point on the eastern right-of-way of North Mason Street; 
thence N 22°06’06” E 34.22’ to a point on the North Mason Street eastern right-of-way; thence 
crossing the right-of-way of North Mason Street and continuing along the southern property line 
of Town of Apex Town Campus N 66°08’18” W 199.31’ to a corner; thence along a common line 
between Town of Apex and Larry Mack Jordan N 22°28’32” E 162.69’ and N 77°35’02” W 96.38’ to 
a corner; thence crossing a portion of Larry Mack Jordan, Town of Apex Town Campus, and North 
Hughes Street, also being collinear with the southern property line of the former Tunstall Life 
Estate, N 64°48’43” W 716.19’ to a point in the centerline of the mainline track for CSX 
Transportation; thence along the CSX Transportation mainline track centerline S 26°12’58” W 
2880.48’ 1478.49’ to the southern right-of-way of East Chatham Street; thence following the East 
Chatham Street right-of-way, also being the property line of Apex United Methodist Church, S 
64°17'14" E 441.18’ to the western right-of-way of South Hughes Street; thence S 25°56'18" W 
422.48’ along said right-of-way to the northern right-of-way of Olive Street; thence along the 
northern right-of-way of Olive Street N 63°57'19" W 177.20’ to a point on the northern right-of-
way and being the vehicle entrance for Apex United Methodist Church; thence crossing Olive 
Street and following the common line between Apex United Methodist Church and the property 
of Jon Douglas and Margaret Anne Allen S 25°57'20" W 175.73’; thence along the southern 
property line of Jon Douglas and Margaret Anne Allen S 64°30'43" E 177.80’ to the western right-
of-way of South Hughes Street; thence along the South Hughes Street right-of-way S 25°53'38" 
W 225.36’ to the northern right-of-way of East Moore Street; thence following the East Moore 
Street right-of-way N 64°23'04" W 446.69’ to a point in the centerline of the mainline track for 
CSX Transportation; thence along the CSX Transportation mainline track centerline across East 
Williams Street (NC Highway 55) and continuing with a clockwise curve for approximately 2074’ 
to the eastern right-of-way of Tingen Road (N.C.S.R. 1153); thence leaving the centerline of the 
mainline track and following the eastern right-of-way of Tingen Road the following three (3) 
calls: N 01°33'18" E 229.62’, N 00°35'34" W 74.00’, and N 00°01'57" W 202.14’ to a point; thence 
leaving the Tingen Road eastern right-of-way and crossing South Salem Street (N.C.S.R. 1011) N 
60°23'59" W 67.78’ to a point on the western right-of-way; thence following the western South 
Salem Street right-of-way, also being the property line of Walter J. McClamb (Albright Funeral 
Home), S 29°36'02" W 42.24’; thence continuing along the western South Salem Street right-of-
way and across Justice Heights Street the following three (3) calls: S 30°11'02" W 98.31’, S 

- Page 426 -



 

3 

32°41'15" W 42.11’, and S 29°27'41" W 81.33’ to the southeast corner of St. Mary’s African 
Methodist Episcopal (A.M.E.) Church; the along the southern property line of St. Mary’s A.M.E. 
Church N 62°22'04" W 139.32’; thence along the western property line of said church and 
continuing across Justice Heights Street to a point in the northern right-of-way N 23°57'20" E 
116.56’; thence with the Justice Heights Street right-of-way N 67°18'07" W 117.88’ to the 
southwest corner of Walter J. McLamb; thence leaving said right-of-way, following the western 
property line of Walter J. McClamb and crossing West Street N 28°07'02" E 334.67’; thence along 
the northern West Street right-of-way to the eastern right-of-way for First Street, also being the 
southwest corner of Town of Apex (West Street Park) N 60°49'18" W 57.97’; thence along the 
eastern First Street right-of-way N 29°33'54" E 413.62’ to the northwest corner of Town of Apex; 
thence leaving said right-of-way S 64°02'10" E 105.35’ to a point in the common line of Town of 
Apex and Kyler L. Zadell; thence crossing Kyler L. Zadell N 29°16'02" E 49.73’ to a point on the 
northern property line; thence along the northern property line of Kyler L. Zadell S 63°55'11" E 
45.52’ to a corner with KC2 Holdings, LLC; thence S 65°13'20" E 50.56’ to a corner of KC2 Holdings, 
LLC; thence N 32°29'05" E 144.34’ along the western property line of KC2 Holdings, LLC to the 
southern right-of-way for Harwood Street; thence across Harwood Street N 27°42'28" E 36.66’ 
to a property corner for Sauls Investment Properties, LLC; thence along the Harwood Street 
northern right-of-way the following four (4) calls: N 64°00'51" W 58.43’, N 64°01'22" W 48.92’, N 
63°54'08" W 77.36’, and a curve to the right having a radius of 21.41’ feet and a chord bearing 
and distance of N 21°34'11" W 28.85’ to a point in the eastern right-of-way of First Street; thence 
along said right-of-way N 29°27'20" E 21.97’ to the southern right-of-way of West Williams 
Street; thence along the southern West Williams Street right-of-way S 64°26'19" E 100.86’ and S 
66°54'43" E 45.16’ to a property corner of Sauls Investment Properties, LLC; thence crossing West 
Williams Street N 25°38'03" E 100.09’ to the northern right-of-way and being a common corner 
of A.T. Seymour Heirs and K2 Holdings, LLC; to a point on the eastern right-of-way of East Williams 
Street (NC Highway 55); thence with the NC Highway 55 eastern right-of-way N 66°53’40” 
W 628.99’ to a point on the eastern right-of-way of West Williams Street, also being the southeast 
corner of A.T. Seymour Heirs; thence along the eastern property line of A.T. Seymour Heirs the 
following three (3) calls: N 26°16’51” E 166.66’, S 64°40’27” E 3.99’, and N 27°36’14” E 109.53’ to 
a point on the southern property line of Thomas E. Seymour; thence along the property lines of 
Thomas E. Seymour the following three (3) calls: N 64°44’27” W 209.92’, N 29°11’13” E 116.32’, 
and S 63°52’04” E 170.02’ to the southeast corner of Eric D. and Patricia Pollock Creta; thence along 
the eastern property line of Eric D. and Patricia Pollock Creta N 26°07’32” E 184.96’ to a point on 
the southern right-of-way of West Moore Street; thence along the West Moore Street southern 
right-of-way S 63°57’53” E 10.10’ to a point; thence leaving the southern right-of-way of West 
Moore Street and following the eastern right-of-way of Hudson Avenue N 28°53’12” E 130.24’ to a 
point; thence leaving the Hudson Avenue eastern right-of-way S 61°06’48” E 109.23’ to a point; 
thence N 28°09’08” E 80.92’ to a point; thence N 60°52’34” W 33.18’ to a point; thence N 30°30’46” 
E 85.93’ to a point; thence N 62°41’01” W 76.03’ to a point; thence N 28°25’56” E 128.57’ to a point 
being on the eastern right-of-way of Hudson Avenue and the southern right-of-way of Holleman 
Street; thence crossing Hudson Avenue N 56°56’16” W 20.07’ to the northeast corner of William J. 
Evans, Jr.; thence along the Holleman Street southern right-of-way, also being the northern 
property line of William J. Evans, Jr., N 60°00’00” W 192.72’ to the northeast corner of Carey C. 
Jones Memorial Park; thence leaving the southern right-of-way of Holleman Road and following 
the eastern edge of Carey C. Jones Memorial Park the following six (6) calls: S 29°51’00” W 150.00’, 
N 60°03’08” W 5.20’, S 26°14’24” W 99.23’, N 63°24’21” W 11.54’, N 65°03’26” W 89.86’, and S 
29°57’39” W 162.25’ to a point on the northern right-of-way of West Moore Street; thence with 
the West Moore Street northern right-of-way N 71°38’54” W 546.63’ to a point on the eastern 
right-of-way of Upchurch Street; thence along the Upchurch Street eastern right-of-way N 
30°10’39” E 558.38’ to a point on the northern right-of-way of Holleman Street; thence along the 
Holleman Street northern right-of-way S 61°48’47” E 284.70’ and S 59°01’13” E 289.14’ to a corner 
of Apex Baptist Church; thence leaving the northern right-of-way of Holleman Street and following 

- Page 427 -



 

4 

along the western edge of Apex Baptist Church the next four (4) calls: N 28°31’39” E 174.53’, S 
65°08’57” E 67.87’, S 65°34’53” E 64.94’, and N 29°20’38” E 256.34’ to a point on the northern 
right-of-way of West Chatham Street; thence along the West Chatham Street northern right-of-
way S 64°49’33” E 156.08’ to a point; thence leaving the northern right-of-way of West Chatham 
Street N 27°15’51” E 159.33’ to a point on the southern property line of the Town of Apex Police 
Department; thence along the southern property line of the Town of Apex Police Department the 
following four (4) calls: N 64°05’39” W 289.37’, N 64°18’46” W 80.73’, N 64°41’58” W 94.64’, and 
N 64°14’26” W 103.74’ to the point and place of beginning. 

 
 
 
2. Amendments to Sec. 7.5.4.E Public Access Requirements in order to remove standards related 

to the required number of points of access for new residential developments in order to 
generally rely on Appendix D of the North Carolina International Fire Code. 
 
Background: In September 2023, State law changed to no longer allow local governments to 
require access roads in excess of the Fire Code of the North Carolina Residential Code for One- 
and Two-Family Dwellings. Planning staff met with Fire Department and Transportation & 
Infrastructure Development staff to review the standards in the UDO for all residential 
developments and agreed that it is appropriate to rely on the Fire Code for multifamily 
developments as well.  

 
7.5.4 Required Improvements, Streets 
 … 

E) Public Access Requirements 
All residential development or any portion thereof shall meet and may exceed the 
minimum public access requirements established by Appendix D of the North Carolina 
International Fire Code. (either by itself or in combination with another existing 
development through which it accesses the public street system) propose no more than 
50 single-family units, 100 multi-family units, or 50 units of single-family and multi-family 
combined unless it is served by at least two (2) points of access to the public street system. 
When more than one (1) point is required, one (1) of those two (2) points must be a full-
movement intersection and both points of access must be constructed to Town of Apex 
standards. A stub street allowing for future connectivity but not being extended to the 
public street system in conjunction with the proposed development cannot be considered 
a point of access. The points of access serving the development shall be separated by a 
minimum distance of 500 feet. The spacing between points of access is subject to 
approval by the North Carolina Department of Transportation if the access is proposed 
along a state-maintained roadway. Any residential development exceeding 300 
residential units shall provide at least three (3) points of access to the public street 
system. Construction of a Major Collector or Thoroughfare on the Advance Apex: The 
2045 Transportation Plan can provide opportunities for additional points of access when 
the existing roadway frontage cannot provide those opportunities. For multi-family 
development, at least one (1) point of access shall be full-movement. See also Sec. 
7.2.1.A.2 Points of ingress/egress. 

… 
 
 
 
 
 

- Page 428 -



 

5 

3.  Amendments to Sec. 6.1.11.G Uses Permitted Within the Riparian Buffer in order to clarify that 
screened porches are allowed to encroach into a riparian buffer in the same manner as sheds 
and gazebos based on interpretation from the North Carolina Department of Environmental 
Quality. 

 
Table 6.1.11.G.1 

Use Exempt* Allowable* 
Allowable 

with 
Mitigation* 

…    

Recreational and accessory structures in Zones 2 and 3: 
• Sheds and, gazebos, and screened porches in Zones 2 

and 3, except along perennial waters in Neuse River 
Basin where high-density development option is 
utilized 
o Total footprint less than or equal to 150 square 

feet per lot 
o Total footprint greater than 150 square feet per 

lot 
• Slatted uncovered decks and associated steps, 

provided the use meets the requirements of Sec. 
6.1.11.E and F of this Ordinance: 
o Deck at least eight (8) feet in height in Zone 2 and 

no vegetation removed from Zone 1 
o Deck less than eight (8) feet in height in Zone 2 or 

vegetation removed from Zone 1 
o Deck in Zone 3 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 

X 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 

…    

 
 
PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning staff recommends approval of the proposed amendments. 
 

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 

The Planning Board heard these amendments at their December 11, 2023 meeting and unanimously 

recommended approval.  

- Page 429 -



Apex Peakway

Center St

Tingen Rd

Abbey Oak Ln

Bladestone Ct

SH
ug

h e
sS

t

James St

N Salem St

Hunter St

Woodbriar St

Fir
st 

St

Grindstone Dr

W Chatham St E Chatham St

Justice Heights St

Ambergate Sta

S S
ale

m 
St

Saunders St

Chessie S ta

Blanchard St
Twin Circle Ct

New
Do

ver
Rd

Ada St

Hinton St

Hilt C
tHillcrest Rd

Se
co

nd
 St

Up
ch

urc
h S

t

Old CaskWay

West St

Olive St

Gr
an

dC
en

tra
lSt

a

Culvert St
Pate St

Me
tr o

St a
Sawcut Ln

Cash St

Great Northern Sta

Old Raleigh Rd

Magnol
ia Row

Trl

Germaine St

Holleman St

E Williams St

N
Tunstall Ave

W Moore St

La
ur a

Du
nc

an
Rd

E Moore St

Harwood St

Wrenn St

Th
ird

 St

S E
lm

 St
N

Elm
St

Perry Farms Dr
Cordell Pl

N Mason St

N 
Hu

gh
es

 St

Cu
nn

ing
ha

m 
St

S M
aso

n S
t

Old Mill Village Dr

W Williams St

S E
llin

gto
n S

t
Ivy Glen Dr

Correnna St

S Tunstall Ave

Keith St

Co
mm

erc
e S

t

Hu
ds

on
 Av

e

Herbert St

Thompson St

N Ellington St

Sh
or

t S
t

Trib
a yn

eC
t

Mill Hopper Ln

Pearson St

Seabo ard
St

PlatformDr

Cooke St

Oakgate Ct

Sue Helton
Memorial Park

West
Street
Park

Apex
Jaycee

Park

C.C. Jones
Memorial Park

Haddon
Hall Open

Space

Hunter
Street Park

Downtown Festival District

1 Inch = 500 Feet

DRAFT

Last Printed: December 4, 2023
Town of Apex Planning Department

0 500 1,000250 Feet

¯Existing District Boundary

Proposed District Expansion

- Page 430 -



- Page 431 -



1 

 

 

TOWN OF APEX 
POST OFFICE BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
PHONE 919-249-3426 

 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 
OF PUBLIC HEARING 
AMENDMENTS TO THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE (UDO) 
CONTINUED 

Pursuant to the provisions of North Carolina General Statutes §160D-601 and to the Town of Apex Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO) Sec. 2.2.11, notice is hereby given of a public hearing before the Town Council of the Town of Apex for the 
purpose of soliciting comments relative to the following amendment(s) to the Unified Development Ordinance that are 
applicable Town-wide: 

 
Requested by Planning Staff: 
 
1.  Amendments to Sec. 12.2 Terms Defined in order to expand the boundaries of the Downtown Festival District. 
 
2.  Amendments to Sec. 7.5.4.E Public Access Requirements in order to remove standards related to the required 

number of points of access for new residential developments in order to generally rely on Appendix D of the 
North Carolina International Fire Code. 

 
3.  Amendments to Sec. 6.1.11 Uses Permitted Within the Riparian Buffer in order to clarify that screened 

porches are allowed to encroach into a riparian buffer in the same manner as sheds and gazebos based on 
interpretation from the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality. 

 
  
Public Hearing Location:  Apex Town Hall  

                                     Council Chamber, 2nd Floor 
                                 73 Hunter Street, Apex, North Carolina  
 
 

Town Council Public Hearing Date and Time: January 9 February 13, 2024   6:00 PM 
You may attend the meeting in person or view the meeting through the Town’s YouTube livestream at: 
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. 
 
If you are unable to attend, you may provide a written statement by email to public.hearing@apexnc.org, or 
submit it to the Office of the Town Clerk (73 Hunter Street or USPS mail - P.O. Box 250, Apex, NC 27502), at 
least two business days prior to the Town Council vote. You must provide your name and address for the record. 
The written statements will be delivered to the Town Council members prior to their vote. Please include the 
Public Hearing name in the subject line. 
 
 

The UDO can be accessed online at: http://www.apexnc.org/233. 
 

Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Planning Director 

 
Published Dates: December 18, 2023-January 9 February 13, 2024 

- Page 432 -

https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
http://www.apexnc.org/233


- Page 433 -



 

 

TOWN OF APEX 
POST OFFICE BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
TEL. 919-249-3426 

 

NOTIFICACIÓN PÚBLICA DE AUDIENCIAS PÚBLICAS 
Modificación de la Ordenanza  
de Desarrollo Unificado (UDO) 

CONTINUADO 
De conformidad con las disposiciones de los Estatutos Generales de Carolina del Norte §160D-601 y con la sección 2.2.11 de la 
Ordenanza de Desarrollo Unificado (UDO) del pueblo de Apex, por la presente se notifican las audiencias públicas ante el Consejo 
Municipal del pueblo de Apex a fin de solicitar comentarios relativos a la siguiente modificación de la Ordenanza de Desarrollo 
Unificado que se aplican a toda la ciudad: 

 
A solicitud del personal de Planificación: 

 
1.  Enmiendas a la sección 12.2 Términos definidos para ampliar los límites del distrito de festivales del centro 

de la ciudad. 
 
2.  Enmiendas a la sección 7.5.4.E Requisitos de acceso público para eliminar las normas relacionadas con el 

número requerido de puntos de acceso para los nuevos desarrollos residenciales con el fin de confiar 
generalmente en el apéndice D del Código Internacional de Protección contra Incendios de Carolina del 
Norte. 

 
3.  Enmiendas a la sección 6.1.11 Usos permitidos dentro de la franja de amortiguación ribereña para aclarar 

que los porches protegidos pueden invadir una franja de amortiguación ribereña del mismo modo que los 
cobertizos y cenadores, según la interpretación del Departamento de Calidad Ambiental de Carolina del 
Norte. 
 
 

Lugar de la audiencia pública:  Ayuntamiento de Apex  
                                    Cámara del Consejo, 2º piso 
                                    73 Hunter Street, Apex, Carolina del Norte 

 
 

Fecha y hora de la audiencia pública del Consejo Municipal:  9 de enero 13 de febrero de 2024   6:00 PM  
Puede asistir a la reunión de manera presencial o seguir la transmisión en directo por YouTube a través del 
siguiente enlace: https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov.  
 
Si no puede asistir, puede enviar una declaración escrita por correo electrónico a public.hearing@apexnc.org, o 
presentarla a la Oficina del Secretario Municipal (73 Hunter Street o por correo USPS a P.O. Box 250, Apex, NC 
27502), al menos dos días hábiles antes de la votación del Consejo Municipal. Debe proporcionar su nombre y 
dirección para que conste en el registro. Las declaraciones escritas se entregarán al Consejo Municipal antes de la 
votación. No olvide incluir el nombre de la audiencia pública en el asunto. 

 
 

Se puede acceder a la UDO en línea en: http://www.apexnc.org/233. 
 

Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Directora de Planificación 

 
 
Fechas de publicación: 18 de diciembre de 2023 – 9 de enero 13 de febrero de 2024 

- Page 434 -

https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
http://www.apexnc.org/233


- Page 435 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: PUBLIC HEARING 

 Meeting Date: February 13, 2024 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager  

Department(s): Planning 

Requested Motion 

Public Hearing and possible motion regarding various amendments to the Unified Development Ordinance 

(UDO). This item was continued from the January 9, 2024 Town Council meeting that was cancelled. 

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning Department recommends approval.  

The Planning Board heard these amendments at their December 11, 2023 meeting and unanimously 

recommended approval. 

Item Details 

Requested by Planning Staff: 

1. Amendments to Sec. 12.2 Terms Defined in order to expand the boundaries of the Downtown Festival 

District. 

2. Amendments to Sec. 7.5.4.E Public Access Requirements in order to remove standards related to the 

required number of points of access for new residential developments in order to generally rely on 

Appendix D of the North Carolina International Fire Code. 

3. Amendments to Sec. 6.1.11 Uses Permitted Within the Riparian Buffer in order to clarify that screened 

porches are allowed to encroach into a riparian buffer in the same manner as sheds and gazebos 

based on interpretation from the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality. 

Attachments 

 PH1-A1 - Staff Report - Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Amendments - January 2024 
 PH1-A2 - Planning Board Report to Town Council - Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) 

Amendments - January 2024 

 PH1-A3 - Public Notice - Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Amendments - January 2024 
 PH1-A4 - Ordinance - Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Amendments - January 2024 

 

- Page 436 -



- Page 437 -



1 

 

 

TOWN OF APEX 
POST OFFICE BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
PHONE 919-249-3426 

 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 
OF PUBLIC HEARING 
AMENDMENTS TO THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE (UDO) 
CONTINUED 

Pursuant to the provisions of North Carolina General Statutes §160D-601 and to the Town of Apex Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO) Sec. 2.2.11, notice is hereby given of a public hearing before the Town Council of the Town of Apex for the 
purpose of soliciting comments relative to the following amendment(s) to the Unified Development Ordinance that are 
applicable Town-wide: 

 
Requested by Planning Staff: 
 
1.  Amendments to Sec. 12.2 Terms Defined in order to expand the boundaries of the Downtown Festival District. 
 
2.  Amendments to Sec. 7.5.4.E Public Access Requirements in order to remove standards related to the required 

number of points of access for new residential developments in order to generally rely on Appendix D of the 
North Carolina International Fire Code. 

 
3.  Amendments to Sec. 6.1.11 Uses Permitted Within the Riparian Buffer in order to clarify that screened 

porches are allowed to encroach into a riparian buffer in the same manner as sheds and gazebos based on 
interpretation from the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality. 

 
  
Public Hearing Location:  Apex Town Hall  

                                     Council Chamber, 2nd Floor 
                                 73 Hunter Street, Apex, North Carolina  
 
 

Town Council Public Hearing Date and Time: January 9 February 13, 2024   6:00 PM 
You may attend the meeting in person or view the meeting through the Town’s YouTube livestream at: 
https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov. 
 
If you are unable to attend, you may provide a written statement by email to public.hearing@apexnc.org, or 
submit it to the Office of the Town Clerk (73 Hunter Street or USPS mail - P.O. Box 250, Apex, NC 27502), at 
least two business days prior to the Town Council vote. You must provide your name and address for the record. 
The written statements will be delivered to the Town Council members prior to their vote. Please include the 
Public Hearing name in the subject line. 
 
 

The UDO can be accessed online at: http://www.apexnc.org/233. 
 

Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Planning Director 

 
Published Dates: December 18, 2023-January 9 February 13, 2024 

- Page 438 -

https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
http://www.apexnc.org/233


- Page 439 -



 

 

TOWN OF APEX 
POST OFFICE BOX 250 
APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 27502 
TEL. 919-249-3426 

 

NOTIFICACIÓN PÚBLICA DE AUDIENCIAS PÚBLICAS 
Modificación de la Ordenanza  
de Desarrollo Unificado (UDO) 

CONTINUADO 
De conformidad con las disposiciones de los Estatutos Generales de Carolina del Norte §160D-601 y con la sección 2.2.11 de la 
Ordenanza de Desarrollo Unificado (UDO) del pueblo de Apex, por la presente se notifican las audiencias públicas ante el Consejo 
Municipal del pueblo de Apex a fin de solicitar comentarios relativos a la siguiente modificación de la Ordenanza de Desarrollo 
Unificado que se aplican a toda la ciudad: 

 
A solicitud del personal de Planificación: 

 
1.  Enmiendas a la sección 12.2 Términos definidos para ampliar los límites del distrito de festivales del centro 

de la ciudad. 
 
2.  Enmiendas a la sección 7.5.4.E Requisitos de acceso público para eliminar las normas relacionadas con el 

número requerido de puntos de acceso para los nuevos desarrollos residenciales con el fin de confiar 
generalmente en el apéndice D del Código Internacional de Protección contra Incendios de Carolina del 
Norte. 

 
3.  Enmiendas a la sección 6.1.11 Usos permitidos dentro de la franja de amortiguación ribereña para aclarar 

que los porches protegidos pueden invadir una franja de amortiguación ribereña del mismo modo que los 
cobertizos y cenadores, según la interpretación del Departamento de Calidad Ambiental de Carolina del 
Norte. 
 
 

Lugar de la audiencia pública:  Ayuntamiento de Apex  
                                    Cámara del Consejo, 2º piso 
                                    73 Hunter Street, Apex, Carolina del Norte 

 
 

Fecha y hora de la audiencia pública del Consejo Municipal:  9 de enero 13 de febrero de 2024   6:00 PM  
Puede asistir a la reunión de manera presencial o seguir la transmisión en directo por YouTube a través del 
siguiente enlace: https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov.  
 
Si no puede asistir, puede enviar una declaración escrita por correo electrónico a public.hearing@apexnc.org, o 
presentarla a la Oficina del Secretario Municipal (73 Hunter Street o por correo USPS a P.O. Box 250, Apex, NC 
27502), al menos dos días hábiles antes de la votación del Consejo Municipal. Debe proporcionar su nombre y 
dirección para que conste en el registro. Las declaraciones escritas se entregarán al Consejo Municipal antes de la 
votación. No olvide incluir el nombre de la audiencia pública en el asunto. 

 
 

Se puede acceder a la UDO en línea en: http://www.apexnc.org/233. 
 

Dianne F. Khin, AICP 
Directora de Planificación 

 
 
Fechas de publicación: 18 de diciembre de 2023 – 9 de enero 13 de febrero de 2024 

- Page 440 -

https://www.youtube.com/c/townofapexgov
mailto:public.hearing@apexnc.org
http://www.apexnc.org/233


- Page 441 -



1 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CERTAIN SECTIONS OF THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE  
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Section 12.2 of the Unified Development Ordinance is amended to read as follows with 

additions shown as bold underlined text and deletions shown as struck-through text: 
 
12.2 Terms Defined 

… 
Downtown Festival District 
The purpose and intent of the Downtown Festival District is to celebrate the Salem Street corridor 
and vicinity and encourage a diversity of activities and programming by allowing more outdoor 
entertainment options on public and private properties than in other areas of Town while being 
cognizant of the surrounding residential neighborhoods. Legal description of boundaries: 
Beginning at an iron pipe being the southwest property corner of the Town of Apex Police 
Department and being the northwest corner of the Kenneth E. and Cheryl H. Koch, Jr. property; 
thence along the western property line of the Town of Apex Police Department N 29°37’50” E 
91.05’ to a point; thence continuing along said property line N 30°23’22” E 13.01’ to a point; 
thence along the same property line N 40°38’29” E 142.69’ to a point on the northern right-of-
way of Saunders Street; thence along the Saunders Street northern right-of-way S 64°28’48” E 
19.44’ to a point; thence S 64°15’35” E 89.31’ to a point on the aforementioned right-of-way; 
thence leaving the northern right-of-way of Saunders Street the following three (3) calls: N 
18°01’23” E 184.23’, N 65°08’53” W 31.82’, and N 02°37’34” W 87.12’ to a point on the southern 
boundary of the Brittany Trace neighborhood; then along the southern boundary of Brittany 
Trace, also being the rear property line for Lots 38 through 47, the following three (3) calls: S 
89°48’07” E 14.82’, N 89°06’04” E 194.87’, and S 88°48’57” E 398.32’ to a point; thence N 
89°04’55” E 16.80’ to a point; thence S 88°02’04” E 272.91’ to a point on the western right-of-way 
of North Salem Street; thence along the North Salem Street western right-of-way the following 
six (6) calls: N 14°58’41” E 62.09’, N 18°22’46” E 40.83’, N 18°51’26” E 493.54’, N 17°19’26” E 
95.95’, N 12°19’09” E 53.97’, and N 14°51’47” E 151.61’ to a point in the centerline of Hunter 
Street; thence with the Hunter Street centerline S 75°57’32” E 104.78’ to a point in the centerline 
of the mainline track for CSX Transportation; thence along the CSX Transportation mainline track 
centerline N 02°16’41” E 1282.52’ to a point; thence leaving the centerline of the mainline track 
for CSX Transportation and following the northern property line of the Town of Apex Hunter Street 
Park property S 87°43’03” E 580.19’ to a point in the centerline of Ambergate Station; thence with 
the Ambergate Station centerline the following five (5) calls: S 02°43’42” W 159.30’, S 02°06’51” 
W 103.90’, S 03°09’44” W 15.57’, S 05°10’12” W 20.26’, and S 07°23’46” W 1.63’ to a point; thence 
leaving the centerline of Ambergate Station S 87°56’20” E 157.12’ to a point on the western right-
of-way of CSX Transportation; thence along the CSX Transportation western right-of-way S 
26°14’00” W 1091.25’ to a point on the northern right-of-way of Hunter Street; thence along the 
Hunter Street northern right-of-way S 76°01’18” E 103.87’ and S 75°58’18” E 78.32’ to a point also 
being the western right-of-way of Metro Station; thence leaving the northern right-of-way of 
Hunter Street and following the Metro Station western right-of-way the next three (3) calls: N 
26°17’55” E 139.57’, N 29°35’10” E 20.07’, and N 36°09’34” E 20.07’ to a point; thence leaving the 
western right-of-way of Metro Station and following the centerline of Massapequa Station S 
63°41’13” E 394.10’ to a point; thence leaving the Massapequa Station centerline S 26°15’45” 
W 14.12’ to a point on the eastern right-of-way of Grand Central Station; thence leaving the Grand 
Central Station eastern right-of-way and following the northern property line of Lot 105 (56 
Hunter Street) Villages of Apex South Village – Phase 1A S 63°44’15” E 97.58’ to a corner; thence 
crossing the Villages of Apex South Common Area and following a property line of Lot 1 Villages 
of Apex South N 75°06’49” E 272.40’ to a point; thence continuing with the edge of said property 

- Page 442 -



2 

S 79°37’44” E 169.41’ to a corner; thence crossing Lot 1 S 57°13’29” E 172.79’ to a point in the 
centerline of Laura Duncan Road (N.C.S.R. 1308); thence along the Laura Duncan Road centerline 
the following seven (7) calls: S 30°28’38” W 15.53’, S 36°13’57” W 28.13’, S 36°18’01” W 50.25’, S 
38°00’41” W 69.01’, S 40°05’16” W 110.45’, S 39°37’43” W 106.22’, and S 42°26’17” W 78.36’ to 
the intersection of Laura Duncan Road and Hunter Street; thence leaving the intersection and 
continuing along the North Mason Street centerline the following twelve (12) calls: S 41°38’01” 
W 54.75’, S 40°12’33” W 85.20’, S 41°26’40” W 75.54’, S 39°39’03” W 66.30’, S 39°31’22” W 
29.69’, S 35°22’20” W 29.09’, S 33°41’24” W 20.46’, S 31°48’32” W 25.12’, S 27°58’46” W 17.85’, 
S 28°10’00” W 27.49’, S 25°34’30” W 29.63’, and S 25°01’01” W 26.26’ to a point; thence leaving 
the centerline of North Mason Street and continuing along the northern property line of Town of 
Apex, also being the southern limit of an abandoned railroad easement, the following three (3) 
calls: S 57°30’04” E 71.43’, S 51°04’36” E 36.87’, and S 45°31’56” E 40.38’ to a point; thence 
crossing the aforementioned Town of Apex property S 20°27’19” W 222.17’ to its southern 
property line; thence along the southern property line of Town of Apex N 69°32’41” W 120.00’ to 
a point on the eastern right-of-way of North Mason Street; thence N 22°06’06” E 34.22’ to a point 
on the North Mason Street eastern right-of-way; thence crossing the right-of-way of North Mason 
Street and continuing along the southern property line of Town of Apex Town Campus N 
66°08’18” W 199.31’ to a corner; thence along a common line between Town of Apex and Larry 
Mack Jordan N 22°28’32” E 162.69’ and N 77°35’02” W 96.38’ to a corner; thence crossing a 
portion of Larry Mack Jordan, Town of Apex Town Campus, and North Hughes Street, also being 
collinear with the southern property line of the former Tunstall Life Estate, N 64°48’43” W 716.19’ 
to a point in the centerline of the mainline track for CSX Transportation; thence along the CSX 
Transportation mainline track centerline S 26°12’58” W 2880.48’ 1478.49’ to the southern right-
of-way of East Chatham Street; thence following the East Chatham Street right-of-way, also 
being the property line of Apex United Methodist Church, S 64°17'14" E 441.18’ to the western 
right-of-way of South Hughes Street; thence S 25°56'18" W 422.48’ along said right-of-way to 
the northern right-of-way of Olive Street; thence along the northern right-of-way of Olive Street 
N 63°57'19" W 177.20’ to a point on the northern right-of-way and being the vehicle entrance 
for Apex United Methodist Church; thence crossing Olive Street and following the common line 
between Apex United Methodist Church and the property of Jon Douglas and Margaret Anne 
Allen S 25°57'20" W 175.73’; thence along the southern property line of Jon Douglas and 
Margaret Anne Allen S 64°30'43" E 177.80’ to the western right-of-way of South Hughes Street; 
thence along the South Hughes Street right-of-way S 25°53'38" W 225.36’ to the northern right-
of-way of East Moore Street; thence following the East Moore Street right-of-way N 64°23'04" 
W 446.69’ to a point in the centerline of the mainline track for CSX Transportation; thence along 
the CSX Transportation mainline track centerline across East Williams Street (NC Highway 55) 
and continuing with a clockwise curve for approximately 2074’ to the eastern right-of-way of 
Tingen Road (N.C.S.R. 1153); thence leaving the centerline of the mainline track and following 
the eastern right-of-way of Tingen Road the following three (3) calls: N 01°33'18" E 229.62’, N 
00°35'34" W 74.00’, and N 00°01'57" W 202.14’ to a point; thence leaving the Tingen Road 
eastern right-of-way and crossing South Salem Street (N.C.S.R. 1011) N 60°23'59" W 67.78’ to a 
point on the western right-of-way; thence following the western South Salem Street right-of-
way, also being the property line of Walter J. McClamb (Albright Funeral Home), S 29°36'02" W 
42.24’; thence continuing along the western South Salem Street right-of-way and across Justice 
Heights Street the following three (3) calls: S 30°11'02" W 98.31’, S 32°41'15" W 42.11’, and S 
29°27'41" W 81.33’ to the southeast corner of St. Mary’s African Methodist Episcopal (A.M.E.) 
Church; the along the southern property line of St. Mary’s A.M.E. Church N 62°22'04" W 139.32’; 
thence along the western property line of said church and continuing across Justice Heights 
Street to a point in the northern right-of-way N 23°57'20" E 116.56’; thence with the Justice 
Heights Street right-of-way N 67°18'07" W 117.88’ to the southwest corner of Walter J. 
McLamb; thence leaving said right-of-way, following the western property line of Walter J. 

- Page 443 -



3 

McClamb and crossing West Street N 28°07'02" E 334.67’; thence along the northern West 
Street right-of-way to the eastern right-of-way for First Street, also being the southwest corner 
of Town of Apex (West Street Park) N 60°49'18" W 57.97’; thence along the eastern First Street 
right-of-way N 29°33'54" E 413.62’ to the northwest corner of Town of Apex; thence leaving 
said right-of-way S 64°02'10" E 105.35’ to a point in the common line of Town of Apex and Kyler 
L. Zadell; thence crossing Kyler L. Zadell N 29°16'02" E 49.73’ to a point on the northern property 
line; thence along the northern property line of Kyler L. Zadell S 63°55'11" E 45.52’ to a corner 
with KC2 Holdings, LLC; thence S 65°13'20" E 50.56’ to a corner of KC2 Holdings, LLC; thence N 
32°29'05" E 144.34’ along the western property line of KC2 Holdings, LLC to the southern right-
of-way for Harwood Street; thence across Harwood Street N 27°42'28" E 36.66’ to a property 
corner for Sauls Investment Properties, LLC; thence along the Harwood Street northern right-
of-way the following four (4) calls: N 64°00'51" W 58.43’, N 64°01'22" W 48.92’, N 63°54'08" W 
77.36’, and a curve to the right having a radius of 21.41’ feet and a chord bearing and distance 
of N 21°34'11" W 28.85’ to a point in the eastern right-of-way of First Street; thence along said 
right-of-way N 29°27'20" E 21.97’ to the southern right-of-way of West Williams Street; thence 
along the southern West Williams Street right-of-way S 64°26'19" E 100.86’ and S 66°54'43" E 
45.16’ to a property corner of Sauls Investment Properties, LLC; thence crossing West Williams 
Street N 25°38'03" E 100.09’ to the northern right-of-way and being a common corner of A.T. 
Seymour Heirs and K2 Holdings, LLC; to a point on the eastern right-of-way of East Williams Street 
(NC Highway 55); thence with the NC Highway 55 eastern right-of-way N 66°53’40” W 628.99’ to 
a point on the eastern right-of-way of West Williams Street, also being the southeast corner of 
A.T. Seymour Heirs; thence along the eastern property line of A.T. Seymour Heirs the following 
three (3) calls: N 26°16’51” E 166.66’, S 64°40’27” E 3.99’, and N 27°36’14” E 109.53’ to a point on 
the southern property line of Thomas E. Seymour; thence along the property lines of Thomas E. 
Seymour the following three (3) calls: N 64°44’27” W 209.92’, N 29°11’13” E 116.32’, and S 
63°52’04” E 170.02’ to the southeast corner of Eric D. and Patricia Pollock Creta; thence along the 
eastern property line of Eric D. and Patricia Pollock Creta N 26°07’32” E 184.96’ to a point on the 
southern right-of-way of West Moore Street; thence along the West Moore Street southern right-
of-way S 63°57’53” E 10.10’ to a point; thence leaving the southern right-of-way of West Moore 
Street and following the eastern right-of-way of Hudson Avenue N 28°53’12” E 130.24’ to a point; 
thence leaving the Hudson Avenue eastern right-of-way S 61°06’48” E 109.23’ to a point; thence 
N 28°09’08” E 80.92’ to a point; thence N 60°52’34” W 33.18’ to a point; thence N 30°30’46” E 
85.93’ to a point; thence N 62°41’01” W 76.03’ to a point; thence N 28°25’56” E 128.57’ to a point 
being on the eastern right-of-way of Hudson Avenue and the southern right-of-way of Holleman 
Street; thence crossing Hudson Avenue N 56°56’16” W 20.07’ to the northeast corner of William 
J. Evans, Jr.; thence along the Holleman Street southern right-of-way, also being the northern 
property line of William J. Evans, Jr., N 60°00’00” W 192.72’ to the northeast corner of Carey C. 
Jones Memorial Park; thence leaving the southern right-of-way of Holleman Road and following 
the eastern edge of Carey C. Jones Memorial Park the following six (6) calls: S 29°51’00” 
W 150.00’, N 60°03’08” W 5.20’, S 26°14’24” W 99.23’, N 63°24’21” W 11.54’, N 65°03’26” W 
89.86’, and S 29°57’39” W 162.25’ to a point on the northern right-of-way of West Moore Street; 
thence with the West Moore Street northern right-of-way N 71°38’54” W 546.63’ to a point on 
the eastern right-of-way of Upchurch Street; thence along the Upchurch Street eastern right-of-
way N 30°10’39” E 558.38’ to a point on the northern right-of-way of Holleman Street; thence 
along the Holleman Street northern right-of-way S 61°48’47” E 284.70’ and S 59°01’13” E 289.14’ 
to a corner of Apex Baptist Church; thence leaving the northern right-of-way of Holleman Street 
and following along the western edge of Apex Baptist Church the next four (4) calls: N 28°31’39” 
E 174.53’, S 65°08’57” E 67.87’, S 65°34’53” E 64.94’, and N 29°20’38” E 256.34’ to a point on the 
northern right-of-way of West Chatham Street; thence along the West Chatham Street northern 
right-of-way S 64°49’33” E 156.08’ to a point; thence leaving the northern right-of-way of West 
Chatham Street N 27°15’51” E 159.33’ to a point on the southern property line of the Town of 

- Page 444 -



4 

Apex Police Department; thence along the southern property line of the Town of Apex Police 
Department the following four (4) calls: N 64°05’39” W 289.37’, N 64°18’46” W 80.73’, N 
64°41’58” W 94.64’, and N 64°14’26” W 103.74’ to the point and place of beginning. 
… 

 
 
Section 2.  Section 7.5.4.E of the Unified Development Ordinance is amended to read as follows with 

additions shown as bold underlined text and deletions shown as struck-through text: 
 

7.5.4 Required Improvements, Streets 
 … 

E) Public Access Requirements 
All residential development or any portion thereof shall meet and may exceed the 
minimum public access requirements established by Appendix D of the North Carolina 
International Fire Code. (either by itself or in combination with another existing 
development through which it accesses the public street system) propose no more than 
50 single-family units, 100 multi-family units, or 50 units of single-family and multi-family 
combined unless it is served by at least two (2) points of access to the public street system. 
When more than one (1) point is required, one (1) of those two (2) points must be a full-
movement intersection and both points of access must be constructed to Town of Apex 
standards. A stub street allowing for future connectivity but not being extended to the 
public street system in conjunction with the proposed development cannot be considered 
a point of access. The points of access serving the development shall be separated by a 
minimum distance of 500 feet. The spacing between points of access is subject to 
approval by the North Carolina Department of Transportation if the access is proposed 
along a state-maintained roadway. Any residential development exceeding 300 
residential units shall provide at least three (3) points of access to the public street 
system. Construction of a Major Collector or Thoroughfare on the Advance Apex: The 
2045 Transportation Plan can provide opportunities for additional points of access when 
the existing roadway frontage cannot provide those opportunities. For multi-family 
development, at least one (1) point of access shall be full-movement. See also Sec. 
7.2.1.A.2 Points of ingress/egress. 

… 
 
 
Section 3.  Section 6.1.11.G of the Unified Development Ordinance is amended to read as follows 

with additions shown as bold underlined text and deletions shown as struck-through text: 
 

Table 6.1.11.G.1 

Use Exempt* Allowable* 
Allowable 

with 
Mitigation* 

…    

Recreational and accessory structures in Zones 2 and 3: 
• Sheds and, gazebos, and screened porches in Zones 2 

and 3, except along perennial waters in Neuse River 
Basin where high-density development option is 
utilized 
o Total footprint less than or equal to 150 square 

feet per lot 
o Total footprint greater than 150 square feet per lot 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

X 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X 

- Page 445 -



5 

Use Exempt* Allowable* 
Allowable 

with 
Mitigation* 

• Slatted uncovered decks and associated steps, 
provided the use meets the requirements of Sec. 
6.1.11.E and F of this Ordinance: 
o Deck at least eight (8) feet in height in Zone 2 and 

no vegetation removed from Zone 1 
o Deck less than eight (8) feet in height in Zone 2 or 

vegetation removed from Zone 1 
o Deck in Zone 3 

 
 
 

X 
 
 
 

X 

 
 

 
 
 

X 

…    

 
 
 

Section 4. The Planning Director and/or Town Manager are hereby authorized to renumber, revise 
formatting, correct typographic errors, to verify and correct cross references, indexes and 
diagrams as necessary to codify, publish, and/or accomplish the provisions of this ordinance 
or future amendments as long as doing so does not alter the terms of this ordinance.  

 
 

Section 5. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed. If 
any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause or provision of this ordinance shall be adjudged 
invalid, such adjudication shall apply only to such section, paragraph, subdivision, clause or 
provision so adjudged and the remainder of the ordinance shall be deemed valid and 
effective. 

 
Section 6. The ordinance shall be effective upon enactment on the _____ day of _____________ 2024. 
 
 

Introduced by Council Member ________________________________ 
 
Seconded by Council Member _________________________________ 

 
 

Attest:     TOWN OF APEX 
 
 

_____________________________  ________________________________ 
Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC Jacques K. Gilbert 
Town Clerk Mayor 

 
 

Approved As To Form: 
 
 

_______________________________ 
Laurie L. Hohe 
Town Attorney 

- Page 446 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: OLD BUSINESS 

 Meeting Date: February 13, 2024 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Councilmember Terry Mahaffey, Sponsor  

Department(s): Governing Body  

Requested Motion 

Discuss, provide staff with direction, and schedule next steps as appropriate.   

Approval Recommended? 

N/A 

Item Details 

The Apex Town Council considered the proposed ordinance amendment during the October 24, 2023, 

regular meeting and the ordinance passed by a simple majority (3-2 with Councilmember Gantt and 

Councilmember Gray dissenting).  For the Town to pass an ordinance on the date of introduction (first vote 

by council), the ordinance must receive an affirmative vote by 2/3s of its members.  For Apex, this 

“supermajority” vote requires an affirmative vote of 4 members.  Because the ordinance passed by a simple 

majority, it is being presented again for a second vote.  Council is not expected to vote on this item 

during the February 13, 2024, Regular Town Council Meeting.  

 

Council is expected to discuss the proposed amendment and provide clear direction to staff on additional 

information that is needed and/or would be helpful to them in considering this item on second reading.  

Additionally, Council will consider outlining the next steps in the process.   

 

The North Carolina Building Code Council and/or Residential Building Code Council (new) will have to 

approve of the change before fire sprinkler systems can be required in Apex. It is anticipated that review 

and approval of the proposed ordinance will take several months.  

 

The next North Carolina Building Code Council Meetings are March 18, 2024 and June 10, 2024. The 

deadline for agenda submission is the first day of the month, one month prior.   

 

Attachments 

- Page 447 -



 OB1-A1: REFERENCE ONLY - Ordinance Amendment - Chapter 5 - Article 1 - Section 5 - Automatic 
Fire Sprinkler System  

 

- Page 448 -



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-1024-__ 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 5-9 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 
THE TOWN OF APEX 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statutes (“NCGS”) § 143-138 provides that the fire 
prevention code provisions of the North Carolina State Building Code: Fire Prevention Code are 
considered the minimum standards necessary to preserve and protect health and safety, and that 
municipalities and counties may submit more stringent provisions for approval by the North 
Carolina Building Code Council; 

WHEREAS, NCGS § 143-138 further provides that fire prevention standards exceeding the state 
minimum standards require official approval from the Building Code Council and that they 
provide adequate minimum standards to preserve and protect health and safety; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Apex finds it in the best interest of its citizens to 
provide fire prevention standards that exceed the standards mandated by the State of North 
Carolina. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Apex as 
follows: 

Section 1.  Section 5-9 of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Apex is hereby 
amended to read as follows, with additions shown as bold, underlined text and deletions as 
struck through text: 

Sec. 5-9. – State building code, fire code. 

(a) The North Carolina State Building Code, Fire Code, as adopted by the North
Carolina Building Code Council as amended from time to time, is hereby
incorporated by reference into this Code as if fully set forth herein, and
Appendices B, C, D, E, F, G, and H are specifically adopted and incorporated
herein by reference.

(b) Notwithstanding the exception to applicability for occupancy of one- and
two-family dwellings in Section 102.13 of the North Carolina State 
Building Code: Fire Prevention Code, Section 903.2.8 and Section 
903.2.8.1 of the North Carolina State Building Code: Fire Prevention 
Code, as amended, shall be amended and apply within the Town of Apex, 
as follows: 

903.2.8 Group R. An automatic sprinkler system installed in accordance 
with Section 903.3 shall be provided throughout all buildings with a 
Group R fire area. 

- Page 449 -



Exceptions: 

1. An automatic sprinkler system is not required in new adult and
child day care facilities located in existing Group R-3 and R-4 
occupancies. 

2. An automatic sprinkler system is not required in temporary
overflow shelters. 

3. An automatic sprinkler system is not required in camping units
located within a campground where all of the following conditions 
exist. 
3.1 The camping unit is limited to one story in height. 
3.2 The camping unit is less than 400 square feet (37 m2) in area. 
3.3 The camping unit does not have a kitchen. 

4. An automatic sprinkler system is not required in an open air camp
cabin that complies with the following: 
4.1 The open air camp cabin shall have at least two remote 

unimpeded exits.  Lighted exit signs shall not be required. 
4.2 The open air camp cabin shall not be required to have 

plumbing or electrical systems, but if the cabin has these 
systems, then the provisions of the code otherwise applicable to 
those systems shall apply. 

4.3 Smoke detectors and portable fire extinguishers shall be 
installed as required by other sections of this code. 

5. Temporary sleeping units for disaster relief workers as allowed by
Section 321.4.5. 

903.2.8.1 Group R-3. 

An automatic sprinkler system installed in accordance with Section 
903.3.1.3 shall be required in Group R-3 occupancies and townhouses. 

Section 2.  It is the intention of the governing body, and it is hereby ordained that the 
provisions of this ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances and the 
sections of this ordinance may be renumbered to accomplish such intention. 

Section 3.  Severability, Conflict of Laws.  If this ordinance or application thereof to 
any person or circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the ordinance which can be given separate effect and to the end the provisions of 
this ordinance are declared to be severable.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with 
this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

Section 4.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective six months after approval 
by the North Carolina Building Code Council. 

- Page 450 -



Introduced by Council Member: _____________________________________ 

Seconded by Council Member:   _____________________________________ 

This the ____ day of ____________, 2024. 

Attest:  TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

____________________________  __________________________________ 
Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC  Jacques K. Gilbert     
Town Clerk   Mayor 

Approved As To Form: 

________________________________ 
Laurie L. Hohe  
Town Attorney 

- Page 451 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CLOSED SESSION 

 Meeting Date: February 13, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Demetria John, Assistant Town Manager  

Steve Adams, Utilities Acquisition / Real Estate Specialist  

Department(s): Town Manager’s Office  

Transportation and Infrastructure Development  

Requested Motion 

Possible motion to go into closed session pursuant to NCGS § 143-318.11(a)(5) to discuss matters related to 

acquisition of real property. 

Approval Recommended? 

N/A 

Item Details 

NCGS § 143-318.11(a)(5)  
 

“To establish, or to instruct the public body's staff or negotiating agents concerning the position to be taken 

by or on behalf of the public body in negotiating (i) the price and other material terms of a contract or 

proposed contract for the acquisition of real property by purchase, option, exchange, or lease; or (ii) the 

amount of compensation and other material terms of an employment contract or proposed employment 

contract.” 

 

Attachments 

 N/A 

 

- Page 452 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CLOSED SESSION 

 Meeting Date: February 13, 2024 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Laurie Hohe, Town Attorney 

Department(s): Legal Services 

Requested Motion 

Possible motion to go into closed session pursuant to NCGS 143-318.11(a)(3) to consult with the Town 

Attorney concerning the handling of the matter: Town of Apex v. Briartac Family, LLC. 

Approval Recommended? 

N/A 

Item Details 

NCGS § 143-318.11(a)(3)  
 
“To consult with an attorney employed or retained by the public body in order to preserve the attorney-

client privilege between the attorney and the public body” 

 

 

Attachments 

 N/A 

 

- Page 453 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CLOSED SESSION 

 Meeting Date: February 13, 2024 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Laurie Hohe, Town Attorney 

Department(s): Legal Services 

Requested Motion 

Motion to go into closed session pursuant to NCGS 143-318.11(a)(3) to consult with the Town Attorney in 

order to preserve attorney-client privilege. 

Approval Recommended? 

N/A 

Item Details 

NCGS § 143-318.11(a)(3)  
 
“To consult with an attorney employed or retained by the public body in order to preserve the attorney-

client privilege between the attorney and the public body” 

 

 

Attachments 

 N/A 

 

- Page 454 -


	Apex Town Council
February 13, 2024
AGENDA
	CN2	Annexation No. 773 - 1075 South Hughes Street - Chick-Fil-A - 3.431 acres
	CN2: Coversheet - Annexation No. 773 - 1075 South Hughes Street - Chick-Fil-A - 3.431 acres
	CN2-A1: Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition, Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk, Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing
	CN2-A2: Legal Description – Annexation No. 773
	CN2-A3: Aerial Map – Annexation No. 773
	CN2-A4: Plat Map – Annexation No. 773
	CN2-A5: Annexation Petition – Annexation No. 773

	CN3	Annexation No. 775 - 1133 Twin Creek Road - 2.80 acres
	CN3: Coversheet - Annexation No. 775 - 1133 Twin Creek Road - 2.80 acres
	CN3-A1: Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition, Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk, Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing
	CN3-A2: Legal Description – Annexation No. 775
	CN3-A3: Aerial Map – Annexation No. 775
	CN3-A4: Plat Map – Annexation No. 775
	CN3-A5: Annexation Petition – Annexation No. 775

	CN4	Annexation No. 776 - Sundance of NC, LLC - Salem Church Road - 2.90 acres
	CN4: Coversheet - Annexation No. 776 - Sundance of NC LLC - Salem Church Road - 2.90 acres
	CN4-A1: Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate Petition, Certificate of Sufficiency by the Town Clerk, Resolution Setting Date of Public Hearing
	CN4-A2: Legal Description – Annexation No. 776
	CN4-A3: Aerial Map – Annexation No. 776
	CN4-A4: Plat Map – Annexation No. 776
	CN4-A5: Annexation Petition – Annexation No. 776

	CN5	Appointments - Environmental Advisory Board (EAB)
	CN5 - Coversheet - Appointments - Environmental Advisory Board (EAB)
	CN5-A1: Danielson, Matthew – Appointments - Environmental Advisory Board (EAB)
	CN5-A2: Deeley, Cathy – Appointments - Environmental Advisory Board (EAB)
	CN5-A3: Elias, Daniel – Appointments - Environmental Advisory Board (EAB)
	CN5-A4: Longo, Marcie – Appointments - Environmental Advisory Board (EAB)
	CN5-A5: Mihaliak, Charles – Appointments - Environmental Advisory Board (EAB)
	CN5-A6: Moller, Njeri – Appointments - Environmental Advisory Board (EAB)
	CN5-A7: Patel, Tanha – Appointments - Environmental Advisory Board (EAB)
	CN5-A8: Sharma, Aditi – Appointments - Environmental Advisory Board (EAB)
	CN5-A9: Tischler, Halle – Appointments - Environmental Advisory Board (EAB)

	CN6	Appointments - Environmental Advisory Board (EAB) - Chair/Vice-Chair
	CN6 - Coversheet - Appointments - Environmental Advisory Board Chair and Vice-Chair

	CN7	Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 12 - Electric Utility Operations
	CN7: Coversheet - Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 12 - Electric Utility Operations
	CN7-A1: Budget Ordinance Amendment 12 - Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 12 - Electric Utility Operations

	CN8	Construction Contract Award - Hollins Construction Services, Inc. (HCS) - Reedy Branch Greenway and Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 2024-11
	CN8: Coversheet - Construction Contract Award - Hollins Construction Services, Inc. (HCS) - Reedy Branch Greenway and Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 2024-11
	CN8-A1: Construction Contract - Construction Contract Award - Hollins Construction Services, Inc. (HCS) - Reedy Branch Greenway and Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 2024-11
	CN8-A2: Bid Certification - Construction Contract Award - Hollins Construction Services, Inc. (HCS) - Reedy Branch Greenway and Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 2024-11
	CN-8-A3: Notice of Award - Hollins Construction Services, Co. - Construction Contract Award - Hollins Construction Services, Inc. (HCS) - Reedy Branch Greenway and Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 2024-11
	CN8-A4: Bid Tab - Construction Contract Award - Hollins Construction Services, Inc. (HCS) - Reedy Branch Greenway and Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 2024-11
	CN8-A5: Recommendation of Award - Construction Contract Award - Hollins Construction Services, Inc. (HCS) - Reedy Branch Greenway and Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 2024-11
	CN8-A6: Capital Project Ordinance Amendment # 2024-11 - Construction Contract Award - Hollins Construction Services, Inc. (HCS) - Reedy Branch Greenway and Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 2024-11

	CN9	Council Meeting Minutes - Various
	CN9: Coversheet - Council Meeting Minutes - Various
	CN9-A1: DRAFT Minutes – January 16, 2024 – Town Council Work Session Minutes
	CN9-A2: DRAFT Minutes – January 23, 2024 – Regular Town Council Minutes
	CN9-A3: DRAFT Minutes – February 3, 2024 – Special Town Council Meeting Minutes
	CN9-A4: DRAFT Minutes – February 4, 2024 – Special Town Council Meeting Minutes

	CN10	Friendship Village Subdivision - Fee-in-Lieu (FIL)
	CN10: Coversheet - Friendship Village Subdivision - Fee-in-Lieu (FIL)
	CN10-A1: Sealed FIL Estimate - Friendship Village Subdivision - Fee-in-Lieu (FIL)
	CN10-A2: Utility Plan Excerpt - Friendship Village Subdivision - Fee-in-Lieu (FIL)

	CN11	Resolution - Abandon Existing Utility Easements - Primrose School Site
	CN11 - Coversheet - Resolution - Abandon Existing Utility Easements - Primrose School Site
	CN11-A1: Resolution - Abandon Existing Utility Easements - Primrose School Site
	CN11-A2: Map showing original easement area - Resolution - Abandon Existing Utility Easements - Primrose School Site
	CN11-A3: Exhibit A showing area to be abandoned and new dedication - Resolution - Abandon Existing Utility Easements - Primrose School Site

	CN12	Rezoning Case No. 23CZ13 Seymour Mixed Use PUD - Statement and Ordinance
	CN12 - Coversheet - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ13 Seymour Mixed Use PUD - Statement and Ordinance
	CN12-A1: Statement and Ordinance - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ13 Seymour Mixed Use PUD - Statement and Ordinance
	CN12-A2: Legal Description - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ13 Seymour Mixed Use PUD - Statement and Ordinance
	CN12-A3: Attachment B – Seymore Mixed-Use Planned Unit Development (PUD) - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ13 Seymour Mixed Use PUD - Statement and Ordinance

	CN13	Rezoning Case No. 23CZ14 Salem Street Townhome PUD - Statement and Ordinance
	CN13 - Coversheet - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ14 Salem Street Townhome PUD - Statement and Ordinance
	CN13-A2: Attachment A – Legal Description - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ14 Salem Street Townhome PUD - Statement and Ordinance
	CN13-A3: Attachment B – Salem Street Townhomes PD Plan Text - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ14 Salem Street Townhome PUD - Statement and Ordinance

	CN14	Rezoning Case No. 23CZ15 Apex Gateway Ph. 2 Amendment - Statement and Ordinance
	CN14 - Coversheet - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ15 Apex Gateway Ph. 2 Amendment Statement and Ordinance
	CN14-A1: Statement and Ordinance - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ15 Apex Gateway Ph. 2 Amendment Statement and Ordinance
	CN14-A2: Exhibits - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ15 Apex Gateway Ph. 2 Amendment Statement and Ordinance
	CN14-A3: Attachment A – Legal Description - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ15 Apex Gateway Ph. 2 Amendment Statement and Ordinance

	CN15	Rezoning Case No. 23CZ20 Sweetwater PUD Amendment - Statement and Ordinance
	CN15: Coversheet - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ20 Sweetwater PUD Amendment - Statement and Ordinance
	CN15-A1: Statement and Ordinance - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ20 Sweetwater PUD Amendment - Statement and Ordinance
	CN15-A2: Attachment A – Legal Description - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ20 Sweetwater PUD Amendment - Statement and Ordinance
	CN15-A3: Attachment B – Sweetwater PUD Amendment Text - Rezoning Case No. 23CZ20 Sweetwater PUD Amendment - Statement and Ordinance

	CN17	Surplus Badge and Service Weapon - Retiring Sergeant John Jones
	CN17: Coversheet -  Surplus Badge and Service Weapon - Retiring Sergeant John Jones

	CN18	Surplus Vehicles - 1999 GMC C8500 and 2008 International Workstar 7300
	CN18: Coversheet - Surplus Vehicles - 1999 GMC C8500 and 2008 International Workstar 7300
	CN18-A1: Vehicle Inspection Form – Unit 13A - 2008 International Workstar 7300 – Surplus Vehicles
	CN18-A2: Vehicle Inspection Form – Unit 84A – 1999 GMC C8500 – Surplus Vehicles

	PR1	Apex Public School Foundation - Quarterly Peak S.T.A.R. Awards
	PR1 - Coversheet - Presentation by the Apex Public School Foundation - Quarterly Peak S.T.A.R. Awards

	PR2	Proclamation - Black History Month - February 2024
	PR2: Proclamation - Black History Month - February 2024

	PR3	Wake County 2024 Revaluation Results
	PR3 - Coversheet - Wake County 2024 Revaluation Results
	PR3: PowerPoint Presentation - Wake County 2024 Revaluation Results

	PH1	Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Amendments - January 2024
	PH1-A1: Staff Report - Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Amendments - January 2024
	PH1: Coversheet - Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Amendments - January 2024
	PH1-A2: Planning Board Report to Town Council - Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Amendments - January 2024
	PH1-A3: Public Notice - Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Amendments - January 2024
	PH1-A4: Ordinance - Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Amendments - January 2024

	OB1	Ordinance Amendment - Chapter 5 - Article 1 - Section 5 - Automatic Fire Sprinkler System Requirements (Discussion ONLY)
	OB1: Coversheet - Ordinance Amendment - Chapter 5 - Article 1 - Section 5 - Automatic Fire Sprinkler System
	OB1-A1: REFERENCE ONLY - Ordinance Amendment - Chapter 5 - Article 1 - Section 5 - Automatic Fire Sprinkler System

	Bottom

